
Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date Friday 19 January 2018
Time 9.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members of 
the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement.

1.  Apologies  
2.  Substitute Members  
3.  Minutes of the meetings held on 9 November and the Special Meeting on 

28 November 2017  (Pages 3 - 18)
4.  Declarations of Interest, if any  
5.  Media Issues  
6.  Any Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties  
7.  South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership Path to Excellence 

Consultation Feedback - Report of the Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships and presentation by representatives of South Tyneside and 
Sunderland NHS Partnership  (Pages 19 - 174)

8.  North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group - Rapid Specialist Opinion 
service - Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and 
presentation by Dr. Neil O'Brien, Chief Clinical Officer, North Durham CCG  
(Pages 175 - 216)

9.  Decommissioning of Stroke Support Service by County Durham and 
Darlington CCGs - Update - Report of the Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships  (Pages 217 - 254)

10.  Draft Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018 Consultation - Report of 
Director of Public Health, Durham County Council  (Pages 255 - 420)



11.  Quarter Two 2017/18 Performance Management Report - Report of the 
Director of Transformation and Partnerships  (Pages 421 - 442)

12.  Adults and Health Services Quarter 2 Forecast of Revenue and Capital 
Outturn 2017/18 - Report of the Head of Finance and Transactional 
Services  (Pages 443 - 448)

13.  Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

  County Hall
  Durham
  11 January 2018

To: The Members of the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee:

Councillor J Robinson (Chairman)
Councillor J Chaplow (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors A Bainbridge, R Bell, P Crathorne, R Crute, G Darkes, M Davinson, 
J Grant, E Huntington, C Kay, K Liddell, L Mavin, A Patterson, S Quinn, A Reed, 
A Savory, M Simmons, H Smith, L Taylor and O Temple

Co-opted Members:

Mrs B Carr and Mrs R Hassoon

Contact: Jackie Graham Tel: 03000 269704



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 9 November 2017 at 9.30 am

Present:

Councillor J Robinson (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors P Crathorne, R Crute, M Davinson, J Grant, E Huntington, C Kay, K Liddell, 
A Patterson, S Quinn, M Simmons, L Taylor and O Temple

Co-opted Members:
Mrs R Hassoon

Also Present:
Councillors L Hovvels, A Laing and J Shuttleworth

1 Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Chaplow, A Bainbridge, R Bell, 
G Darkes, L Mavin, A Reed, A Savory, H Smith and Mrs B Carr.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute members.

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2017 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 2 October 2017 were agreed and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record, with the inclusion of Councillor L Taylor’s apologies.

4 Declarations of Interest, if any 

There were no declarations of interest.

5 Media Issues 

The Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer provided the Committee with a presentation 
of the following press articles which related to the remit of the Adults, Wellbeing and 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee;

 NHS waits for cancer care, A&E and ops worsen across UK – BBC Online 18 
October 2017
The performance of hospitals across the UK had slumped with targets for cancer, 
A&E and planned operations now being missed en masse, BBC research shows.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 Region's NHS trusts among the best in country for meeting key patient wait targets 
– Northern Echo 18 October 2017
Nationally England, Wales and Northern Ireland had not hit one of their three key 
targets for 18 months.
Only Scotland had had any success in the past 12 months - hitting its A&E target 
three times.
Ministers accepted growing demand had left the NHS struggling to keep up as 
doctors warned patients were suffering.
Using BBC Online Guide – CDDFT results 96.8% (Target 95%) 4 Hour waits for 
A&E; Cancer Care 88.8% within 62 days  (85% Target) and Planned ops 92.6% 
within 18 Weeks (Target 92%)

 £85m cost for North-East NHS as number of elderly people falling increases – 
Northern Echo 11 October 2017
THE cost of emergency hospital admissions connected to falls and fractures 
among older people in the North-East had been revealed.
An Academic Health Science Network for the North-East and North Cumbria 
(AHSN NENC) commissioned report found that in 2014 to 2015, there were 12,654 
fall-related admissions in the North-East and North Cumbria, costing an estimated 
£84,973,249 to the region’s NHS.
The figures have been released by the AHSN NENC in a bid to raise awareness of 
preventable falls

 GP service launched at A&Es at Darlington Memorial Hospital and the University 
Hospital of North Durham – Northern Echo 03/11/17
A GP service had been launched at A&Es in the region in a bid to ease pressures 
on the service this winter.
The extra doctors started working in A&Es in Durham and Darlington last month.
Patients cannot make appointments with the doctors and are urged to attend their 
own GP surgery if they do not need emergency care.
The "primary care streaming" was aimed at assessing patients quicker and helping 
the departments at Darlington Memorial and the University Hospital of North 
Durham meet their targets during the winter months.

 Staff shortages blamed for St John's Chapel dispensary closure – Northern Echo 
18 October 2017
SAFETY grounds are being given as the reason why a village dispensary was 
facing closure, according to bosses.
Patients using the service in St John’s Chapel, in Upper Weardale, would have to 
travel up to 22 miles for their prescriptions when it shuts on Friday, October 27.
The Weardale Practice, which runs the service, said a lack of qualified dispensers 
was the reason for the closure.

The Chairman welcomed Dr B Rowley and Miss V Watson from The Weardale Practice 
and Ms W Stephens, Primary Care Contracts Manager, NHS England to the meeting.

Dr Rowley gave a presentation (for copy see file of Minutes) that highlighted the 
following:-

Page 4



 Process and difficulties
 Measures taken to mitigate the impact:  Improved Service
 Engagement
 Summary

Ms Stephens commented that NHS England were responsible for ensuring dispensary 
services.  They had written to the Health and Wellbeing Board and this would be covered 
in recent developments in the pharmaceutical needs assessment.  The Chairman of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board confirmed that Pharmacy Service reports were included as 
an exempt item on the Health and Wellbeing Board agenda.

Councillor Crathorne expressed concerns about people being cut off especially in the poor 
weather, and she also had concerns about how people would get to the nearest 
dispensary or pharmacy.

Councillor Laing picked up on a point Dr Rowley raised about extending the prescription 
for more than the usual prescribed 28 days.  Joseph Chandy, Director of Primary Care 
and Engagement DDES CCG, explained that it was usually practice policy to reduce the 
amount of days for a prescription to 1 month for safety reasons and so that there was less 
wastage should someone’s medication change.  Dr David Richardson added that there 
was clear evidence that prescriptions over 28 days do result in wastage and lost money 
for the service.  Joseph Chandy said that in this case the frail and elderly would be 
monitored with them living in such rural communities.

Councillor Patterson referred to the comment made that the practice no longer wish to 
provide the service and felt that this was more about cost cutting rather than providing a 
safe service.  She asked if there were any alternative options as the decision had been 
made in such a short space of time.  She also echoed Councillor Crathorne’s concerns 
about the accessibility for residents of Stanhope and how they would get to an alternative 
dispensary.  She said that most people need a prescription there and then and that 
people could not always rely on transport to get them to the nearest dispensary or 
chemist.  She felt that residents health should come first.

Referring to the rural area, Councillor Kay was also concerned about the local people.  He 
said that often in poor weather residents could not get out of Upper Weardale, so asked 
how drivers would get into villages to deliver medication. He also picked up on the point 
about increasing a prescription from 28 days and asked if this would also increase the 
cost of the prescription charge so that people would have to pay double the amount.  He 
added that not everyone would be able to use system online and even if they could the 
area was not reliable in terms of a good broadband connection.

Dr Rowley referred to the speed at which the decision had been made and explained that 
the dispenser had left and they were no longer able to provide a service.  Referring to 
concerns over medication he explained that the GP would be able to prescribe from his 
doctor’s bag should clinical circumstances determine it.  He also confirmed that the 
charge for a prescription would be the same regardless of whether it was for 28 or 56 
days. With regards to prescriptions he advised that a GP could send electronically to any 
pharmacy and that there was a delivery service for housebound patients.  Dr Richardson 
reported that more than 90% of people do not pay for their prescriptions and that if they 

Page 5



did pay they could by a season ticket that allowed them to get all prescriptions for a set 
price.  He added that paper prescriptions were rapidly disappearing and that people could 
go to any pharmacy in the country.  He felt that it was important for the committee to 
understand that GPs provide an excellent service and did have thought and consideration 
for their patients.  County Durham were fortunate enough to have three CCGs but he did 
recognise that there were pressures facing the whole County.

Dr Rowley advised that the practice would not save any money due to the changes but 
would remain sustainable, further to a question by Councillor Temple about the financial 
impact.

Councillor Temple did have sympathy for the practice when he heard that it was 
impossible for them to recruit and retain another dispenser until he heard that they no 
longer wished to provide the service.  Dr Rowley said that they had tried for a long time to 
recruit and then it was unsustainable to retain staff in the rural location.  It had taken up a 
lot of practice time and had reached a crisis point.  He explained that the dispenser role 
was unique to the practice and they did not have a member of staff who could give any 
training.

The Chairman was concerned about how people would access their medication, 
especially in an emergency, and felt that there would be a delay.  He was also mindful of 
the additional cost in transport for the people living in the Dales.

Dr Rowley informed Members that there were postal pharmacies and that local 
pharmacists could also be contacted by telephone for advice, something that a dispenser 
could not give.  He added that there were safety and legislative issues with regards to 
controlled drugs and fridge items but that someone could collect drugs on behalf of the 
patient.  He also pointed out that many medications were on repeat prescriptions and 
could be ordered in advance.

Mrs Hassoon said that controlled drugs could not leave a pharmacy without a signature 
and she had concerns for those people who did not have relatives who could collect the 
prescription on their behalf.

The Chairman invited the local member to speak.

Councillor Shuttleworth reported that on receipt of the letters from the practice he received 
11 telephone calls from concerned members of the public.  This was a Saturday 
afternoon.  He then wrote to the practice the following Monday asking to meet with them.  
He did meet with the practice staff the following week and asked them to place an advert 
in the local paper to recruit more staff but he said that they did not want to do this.  He 
then informed the practice that he knew of two people who were qualified and who could 
carry out this work in the dispensary.  Councillor Shuttleworth expressed his concerns that 
1200 people deserved a service and that the nearest services were in Allendale – 18 
miles away, Consett – 17 miles away and Barnard Castle – 22 miles away.  He had 
received a complaint from a constituent who had a 95 year old mother and these changes 
would mean regular 20 mile journeys.  He advised the Committee that the Weardale 
Advertiser had offered to place a free advert in their paper.  He believed that people 
deserved a service and asked if the practice would reconsider appointing someone to the 
position.

Page 6



Dr Rowley said that there was a national issue with recruiting staff but confirmed that 
rurality was a problem with retention at this practice, following a question from Councillor 
Laing.

The Chairman asked if this was a foregone conclusion given the extremely short notice 
and if the process could be halted and looked into.

Ms Stephens explained that NHS England could not enforce a practice to reinstate a 
service if the practice did not feel that they had the capacity of staff.  She confirmed that 
NHS England had liaised with them and that this issue had only been known for a matter 
of weeks.

The Chairman said that there had been several issues with NHS Commissioners not 
advising the Council about issues such as the Richardson Hospital, Neonatal care, heart 
care and felt that the Committee were losing the opportunity to comment.  Ms Stephens 
said that she would take this back to the board of directors.

Joseph Chandy said that the CCG had good working relationships with NHS England and 
that GPs were in a fragile place.  He recognised the frustrations as originally the 
dispensing service was brought into rural communities when technology was not as 
advanced as it was now.  The shift to electronic prescriptions was available with online 
ordering and delivery now.  He said that practices were not about profit and in this case it 
was not a profitability issue.  Challenges in the workforce were common and in these 
times we needed to work together.

Councillor Crathorne referred back to the issue of recruiting staff and asked why the two 
people who could do the job had not been approached.

Councillor Patterson asked if the practice had the capacity to hold a community based 
pharmacy and felt that there were further options to explore.

With reference to the two people who had offered to carry out the role, Dr Rowley 
explained that training a dispenser was a very particular role to each dispensary and very 
different to a pharmacy.  He felt that options had been explored and that they were unable 
to provide a training service regardless of the qualification of an individual.  He reiterated 
that the decision had been triggered by the only dispenser leaving the practice.

The Chairman informed the Committee that given the localised nature of the impact of the 
decision, it was inappropriate to exercise the power to refer the decision to the Secretary 
of State and that they could only put their concerns forward.

Councillor Crute asked that Dr Rowley come back to Committee in 3 months time to 
report on the impact of the community.  He said that powers were limited to this 
Committee and that mechanisms needed to be put in place for any future decisions.

The Chairman thanked everyone for their questions and thanked Dr B Rowley, Miss V 
Watson and Ms W Stephens for attending.

Page 7



Resolved that a report be brought back to the Committee in March highlighting the impact 
of the decision on the local community

6 Any Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties 

The Chairman welcomed Councillor Laing to the meeting to discuss issues around 
parking in and around Peterlee Community Hospital.

Councillor Laing informed the Committee that she had arranged several meetings and 
had set up an online and paper petition with regards to people parking around the streets 
near to the community hospital in Peterlee.  She said that this situation was not unique to 
Peterlee but emphasised that the car park was an adequate size for people to use rather 
than park on the nearby streets causing frustration to the residents and for people trying 
to pass on the roads.  She asked if the Committee could do anything to support her.

The Chairman said that he had visited the site and had found that there was only one car 
in the car park but that people were parked in streets around the site.
 
Peter Butler, Head of Portering and Security, North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Trust 
advised the Committee that car parking charges were introduced in February 2016 and 
people were observed parking in the car park and walking into the Town Centre.  
Following discussions with Councillor Laing the charges were dropped from £3 per day to 
£1 per hour.  The car park had been created so that it was fit for the hospital and its 
patients.  He added that discussions had taken place to extend the double yellow lines 
outside of the hospital site.

Councillor Laing confirmed that talks were ongoing about the double yellow lines but felt 
that people would just park further down the road.  She also advised that parking surveys 
would be taking place.  She would like to see free parking on a trial basis.

Councillor Grant asked if those people who were patients or visitors at the hospital could 
receive a ticket to show that they had used the facility.

Councillor Laing pointed out that Peterlee was high on the deprivation list and a lot of 
people were on benefits so either missed appointments or could not afford to pay for the 
parking.

The Trust advised that the decision about car parking charges was made by their board 
and was taken to bring in line with other NHS sites.  They also confirmed that they have 
spoken to staff about not parking outside of the site but that they were not responsible for 
the nursing home and other staff.

The Committee agreed that it would write to the Chief Executive of North Tees and 
Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust to ask them to consider undertaking improvements to 
the car parking facilities at Peterlee Hospital.

Joseph Chandy said that as a partner in a GP practice in Easington and as a managing 
director in Peterlee, he has used the community centre car park and found the machine 
very difficult to operate.  He said that that people using the Peterlee Health Centre had no 
problems with parking as additional spaces had been purchased.  He reminded the 

Page 8



Committee that this was a deprived population and people would probably chose to park 
for free rather than pay in the hospital car park.  He advised that from the town centre to 
the community hospital car park was an uphill walk.  He strongly supported Councillor 
Laing and the Committee.

7 Reconfiguration of Organic Inpatient (Dementia) Wards serving County 
Durham and Darlington 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Transformation and partnerships 
that provided a post-implementation update in respect to North Durham CCG; Durham, 
Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG and Darlington CCG and Tees, Esk and Wear 
Valleys NHS Foundation Trust’s reconfiguration of Organic Inpatient (Dementia) wards 
serving County Durham and Darlington (for copy see file of Minutes).

The Director of Operations, TEWV confirmed that mitigating factors were still in place 
following the implementation of the reconfiguration of organic inpatient dementia wards.   
She advised it was often difficult to offer a choice at admission, as usually people were 
admitted as an emergency.  However, a choice was always offered and in small number 
of cases this did not occur but there were specific reasons for this, and no one was 
refused.

She went on to explain that a number of suggestions had been implemented such as 
visiting times being more flexible and that carers could join in conference calls.

There had been no impact on re-admissions and staff could spend more time on the 
wards delivering care.

The Chairman referred to travel costs and claims for overnight stays and was advised that 
2 patients were admitted to York as the patients on the ward at the time were very 
challenging and it had been deemed unsafe to admit any further patients.  The service 
manager was in contact with the facility at York on a daily basis and the patients were 
transferred to Auckland Park

Councillor Temple thanked and congratulated the Trust for the report and although the 
people in his ward were not happy with the closure of Lanchester Road, he was pleased 
that the mitigation plan was still in place.  He was pleased to see that the mitigation offer 
was built in as part of the package and he was pleased to see the positive attitudes of 
staff.  The Director of Operations confirmed that this was embedded in the process now.

Resolved: 

 That the report be received.
 That the comments of the Committee in respect of the impact of the reconfiguration 

of Organic Impatient (Dementia) wards serving County Durham and Darlington post-
implementation be noted. 

Page 9



8 Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG Review of Urgent Care 
Services - Post Implementation Update 

The Committee received a report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships that 
provided an update in respect of the implementation of the revised Urgent Care services 
by Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG which commenced on 1 April 2017 (fort 
copy see file of Minutes)

The Director of Commissioning, Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG gave a 
detailed presentation highlighting the following:-

 Service change from 1 April 2017
 Impact of the Changes – Implementation
 Impact of the Changes to date
 Patient Feedback
 Impact of the Changes – Sedgefield
 Impact of the Changes – Easington

Dr David Richardson advised the Committee on the following point:-
 Impact of the Changes to date – Durham Dales

The Director of Commissioning continued with the presentation highlighting:-
 Are there other options in the Dales
 111 Service
 Utilisation of MIU/OoH at Bishop Auckland Hospital & Peterlee Community Hospital 

– weekends
 Utilisation of MIU at Bishop Auckland Hospital & Peterlee Community Hospital – 

weekends for walk-in patients
 Utilisation of MIU at Bishop Auckland Hospital & Peterlee Community Hospital – 

weekdays – walk-in patients
 Minor Injury Units
 Stroke

Councillor Patterson was pleased to see the reduction on A&E attendances but asked for 
further information on the demographical areas with the details behind it.  The Director of 
Commissioning confirmed that this information was shared with practices to gain an 
understanding of where patients were going to, and she would make this available to the 
Committee.

Referring to the significant reduction in people using the Minor Injuries Unit and the Out of 
Hours services during the evening, Councillor Patterson was concerned that the original 
consultation only offered 3 options.  She was pleased to see that the 111 service was 
working much better by booking direct appointments.  The Director of Commissioning 
explained that a substantial exercise had been carried out in order to develop the options 
proposed with an external company who facilitated that.  She was also confident that the 
111 service would continue to grow and evolve.

Councillor Davinson asked that Councillors were kept up to date and be consulted about 
problems in their areas, especially in the Dales area where there was rural isolation.

Page 10



The Chairman asked for further details around the Sedgefield figures as he had concerns 
about people going to North Tees.  The Director of Commissioning recognised that there 
had been an increase at North Tees but would investigate and report back.

Resolved:
(i) That the report be received.
(ii) That the comments made by the Committee on the presentation be noted.

9 Community Contract Procurement Update 

The Committee considered a joint report of the Director of Integration, North Durham 
Clinical Commissioning Group, Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Durham County Council and the Director of Commissioning 
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group that gave an 
update on progress relating to NHS community contract procurement (for copy see file of 
Minutes).

The Director of Commissioning reported that the partners had developed an Accountable 
Care Network (ACN) to bring together health and social care and voluntary organisations 
to achieve improved health and wellbeing for the people of County Durham.  She 
highlighted the key aims of the ACN, details of the procurement exercise and the 
engagement exercises carried out.  It was envisaged that services would continue to be 
delivered in the current locations and should the provider change staff would TUPE over.

Councillor Temple referred to the governance structure proposed within the report in 
respect of the re-procurement process and noted the input of the County Council’s 
Cabinet and CCG Governing Bodies into the Integration Board. However, in noting the 
value of the services being procured across County Durham under the process as being 
around £44m, Councillor Temple questioned the potential interface between the 
Integration Board and the AWH Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
The Director of Commissioning emphasised that should the re-procurement process result 
in any substantial developments or significant variations in service, the partner 
organisations represented within the Integration Board would still have a statutory 
responsibility to consult/engage with Overview and Scrutiny.
In referencing the timelines for the procurement process within the report, the POSO 
advised that the report included a proposed recommendation that regular updates on the 
procurement process be brought back to the Committee.

Resolved:
(i) That the rationale for the planned procurement of adult community services be 

noted.
(ii) That the engagement and development work carried out to date to inform the new 

service model be noted.
(iii) That the intended governance structure for health and social care services be 

noted.
(iv)That the specific governance arrangements that have been put in place to oversee 

this project including risk management be noted.
(v) That the timelines for the project and to agree to receive regular updates on the 

procurement process be noted.

Page 11



10 Tees Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust - Service developments 

The Committee received a report of the Director of Operations, Durham and Darlington, 
Tees Esk and Wear Valleys NHS FT that provided details of a number of developments 
within County Durham, highlighted opportunities and issues for Members to identify if they 
required further detailed updates on any other particular developments (for copy see file 
of Minutes).

The Director of Operations gave the following updates:-
 Earlston House, Hambleton – the changes were planned service changes in 

consultation with the CCGs and would deliver better quality outcomes for patients.
 Harrogate – TEWV took on the services to re-provide in house acute services that 

were not fit for purpose.  Land had been bought and it was always the intention to 
build a new unit however, the level of investment in the patch made it difficult for 
the unit to remain sustainable.  It had been agreed with the CCGs to pause the 
plans and look at the re-provision for Friarage Ward and look at options to meet the 
needs of the population.

 Roseberry Park – the hospital would not close but weaknesses in the structure of 
the building had been identified and needed to be addressed as an emergency.  
Disruption to staff and patients would be minimised and wards would be emptied 
two at a time.  Options were still being explored with regards to the forensic part of 
the site.  Patients would be moved from Roseberry Park to Sandwell Park.  There 
was potential within the Trust to open additional beds.

The Chairman thanked the Director of Operations for the update but added that he was 
concerned of the reliance on West Park as apart from Lanchester Road the nearest 
facility would be Scarborough.  The Director of Operations confirmed that they were 
monitoring the situation.  The Locality Director for County Durham and Darlington said 
that they were working closely with colleagues in North Yorkshire and North Tees and 
daily conversations took place with Lanchester Road and West Park facilities.  He advised 
that they did have the capacity to increase bed numbers and was being managed 
currently.  With regards to Sandwell Park he advised that joined up commissioning 
arrangements were in place.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

11 Regional Health Scrutiny Update 

The Committee received a report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships that 
gave an update in respect of regional health scrutiny activity undertaken by the North East 
Regional Joint Health Scrutiny Committee and the Durham, Darlington, Teesside, 
Hambleton Richmondshire and Whitby STP Joint Health Scrutiny Committee (formerly the 
Better Health Programme Joint OSC) (for copy see file of Minutes).

The Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer advised that the report also set out the latest 
position in respect of the establishment of a Northumberland, Tyne and Wear and North 
Durham STP Joint Health Scrutiny Committee.  

Page 12



He went on to inform the Committee that NEAS gave a presentation at the Regional 
Committee and were requested to consider reinstating localised information regarding the 
Durham and Dales areas.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Special Meeting of Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham on Tuesday 28 November 
2017 at 9.30 am

Present:

Councillor J Robinson (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors A Bainbridge, R Crute, M Davinson, J Grant, C Kay, S Quinn, M Simmons, 
L Taylor and O Temple

Also Present:

L Hovvels

1 Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Chaplow, R Bell, P Crathorne, G 
Darkes, E Huntington, K Liddell, L Mavin, A Patterson, A Reed, A Savory, H Smith, Mrs B 
Carr and Mrs R Hassoon

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute Members.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Any Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties 

There were no items from co-opted members or interested parties.

5 NHS Quality Accounts 2016/17: Progress against 2017/18 priorities - County 
Durham and Darlington NHS FT and Tees Esk and Wear Valleys NHS FT 

The Committee received a report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and 
supporting information from County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust and 
Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust that set out progress made against 
their Quality Accounts priorities for 2017/18 (for copy see file of minutes).

County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust (CDDFT)
The Associate Director of Nursing, County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust 
highlighted the following information from her report:-

Page 15



 Patient Falls – biggest risk with an ageing population.  A post to lead this agenda 
had been created with would have a multi-disciplined approach.

 Dementia – monitoring ongoing, training in place but will be enhanced.
 Healthcare Associated Infection – 3 reported cases of MRSA against a target of 0 

and 12 of clostridium difficile against a target of 19.
 Venous Thromboembolism risk assessment – achievement is above the target of 

95%.
 Pressure Ulcers – 4 incidents last year and 2 this year so learning from 

assessments.
 Discharge – 93.2% against a target of 95%.
 Rate of patient Safety Incidents – 50% of reporters with a goal to reach 75%.
 Sepsis – screening is a mandatory field on the Trust’s Nervecentre system.  A&E 

do not use this and fell short of the target.  Sepsis is now a mandatory field on their 
Symphony system.

 Duty of Candour – compliance is at 96%.
 LOCSSIPS – hit target.
 Nutrition and Hydration – nerve centre under pilot.
 Patient Surveys – ongoing.
 Friends and Family Test – on track.
 Mortality – work ongoing and recruitment of a central mortality review pool ongoing.
 Reduction in 28 day readmissions – monitoring continues.
 Patient Outcome Measures – on track with the exception of groin hernias being 

below the national average.
 Maternity Standards – ongoing work to promote breastfeeding. CDDFT remain the 

exemplar Trust in relation to smoking in pregnancy and the implementation of the 
BabyClear initiative.

 Paediatric Care – work ongoing and key part of clinical strategy.

The Chairman thanked the Associate Director of Nursing for her presentation.

The Chief Executive of CDDFT commended the information shared by Associate Director 
of Nursing and assured members that their board look at the priorities on a regular basis.  
She advised of an unannounced CQC inspection and that she would bring the details 
back to committee after the draft report had been received.  With regards to falls she 
reported that University Hospital North Durham and Darlington Memorial Hospital were 
the 1st and 2nd best in the region and performed well against the country.  She said that an 
addendum to future reports could show the position across England and how the trust 
were performing. The Chairman welcomed this approach.

Councillor Temple asked for confirmation that the difficult targets were around pressure 
ulcers, MRSA and the inability to access “training for the trainer”.  The Associate Director 
of Nursing confirmed that training had been built in for dementia and that changes to 
create a dementia friendly environment had been identified such as large clocks, 
calendars showing the seasons, different coloured crockery, different coloured foods and 
door frames being painted in different colours.  With regards to MRSA she advised that 
the trust would always want to stay with zero tolerance and that policies and procedures 
were in place to tackle this.

Page 16



Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV)
The Head of Planning and Business Development, Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS 
Foundation Trust gave a detailed presentation that highlighted the following:-

 Quality Priorities – Q2 Progress 5 quality priorities all on track
 9 Quality Metrics
 Red Quality Metrics – 

o Percentage of patients who feel safe on the ward – 74.5% for Durham and 
Darlington, against a target of 88%

o Number of Incidents of Physical Intervention/Restraint – 23.07 against a 
target of 19.25

o Average length of stay for patients in Mental Health Services for Older 
People Assessment & Treatment Wards – 52 days against a target of 59.38

o Percentage of patients who reported overall experience as excellent or good 
– 90.5% against a target of 94%

o Percentage of patients that report staff treated them with dignity and respect 
– 83.8% against a target of 94%

o Percentage of patients who would recommend services to friends and family 
– 89.5% against a target of 94%

The Chairman thanked the Head of Planning and Business Development for his 
presentation.

The Chairman welcomed Denise Colmer to the meeting who was reducing Preventable 
Deaths lead, to discuss risks across the county for suicides.  Ms Colmer reported that 
nationally 75-76% of people who commit suicide were not previously known to services 
within the year of death.  She added that an all agency strategy led by Mental health 
teams was needed and that TEWV had been working on a multi-agency strategy.  There 
had been a number of recent changes to the Public Health team which may have delayed 
progress but a workshop was planned for 5 December to look at this.  She went on to 
report that a lot of work was ongoing around suicide prevention and core plans to ensure 
collaboration with service users and friends and family within a community were being 
developed.  She also reported that the North East had the highest rate of suicides than 
the national number.

Councillor Kay was aware of clusters of suicide in certain areas and that were 
predominantly male of a similar age group.  As these people were not known to services 
he asked what was being done to encourage people to speak to services.

With regards to the Crisis Service Councillor Crute suggested that it would be helpful to 
receive an update as through the review group into suicides it had been noted that access 
to crisis was a major problem.  With the roll out of universal credit he believed that this 
would increase problems for people.  The Chairman added that there had been concerns 
expressed about crisis intervention.

Ms Colmer responded that the Crisis Operations Policy had been re-written an overview 
of service users and a recovery strategy programme.  It was recognised across TEWV 
that it was a challenge to access services and she advised that there was a self referral 

Page 17



route available if the person was already known to services. Alternatively referrals could 
be made through voluntary, statutory or GP services.  She added that the operational 
policy needed to be updated and refreshed.  Ms Colmer reported that often a dual 
diagnosis was given for people presenting with mental health issues but if intoxicated at 
the time of risk a thorough assessment could not be carried out.  An early alert process 
was carried out in County Durham and if a suicide was suspected a Police representative 
would attend.  Trends and clusters were looked at.

Referring to the transition for young people into adult services Councillor Grant asked is 
services tapered off if the person’s needs had not changed.  The Head of Planning and 
Business Development explained that the way the services were delivered and the culture 
of the way in which they were delivered may change as the young person reaches 18 but 
there needs would be addressed and supported.  He added that one of the main problems 
was that at 18 a young adult can cut their parents out of conversations.

Councillor Davinson referred to the data in metrics 1, 7 and 8 of the presentation slides 
and asked how only 62% of patients felt safe on the ward but that 91% of patients said 
that they had a good experience.  The Chairman added that he felt that the target for 
dignity and respect and for people feeling safe should be set as 100%.   The Head of 
Planning and Business Development reported that the information was survey based and 
the service would always aim for 100%.  The fact that people might not feel safe but still 
had a good experience could be down to their illness as they could feel uncomfortable but 
that the staff could have been helpful and the canteen and transport links were good and 
therefore the patient would still have had an overall positive experience.

The Chairman said that he would accept that the aspirational target but felt that the 
respect and dignity target should be mandatory and set at 100%.

Councillor Davinson was also advised that the medium length of stay for metric 6b was 52 
days on average but was better in County Durham.  It had been recognised that the 
longer a patient was kept in hospital the more independence they lose. 

In conclusion, the Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer advised that Members would 
recall the presentation and report from the North East Ambulance Service at its meeting 
on 2 October 2017 on performance.  A new national mandated standard had been 
imposed and NEAS would come back with details on performance and the transition to 
the new standards in the New Year.

Resolved that:-

(i) the reports be received and the information provided within the presentations 
noted;

(ii) the CQC Inspection report for County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation 
Trust’s recent unannounced inspection be brought to the Committee’s meeting 
scheduled for 5 March 2018.

Page 18



Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

19 January 2018

Path to Excellence Consultation 
Feedback

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships

Purpose of the Report
1 To provide members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee with information in respect of the results of the Path to 
Excellence consultation undertaken by South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 
Partnership.

Background
2 South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership launched a public 

consultation on 5th July 2017 asking for views and ideas on potential options 
for changes proposed for stroke; maternity (obstetrics); women’s healthcare 
(gynaecology) and children and young people’s healthcare (urgent and 
emergency paediatrics) hospital-based services in South Tyneside and 
Sunderland.

3 Under Section 244 of the NHS Act 2006, local NHS bodies have a duty to 
consult local Overview and Scrutiny Committees on proposals for any 
substantial development of the health service or substantial variation in the 
provision in their areas. Scrutiny Committees are also required to consider the 
extent of consultation undertaken.

4 The Consultation references a programme of clinical service reviews which 
commenced in 2016 that involved asking clinical staff in South Tyneside 
District Hospital and Sunderland Royal Hospital how stroke, maternity, 
gynaecology and paediatrics services should be delivered. Each clinical team 
reviewed a number of options against key criteria, which was developed in 
line with the aims of the Path to Excellence programme and informed by 
service change best practice and national guidance from NHS England and 
NHS Improvement.

5 Copies of the Path to Excellence public consultation document and the public 
questionnaire were placed on deposit in the Members Library.

6 Representatives of South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership 
attended the Committee’s meeting held on 6 September 2017 to provide 
members with information detailing:-

 The rationale for the review of stroke; maternity (obstetrics); women’s 
healthcare (gynaecology) and children and young people’s healthcare 
(urgent and emergency paediatrics) services ;

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 The proposed options for future configuration of the services being 
consulted upon; the number of people from County Durham affected by 
the proposed changes including admission rates from County Durham 
for each service;

 The consultation, communication and engagement activities that will be 
undertaken in informing the local community about the review and what 
is being proposed and how they can input into the review process;

 The decision making timelines proposed for each service change.

7 The consultation process commenced on 5 July 2017 and ended on 15 
October 2017.

8 The Committee agreed a response to the consultation at its meeting held on 2 
October 2017 a copy of which is attached to this report. (Appendix 2)

Latest position

9 Representatives of South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership will be 
in attendance to report upon the feedback obtained during the consultation 
process and how this has influenced the CCGs preferred options for the 
service review moving forward.

10 The Path to Excellence Phase 1 Consultation Feedback Analysis Report is 
attached to this report. (Appendix 3)

Recommendation

11 The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 
recommended to:-

1.  receive this report;

2.  note and comment on the feedback from the communication and 
engagement activity undertaken in respect of the review prior to a final 
decision being made by the CCGs in respect of the proposals.

Background papers

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership Path to excellence consultation

Special Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC 6 September 2017 - Minutes and Agenda 
papers 

Contact: Stephen Gwillym, Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer
E-Mail: stephen.gwillym@durham.gov.uk Tel: 03000 268140

Page 20



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance - None

Staffing - None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – Independent, Integrated, 
Equality, Health and Health Inequalities Impact Assessments have been undertaken.

These reports have been prepared by an independent public health specialist for the 
Path to Excellence Programme to ensure impartiality.

Health Inequalities Impact Assessment (HIIA) is a tool used during NHS service 
reform planning to assess the potential of any policy, plan, proposal or decision to 
reduce or increase health inequalities. Many policies have the potential to impact on 
health inequalities and this is critical information that the NHS will need to consider in 
making their final decision. These are substantial documents and can be found 
through the following links:-

Stroke Impact Assessment (114 pages)
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-Stroke-IIA-
080617.pdf

Obstetrics  and gynaecology Impact Assessment (112 pages)
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/FINAL-OG-IIA-
250617.pdf

Paediatrics Impact Assessment (95 pages)
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-IIA-Paeds-
110617.pdf

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder - None

Human Rights - None

Consultation – The consultation, communications and engagement plan for the 
review were placed on deposit in the member’s library.

Procurement - None

Page 21

https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-Stroke-IIA-080617.pdf
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-Stroke-IIA-080617.pdf
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/FINAL-OG-IIA-250617.pdf
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/FINAL-OG-IIA-250617.pdf
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-IIA-Paeds-110617.pdf
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-IIA-Paeds-110617.pdf


Disability Issues - None

Legal Implications – None 

Page 22



Members
Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham  DH1 5UQ
Main Telephone (03000) 260000   Minicom (0191) 383 3802   Text 07786 02 69 56 

Website: www.durham.gov.uk

Contact: Cllr John Robinson
Direct Tel:  03000 268140
e-mail:
Your ref:
Our ref:

The Path to Excellence South Tyneside 
and Sunderland Consultation,
Freepost RTUS-LYHZ-BRLE,
North of England Commissioning Support,
Riverside House,
Goldcrest Way,
Newcastle-upon-Tyne.
NE15 8NY 

 9 October 2017

Dear Sir, 

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership - Path to Excellence 
Consultation

I would like to thank the representatives of the South Tyneside and Sunderland 
NHS Partnership for attending the special meeting of Durham County Council’s 
Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6 September 
2017 to discuss the statutory consultation being undertaken in respect of the 
proposed changes to stroke; maternity (obstetrics); women’s healthcare 
(gynaecology) and children and young people’s healthcare (urgent and 
emergency paediatrics).

Following consideration of the strategic context for the NHS, the Path to 
Excellence proposals and the impact upon County Durham patients, the 
Committee wish to make the following comments as their formal response to 
the statutory consultation.

Strategic context and rationale for change.

The Committee notes that the rationale for change is largely based upon two 
factors. Firstly, there are increasing workforce pressure across the NHS and 
which are being experienced within the South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 
Partnership. These relate to an insufficient number of senior staff being 
available to cover services on a 24/7 basis across multiple sites and which has 
led to an overreliance on locum staff at a higher cost. Secondly, royal colleges 
across health service professions have stressed the importance of having 
centres of excellence within which there is an optimum level of throughput in 
terms of patient numbers and procedures undertaken to ensure required 

APPENDIX 2

Page 23



standards of professional competencies are maintained. These in turn make 
such centres more attractive to potential new employees.

The Committee is concerned at the lack of robust workforce planning at a 
national level for which the Secretary of State for Health should bear some 
responsibility. Across the breadth of NHS Services, the Committee has 
consistently been advised that service change is necessary in order to address 
staffing shortages and enable viable shifts/rotas to be maintained. This must be 
addressed urgently. The Committee also believe that action should be taken at 
a local level by NHS Foundation Trusts and Clinical Commissioning Groups 
working with the region’s Universities to examine how health professional 
qualifications can be made more attractive as a career choice.

General comments on the Path to Excellence Programme proposals

The Committee has received presentations earlier this year in respect of draft 
Sustainability and Transformation Plans that have been developed covering 
Northumberland, Tyne and Wear and North Durham (NTWND STP) footprint 
and the Durham, Darlington, Teesside, Hambleton, Richmondshire and Whitby 
(DDTHRW STP) footprint. In respect of the NTWND STP, the Committee has 
been advised that this was a series of pre-existing plans for service change, of 
which the Path to Excellence programme appears to be one such plan. Whilst 
acknowledging the work undertaken to date in respect of the programme, the 
Committee are concerned that service changes agreed under the Path to 
Excellence programme will be implemented without recourse to any potential 
impact upon other areas within the two STP footprints. Accordingly, the 
Committee would seek assurances that dialogue is taking place across STP 
boundaries and that any cross boundary implications of service changes are 
fully explored and mitigated against.

Members are also aware that frequently service changes within the NHS may 
have an impact upon local authority health and social care services and 
associated budgets. The Committee would seek assurances that appropriate 
dialogue takes place with affected local authorities including Durham County 
Council on any unintended consequences of any service changes agreed 
following the Path to Excellence programme consultation.

In terms of the potential impact of the Path to Excellence programme proposals 
on residents of County Durham, it appears that the options across all four 
service areas appear to favour centralisation on the Sunderland Royal Hospital 
site. As a consequence of this the Committee acknowledges that there should 
be little adverse impact upon the residents of County Durham.

Stroke Services

Whilst accepting that the number of County Durham residents treated for stroke 
within the Sunderland and South Tyneside is relatively small, there will be a 

Page 24



potential impact upon the local authority in terms of discharge planning 
arrangements post-acute treatment. It is therefore essential that whichever 
option is agreed, Durham County Council adult and social care staff are 
involved in any discharge planning processes subsequently developed.

The Committee notes the recent poor performance of South Tyneside District 
Hospital and Sunderland Royal Hospital in terms of their Sentinel Stroke 
National Audit report scores and welcomes the recent improvements that have 
been demonstrated following the temporary changes made to stroke services in 
January 2017 and which form the basis for the model proposed in Option 1.

During consideration of the stroke service proposals, there were concerns 
raised by the Committee that stroke service patients would continue to be 
triaged in A&E by specialist stroke staff rather than being directly admitted to a 
dedicated stroke ward (which the Committee is aware happens within County 
Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust at University Hospital North 
Durham). The Committee would welcome assurances that whatever the model 
implemented, stroke patients would be admitted directly to a dedicated stroke 
ward/unit, bypassing A&E and ensuring that they receive the necessary 
treatment as quickly as possible.

The Committee appreciates that the centralisation of stroke services on a single 
site, whilst delivering better potential outcomes for patients, may result in 
increased travel times to services for some patients. The existing pressure upon 
the North East Ambulance Service (NEAS) in terms of ambulance response 
times and transfer delays are well documented and known to the Committee. It 
is considered vital that the views of NEAS on the proposed options for stroke 
services are known and that any potential increase in ambulatory travel times 
are factored into the decision making process.

Proposed development of Durham Treatment Centre, Belmont

In November 2016, the Committee received information regarding the 
development of a Treatment Centre at Belmont Durham by Sunderland City 
Hospital’s NHS FT which would provide services such as Renal services, 
Ophthalmology and Urology services to patients including County Durham 
residents. Whilst noting that these services are not part of the current Path to 
Excellence programme, the Committee seeks assurances that the proposed 
development will not be compromised in any future service reconfigurations.

Finally, the Committee requests that a further report detailing the results of the 
Path to Excellence consultation process be brought back to the Adults 
Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee scheduled for 19 
January 2018 before a final decision is taken by South Tyneside and 
Sunderland CCGs.

Page 25



Yours faithfully,

 

Cllr John Robinson
Chair of the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Durham County Council

Page 26



	
	 	 	

SMP	

	

	

	

	 	

Phase 1  
	

Consultation 
Feedback  

Analysis Report  
		

Final Draft Report 
5th December 2017  

	

Page 27



	
	 	 	

The	Path	to	Excellence	is	a	five-year	transformation	of	healthcare	services	across	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland.	It	has	been	set	up	to	secure	the	future	of	local	NHS	services	and	
to	identify	new	and	innovative	ways	of	delivering	safe,	high	quality,	joined	up,	sustainable	
care	that	will	benefit	the	population	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	both	now	and	in	the	
future.	

The	public	consultation	for	the	Path	to	Excellence	programme	is	being	led	by	the	
commissioners	of	local	health	services	–	NHS	South	Tyneside	Clinical	Commissioning	Group	
(CCG)	and	NHS	Sunderland	CCG	–	who	are	responsible	for	planning	and	buying	healthcare	
services	on	behalf	of	patients.	

Working	in	partnership	with	South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	and	City	Hospitals	
Sunderland	NHS	Foundation	Trust,	who	formed	a	strategic	alliance	in	March	2016	known	as	
‘South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	Healthcare	Group’,	all	four	NHS	organisations	are	
committed	to	delivering	the	best	possible	NHS	services	for	the	future	through	the	Path	to	
Excellence	programme.	

Initial	feedback		

The	Path	to	Excellence	listening	exercise	started	in	October	2016.	It	was	aimed	at	
understanding	public	views,	needs	and	experiences	relating	to	stroke,	maternity	and	
gynaecology,	and	paediatric	services.	Also	included	in	this	work	is	the	travel	and	transport	
impact	assessment.			

The	Path	to	Excellence	asked	local	people	to	share	their	views	on	clinical	services	in	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland	to	help	us	identify	how	they	can	be	improved	and	how	things	
might	be	done	differently	in	the	future.	

Public	engagement	and	market	research	within	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	provided	
key	findings	to	provide	insight	to	support	consultation	around	any	possible	future	proposed	
changes	to	the	clinical	areas.		

The	primary	findings	of	the	listening	exercise	are	published	and	available	at:	
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/A-review-of-patient-insight-
South-Tyneside-and-Sunderland-Version-4.pdf	

The	Path	to	Excellence	consultation	

The	formal	consultation	phase	of	the	Path	to	Excellence	proposals	to	gather	public	views	
around	the	different	ways	NHS	services	could	be	arranged	in	South	Tyneside	and	
Sunderland	took	place	from	5	July	to	15	October	around:	

• Stroke	services	specifically	hospital	(acute)	care	and	hospital-based	rehabilitation	
services	

• Maternity	services	(obstetrics)	covering	hospital	based	birthing	facilities	i.e.	where	
you	would	give	birth	to	your	baby	and	special	care	baby	units	

Page 28



	
	 	 	

• Women’s	healthcare	(gynaecology)	services	covering	inpatient	surgery	where	you	
would	need	an	overnight	hospital	stay	

• Children	and	young	people’s	healthcare	services	(urgent	and	emergency	paediatrics)	
specifically	urgent	and	emergency	care	

NHS	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	Partnership	has	a	requirement	to	develop	a	robust	
level	of	knowledge	and	understanding	on	public	perception	of	clinical	services	currently	
under	review	as	part	of	the	Path	to	Excellence	programme	(the	Sustainable	Transformation	
Partnership	for	the	area).		

NHS	North	of	England	Commissioning	Support	(NECS)	

NHS	North	of	England	Commissioning	Support	(NECS)	was	engaged	by	the	NHS	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland	partnership	organisations	to	provide	expert	strategic	advice	and	
operational	delivery	for	a	programme	of	engagement	and	consultation	to	support	the	Path	
to	Excellence	reform	programme.		

NECS	has	significant	experience	in	providing	end	to	end	service	transformation	and	
consultation,	and	adopt	a	continuous	improvement	approach	to	constantly	learn	and	refine		
its	activity.	The	NECS	team	has	have	strong	links	with	communications	professionals	across	
the	NHS	nationally,	and	are	able	to	draw	upon	those	networks	and	experiences	to	bring	that	
learning	locally,	and	this	has	been	a	strong	theme	of	the	Path	to	Excellence	programme.	This	
is	also	in-line	with	the	principle	that	consultations	are	a	‘continuous	dynamic	dialogue’	and	
are	a	self-correcting	process.	This	allows	organisations	that	are	consulting	with	the	public	to	
change	consultation	processes	in	response	to	what	is	being	heard	about	the	process	during	
the	consultation	period.	

The	Consultation	Institute	

NECS	also	have	a	strategic	partnership	with	the	independent	Consultation	Institute,	who	
provide	quality	assurance	reviews	of	consultation	processes,	external	expertise,	up	to	date	
advice	on	emerging	case	law	and	an	assessment	on	the	robustness	of	the	consultation	
process	to	provide	third	party	assurance	and	credibility	to	NHS	institutions	that	good	
practice	is	being	adopted.	

NHS	duty	to	consult		

The	objective	of	the	consultation	was	to	provide	a	range	of	engagement	activity	that	
allowed	different	stakeholders	and	groups	to	get	involved	in	the	way	that	is	most	suitable	to	
them.	All	methods	ensured	that	feedback	and	dialogue	was	captured,	which	will	be	then	be	
analysed	and	included	in	this	final	feedback	report.	All	methods	included	data	monitoring	of	
the	key	characteristics	of	participants	to	ensure	the	NHS	organisations	are	hearing	from	key	
groups	and	that	equality	monitoring	took	place.		

This	is	not	only	best	practice,	but	will	also	ensure	that	the	NHS	meets	its	equality	duties	as	
well	as	its	statutory	duties	to	involve	and	consult,	in	line	with	the	principles	of	‘Transforming	

Page 29



	
	 	 	

Participation’	and	the	rights	and	pledges	set	out	in	the	NHS	Constitution,	as	well	as	the	
Empowering	Communities	principles	for	person	centred	care.	

A	key	requirement	is	to	meet	the	NHS	England	assurance	framework,	planning,	assuring	and	
delivering	service	change	for	patients.	By	doing	so,	it	also	provides	a	robust	planning	process	
and	NHS	local	system	assurance.	

The	consultation	strategy	and	subsequent	activity	and	resources	were	benchmarked	against	
the	resources	and	budget	made	available	in	Manchester	for	Health	Devo,	the	Cumbria	
Success	Regime	and	the	Durham	and	Tees	Better	Health	Programme.	This	included	the	
communications	and	engagement	expertise,	experience	and	skill	mix	required	and	budget	
recommendations	to	deliver	a	safe	engagement	and	consultation	process.		

Appointment	of	Independent	Analysts	

Social	Marketing	Partners	(SMP)	were	appointed	to	provide	independent	analysis	of	and	
reporting	on,	the	consultation	feedback.	The	appointment	of	SMP	was	made	by	NECS	
through	an	NHS	tendering	process,	using	best	practice	supply	chain	procurement	guidance.	

At	the	outset,	SMP	engaged	local	partners	and	local	authority	scrutiny	committee	members	
in	a	co-production	workshop	to	set	the	scope	of	the	quantitative	work	and	to	consider	the	
questions	to	be	asked	on	the	options	that	had	been	developed.	SMP	provided	guidance	on	
methodologies	and	the	consultation	survey	questionnaires,	which	were	approved	by	the	
governing	partners.	

SMP	has	also	supported	NECS	in	the	delivery	of	consultation	engagement	through	advice	on	
standardising	approaches	for	better	analysis.		To	equip	local	VCS	groups,	SMP	worked	with	
NECS	to	develop	a	bespoke	toolkit	for	focus	group	delivery	which	has	been	available	online.		
This	was	supported	by	a	webinar,	open	to	all	groups	that	expressed	an	interest	in	running	a	
focus	group	session.	

What	happens	next?		

This	analysis	report	produced	by	SMP	will	be	used	to	inform	the	'decision	making	process'	
around	local	NHS	services	potentially	being	relocated	across	two	hospitals	in	South	Tyneside	
and	Sunderland,	namely	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	(STDH)	and	Sunderland	Royal	
Hospital	(SRH).	

This	feedback	report	will	be	published	in	a	draft	form	in	early	December,	presented	to	trust	
staff,	Joint	Health	Overview	and	Scrutiny	Committee	(JHOSC)	and	at	two	public	events.	

The	intention	is	to	allow	further	public	feedback	on	the	draft	before	finalising	the	public	
consultation	feedback	report	for	consideration	by	the	two	clinical	commissioning	groups	–	
NHS	South	Tyneside	Clinical	Commissioning	Group	(CCG)	and	NHS	Sunderland	Clinical	
Commissioning	Group	(CCG).	

Between	now	and	February	next	year,	there	will	be	a	series	of	workshop	sessions.		

Page 30



	
	 	 	

This	includes	the	public	feedback	sessions,	clinical	workshops	with	members	of	the	clinical	
services	review	group	and	workshops	with	the	two	CCG	governing	bodies	culminating	with	
an	extra-ordinary	meeting	in	common	of	the	governing	bodies	of	the	two	clinical	
commissioning	groups	in	February	2018,	held	in	public	and	at	which	the	two	CCGs	will	make	
their	final	decisions.		

This	allows	the	opportunity	for	any	further	comments	that	have	been	received	from	the	
public	feedback	sessions,	and	for	other	data	or	views	to	be	considered	as	well	as	
consideration	of	any	alternative	service	models	that	may	have	been	suggested	through	the	
public	consultation.	

	
	

	NHS	North	of	England	Commissioning	Support	(NECS)

Page 31



	

	
	 	 	

The	Path	to	Excellence	

	
Consultation	Analysis	Report	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Page 32



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	
	

	

Table of Contents 
1	 Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	Executive	Summary	...........................................	1	
1.1	 Introduction	.................................................................................................................	1	
1.2	 The	Consultation	..........................................................................................................	1	
1.3	 Online	website	and	social	media	metrics	.....................................................................	3	
1.4	 Consultation	Analysis	...................................................................................................	2	
1.5	 Quantitative	Findings:	Resident	Street	Survey,	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	

and	Direct	Patient	Surveys	...........................................................................................	2	
1.6	 Overall	Preferred	Option:	Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	......	4	
1.7	 Overall	Preferred	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	...............	6	
1.8	 Qualitative	Findings:	Focus	Groups	and	Public,	Staff	and	Stakeholder	Meetings	........	7	
1.9	 Staff	Group	Feedback	.................................................................................................	11	
1.10	 Findings	Summary	......................................................................................................	13	

2	 The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	..................................................................................	15	
2.1	 Introduction	...............................................................................................................	15	
2.2	 The	Consultation	Process	...........................................................................................	16	
2.3	 Methodologies	...........................................................................................................	17	
2.4	 Responses	...................................................................................................................	20	
2.5	 Demographics	summary	.............................................................................................	20	
2.6	 Consultation	Analysis	methodologies	........................................................................	24	
2.7	 Analysis	Report	Structure	...........................................................................................	25	

3	 Quantitative	Responses:	Stroke	Services	...........................................................................	27	
3.1	 Introduction	...............................................................................................................	27	
3.2	 Resident	Street	Survey	Analysis	.................................................................................	29	
3.3	 Stroke	Service	Option	preferences	by	Area	(Resident	Street	Survey)	........................	29	
3.4	 Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	...............................................................	31	
3.5	 Direct	Patient	Survey	Analysis	....................................................................................	33	
3.6	 Stroke	Services	Quantitative	Analysis	Summary	........................................................	37	

4	 Quantitative	Responses:	Maternity	(obstetrics)	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	
(gynaecology)	..............................................................................................................................	38	
4.1	 Introduction	...............................................................................................................	38	
4.2	 Resident	Street	Survey	Analysis	.................................................................................	40	
4.3	 Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	...............................................................	42	
4.4	 Direct	Patient	Survey	Analysis	....................................................................................	44	
4.5	 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Age	(Direct	

Patient	Survey)	...........................................................................................................	45	
4.6	 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Options	scale	of	meeting	need	..........	46	
4.7	 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Quantitative	Analysis	Summary	.........	47	

Page 33



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	
	

	

5	 Quantitative	Responses:	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	(urgent	and	
emergency	paediatrics)	Services	................................................................................................	49	
5.1	 Introduction	...............................................................................................................	49	
5.2	 Resident	Street	Survey	Analysis	.................................................................................	50	
5.3	 Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	...............................................................	52	
5.4	 Direct	Patient	Survey	Analysis	....................................................................................	54	
5.5	 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Options	scale	of	meeting	need	...	56	
5.6	 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Quantitative	Analysis	Summary	..	58	

6	 Quantitative	Analysis:	Process	Questions	..........................................................................	59	
6.1	 Introduction	...............................................................................................................	59	
6.2	 Findings:	Quantitative	Process	Questions	..................................................................	59	

7	 Overall	Options	Preferences	by	Quantitative	Method	......................................................	61	
7.1	 Stroke	Services	...........................................................................................................	61	
7.2	 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	..............................................	62	
7.3	 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	.....................................................	63	

8	 Quantitative	Key	Themes	from	Open	Text	Responses	......................................................	64	

9	 Qualitative	Findings:	Public,	Staff	and	Stakeholder	Meetings	...........................................	66	
9.1	 Meeting	Records	........................................................................................................	66	

10	 Focus	Groups	......................................................................................................................	77	
10.2	 Travel	and	Transport	Discussion	Group	.....................................................................	88	
10.3	 Staff	Q&A	events	........................................................................................................	92	

11	 Individual	Submissions	.......................................................................................................	96	
11.1	 Introduction	...............................................................................................................	96	
11.2	 Health	Scrutiny	and	Healthwatch	organisations	........................................................	97	
11.3	 NHS	Organisations	......................................................................................................	98	
11.4	 Voluntary	and	Community	Sector	(VCS)/Third	Sector	Organisations	–	Including	

National	Organisations	...............................................................................................	98	
11.5	 Patients	and	Public	.....................................................................................................	99	
11.6	 NHS	Governors	and	Staff	..........................................................................................	100	
11.7	 Trade	unions	and	staff	group	representatives	.........................................................	100	
11.8	 Elected	representatives,	Members	of	parliament	and	political	parties.	..................	101	

12	 Summary	of	Findings	........................................................................................................	102	

13	 Appendix	One:	Detailed	Consultation	Options	for	All	Services	.......................................	104	

14	 Appendix	Two:	Targeted	Equality	Focus	Groups	Demographics	....................................	110	
14.1	 Introduction	.............................................................................................................	110	
14.2	 General	Demographics	.............................................................................................	110	
14.3	 Living	in	a	Deprived	Neighbourhood	........................................................................	111	

15	 Appendix	Three:		Equalities	Groups	–	Key	Issues	from	the	Focus	Groups	......................	112	

Page 34



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	
	

	

16	 Appendix	Four:	Individual	submissions	............................................................................	114	

17	 Appendix	Five:		Key	Themes	of	Open	Text	Analysis	from	Quantitative	Methods	...........	116	
17.1	 Introduction	.............................................................................................................	116	
17.2	 Stroke	Services	.........................................................................................................	116	
17.3	 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	............................................	118	
17.4	 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	...................................................	119	

18	 Appendix	Six:	Process	Questions	all	outputs	...................................................................	122	
18.1	 Resident	survey	results	............................................................................................	122	
18.2	 Online/paper	results	................................................................................................	123	
18.3	 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	respondents
	 124	
18.4	 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	

respondents	.............................................................................................................	125	
18.5	 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Stroke	Services	respondents	...................................	126	
18.6	 Criteria	felt	to	be	most	important	in	the	decision-making	process	..........................	127	

19	 Appendix	Seven:	Focus	Group	Meetings	(Dates,	Venues)	..............................................	132	

20	 Appendix	Eight:	Public	Meetings	(Dates,	Venues)	...........................................................	133	

21	 Appendix	Nine:	Resident	Street	Survey	Sampling	Detail	.................................................	134	
21.1	 Quota:	Sunderland	...................................................................................................	134	
21.2	 Quota:	South	Tyneside	.............................................................................................	135	
	

Page 35



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

1	
	

1 Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	Executive	Summary		

1.1 Introduction	

The	Path	to	Excellence	public	consultation	considers	the	views	of	the	public,	service	users,	
stakeholders,	and	staff	on	the	potential	ways	in	which	delivery	of	some	healthcare	services	
might	be	reorganised	for	the	future	in	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland.	

The	Path	to	Excellence	(phase	one)	consultation	ran	for	fourteen	and	a	half	weeks	from	July	
5th	to	October	15th,	2017	(extended	beyond	the	usual	12	weeks	to	take	account	of	the	
summer	holiday	period.)		

The	services	included	in	this	consultation	were:	

• Stroke	Services:	 • Hospital-based	care	(acute);	and	
• Hospital-based	rehabilitation	services.	
• Three	options	considered.	

• Maternity	Services	and	

Women’s	Healthcare	

Services:	

• Obstetrics	and	gynaecology;	
• Covering	hospital-based	birthing	facilities	i.e.	

where	you	give	birth	to	your	baby,	special	care	
baby	unit	(SCBU);	and		

• All	inpatient	surgery	that	includes	an	overnight	
hospital	stay		

• Two	options	considered.	

• Children	and	Young	People’s	

Healthcare	Services:	

• Urgent	and	emergency	paediatric	care;	
• Two	options	considered.		

	

The	public	consultation	for	the	Path	to	Excellence	programme	is	being	led	by	the	
commissioners	of	local	health	services	–	NHS	South	Tyneside	Clinical	Commissioning	Group	
(CCG)	and	NHS	Sunderland	CCG	–	who	are	responsible	for	planning	and	buying	healthcare	
services	on	behalf	of	patients.	

Working	in	partnership	with	South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	and	City	Hospitals	
Sunderland	NHS	Foundation	Trust,	who	formed	a	strategic	alliance	in	March	2016	known	as	
‘South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	Healthcare	Group’,	all	four	NHS	organisations	are	
committed	to	delivering	the	best	possible	NHS	services	for	the	future	through	the	Path	to	
Excellence programme.	

1.2 The	Consultation		

The	consultation	followed	the	principles	of	a	‘continuous	dynamic	dialogue’	and	
compensating	methods	were	introduced	when	potential	gaps	in	coverage	were	identified.	
The	specific	methods	employed	as	part	of	the	Path	to	Excellence	consultation,	and	included	
in	this	analysis,	were:	

Page 36



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

2	
	

• A	resident	street	survey,	representative	at	the	population	level;	
• An	online	and	paper	based	consultation	survey,	available	to	all;	
• A	direct	mail	patient	survey	of	a	sample	of	service	users,	to	reflect	lived	experience;	
• Focus	group	sessions	with	protected	characteristic	and	other	equalities	groups;		
• Public,	staff	and	stakeholder	discussion	events,	including	specific	staff	events;	and	
• Individual	submissions;	the	consultation	also	received	emails,	letters,	and	phone	calls,	

to	ensure	people	were	able	to	make	contributions	not	limited	to	the	methodologies	
listed	above.		

In	addition,	online	and	social	media	engagement	was	delivered	locally	linked	to	the	Path	to	
Excellence	website.	

Three	launch	events	were	also	held	in	July,	which	were	not	included	in	the	analysis	as	their	
nature	as	scene	setting	events	was	designed	to	introduce	the	process,	highlighting	the	key	
issues	and	methods	available	to	engage	with	in	the	consultation.		The	notes	of	these	events	
together	with	Q&A	were	published	on	the	Path	to	Excellence	website	at:	
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/public-consultation/feedback-section/		

When	considering	the	results,	it	is	important	to	note:	

• The	street	survey	of	residents	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	is	representative	at	the	
population	level,	considering	the	views	of	all	irrespective	of	current	service	use.	This	is	
the	only	statistically	reliable	response1,	but	does	not	necessarily	reflect	the	views	of	
services	users.	

• The	online	and	paper	survey	represents	the	views	of	those	who	are	engaged,	this	is	
more	likely	to	include	the	views	of	service	users,	carers,	staff,	and	others	with	a	direct	
interest	in	the	services,	but	cannot	be	said	to	represent	opinion	from	the	entire	
population.	This	is	very	important	opinion	for	that	reason,	but	cannot	be	treated	as	
being	statistically	reliable	as	respondents	are	self-selecting.	

• The	direct	survey	to	people	who	had	used	services	within	the	last	two	years	is	arguably	
the	most	representative	of	their	views,	and	is	a	very	important	source	of	opinion,	but	
this	again	cannot	be	treated	as	statistically	reliable	due	to	the	self-selecting	nature	of	
the	respondents	and	that	the	sample	size	of	those	responding	was	relatively	small.	

The	total	responses	to	the	consultation,	and	the	form	they	took,	are	shown	below.		

Resident	street	survey	 805	interviews	

Online	and	paper	based	consultation	survey	 496	responses	

Direct	mail	patient	survey	(across	three	service	areas)	 324	responses	

																																																								
1	Using	2016	Mid-	Year	Population	Estimates	for	both	boroughs.	Across	both	populations	the	results	are	
reliable	to	a	confidence	level	of	95%	with	a	confidence	interval	of	+/-3.89	(for	South	Tyneside	this	95%	+/-	4.89	
and	Sunderland	is	95%	+/-	4.9.)	

Page 37



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

3	
	

Focus	groups	 32	groups,	144	participants2	

Public,	staff	and	stakeholder	events		 19	events,	141	participants2	

Staff	Q&A	events	 12	groups,	174	participants	

Phone,	letter,	email	submissions	 57submissions	
Travel	and	Transport	discussion	group	 1	event,	53	participants	

	
In	addition,	In	July	2017,	as	part	of	the	Trusts'	regular	quarterly	staff	briefings,	information	
about	the	consultation	and	potential	options	was	shared	and	discussed	with	staff	in	both	
South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland.		A	total	of	197	staff	attended	these	summer	briefing	
sessions	which	were	followed	up	by	a	detailed	Q&A	document,	circulated	to	all	staff	across	
both	Trusts	to	openly	share	feedback	on	the	questions	raised	during	the	briefing	sessions.	

1.3 Online	website	and	social	media	metrics	

For	the	period	of	the	consultation,	online	and	social	media	were	used	extensively	to	engage	
the	public	and	encourage	participation	in	the	consultation,	led	locally	by	NECS.	The	main	
active	consultation	period	was	5th	July	–	15th	October	2017	the	following	engagement	was	
achieved3.	

1.3.1 Website	

Pre-consultation	and	launch	period	(21st	June	–	5th	July):	Total	site	visits	=	1,848	
Consultation	period	(5th	July	–	15th	October):	Total	site	visits	=	8,438	made	up	of:	

• Unique	visits	=	6,261	
• Direct	=	2,619	
• Organic	=	1,402	
• Social	=	1,414	

• Referral	=	818	
• Email	=	9	
• Repeat	visits	=	2,177

	

The	website	pages	were	viewed	15,335	times	in	total	–	meaning	every	visitor	viewed	on	
average	two	pages	on	the	website	each	visit.	People	typically	spent	2	minutes	on	the	
website	and	the	most	visited	page	during	the	consultation	was	the	home	page	with	6,307	
total	views	and	4,946	unique	views.	The	most	visited	areas	of	care	page	were	maternity	and	
women’s	healthcare	with	1,273	page	views	of	which	1,082	were	unique.	

1.3.2 Social	media		

Consultation	period	(5th	July	–	15th	October):		

• Followers/connections:	Facebook	=	207	/	Twitter	=	129		
• Average	reach	per	day:	Facebook	=	60	/	Twitter	=	2,100	

																																																								
2	Numbers	completing	event	evaluation/monitoring	forms,	actual	attendance	could	be	higher.	28	groups	
provided	feedback	in	time	to	be	included	for	analysis	
3	figures	provided	by	NECS	Communications	and	Engagement	team	

Page 38



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

2	
	

• Brand	sentiment:	65	positive	messages	(51.2%)	/	41	neutral	messages	32.3%)	/	21	
negative	messages	(16.5%)	

• Post	success	varied	and	depending	on	the	goal	the	best	social	outlet	for	reach	is	Twitter	
and	the	best	source	for	link	clicks	is	Facebook.		

	
1.3.3 Media	monitoring	

Consultation	period	(5th	July	–	15th	October):		

Media	coverage	was	achieved	36	times	online	and	in	the	local	papers	with	a	total	Reach	for	
all	coverage	of	1,643,435	people.	

Outlets	included:	

• Shields	Gazette	x	12	 	
• Shields	Gazette	(online)	x	5	
• Sunderland	Echo	(Online)	x	5	
• Sunderland	Echo	x	4	

• Hartlepool	mail	(online)	x	4	
• The	Chronicle	(online)	x	3		
• The	Chronicle	x	2	
• The	Journal	x	1		

1.4 Consultation	Analysis		

Social	Marketing	Partners	(SMP)	is	an	independent	marketing,	communications,	
engagement,	and	social	research	agency,	commissioned	to	provide	independent	analysis	
and	reporting	of	the	consultation	outputs,	and	also	provided	guidance	on	methodologies	
and	the	consultation	survey	questionnaires.	Our	approach	is	based	on	a	mix	of	
understanding	of	the	principles	and	practice	of	consultation	coupled	with	solid	experience	
of	market	and	social	research	alongside	communications	and	engagement	expertise.		

The	methods	used	to	analyse	the	results	were:	

• Quantitative	Analysis:	the	findings	from	the	survey	based	consultation	approaches	
(Resident	street	survey,	online/paper	consultation	survey,	and	direct	patient	surveys)	
were	each	analysed	separately	to	recognise	the	differences	in	the	respondents	and	
sampling	approach.			

Page 39



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

2	
	

The	closed	responses	were	analysed	using	industry	standard	proprietary	statistical	
analysis	software4	with	manual	coding	used	for	the	free	text	responses	to	group	them	
into	themes	reflective	of	the	sentiment	expressed.		

• Qualitative	Analysis:	the	findings	from	the	discussion	based	consultation	approaches	
(focus	groups,	public	meetings,	and	individual	submissions)	are	based	on	an	approach	
where	the	data	from	the	session	notes	is	analysed	and	responses	grouped	into	themes	
that	most	closely	represent	the	views	expressed5.		This	allows	us	to	report	the	findings	
based	on	an	accurate	reflection	of	the	sentiments	expressed.	Where	quotes	and	
comments	are	shown	in	the	full	report,	these	have	been	chosen	to	represent	the	centre	
of	the	sentiment	expressed	within	that	theme.		

1.5 Quantitative	Findings:	Resident	Street	Survey,	Online/Paper	Consultation	

Survey,	and	Direct	Patient	Surveys		

Considered	in	turn	below	are	the	summary	findings	from	the	resident	street	survey,	
online/paper	based	consultation	survey,	and	the	three	direct	patient	surveys	for	the	overall	
option	preference	and	any	difference	of	opinion	between	residents	of	South	Tyneside	and	
Sunderland:	

• Stroke	services;	
• Maternity	services	and	women’s	healthcare	services:	and	
• Children	and	young	people’s	healthcare	services.	

	

	The	details	of	the	Options	consulted	upon	can	be	found	in	Appendix	One	

	

Overall	Preferred	Stroke	Services	Option		

Resident	Street	Survey:	Respondents	were	asked	the	following	question:	

Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	stroke	services	
you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	needs	(3)		

Overall	responses	are	shown	in	the	following	table.		

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

																																																								
4	SPSS	
5	Our	approach	is	based	in	the	employment	of	Classic	Grounded	Theory.		

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	need	

Option	1	 59%		 (478)	 17%		 (139)	

Option	2	 2%		 (19)	 25%		 (202)	

Option	3
*
	 24%		 (190)	 40%		 (319)	

Page 40



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

3	
	

From	these	results,	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Most	respondents	believe	Option	1	to	be	the	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’	at	59%	with	
only	17%	answering	that	this	was	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’;		

• The	fewest	number	of	respondents	(2%)	believe	Option	2	to	be	‘closest	to	meeting	need’	
for	stroke	services.		

• Option	3	attracted	the	most	responses	for	being	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’	at	40%	

Overall,	Option	1	was	the	closest	to	meeting	needs	above	options	2	and	3.	

However,	although	Option	1	is	agreed	as	the	option	to	be	highest	ranked	by	all	respondents,	
when	compared	by	area	of	residence	of	respondent,	the	findings	show	Sunderland	residents	
keener	on	this	option	(77%)	than	South	Tyneside	residents	(62%)	(see	main	report	for	
detail).	

Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey:	Respondents	to	the	online/paper	consultation	
questionnaire	were	also	asked	to	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	
overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	1	=	‘closest	meeting	needs’	and	3	=	‘farthest	
from	meeting	needs’6		

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 25%		 77	 19%		 59	

Option	2		 7.5%		 23	 7%		 21	

	Option	3		 17%		 52	 23%		 68	

*Calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	by	those	
who	preferred	not	to	say	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

From	the	table	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	25%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs,	though	19%	said	it	was	furthest	from	meeting	needs;	and	

• Option	2	attracts	the	lowest	rating	in	this	respect	(7.5%);	and		
• Option	3	is	ranked	as	least	likely	to	meet	respondent’s	needs	(22%%)	

When	considered	by	area	of	residence	of	respondents	the	data	shows:	

• In	Sunderland	Option	1	was	most	favourable	whereas	in	South	Tyneside	Option	3	was	
thought	to	be	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’;	

• However,	the	preference	for	Option	1	in	Sunderland	was	stronger	(69%)	than	the	
preference	for	Option	3	in	South	Tyneside	(45%)	(see	main	report	for	detail).	

																																																								
6	Note	that	questions	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	were	not	mandatory;	respondents	
were	able	to	skip	this	question.		Therefore,	not	all	respondents	answered	this	ranking	question	and	the	
numbers	tend	to	be	low	and	therefore	less	reliable.	

Page 41



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

4	
	

Direct	Patient	Survey:	Respondents	to	the	direct	survey	of	current	and	recent	patients	and	
service	users7	were	also	asked	to	express	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	
had	an	overall	preference	for	as	shown	in	the	table.		

	

	

	

Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 38%		 31	 12%		 10	

Option	2	 1.2%		 1	 2.5%		 2	

Option	3	 12%		 10	 15%		 12	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

From	this	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	38%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs;	and	

• Option	2	attracts	the	lowest	rating	in	this	respect	at	1.2%;	and		
• Option	3	is	ranked	(just)	as	least	likely	to	meet	respondent’s	needs	at	14.8%.	

When	considered	by	respondent’s	area	of	residence	we	can	see	that	for	the	direct	patient	
survey:	

• Option	3	is	the	most	favourable	for	South	Tyneside	respondents	and		
• Option	1	for	Sunderland.		However,	results	should	be	treated	with	caution	as	both	

‘prefer	not	to	say’	and	‘other	area’	have	been	excluded,	therefore	numbers	are	low	(see	
main	report	for	detail).			

1.6 Overall	Preferred	Option:	Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	

Services	

Resident	Street	Survey:	Respondents	were	all	asked	to	rank	the	options	against	the	
question	shown	below.		

Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	maternity	and	
women’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	
from	meeting	needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 72%		 582	 15%		 118	
Option	2	 15%	 118	 72%		 582	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

																																																								
7	Note	that	the	overall	numbers	responding	to	this	method	for	Stroke	Services	was	low	at	n=81.	In	addition,	
respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished	therefore	not	all	have	answered	every	time.	
Therefore,	results	should	be	treated	with	caution.			

Page 42



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

5	
	

From	the	results	for	the	total	sample	responding	to	this	question,	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Most	respondents	believe	Option	1	to	be	the	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’	at	72%	with	
only	15%	answering	that	this	was	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’.	

When	considered	by	respondent’s	area	of	residence,	although	Option	1	is	agreed	as	the	
option	to	be	highest	ranked	by	all	respondents:	

• Sunderland	residents	are	keener	on	this	option	(95%);	than		
• South	Tyneside	residents	(69%).	(see	main	report	for	detail).	

For	this	service	area,	responses	were	also	considered	in	terms	of	those	who	are	either	
pregnant	or	have	a	child	under	two	years,	as	shown	below.		

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Pregnant	or	child	under	2	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	

Yes	 No	 Yes	 No	

Option	1		 85%	 75	 83%	 502	 15%	 13	 17%	 105	
Option	2	 15%	 13	 17%	 105	 85%	 75	 83%	 502	

*	Calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	who	are	pregnant/have	a	child	under	2	(column	
totals),	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	results	show	that:	

• Option	1	was	closest	to	meeting	needs	irrespective	of	whether	the	respondent	was	
pregnant/has	a	child	under	2	years	or	not	(85%	and	83%)	

Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey:		Respondents	to	the	online/paper	consultation	
questionnaire	were	also	asked	to	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	
overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	1	=	‘closest	meeting	needs’	and	=	‘farthest	
from	meeting	needs’	8	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
Option	1	 35%		 108	 13%		 39	
Option	2		 10%		 32	 38%		 118	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

From	the	table	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	35%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs.	10%	said	it	was	furthest	from	meeting	needs;	

• A	significant	proportion	chose	not	to	respond	to	this	ranking	question.	

When	considered	by	residence	of	respondent	we	see	that:	

																																																								
8	Note	that	questions	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	were	not	mandatory	and	that	respondents	were	
able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished.		Therefore,	not	all	respondents	answered	this	ranking	question	and	
the	numbers	tend	to	be	low	and	therefore	less	reliable.	

Page 43



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

6	
	

• Option	1	was	most	favourable	in	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	areas	at	similar	
levels	–	74%	and	78%	respectively	(see	main	report	for	detail).	

When	responses	are	considered	in	terms	of	those	who	are	either	pregnant	or	have	a	child	
under	two	years	as	shown	in	the	table	below.		

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	

	 Yes	 No	 Yes	 No	

Option	1		 78%	 21	 77%	 87	 29%	 10	 24%	 29	
Option	2	 22%	 6	 23%	 26	 71%	 24	 76%	 94	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	who	are	pregnant/have	a	child	under	2	(column	
totals),	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

Like	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	these	results	show	that:	

• Option	1	was	closest	to	meeting	needs	irrespective	of	whether	the	respondent	was	
pregnant/has	a	child	under	2	years	or	not	(78%	and	77%)	

1.7 Overall	Preferred	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	

Resident	Street	Survey:	Respondents	were	all	asked	to	rank	the	options	against	the	
question	shown	below.		

	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	children	and	young	
people’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	
from	meeting	needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs		 Farthest	from	meeting	needs		

Option	1	 80%	 644	 8%	 61	

Option	2		 7.5%	 60	 80%	 643	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

From	the	results	shown	in	the	table,	Option	1	is	ranked	as	the	proposal	respondents	feel	
most	closely	meets	needs.	

Although	Option	1	is	agreed	as	the	option	to	be	highest	ranked	by	all	respondents	in	the	
Resident	Street	Survey,	when	compared	by	residence	of	respondent	the	findings	show:	

• Sunderland	residents	are	slightly	keener	on	this	option	(95%);	than		
• South	Tyneside	residents	(88%)	(see	main	report	for	detail).	

Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey:	Respondents	to	the	online/paper	consultation	
questionnaire9	were	also	asked	to	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	

																																																								
9	Note	that	questions	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	were	not	mandatory	and	that	respondents	were	
able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished.		Therefore,	not	all	respondents	answered	this	ranking	question	and	
the	numbers	tend	to	be	low	and	therefore	less	reliable.	

Page 44



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

7	
	

overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	1	=	‘closest	meeting	needs’	and	2	=	‘farthest	
from	meeting	needs’		

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 36%		 109	 13%		 39	

Option	2		 12%		 36	 31%		 94	
*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

For	all	respondents	to	this	question	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• A	high	proportion	of	respondents	preferred	not	to	respond	to	this	ranking	question.	
• Of	those	who	responded,	there	was	a	clear	preference	for	Option	1	(36%.)	

When	considered	by	residence	of	respondents	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	was	most	favourable	over	Option	2	in	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	
areas	at	similar	levels	–	79%	and	68%	respectively	(see	main	report	for	detail)..	

Direct	Patient	Survey:	Respondents	to	the	direct	survey	of	current	and	recent	patients	and	
service	users	were	also	asked	to	express	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	
had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	meeting	needs’	(1	=	closest	
meeting	needs	and	2	farthest	from	meeting	needs).	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
Option	1	 58%	 59	 7%		 7	
Option	2		 7%		 7	 54%		 55	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	(excludes	no	response/prefer	not	to	say)	

From	the	table	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• There	is	a	strong	preference	for	Option	1	for	those	who	responded	to	this	ranking	
question.	

When	considered	against	area	of	residence	of	respondent	for	those	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	1	is	strongly	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	(93%	
ranking	it	1,	over	Option	2).	

For	those	living	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	also	the	most	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	for	Sunderland	residents	
responding	to	the	direct	survey,	to	a	slightly	lesser	extent	at	78%	(see	main	report	for	
detail).	

1.8 Qualitative	Findings:	Focus	Groups	and	Public,	Staff	and	Stakeholder	Meetings		

1.8.1 Overall	Concerns	

• The	consultation	itself:	There	were	concerns	over	the	need	for	the	consultation,	which	
were	directed	at	central	policy	makers	and	the	perceived	lack	of	staff	involvement	in	
developing	the	options.	There	were	also	concerns	that	the	options	presented	were	all	

Page 45



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

8	
	

very	similar,	favouring	Sunderland	over	South	Tyneside,	and	failing	to	meet	the	needs	of	
residents	in	the	latter	area.		

Equally	the	format	of	the	consultation	was	felt	to	be	too	complex	in	language	and	the	
number/complexity	of	services/options	being	considered.		

• The	apparent	focus	on	Sunderland:	The	rationale	for	consolidation	of	services	was	
recognised,	but	essentially	people	remained	unconvinced	that	the	evidence	presented	
justified	the	apparent	downgrading	of	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital.	It	was	felt	that	
the	question	of	moving	some	services	to	South	Tyneside	was	not	considered	fully	
enough.		

• Travel	and	transport:		People	were	very	concerned	over	the	travel	and	transport	issues	
associated	with	the	move	of	services	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland.	Specific	
concerns	involved	the	lack	of	direct	public	transport	links,	the	additional	travel	time,	the	
cost	of	car	parking	at	Sunderland	and	the	overall	ability	of	Sunderland	to	cope	with	the	
additional	patient	and	visitor	cars.			

• Additional	costs	for	those	least	able	to	afford	them:	There	was	a	continuous	theme	in	
the	qualitative	dialogue	recognising	that	many	of	the	communities	of	South	Tyneside	
face	significant	economic	and	social	deprivation.	The	main	concerns	lay	around,	
transport	costs,	lack	of	direct	public	transport	links,	the	prohibitive	cost	of	public	
transport	for	those	on	low	incomes.	Overall	there	was	a	feeling	that	the	proposals	would	
have	a	greater	negative	impact	on	those	living	in	deprived	circumstances.			

• Travel	and	accessibility	(specific	needs):	Concerns	were	raised	over	the	perceived	lack	
of	consideration	of	the	specific	transport	needs	of	equalities	and	special	interest	groups.	
Specific	concerns	included:	support	for	those	with	sensory	and	learning	disabilities	along	
with	those	with	cognitive	impairment	to	use	complex	public	transport	links,	single	
parents	travelling	with	children,	and	accessing	new	and	unfamiliar	surroundings	when	
arriving	at	Sunderland.		

• Ambulance	response	times:		Concerns	were	raised	over	the	ability	of	the	North	East	
Ambulance	Service	(NEAS)	to	respond	to	transfers	of	South	Tyneside	residents	to	
Sunderland	in	a	timely	and	safe	manner,	ensuring	no	one	is	put	at	risk	by	the	additional	
time	requirements.		

• Health	and	wellbeing:	There	were	concerns	that	the	for	each	of	the	service	areas	and	
options,	to	a	greater	or	lesser	extent,	a	potential	negative	impact	on	the	overall	health,	
mental	health	and	wellbeing	of	patients,	service	users,	family,	friends,	and	staff	would	
result.	This	was	felt	to	be	as	a	combined	result	of	travel	and	other	issues	associated	with	
separation,	loneliness,	and	isolation.		

• Status	Quo	and	Financial	Pressures:	The	overarching	view	was	that	the	only	fair	and	
equitable	service	provision	option	available	is	to	leave	things	as	they	are	and	there	was	
strong	opposition	in	the	groups	to	the	implementation	of	all	the	options.	Equally,	there	
is	a	balancing	view	that	the	cuts	in	NHS	funding	are	the	driver	for	these	changes.	
Achieving	the	best	care	that	can	be	provided	is	seen	as	the	most	important	factor.	

Page 46



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

9	
	

• Displacing	Services:	Many	felt	the	proposals	would	see	increased	patient	and	visitor	
numbers	at	other	sites	namely	Queen	Elizabeth	Hospital	Gateshead	(QE)	and	the	Royal	
Victoria	Infirmary	Newcastle	(RVI)	rather	than	at	Sunderland	and	this	impact	was	a	point	
of	concern	for	some.		

• What’s	the	Point:		Many	of	the	equalities	and	special	interest	groups	felt	that	they	were	
merely	consulted	as	a	‘tick	box’	gesture	and	were	sceptical	of	the	impact	their	
contributions	would	have.	

• Trust:	For	many	of	the	equalities	groups	one	of	the	biggest	barriers	is	gaining	trust	in	the	
service.	The	changes	were	felt	to	have	a	disproportionate	effect	on	those	with	sensory	
or	learning	disabilities,	cognitive	impairment	and	people	from	BME	backgrounds	who	
find	it	difficult	to	establish	this	trust	in	new	services	and	can	find	it	particularly	difficult	
to	navigate	a	new	environment	with	confidence,	the	common	issue	being	
communication	and	understanding.	

1.8.2 Stroke	Services	

• Quality	of	Care	and	a	Centre	of	Excellence	(Stroke):	The	groups	generally	favoured	the	
idea	of	a	concentration	of	hyperacute	and	acute	services	in	one	area,	recognising	this	
provided	a	concentration	of	excellence	in	terms	of	skills,	personnel,	and	equipment.	

• Inequalities:	All	the	proposed	options	for	stroke	services	reorganisation	saw	South	
Tyneside	having	rehab	services	provided	locally.	Many	participants	viewed	these	local	
services	as	being	inadequate	and	therefore	the	options	were	viewed	as	having	the	
potential	to	result	in	future	inequalities	in	service	provision	for	South	Tyneside	residents.		

• Finances	and	reality:	Many,	but	not	all,	of	the	groups	accepted	the	‘reality’,	as	they	
perceived	it,	that	the	reorganisation	was	based	on	the	national	pressure	on	NHS	
finances	and	the	need	to	do	more	with	less.	However,	there	was	a	genuine	desire	to	
understand	if	these	were	real	savings	that	could	be	reallocated	or	simply	reductions	in	
running	costs.	

Underpinning	this	was	the	recognition	that	the	benefits	of	centralising	the	acute	and	
hyperacute	services	in	one	area	outweigh	other	issues.	However,	the	overall	savings,	as	
cited	in	the	consultation	documentation,	were	felt	to	be	relatively	small.	

• Option	preferences	and	the	status	quo:	in	the	minority	of	cases	where	the	groups	were	
able	to	agree,	Option	1	was	preferred	for	stroke	services,	mainly	based	on	the	cost	
saving	element.		All	groups	defended	the	current	situation	and	felt	that	provision	of	
hyperacute	and	acute	services	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	(SRH)	and	South	Tyneside	
District	Hospital	(STDH)	were	the	only	equitable	options,	perhaps	better	defined	as	
status	quo	plus.		

1.8.3 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services		

• Overall	concerns:	The	major	concern	voiced	in	most	groups	over	the	two	proposed	
options	was	the	lack	of	Consultants	on	site	at	STDH.	Child	birth	is	seen	as	not	a	simple,	

Page 47



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

10	
	

prescriptive	event	for	anyone	and	reducing	services	would	be	to	the	detriment	of	the	
residents	of	South	Tyneside,	introducing	a	perceived	unnecessary	and	unacceptable	risk.		

Transporting	a	mother	in	labour	independently	to	Sunderland	was	felt	to	have	the	
potential	for	detrimental	effects.	People	unfamiliar	with	Sunderland,	its	road	systems	
and	transport	would	struggle	with	transport	and	extra	costs	incurred	which	would	in	
turn	create	more	issues	and	problems.		

Groups	felt	the	proposed	changes	were	unnecessary	and	would	be	confusing	for	people	
who	were	accessing	the	services.	There	was	a	general	lack	of	confidence	that	the	
decision	had	not	already	been	reached	despite	information	provided	to	the	contrary	
both	verbally	and	in	consultation	documents.		

• Quality	of	Care	and	a	Centre	of	Excellence:	Despite	reservations	about	the	lack	of	
Consultant	care	at	South	Tyneside,	the	concentration	of	expertise	on	one	site	was	felt	to	
be	a	major	benefit	of	the	proposals.	

The	overarching	concern	was	the	safety	of	mother	and	child,	supported	by	a	centre	of	
excellence	in	Sunderland.	However,	this	aspect	of	safety	was	questioned	for	South	
Tyneside	in	terms	of	the	extreme	pressure	this	will	put	Midwives	under.	They	will	be	
called	upon	to	assess	need	and	establish	if	a	birth	at	the	MLU	was	becoming	higher-risk	
and	will	bear	the	responsibility	for	deciding	on	emergency	transfer	to	Sunderland.		

There	was	a	strong	feeling	that	the	downgrading	of	maternity	services	in	South	Tyneside	
would	lead	to	an	increase	in	home	births	in	the	borough.		There	was	also	concern	at	the	
loss	of	a	Special	Care	Baby	Unit	(SCBU),	particularly	amongst	recent	mothers.	

• Ambulance	response	times:	Again,	linked	to	the	issues	of	safety,	concern	was	expressed	
over	the	ability	of	the	Ambulance	Service	to	respond	to	pregnancies	that	become	high	
risk/emergency	very	quickly.	The	specific	concern	was	around	transporting	mothers	in	
distress	to	Sunderland	in	time	to	be	safe	for	both	them	and	their	baby.		

• Travel:	While	the	groups	discussing	the	maternity	options	identified	the	concerns	over	
travel	discussed	in	the	overall	concerns,	there	were	also	specific	concerns	raised	in	
relation	to	childbirth.	These	were	mainly	concerned	with	issues	associated	with	travel	to	
Sunderland	from	South	Tyneside	for	higher-risk	births	at	night	time,	particularly	
amongst	communities	where	there	are	high	levels	of	employment	in	the	evening/night	
time	economy,	meaning	partners	are	not	always	available.		

• Option	preferences:	There	was	no	clear	preference	expressed	with	the	general	feeling	
being	that	the	ideal	solution	would	be	to	provide	the	same	level	of	staff	and	services	in	
both	Sunderland	and	South	Tyneside.	Where	a	preference	for	an	option	was	expressed	
this	was	for	Option	1.		

1.8.4 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services		

• Overall	concerns:	Discussions	in	the	groups	highlighted	several	clear	overall	concerns	
with	the	proposed	options.	Children	get	sick	24	hours	a	day,	seven	days	a	week	and	an	

Page 48



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

11	
	

appropriate	inclusive	service	needs	to	reflect	that	an	illness	or	condition	that	starts	off	
not	being	an	emergency	with	a	child	can	quickly	become	a	life-threatening.	

The	options	were	also	felt	to	contribute	to	the	general	downgrading	of	services	at	South	
Tyneside,	particularly	for	a	group	as	vulnerable	as	children	and	young	people.		

• Quality	of	care	and	a	Centre	of	Excellence:	The	groups	felt	the	needs	of	children	to	be	
paramount	in	this	dialogue;	the	options	should	focus	on	delivering	safe	care	always	and	
in	the	most	efficient	way.		

• Ambulance	service	response	times:	There	was	a	view	that	an	increased	number	of	
ambulances	would	be	needed	to	cover	the	transfer	issues	for	children	and	young	people	
between	the	12	hour	or	nurse	led	services	at	South	Tyneside	to	those	in	Sunderland.	

• Travel	and	transport:	Specific	concerns	were	raised	over	the	transport	and	travel	and	
the	appropriate	care	of	children	and	young	people	when	they	are	unwell.	This	was	most	
specifically	articulated	around	the	issue	of	‘out	of	hours’	for	Option	One	either	accessing	
adult	A&E	or	travelling	to	Sunderland.	

• Access	inequalities:	There	was	felt	to	be	an	inequity	in	access	for	parents,	children,	and	
young	people	through	the	changes	in	services	in	South	Tyneside,	specifically	in	terms	of	
impacting	on	employment	for	parents	and	carers.		

The	issue	of	access	to	an	8am	to	8pm	service	was	also	highlighted	in	relation	to	younger	
children,	where	parent/carers	felt	that	symptoms	are	generally	only	noticed	later	in	the	
day	–	such	as	at	bath	time.		

• Health	and	Wellbeing:	There	were	concerns	raised	over	the	general	health	and	
wellbeing	of	children	and	young	people	based	on	a	delay	in	care	if	people	can’t	get	to	
Sunderland	and	they	decide	to	‘wait	and	see’	if	the	issue	will	resolve	itself	overnight.	
This	was	felt	to	lead	to	more	health	problems	for	children	and	young	people	and	to	
potentially	put	them	at	greater	risk.	

• Option	preferences:	The	preferred	option	where	consensus	was	reached	was	for	Option	
1	on	the	basis	that	there	would	at	least	be	Doctors	at	STDH	for	twelve	hours	a	day.	
However,	the	8am-8pm	service	was	universally	unpopular	and	even	Option	1	was	felt	to	
be	a	compromise	which	would	ultimately	lead	to	downgrading	of	service	at	South	
Tyneside.		

1.9 Staff	Group	Feedback		

1.9.1 Stroke	Services	

• The	Consultation	and	the	Options:	There	was	a	general	concern	that	the	documentation	
and	wording	of	the	options	were	heavily	leading	the	decisions.	There	was	a	positive	
recognition	of	the	fact	that	other	factors	such	as	cuts	in	NHS	funding	and	including	long	
term	recruitment	difficulties	are	the	driver	for	these	changes,	however,	there	were	

Page 49



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

12	
	

concerns	that	the	options	seemed	to	have	been	developed	in	isolation,	without	staff	
consultation	and	involvement	in	the	early	stages.		

• Costs:	There	were	comments	about	a	lack	of	clarity	about	where	the	financial	models	
come	from,	and	until	costs	are	understood	it	is	difficult	to	become	fully	engaged.		

• Capacity	at	Sunderland:	There	was	a	concern	over	the	overall	capacity	of	the	facilities	
and	staff	at	Sunderland	to	cope	with	the	increased	demand.	

• Rehab/Reablement:	Staff	felt	that	while	the	service	would	benefit	from	the	proposals,	
the	major	omission	was	consideration	of	the	discharge	support	and	service	offers.	

• Safe	Staffing:	Once	the	changes	are	implemented	and	the	temporary	measures	lifted,	
staff	queried	whether	the	need	to	meet	NICE	safe	staffing	levels	would	have	a	negative	
impact	on	savings	and	asked	whether	this	has	already	been	considered.	

1.9.2 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	

• The	Impact	on	the	community	team:	The	impact	of	the	options	on	community	teams	do	
not	appear	to	have	been	thought	through,	Option	1	is	likely	to	see	an	increase	in	home	
births	and	increased	risk	for	high	risk	women.	

• Midwife	Led	Units	(MLU):	There	was	a	general	concern	over	recent	history	of	MLU	
closures	across	the	region,	coupled	with	concerns	over	there	being	no	specialist	Doctors	
at	STDH		

• Role	of	staff:	The	pre-consultation	business	case	was	seen	as	not	being	specific	about	
integration	of	community	teams	and	the	role	of	those	who	don’t	drive	in	this	integration	

• Travel	impact:	There	were	queries	about	the	evidence	base	and	concerns	over	‘facts’	
cited	in	the	travel	impact	assessment:	

• Staff:	There	was	a	general	level	of	disquiet	about	the	staffing	implications	of	the	
proposals.	

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services		

• Staff	Consultation:	Some	staff	felt	their	opinions	are	neither	listened	to	nor	valued	and	
that	a	third	option	put	forward	by	staff	for	Paediatric	A&E	was	not	considered.	
Importantly,	they	felt	that	the	reason	for	this	was	not	communicated	to	them.	

• Identity:	The	general	feeling	among	staff	was	that	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	was	
being	systematically	downgraded	and	that	with	this	comes	a	loss	of	identity	as	a	
hospital.	

• Transport:	The	move	to	Sunderland	was	seen	as	of	great	concern	for	staff	who	will	be	
required	to	travel	and,	more	importantly,	for	the	residents	of	South	Tyneside.	Many	
cannot	afford	to	travel	to	Sunderland	and	this	was	felt	to	be	likely	to	have	a	long-term	
impact	on	the	health	of	local	children	where	parents	may	delay	care	for	financial	
reasons,	especially	at	night	time	if	closed	between	8pm	and	8am,	leading	to	increased	
risk.	

• Adult	A&E:	Staff	felt	strongly	that	children	and	young	people	should	not	have	to	be	
treated	in	adult	A&E	between	8pm	and	8am,	citing	concerns	over	drunkenness,	

Page 50



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

13	
	

violence,	and	aggression.	They	were	particularly	concerned	over	existing	A&E	staff	being	
trained	in	paediatric	medicine	when	the	skills	already	exist	in	them.	

• Minor	Health	Conditions:	It	was	not	clear	what	the	pathway	was	for	children	presenting	
with	minor	issues,	particularly	out	of	hours.	

• Consultant	review:	The	need	for	consultant	review	ad	how	this	is	handled	is	not	clearly	
explained	in	the	options,	leading	to	concerns	over	patient	safety.	

• Evidence	base	and	24-Hour	demand:		The	overall	evidence	base	to	support	the	options	
was	queried	and	the	decision	to	close	from	8pm	to	8am.		8pm-12pm	was	highlighted	by	
many	respondents	to	be	the	departments	busiest	time.	

• Capacity:	Overall,	along	with	other	services,	staff	have	concerns	over	the	ability	
(capacity)	of	SRH	to	cope	with	the	increased	demand.		

Alternative	Solutions		

Several	practical	suggestions	to	address	the	travel	issues	were	suggested:	

• Provision	of	travel	advice	at	both	hospitals	to	support	travellers		
• The	adoption	of	more	community	focused,	not-for-profit	solutions	to	transport	issues	

(shuttle	buses.)	
• The	use	of	technology	as	an	alternative	to	travelling	such	as	telemedicine:	

In	addition,	as	an	alternative	to	the	Options	offered,	it	was	suggested	that	an	option	of	
focusing	the	main	service	provision	and	developing	a	centre	of	excellence	in	South	Tyneside	
could	have	been	included	and	considered.	

1.10 Findings	Summary		

1.10.1 Overall	Concerns	
Consideration	of	the	results	of	the	consultation	tell	us	that	there	are	specific	concerns	over	
the	following	areas:	

• There	are	specific	concerns	that	the	options	all	result	in	a	downgrading	of	services	and	
facilities	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital.	Linked	to	this	are	concerns	over	the	estates,	
facilities	and	staff	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	being	able	to	cope	with	the	increased	
volume	of	patients	and	visitors;	

• The	issues	of	travel	and	transport	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	for	residents	of	
the	former	borough	are	of	major	concern	in	terms	of	additional	driving	time	for	those	
with	cars	and	the	significant	burdens	on	relying	on	public	transport	with	no	direct	links	
for	those	without;	

• There	is	concern	that	equalities,	special	interest	groups	and	those	living	in	deprived	
circumstances	will	be	significantly	disadvantaged	by	the	proposals	in	terms	of	access	and	
financial	costs;	

• The	additional	travel	burdens	for	patients,	carers	and	visitors	are	felt	to	have	a	
potentially	detrimental	impact	on	their	health	and	wellbeing;	

Page 51



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

14	
	

• The	ability	of	Ambulance	Services	to	provide	safe	and	timely	transfer	services	for	South	
Tyneside	residents	travelling	to	Sunderland	in	urgent	or	emergency	circumstances	was	
questioned,	specifically:	meeting	the	golden	hour	treatment	for	stroke	victims,	
situations	where	labour	deteriorates	and	children	and	young	people	needing	A&E	
services	–	either	under	a	nurse	led	service	or	‘out	of	hours.’.	

1.10.2 Preferred	Option	Stroke	Services		
• The	quantitative	methodologies	reporting	on	preferences	for	the	options	indicate	a	

clear	preference	for	Option	1	in	most	of	the	Reponses.					

• In	qualitative	discussion	in	the	minority	of	cases	where	the	groups	were	able	to	agree	
Option	1	was	preferred	for	stroke	services,	mainly	based	on	the	cost	saving	element.			

All	groups	defended	the	current	situation	and	felt	that	provision	of	hyperacute	and	
acute	services	at	SRH	and	STDH	were	the	only	equitable	options,	perhaps	better	defined	
as	‘status	quo	plus’.		

1.10.3 Preferred	Option	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services		

• In	most	of	the	quantitative	methodologies	there	is	a	preference	for	Option	1.		

• In	qualitative	discussion	there	was	no	clear	preference	expressed	with	the	general	
feeling	being	that	the	ideal	solution	would	be	to	provide	the	same	level	of	staff	and	
services	in	both	Sunderland	and	South	Tyneside.	Where	a	preference	for	an	option	was	

expressed	this	was	for	Option	1.		

1.10.4 Preferred	Option	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services		
• In	the	quantitative	methods,	for	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services,	

Option	1	is	the	preferred	option	in	most	cases.			

• In	qualitative	discussion	the	preferred	option	where	consensus	was	reached	was	for	
Option	1	on	the	basis	that	there	would	at	least	be	Doctors	at	South	Tyneside	District	
Hospital	for	twelve	hours	a	day.	

However,	this	was	felt	to	be	a	compromise	and	ultimately	led	to	downgrading	of	service	
at	South	Tyneside.		

	 	

Page 52



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

15	
	

2 The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation		

2.1 	Introduction	

The	Path	to	Excellence	public	consultation	considers	the	views	of	the	public,	service	users,	
stakeholders,	and	staff	on	the	potential	ways	in	which	some	services	might	be	reorganised	
for	the	future	in	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland.		

The	four	local	NHS	organisations	consulting	on	these	options	are:	

• South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust;	
• City	Hospitals	Sunderland	NHS	Foundation	Trust;	
• NHS	South	Tyneside	Clinical	Commissioning	Group	(CCG);	and	
• NHS	Sunderland	Clinical	Commissioning	Group	(CCG).	

The	proposed	service	changes	are	being	consulted	on	because	of	national	and	local	
challenges	for	NHS	services	and	are	intended	to	ensure	services	continue	to	deliver	safe,	
high	quality	care	that	will	make	the	best	use	of	resources	and	meet	the	needs	of	the	
population	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	now	and	in	the	future.	

Through	consultation	on	the	service	review	options	the	NHS	partners	want	to	deliver	long-
term	effective	solutions	to	secure	improved	health	outcomes	across	South	Tyneside	and	
Sunderland	by:	

• Providing	a	wide	range	of	safe,	high	quality	and	accessible	healthcare	services;	
• Making	the	best	use	of	senior	medical	staff	at	all	times;	
• Providing	value	for	money;		
• Investing	further	in	services	that	are	of	most	benefit	to	patients	sharing	resources	

and	services	in	areas	where	patient	numbers	are	low.	

The	services	included	in	this	consultation,	alongside	the	number	of	possible	options	offered	
for	the	delivery	of	healthcare	across	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	were:	

• Stroke	services;	hospital-based	care	(acute)	and	hospital-based	rehabilitation	
services	–	THREE	OPTIONS;	

• Maternity	services	(obstetrics)	and	women’s	healthcare	services	(gynaecology);	
covering	hospital-based	birthing	facilities	i.e.	where	you	give	birth	to	your	baby,	
special	care	baby	unit	(SCBU)	and	all	inpatient	surgery	that	includes	an	overnight	
hospital	stay	–	TWO	OPTIONS;	and	

• Children	and	young	people’s	healthcare	(urgent	and	emergency	paediatrics)	
services;	specifically,	urgent	and	emergency	care	–	TWO	OPTIONS.	

The	details	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	for	the	three	services	(Obstetrics	and	
Gynaecology	are	treated	as	one),	alongside	the	specific	benefit	and/or	impact	attached	to	
them,	which	were	shared	with	consultees,	are	found	in	Appendix	One.				

Page 53



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

16	
	

Social	Marketing	Partners	(SMP)	is	an	independent	marketing,	communications,	
engagement,	and	social	research	agency,	commissioned	to	advise	on	the	design	of	the	
consultation	methodologies	and	to	provide	independent	analysis	and	reporting	of	the	
consultation	outputs.	Our	approach	is	based	on	a	mix	of	understanding	of	the	principles	and	
practice	of	consultation	coupled	with	solid	experience	of	market	and	social	research	
alongside	communications	and	engagement	expertise.		

2.2 The	Consultation	Process	

The	consultation	period	ran	for	14	and	a	half	weeks	from	July	5th	to	October	15th,	2017,	
extended	beyond	the	usual	12	weeks	to	take	account	of	the	summer	holiday	period.	Delays	
in	commencing	were	experienced	due	to	the	standstill	period	for	public	service	consultation	
around	the	unexpected	General	Election	in	June	2017.	

The	consultation	followed	the	principles	of	a	‘continuous	dynamic	dialogue’10	and	
compensating	methods	were	introduced	when	potential	gaps	in	coverage	were	identified.	
The	specific	methods	employed	as	part	of	the	Path	to	Excellence	consultation	and	included	
in	this	analysis	were:	

• A	resident	street	survey,	representative	at	the	population	level;	
• An	online	and	paper	based	consultation	survey,	available	to	all;	
• A	direct	mail	patient	survey	of	a	sample	of	service	users,	to	reflect	lived	experience;	
• Focus	group	sessions	with	protected	characteristic	and	other	equalities	groups;		
• Public,	staff	and	stakeholder	discussion	events,	including	specific	staff	events;	and	
• Individual	submissions;	the	consultation	also	received	emails,	letters,	and	phone	calls,	

to	ensure	people	were	able	to	make	contributions	not	limited	to	the	methodologies	
listed	above.		

Three	launch	events	were	also	held	in	July	to	set	the	scene	and	highlight	the	various	ways	to	
engage	with	the	consultation.	In	addition,	online	and	social	media	engagement	was	
delivered	locally	by	NHS	North	of	England	Commissioning	Support	(NECS)	linked	to	the	Path	
to	Excellence	website	resource,	for	which	metrics	and	traffic	have	been	collated.	

A	full	breakdown	of	the	consultation	process,	including	reference	to	the	activities	delivered	
locally	to	meet	equality	and	diversity	requirements,	is	published	separately	by	NECS,	and	
can	be	found	at		https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Review-of-
consultation-methodology-and-compliance-with-statutory-engagement.pdf	
	

																																																								
10	Taken	from	the	Consultation	Institute’s	definition.		

Page 54



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

17	
	

2.3 Methodologies	

2.3.1 	Resident	street	survey	

A	street	survey	was	carried	out	across	a	number	of	locations	in	South	Tyneside	and	
Sunderland.	Quotas	were	set	to	reflect	demographics	of	the	local	populations	separately	for	
each	area,	using	a	sample	size	of	400	for	each.		

Screener	questions	were	used	to:	

• Ensure	only	residents	in	each	of	the	two	areas	were	interviewed;	
• Exclude	certain	professions	who	may	bias	the	responses	(i.e.	market	researchers,	

marketers,	and	NHS	staff);	
• Ask	demographic	questions	to	allow	the	interviewers	to	ensure	all	sample	quota	and	

equality	monitoring	requirements	are	met	as	intended	

Street	interviews	were	completed	in	several	locations	and	the	level	of	content	in	the	final	
survey	rendered	interviews	approximately	20	minutes.	

The	sample	size	of	400	for	each	area	was	chosen	to	produce	a	robust	set	of	data	at	both	
South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	levels	individually	to	95%	confidence	level	(with	a	
confidence	interval	of	5),	giving	a	statistically	significant	output	at	a	population	level.	A	
breakdown	of	the	quota	used	and	achieved	can	be	found	in	Appendix	Nine.		

Interviewees	were	thanked	and	provided	with	a	leaflet	about	the	consultation	but	were	not	
financially	reimbursed	for	their	time.	

This	was	the	only	method	which	could	provide	statistically	significant	results	at	population	
level	for	each	of	the	two	areas,	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland.		

2.3.2 Online	and	paper	based	consultation	survey		

An	online	survey	was	developed	to	provide	a	tool	for	responses	to	the	consultation,	focused	
on	opinions	about	the	options	under	consideration	in	the	three	service	areas	and	open	to	
anyone	to	complete.		A	paper	based	version	of	this	survey	was	also	produced,	distributed	by	
the	commissioners	through	various	channels	throughout	the	duration	of	the	consultation	
period,	including	a	postage	paid	reply.	

The	survey	was	accessible	at	the	Path	to	Excellence	website	
(https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/)	alongside	all	consultation	documents,	to	which	reference	
was	made	in	the	survey.	In	addition	to	service	specific	questions,	a	section	asking	questions	
about	the	process	was	added	on	the	advice	of	NHS	England.		

Aside	from	initial	screening	for	area,	none	of	the	questions	were	mandatory	and	therefore	
responders	completed	as	much	or	a	little	as	they	wished.		The	survey	provides	a	self-
selecting	sample	and	although	the	feedback	is	of	value,	outputs	using	this	methodology	are	
not	robust	statistically.	

Page 55



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

18	
	

2.3.3 Direct	mail	patient	survey	

As	an	iterative	development	during	the	consultation	period,	it	was	decided	that	an	
additional	adapted	form	of	the	online	and	paper	based	survey	would	be	produced	in	order	
to	gain	feedback	from	patients	with	lived	experience	of	the	service	areas	under	
consultation.		

A	random	sample	of	patients	from	the	commissioning	Trusts	who	had	received	a	service	
within	the	previous	two	years	were	selected	anonymously	and	contacted	using	direct	mail.	
A	data	approved	external	mailing	agency	was	used	to	deliver	the	survey	in	August,	with	
follow	up	during	September.	

Patients	received	surveys	specific	to	the	service	they	received	which	was	postage	paid	reply.	
An	online	version	was	also	available	should	this	be	the	preference	for	completion.		

The	respondents	to	this	methodology	are	also	self-selecting	and	therefore	feedback	cannot	
be	considered	as	statistically	robust.		

2.3.4 Focus	group	sessions	

Independent	interest	groups	and	Voluntary	and	Community	Sector	(VCS)/third	sector	
organisations	were	invited	to	hold	focus	group	sessions	and	efforts	were	made	to	engage	
groups	considered	to	have	protected	characteristics	and	encourage	them	to	take	part.	
There	has	been	a	comprehensive	Inequalities	Assessment	as	part	of	this	consultation,	led	by	
NECS,	which	can	be	found	at	

- Stroke	Services:	 	https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-Stroke-IIA-080617.pdf 	

- Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services:	 https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/08/FINAL-OG-IIA-250617.pdf	

- Children	and	Young	People’s	healthcare	Services:	
https://pathtoexcellence.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/FINAL-IIA-Paeds-
110617.pdf	
	

A	suite	of	tools	was	developed	and	provided	to	support	groups	to	deliver	focus	groups,	
referencing	established	good	practice	in	running	and	moderating	focus	groups.		An	online	
seminar	was	offered,	followed	by	a	specific	dedicated	period	of	support	during	‘Focus	group	
fortnight’	to	CVS	groups	who	expressed	an	interest.		For	each	group	delivered,	a	nominal	
financial	reimbursement	was	given.	
In	total	32	focus	group	sessions	took	place,	held	at	a	variety	of	locations,	dates	and	times	
across	Sunderland	and	South	Tyneside	and	an	offer	was	made	for	a	focus	group	to	take	
place	in	Durham	though	this	was	not	taken	up.		Reports	were	requested	and	returned	in	a	
standardised	format	and	monitoring	information	was	requested,	though	not	a	mandatory	
requirement.			

The	reports	on	a	small	number	of	focus	groups	could	not	be	included	in	this	analysis	
because	the	reports	on	them	were	not	received	or	received	after	the	cut-off	date	for	

Page 56



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

19	
	

analysis.		Where	appropriate	the	ongoing	Path	to	Excellence	decision	making	process	can	
consider	these	separately.	

The	feedback	from	the	focus	group	sessions	is	the	main	source	of	feedback	in	the	qualitative	
section	of	this	report.	

A	breakdown	of	the	focus	group	sessions	can	be	found	in	Appendix	Seven.		

2.3.5 Public,	staff	and	stakeholder	discussion	events	

In	addition	to	three	launch	events	at	the	start	of	the	consultation	period,	held	in	South	
Tyneside,	Sunderland,	and	Durham,	another	16	public	events	were	held	at	a	range	of	
locations	across	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland,	with	one	event	being	held	in	Durham.	The	
events	were	designed	to	facilitate	dialogue	across	a	range	of	settings,	in	particular	with	the	
public,	reflecting	good	consultation	practice.	

Launch	events	were	not	included	in	the	analysis	because	they	were	intended	as	a	means	to	
distribute	and	engage	with	attendees	about	the	consultation	information,	to	provide	an	
opportunity	to	ask	questions	and	to	highlight	the	various	ways	to	engage	with	the	
consultation.		The	questions	raised	in	these	events	have	been	published	online	and	
considered,	with	responses	also	being	published	online	and	can	be	found	at	the	link	below.	

Events	took	place	during	the	daytime	and	evening	and	were	attended	by	a	mix	of	staff	and	
the	public/patients	as	well	as	Elected	Members	and	CVS	staff.		The	format	facilitated	small	
group	discussion	of	the	options	under	consideration	in	the	three	service	areas	and	where	
possible	the	expression	of	a	preference.	Though	this	was	not	always	achieved	and	much	of	
the	feedback	was	in	the	form	of	questions	for	the	consultation	programme	group,	valuable	
comments	relevant	to	the	consultation	were	recorded	and	included	in	the	qualitative	
analysis.	

The	verbatim	feedback	reports	were	compiled	by	NECS	and	published	within	7	working	
days.	All	reports	including	Q&A	responses	are	publicly	available	at	
www.pathtoexcellence.org.uk/public-consultation/feedback-section/		

There	was	greater	uptake	for	these	events	in	South	Tyneside;	the	breakdown	of	the	events	
and	attendances	at	them	can	be	found	in	Appendix	Eight.		

2.3.6 Individual	submissions		

Opinions	were	invited	by	email,	letter,	or	phone	as	an	additional	route	to	comment	on	the	
consultation	options	and	present	views,	as	an	individual	or	group	or	representing	an	
organisation.		Submissions	were	received	from	a	range	of	sources;	

• Community	and	Voluntary	Sector	(CVS)	organisations	
• Elected	representatives,	members	of	parliament	and	political	parties	
• NHS	organisations	–	including	clinical	networks	and	local	NHS	commissioner	or	provider	

organisations	
• NHS	staff	groups	including	governors	

Page 57



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

20	
	

• Trade	unions	and	staff	group	representatives	
• Patients	and	public	

A	list	of	submissions	can	be	found	within	the	relevant	reporting	section.	

2.4 Responses	

2.4.1 Response	summary	–	all	methodologies	

The	final	response	and	participation	numbers	for	each	of	the	methodologies	are	
summarised	below.			

Resident	street	survey	 	 805	interviews	

Online	and	paper	based	consultation	survey	 496	responses	(cleaned	data)	

Direct	mail	patient	survey	(across	three	service	areas)	 324	responses	

Focus	groups	 32	groups,	324	participants*	

Public,	staff	and	stakeholder	events		 19	events,	443	participants	

Staff	Q&A	events	 12	groups,	174	participants	

Individual	submissions	-	Phone,	letter,	email	 57	submissions	

Travel	and	Transport	discussion	group	 1	event,	53	participants	

*Note	that	the	analysis	is	based	on	only	the	28	focus	groups	available	for	analysis	at	the	deadline	following	the	
closing	date.	

These	figures	represent	the	actual	number	of	responses	included	in	the	analysis	following	a	
data	cleaning	process.		This	process	excluded	records	which	were	unsuitable	for	analysis,	
such	as	those	where	a	respondent	has	not	completed	responses	to	any	questions	or	where	
hand	writing	is	illegible.		In	this	survey,	the	drop	off	numbers	were	significant	for	the	
online/paper	based	surveys.		There	could	be	a	number	of	reasons	for	this	–	technical,	
personal	or	related	to	the	survey	content,	though	this	information	is	not	available	to	assess.		
As	a	‘self-selecting’	method,	it	is	the	choice	of	the	responder	whether	to	continue	or	not	at	
any	point	in	the	survey.			

This	‘drop	off’	in	numbers	is	common	in	surveys	of	this	nature	and	the	cleaning	process	is	
part	of	good	practice	procedures	to	ensure	the	analysis	process	can	be	carried	out	
effectively.	

2.5 Demographics	summary	

Demographics	were	collected	though	were	not	mandatory.	The	resident	street	survey	
provides	the	most	complete	dataset.		For	other	methods,	demographics	data	received	is	
reported	but	is	incomplete	in	many	categories,	which	is	to	be	expected	for	self-completing	
methods.	

Breakdowns	are	for	the	cleaned	data	used	for	analysis	in	each	case.	

Page 58



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

21	
	

2.5.1 Resident	Street	Survey	demographics	summary		

• Number	interviewed	805	

• 50.6%	(407	respondents)	were	from	South	Tyneside	and	49.4%	from	Sunderland	(398	
respondents).		

• 52.0%	 of	 the	 sample	 were	 female	 (419	 respondents)	 and	 47.6%	 male	 (383	
respondents).	The	gender	was	not	recorded	for	three	individuals.		

• The	age	distribution	of	respondents	was	fairly	equal	with	similar	proportions	aged	18-
24	years	(14.5%;	117	respondents),	25-34	years	(11.8%;	95	respondents),	35-44	years	
(17.9%;	144	respondents),	45-54	years	(14.3%;	115	respondents),	55-64	years	(18.9%;	
152	respondents)	and	65-74	years	(13.4%;	108	respondents).	

• 92.5%	(745	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	white	British.		
• When	asked	their	religion,	49.7%	(400	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	Christian,	

whilst	39.9%	(321	respondents)	told	us	that	they	didn’t	have	a	religion.		
• <1%	(4	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	currently	pregnant.		
• <1%	(6	respondents)	indicated	that	either	they,	their	wife	/	partner	/	spouse	was	

expecting	a	child.		
• 12.0%	(97	respondents)	stated	that	they	had	a	child	less	than	two	years	of	age.		
• 9.4%	(76	respondents)	told	us	that	they	were	planning	to	have	a	baby	in	the	next	

two	years.		
• 11.7%	(94	respondents)	stated	that	they	had	a	disability.		

2.5.2 Online	and	paper	based	consultation	survey	demographics	summary	(	

• Number	responded	496	-	post-data	clean	

• 11.7%	(58	respondents)	were	from	Sunderland	and	45.8%	(277	respondents)	were	
from	South	Tyneside.	Furthermore,	26.8%	(133	respondents)	did	not	provide	their	
postcode	and	15.7%	(78	respondents)	provided	a	postcode	which	was	categorised	as	
‘other’	(including	31	individuals	who	provided	a	SR6	postcode	which	was	categorised	
as	other	as	this	postcode	is	found	in	both	areas	and	is	therefore	not	attributable).		

• 57.1%	(283	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	female	and	12.5%	male	(62	
respondents).	30.4%	(151	respondents)	did	not	disclose	their	gender.		

• 1.6%	(8	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	currently	pregnant.		
• 9.3%	(46	respondents)	indicated	that	they	had	a	child	under	the	age	of	two	years.		

2.5.3 Direct	patients	survey	demographics	summary		

Stroke	(Number	responded	=	81)	

• 35.8%	(29	respondents)	were	from	Sunderland	and	40.7%	(33	respondents)	from	
South	Tyneside.	The	remaining	respondents	did	not	provide	their	postcode	(9.9%,	8	
respondents)	or	were	from	an	‘other’	area	(13.6%,	11	respondents).			

• 53.1%	(43	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	female	and	39.5%	male	(32	
respondents).	8.6%	did	not	specify	their	gender	(7	respondents).			

Page 59



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

22	
	

• No	respondents	indicated	that	they	were	currently	pregnant,	they	or	their	wife/	
partner/	spouse	was	currently	pregnant,	nor	did	they	have	a	child	under	the	age	of	
two	years.			

• 25.5%	(26	respondents)	said	that	they	had	a	child	under	the	age	of	24	months.		
• 50.6%	(41	respondents)	stated	that	they	had	a	disability.		

Maternity	(Number	responded	=	141)	

• 26.2%	(37	respondents)	were	from	Sunderland	and	51.1%	(72	respondents)	from	
South	Tyneside.	The	remaining	respondents	did	not	provide	their	postcode	(5.7%,	8	
respondents)	or	were	from	an	‘other’	area	(17.0%,	24	respondents,	including	15	who	
gave	a	SR6	postcode	which	was	non-attributable)	

• 96.5%	(136	respondents)	were	female	and	0.7%	male	(1	respondent).	2.8%	(4	
respondents)	did	not	specify	their	gender.		

• 5.0%	(7	respondents)	indicated	that	they	were	currently	pregnant.	
• Just	one	respondent	(0.7%)	stated	that	their	wife	/	partner	/	spouse	was	currently	

pregnant.		
• 55.3%	(78	respondents)	stated	that	they	had	a	child	under	the	age	of	two	years.		
• 12.1%	(17	respondents)	stated	that	they	had	a	disability.		

Children	and	Young	People	(Number	responded	=	102)	

• 26.4%	(27	respondents)	were	from	Sunderland	and	59.8%	(61	respondents)	from	
South	Tyneside.	The	remaining	respondents	did	not	provide	their	postcode	(4.9%,	5	
respondents)	or	were	from	an	‘other’	area	(8.8%,	9	respondents,	including	7	who	
gave	a	SR6	postcode	which	was	non-attributable)	

• 79.4%	(81	respondents)	stated	that	they	were	female	and	14.7%	male	(15	
respondents).	5.9%	did	not	specify	their	gender	(6	respondents).			

• 3.9%	(4	respondents)	indicated	that	they	were	currently	pregnant.		
• 2.9%	(3	respondents)	told	us	that	either	they	or	their	wife/	partner/	spouse	was	

currently	pregnant.		
• 25.5%	(26	respondents)	said	that	they	had	a	child	under	the	age	of	24	months.		
• 3.9%	(4	respondents)	stated	that	they	had	a	disability.		

2.5.4 Focus	group	sessions	

Number	of	groups	=	32	(28	analysed)	
Number	of	participants	=	324	
Demographics	in	relation	to	the	targeted	equalities	groups	can	be	found	at	Appendix	Two.		

2.5.5 Public,	staff	and	stakeholder	events,	including	staff	Q&A	events	

Number	of	groups	=	19	(including	3	x	launch	events	which	were	not	analysed),		
Number	of	participants	=	443	
Number	of	staff	Q&A	events	=	12	staff	events,	number	of	participants	=	174	
Demographic	monitoring	was	unreliable	as	completions	were	low.	

Page 60



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

23	
	

2.5.6 Individual	submissions	

Number	of	submissions	=	57	
Demographics	were	not	collected	for	this	method.	
	

2.5.7 Online	website	and	social	media	metrics	

For	the	period	of	the	consultation,	online	and	social	media	were	used	extensively	to	engage	
the	public	and	encourage	participation	in	the	consultation,	led	locally	by	NECS.	The	main	
active	consultation	period	was	5th	July	–	15th	October	2017	the	following	engagement	was	
achieved11	

Website	

Pre-consultation	and	launch	period	(21st	June	–	5th	July):	Total	site	visits	=	1,848	

Consultation	period	(5th	July	–	15th	October):	Total	site	visits	=	8,438	made	up	of	

• Unique	visits	=	6,261	
• Direct	=	2,619	
• Organic	=	1,402	
• Social	=	1,414	

• Referral	=	818	
• Email	=	9	
• Repeat	visits	=	2,177	

The	website	pages	were	viewed	15,335	times	in	total	–	meaning	every	visitor	viewed	on	
average	two	pages	on	the	website	each	visit.	People	typically	spent	2	minutes	on	the	
website	and	the	most	visited	page	during	the	consultation	was	the	home	page	with	6,307	
total	views	and	4,946	unique	views.	The	most	visited	areas	of	care	page	were	maternity	and	
women’s	healthcare	with	1,273	page	views	of	which	1,082	were	unique.	

Social	media		

Consultation	period	(5th	July	–	15th	October):		

• Followers/connections:	Facebook	=	207	/	Twitter	=	129		
• Average	reach	per	day:	Facebook	=	60	/	Twitter	=	2,100	
• Brand	sentiment:	65	positive	messages	(51.2%)	/	41	neutral	messages	32.3%)	/	21	

negative	messages	(16.5%)	
• Gender	breakdown:	Male	76.5%	/	Female	23.5%		
• Post	success	varied	and	depending	on	the	goal	the	best	social	outlet	for	reach	is	Twitter	

and	the	best	source	for	link	clicks	is	Facebook.		
	

																																																								
11	figures	provided	by	NECS	Communications	and	Engagement	team	

Page 61



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

24	
	

	
Media	monitoring	

Consultation	period	(5th	July	–	15th	October):		

Coverage	36	times	online	and	in	the	local	papers	with	a	total	reach	for	all	coverage	is	
1,643,435	/	estimated	value	for	all	coverage	is	£77,122.98.		

Outlets	included:	

• Shields	Gazette	x	12	 	
• Shields	Gazette	(online)	x	5	
• Sunderland	Echo	(Online)	x	5	
• Sunderland	Echo	x	4	

• Hartlepool	mail	(online)	x	4	
• The	Chronicle	(online)	x	3		
• The	Chronicle	x	2	
• The	Journal	x	1		

	

2.6 Consultation	Analysis	methodologies	

2.6.1 Quantitative	Analysis	

The	findings	from	the	survey	based	consultation	approaches	were	each	analysed	separately	
to	recognise	the	differences	in	the	respondents	and	sampling	approach.				

• Resident	street	survey;	
• Online	and	paper	consultation	survey;	and		
• Direct	patient	surveys		

The	closed	responses	were	analysed	using	industry	standard	statistical	analysis	software12	
with	manual	coding	used	for	the	free	text	responses	to	group	them	into	themes	reflective	of	
the	sentiment	expressed.	The	analysis	outcomes	from	the	free	text	responses	informed	and	
were	incorporated	into	the	full	qualitative	reporting.		

																																																								
12	SPSS	

Page 62



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

25	
	

When	considering	the	results,	it	is	important	to	note:	

• The	street	survey	of	residents	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	is	representative	at	the	
population	level,	considering	the	views	of	all	irrespective	of	current	service	use.	This	is	
the	only	statistically	reliable	response13,	but	does	not	necessarily	reflect	the	views	of	
services	users.	

• The	online	and	paper	survey	represents	the	views	of	those	who	are	engaged,	this	is	
more	likely	to	include	the	views	of	service	users,	carers,	staff,	and	others	with	a	direct	
interest	in	the	services,	but	cannot	be	said	to	represent	opinion	from	the	entire	
population.	This	is	very	important	opinion	for	that	reason,	but	cannot	be	treated	as	
being	statistically	reliable	as	respondents	are	self-selecting.	

• The	direct	survey	to	people	who	had	used	services	within	the	last	two	years	is	arguably	
the	most	representative	of	their	views,	and	is	a	very	important	source	of	opinion,	but	
this	cannot	be	treated	as	statistically	reliable	again	due	to	the	self-selecting	nature	of	
the	respondents	and	that	the	sample	size	of	those	responding	was	relatively	small.	

2.6.2 Qualitative	Analysis	

The	findings	from	the	discussion	based	consultation	approaches	(focus	groups,	public	
meetings,	and	individual	submissions)	are	based	on	an	approach	where	the	data	from	the	
session	notes	is	analysed	and	responses	grouped	into	themes	that	most	closely	represent	
the	views	expressed14.		This	allows	us	to	report	the	findings	based	on	an	accurate	reflection	
of	the	sentiments	expressed.	Where	quotes	and	comments	are	shown	in	the	full	report,	
these	have	been	chosen	to	represent	the	centre	of	the	sentiment	expressed	within	that	
theme.		

Throughout	this	report	qualitative	responses	are	based	on	manual	coded	themes.		

2.7 Analysis	Report	Structure	

This	report	sets	out	the	results	of	the	analysis	using	the	following	structure.	

• Quantitative	analysis	is	presented	first,	considering	each	service	area	in	order,	and	
presenting	the	responses	to	the	options	under	consideration	in	each	service	area.		

Each	method	-	Resident	Street	Survey,	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	and	Direct	
Patient	Surveys	-	is	considered	in	turn	with	key	findings	presented	in	tabular	format	and	
highlighted	as	narrative.			

The	data	is	also	analysed	by	area	(South	Tyneside/Sunderland)	and/or	where	significant.		

There	is	a	summary	of	key	points	across	all	methods	for	each	service	area	and	an	overall	
quantitative	analysis	summary.	

																																																								
13	Using	2016	Mid-	Year	Population	Estimates	for	both	boroughs.	Across	both	populations	the	results	are	
reliable	to	a	confidence	level	of	95%	with	a	confidence	interval	of	+/-3.89	(for	South	Tyneside	this	95%	+/-	4.89	
and	Sunderland	is	95%	+/-	4.9.)	
14	Our	approach	is	based	in	the	employment	of	Classic	Grounded	Theory.		

Page 63



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

26	
	

The	process	questions	and	a	summary	of	the	free	text	responses	are	also	summarised,	
supported	by	Appendices.	

• Qualitative	analysis	then	presents	the	key	themes	arising	from	analysis	across	both	
Focus	Groups	sessions	and	Public,	Staff	and	Stakeholder	events.		

Service	area	specific	themes	are	then	presented	separately	and	for	each	of	the	two	
methodologies.	There	is	a	summary	of	key	points	across	all	methods	for	each	service	
area	and	an	overall	quantitative	summary.	

Staff	Q&A	events	and	Individual	submissions	are	treated	separately	later	in	the	report	
and	there	is	a	separate	section	collating	the	comments	from	the	Travel	and	Transport	
discussion	group.	

The	analysis	is	based	on	all	the	information	provided	at	the	close	of	the	consultation.	

Note:	It	is	important	to	note	that	whilst	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	options	covered	
service	changes	to	both	Obstetrics	and	Gynaecology,	there	is	no	requirement	for	responders	
to	comment	specifically	on	either	or	both	in	their	comments	or	choices.		In	this	case,	
responses	focused	on	maternity	rather	than	women’s	healthcare.	

	

	

	

	 	

Page 64



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

27	
	

3 Quantitative	Responses:	Stroke	Services	

3.1 Introduction	

The	section	considers	the	responses	from	the	three	quantitative	consultation	methods	to	
the	proposed	options	for	stroke	services.		The	options	put	forward	for	consultation	were:	

Option	1:		
	

• Combine	all	hyperacute	and	acute	stroke	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	
Hospital	

• Patients	from	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	will	have	their	
continuing	hospital	based	rehabilitation	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
before	being	discharged	to	their	local	community	stroke	teams	who	will	
provide	any	further	rehabilitation	and	support	locally	

Option	2:		 • Combine	all	hyperacute	and	acute	stroke	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	
Hospital	

• After	seven	days,	patients	who	live	in	South	Tyneside	can	be	moved	to	
South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	for	continuing	in	hospital	rehabilitation	
before	being	discharged	to	their	local	community	stroke	rehabilitation	
team	for	support	locally	

• Sunderland	patients	will	continue	to	receive	their	stroke	rehabilitation	
care	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	before	being	discharged	to	their	local	
community	stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	support	locally	

Option	3:		 • Combine	all	hyperacute	stroke	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
• After	three	days,	patients	who	live	in	South	Tyneside	can	be	moved	to	

South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	for	their	acute	stroke	care	and	
continuing	in	hospital	rehabilitation	before	being	discharged	to	their	
local	community	stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	support	locally	

• Sunderland	patients	will	continue	to	receive	their	acute	stroke	care	and	
in	hospital	rehabilitation	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	before	being	
discharged	to	their	local	community	stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	
support	locally	

As	previously	noted,	the	Resident	Street	Survey	is	the	only	method	for	which	results	are	
significant	at	a	population	level.		

There	were	two	key	questions	asked	in	these	surveys:	

QUESTION	1:	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	stroke	
services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	needs	(3)	

This	is	option	ranking.	Sections	3.2	-	3.4	report	on	the	quantitative	responses	by	method	on	
the	preferences	of	respondents	when	asked	to	choose	which	option	is	closest	to	or	farthest	
away	from	meeting	needs.		Survey	respondents	were	asked	to	rate	which	of	the	options	
being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	

Page 65



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

28	
	

meeting	needs’,	ranking	options	as	1,	and	which	was	least	preferred	or	‘farthest	from	
meeting	needs’,	ranking	3.	

Note:		 The	rationale	for	this	question	was	to	require	respondents	to	choose	the	option	
which	they	felt	most	suitable,	in	their	opinion.		The	question	was	not	mandatory,	
and	respondents	could	opt	out	of	responding	if	they	choose	to.	Therefore,	discussion	
of	the	results	has	primarily	been	limited	to	choices	about	which	option	was	
considered	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’.	

QUESTION	2:	Do	you	feel	that	Option	[1,	2	or	3]	for	stroke	services	would	meet	your	needs	or	
the	needs	of	people	you	care	for	or	those	of	the	group	or	organisation	you	represent?	

This	indicates	the	scale	of	favourability:	Section	3.5	reports	on	the	scale	of	support	for	each	
option.	This	question	encouraged	respondents	to	begin	to	consider	their	preferences	about	
the	options	whereas	the	question	above	requires	a	clearer	choice	to	be	made	once	all	the	
options	have	been	considered.	Answer	choices	were	presented	as:	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
fail	to	meet	

needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
slightly	fail	
to	meet	
needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	

neither	meet	
nor	fail	to	
meet	needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
slightly	meet	

needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
fully	meet	
needs	

Don’t	
Know	/	

Prefer	not	
to	say	

This	is	reported	for	the	Resident	Street	Survey	and	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	
only.		It	is	also	reported	by	area	for	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey.		

Note:		 For	all	other	data	this	breakdown	is	not	presented.		Because	of	the	low	numbers	
involved,	results	would	be	likely	to	be	a	coincidence	and	therefore	we	would	have	no	
confidence	in	them.	

	 	

Page 66



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

29	
	

3.2 Resident	Street	Survey	Analysis	

3.2.1 Overall	Preferred	Stroke	Service	Option	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Overall	as	a	total	sample,	responses	to	this	question	are	shown	below:	

Q 	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	stroke	services	
you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	needs	(3)	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents.	Variances	are	explained	by	those	who	
preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

From	the	results	for	the	total	sample,	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Most	respondents	believe	Option	1	to	be	the	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’	at	59%	with	
only	17%	answering	that	this	was	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’;		

• The	fewest	number	of	respondents	(2%)	believe	Option	2	to	be	‘closest	to	meeting	need’	
for	stroke	services.		

• Option	3	attracted	the	most	responses	for	being	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’	at	40%	

Overall,	Option	1	was	the	closest	to	meeting	needs	above	options	2	and	3	and	this	was	a	
significant	difference.	

3.3 Stroke	Service	Option	preferences	by	Area	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Preferences	for	the	options	being	consulted	on	were	also	considered	by	area	–	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland	separately.	

Q Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	stroke	services	
you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	needs	(3)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1		 61%	 190	 77%	 288	 37%	 107	 9%	 32	

Option	2	 2%	 6	 3%	 13	 14%	 41	 44%	 161	

Option	3		 37%	 116	 20%	 74	 49%	 142	 48%	 177	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	area	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

	For	respondents	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	1	is	the	most	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	with	
61%	ranking	it	1,	with	37%	citing	Option	3.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 59%		 478	 17%		 139	

Option	2	 2%		 19	 25%		 202	

Option	3
*
	 24%		 190	 40%		 319	

Page 67



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

30	
	

• Option	2	is	the	significantly	lower	ranked	of	the	three	in	terms	of	meeting	need	at	2%.	
• Option	3	is	the	option	felt	to	be	farthest	from	meeting	respondent	needs	with	49%	

ranking	it	third.		

For	respondents	living	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	significantly	more	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	with	77%	ranking	it	1.	
• Option	2	is	least	favoured	with	3%	ranking	it	1.	
• Option	3	is	the	option	felt	to	be	farthest	from	meeting	the	needs	of	respondents	in	

Sunderland	with	48%	ranking	it	3.	

Therefore,	although	Option	1	is	agreed	as	the	option	to	be	highest	ranked	by	all	
respondents,	when	compared	together	the	findings	show	Sunderland	residents	keener	on	
this	option	(77%)	than	South	Tyneside	residents	(62%).	

3.3.1 Stroke	Service	Option	Preferences	by	Age	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Preferences	were	considered	by	Age:	

	

	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 15%	 15	 24%	 19	 25%	 30	 19%	 19	 19%	 23	 23%	 19	 21%	 12	

Option	2	 33%	 33	 26%	 20	 29%	 35	 38%	 37	 28%	 33	 29%	 24	 34%	 19	

Option	3		 52%	 53	 50%	 39	 46%	 55	 43%	 42	 53%	 62	 48%	 40	 45%	 25	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	breakdown	of	responses	to	the	question	on	which	option	is	preferred	by	age	show	that:	

• Option	1	is	the	clear	and	significant	preferred	option,	irrespective	of	age.		
• Option	2	is	the	least	popular	choice	by	respondents	either	as	that	‘closest	to’	or	

’furthest	from’	meeting	needs	across	all	age	ranges.	
• Option	3	is	felt	to	be	least	likely	to	meet	needs	for	all	age	ranges	

It	is	also	worth	noting	that	there	are	no	significant	variations	in	opinion	across	the	age	
ranges.		

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	

	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 75%	 79	 68%	 55	 65%	 79	 72%	 74	 72%	 89	 67%	 58	 67%	 40	

Option	2	 3%	 3	 2%	 2	 6%	 7	 3%	 3	 1%	 1	 2%	 2	 2%	 1	

Option	3		 23%	 24	 30%	 24	 29%	 35	 25%	 26	 27%	 34	 30%	 26	 32%	 19	

Page 68



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

31	
	

3.3.2 Stroke	Service	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent	it	can	be	
seen	that:	

	 Female	 Male	

Option	1	 68%	 240	 71%	 236	

Option	2	 3%	 9	 3%	 10	

Option	3	 29%	 102	 26%	 88	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

°Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	

From	these	results	we	can	see	that:	

• Option	1	is	ranked	equally	among	women	and	men	as	most	likely	to	meet	needs;		
• Option	2	is	least	likely	to	meet	needs,	ranked	equally	by	both	sexes.	

3.4 Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	

3.4.1 Overall	Preferred	Stroke	Services	Option	(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Respondents	to	the	online/paper	consultation	questionnaire	were	also	asked	to	rate	which	
of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	
1	=	‘closest	meeting	needs’	and	3	=	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’		

Note	that	questions	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	were	not	
mandatory	and	that	respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished.		
Therefore,	not	all	respondents	answered	this	ranking	question	and	the	numbers	tend	to	
be	low	and	therefore	less	reliable.	

	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	

	

Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 25%		 77	 19%		 59	
Option	2		 7.5%		 23	 7%		 21	
	Option	3		 17%		 52	 23%		 68	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents.	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	
not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

From	the	data	available,	for	all	respondents	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	25%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs,	though	19%	said	it	was	furthest	from	meeting	needs;	and	

• Option	2	attracts	the	lowest	rating	in	this	respect	(7.5%);	and		

Page 69



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

32	
	

• Option	3	is	ranked	as	least	likely	to	meet	respondent’s	needs	(22%%)	

Of	most	note	are	the	high	levels	of	‘no	response/prefer	not	to	say’,	which	represents	
respondents	who	chose	not	to	answer	this	question	in	this	method,	rendering	the	sample	
size	and	therefore	reliability	low.	

3.4.2 Stroke	Service	Option	preferences	by	Area	(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Options	were	analysed	by	area	for	this	method.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1		 38%	 25	 69%	 22	 52%	 37	 17%	 5	

Option	2	 17%	 11	 16%	 5	 13%	 9	 17%	 5	

Option	3		 45%	 30	 16%	 5	 35%	 25	 66%	 19	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	area	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	data	shows	that:	

• In	Sunderland	Option	1	was	most	favourable	whereas	in	South	Tyneside	Option	3	was	
thought	to	be	‘closest	to	meeting	needs;	

• However,	the	preference	for	Option	1	in	Sunderland	was	stronger	(69%)	than	the	
preference	for	Option	3	in	South	Tyneside	(45%).	

	

3.4.3 Stroke	Service	Option	preferences	by	Age	(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

From	the	online/paper	consultation	survey	responses	considered	by	age:	

• Option	1	is	preferred	by	those	aged	25	and	above,	apart	from	the	35-44	age	bracket	
and	collectively,	over	45’s	preference	for	Option	1	is	significant.	

• Option	3	is	least	preferred	by	all	but	the	35-44	age	bracket.	

• Individually,	respondents	split	by	age	bracket	produces	low	numbers	and	therefore	
are	unreliable.	

*	The	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	

	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 0%	 0	 50%	 10	 35%	 11	 68%	 23	 54%	 14	 57%	 4	 86%	 6	

Option	2	 50%	 1	 20%	 4	 16%	 5	 18%	 6	 12%	 3	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	

Option	3		 50%	 1	 30%	 6	 48%	 15	 15%	 5	 35%	 9	 43%	 3	 14%	 1	

Page 70



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

33	
	

	

3.4.4 Stroke	Service	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent	it	can	be	
seen	that:	

• Option	1	is	most	likely	to	meet	needs	of	both	sexes,	however	men	rated	this	more	likely	
than	women	(f50%,	m64%)	

• Option	2	is	least	likely	to	meet	needs	in	both	cases	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female		 Male		 Female		 Male		

Option	1		 50%	 50	 64%	 16	 38%	 36	 41%	 11	

Option	2	 16%	 16	 8%	 2	 14%	 13	 11%	 3	

Option	3		 34%	 34	 28%	 7	 48%	 46	 48%	 13	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

°	Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	

3.5 Direct	Patient	Survey	Analysis	

3.5.1 Overall	Preferred	Stroke	Service	Option	(Direct	Patient	Survey)		

Respondents	to	the	direct	survey	of	current	and	recent	patients	and	service	users	were	also	
asked	to	express	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	
preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	meeting	needs’	(1	=	closest	meeting	needs	
and	3	farthest	from	meeting	needs).	

Note	that	the	overall	numbers	responding	to	this	method	for	Stroke	Services	was	low	at	
n=81.	In	addition,	respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished	therefore	
not	all	have	answered	every	time.	Therefore,	results	should	be	treated	with	caution.			

	

Q Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	stroke	services	
you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	needs	(3)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

Option	1	 38%		 31	 12%		 10	

Option	2	 1.2%		 1	 2.5%		 2	

Option	3	 12%		 10	 15%		 12	
*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents.	Variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	
not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

	

	

Page 71



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

34	
	

	

From	these	preferences	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	38%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs;	and	

• Option	2	attracts	the	lowest	rating	in	this	respect	at	1.2%.	

3.5.2 Stroke	Service	Option	preferences	by	Area	(Direct	Patient	Survey)	

When	considered	by	area	-	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	-	responses	show.	

	 	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	
Option	1	 38%	 6	 94%	 17	 73%	 8	 10%	 1	
Option	2	 6%	 1	 0%	 0	 9%	 1	 10%	 1	

Option	3	 56%	 9	 6%	 1	 18%	 2	 80%	 8	
*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	
variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	
counted.			

For	respondents	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	3	is	the	most	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	(56%	
ranking	it	1).		

• Option	2	is	the	significantly	lower	ranked	of	the	three	in	terms	of	meeting	need	(6%)	
• Option	1	is	the	option	felt	to	be	farthest	from	meeting	respondent	needs	with	73%	

ranking	it	as	3.		

For	respondents	living	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	the	most	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	for	Sunderland	residents	
responding	to	the	direct	survey	(94%	ranking	it	1).	

• No	respondents	favour	option	2	
• Option	3	is	the	option	felt	to	be	farthest	from	meeting	the	needs	of	respondents	in	

Sunderland	(80%	ranking	it	3)	

From	this	we	can	see	that	for	the	Direct	patient	survey,	Option	3	is	the	most	favourable	for	
South	Tyneside	respondents	and	Option	1	for	Sunderland.		However,	results	should	be	
treated	with	caution	as	both	‘prefer	not	to	say’	and	‘other	area’	have	been	excluded,	
therefore	numbers	are	low.			

3.5.3 Stroke	Service	Option	Preferences	by	Age	(Direct	Patient	Survey)	

Given	the	nature	of	this	survey	–	sent	directly	to	recent	or	current	and	recent	patients	of	
stroke	services,	a	high	number	of	responses	from	younger	people	were	not	expected.		The	
youngest	age	of	respondents	is	35.		

Page 72



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

35	
	

	

	 	 Closest	to	meeting	

needs	

	

	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1	 100%	 2	 0%	 0	 50%	 3	 93%	 13	 65%	 11	

Option	2	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 6%	 1	

Option	3	 0%	 0	 100%	 1	 50%	 3	 7%	 1	 29%	 5	

	

	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 0%	 0	 100%	 1	 50%	 2	 17%	 1	 60%	 6	

Option	2	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 20%	 2	

Option	3		 100%	 2	 0%	 0	 50%	 2	 83%	 5	 20%	 2	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

From	the	direct	survey	responses	by	age	we	see:	

• Very	low	response	numbers;		
• In	general	Option	1	is	preferred;	and		
• Option	3	is	felt	to	be	least	likely	to	meet	the	needs	of	respondents.		

3.5.4 Stroke	Service	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	(Direct	Patient	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female	 Male	 Female	 Male	

Option	1	 50%	 14	 64%	 17	 38%	 7	 11%	 3	

Option	2	 16%	 1	 8%	 0	 14%	 1	 4%	 1	

Option	3	 34%	 5	 28%	 5	 48%	 6	 22%	 6	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

°Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	

From	the	preferences	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	is	ranked	as	most	likely	to	meet	needs	with	men	more	likely	(64%)	to	provide	
this	response	than	women	(50%);	

Page 73



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

36	
	

• Option	2	attracts	the	least	rankings	overall	for	both	sexes;		
• Option	3	is	least	likely	to	meet	needs.	

3.5.5 Stroke	Service	Options	scale	of	meeting	need	

Respondents	were	asked	to	indicate	to	what	extent	the	options	meet	their	need	in	the	
Resident	Street	Survey:	

Q Do	you	feel	that	Option	[1,	2	or	3]	for	stroke	services	would	meet	your	needs	or	the	
needs	of	people	you	care	for	or	those	of	the	group	or	organisation	you	represent?		

Stroke	Services	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	 Option	3	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 63%	 510	 34%	 272	 27%	 217	

Neither		 4%	 33	 11%	 89	 13%	 108	

Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	 24%	 195	 44%	 354	 48%	 383	

Don't	know		 8%	 66	 11%	 85	 12%	 93	

No	response	 0%	 1	 1%	 5	 0.5%	 4	

The	feedback	overall	suggests	that	only	Option	1	is	considered	to	either	fully	or	slightly	meet	
needs	(63%)	more	than	it	would	fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs,	selected	by	24%.	More	
respondents	considered	Options	2	and	3	to	fail	fully	or	slightly	to	meet	needs	(44%	and	48%	
respectively)	than	fully	or	slightly	meet	needs	(34%	and	13%	respectively).	

Though	Option	1	has	seen	to	meet	needs	for	63%	of	respondents	overall,	there	were	
significant?	differences	in	the	responses	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	residents.			

Stroke	Services	(Resident	Street	Survey)	by	area	

	
• Option	1	was	favoured	as	slightly	or	fully	meeting	needs	by	86%	of	Sunderland	residents	

but	only	41%	of	South	Tyneside;	a	similar	proportion	to	those	in	South	Tyneside	who	felt	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	 Option	3	
	 South	

Tyneside	
Sunderland	

South	

Tyneside	
Sunderland	

South	

Tyneside	
Sunderland	

Fully/slightly	

meet	needs	
41%	 168	 86%	 342	 23%	 90	 66%	 264	 29%	 117	 67%	 266	

Neither		 5%	 20	 3%	 13	 17%	 70	 5%	 19	 22%	 88	 5%	 20	
Fully/slightly	

fail	to	meet	

needs	

40%	 164	 8%	 31	 42%	 170	 26%	 102	 29%	 117	 25%	 100	

Don't	know		 13.5%	 55	 3%	 11	 18%	 75	 2.5%	 10	 20%	 83	 2.5%	 10	
No	response	 0%	 0	 0%	 1	 0.5%	 2	 1%	 3	 0.5%	 2	 0%	 2	

Page 74



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

37	
	

it	failed	or	slightly	failed	to	meet	needs	(40%).	
• For	Option	2,	66%	Sunderland	residents	agree	that	this	option	meets	their	needs	

fully/slightly	vs	failing	to	meet	needs	(26%)	whereas	South	Tyneside	residents	respond	
conversely,	with	42%	citing	fully/slightly	fails	to	meet	needs	vs	22%	fully/slightly	meets	
needs.		

• Option	3	shows	broadly	similar	levels	of	meeting/failing	to	meet	needs	across	the	two	
areas.	

Respondents	were	also	asked	to	indicate	to	what	extent	the	options	meet	their	needs	in	the	
Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	

Stroke	Services	(Online/paper	Consultation	Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	 Option	3	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 28%	 85	 21%	 64	 23%	 70	
Neither		 7%	 22	 11%	 33	 9%	 27	
Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	 62%	 191	 54%	 166	 51%	 156	
Don't	know		 3%	 10	 7.8%	 24	 12%	 38	
No	response	 0%	 0	 6.8%	 21	 5.5%	 17	

• In	all	cases	for	this	method,	the	options	were	felt	to	fail	fully/slightly	to	meet	needs	
more	than	they	fully/slightly	met	needs.			

	

3.6 Stroke	Services	Quantitative	Analysis	Summary		

The	quantitative	methodologies	reporting	on	preferences,	where	given,	for	the	options	
indicate	a	clear	preference	for	Option	1	in	most	of	the	data	analysed.		In	terms	of	a	least	
preferred	option,	this	is	option	3.			

Whilst	there	is	variance	in	the	scale	of	favourability	towards	the	options,	the	most	
favourable	option	is	not	affected	by	whether	the	respondent	is	male	or	female.	

This	result	also	holds	across	age	ranges.		

There	are	some	differences	of	note	in	relation	to	area;	the	most	marked	difference	in	
preference	is	when	considering	the	respondents	from	South	Tyneside	or	Sunderland;	both	
groups	cite	Option	1	as	that	which	most	meets	their	needs	in	the	Resident	Street	Survey	and	
the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	though	the	strength	of	support	for	this	is	stronger	in	
Sunderland	than	South	Tyneside.	

This	is	also	reflected	when	asked	about	whether	the	option	meets	or	fails	to	meet	needs	in	
the	self-selecting	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	where	for	Option	1,	South	Tyneside	
residents	report	this	option	as	failing	to	meet	needs	in	similar	numbers	to	meeting	needs.		

	

Page 75



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

38	
	

	

4 Quantitative	Responses:	Maternity	(obstetrics)	and	Women’s	Healthcare	

Services	(gynaecology)		

4.1 Introduction	

The	section	considers	the	responses	from	the	three	quantitative	consultation	methods	to	
the	proposed	options	for	Maternity	and	women’s	healthcare	services.		The	options	put	
forward	for	consultation	were:	

Maternity	

(obstetrics)	

and	women’s	

healthcare	

services	

(gynaecology)		

Option	1:		

• Retaining	a	consultant-led	maternity	unit	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
and	continuing	to	provide	alongside	midwifery-led	care	for	low	risk	births	

• Developing	a	free-standing	midwifery-led	unit	at	South	Tyneside	District	
Hospital	for	low	risk	births	

• The	provision	of	community	midwifery	care,	including	all	community	
antenatal	and	postnatal	care	will	remain	unchanged	

• Providing	inpatient	gynaecology	surgery	from	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
while	continuing	to	provide	day-case	operations	and	outpatients	
consultations	at	both	South	Tyneside	District	and	Sunderland	Royal	
Hospitals	

• Single	special	care	baby	unit	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
	

Maternity	

(obstetrics)	

and	women’s	

healthcare	

services	

(gynaecology)		

Option	2:		

• Retaining	a	consultant-led	maternity	unit	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
and	continuing	to	provide	alongside	midwifery-led	care	for	low	risk	births	

• The	provision	of	community	midwifery	care,	including	all	community	
antenatal	and	postnatal	care	will	remain	unchanged	

• Providing	inpatient	gynaecology	surgery	from	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
while	continuing	to	provide	day-case	operations	and	outpatients	
consultations	at	both	South	Tyneside	District	and	Sunderland	Royal	
Hospitals	

• Single	special	care	baby	unit	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

As	previously	noted,	the	Resident	Street	Survey	is	the	only	method	for	which	results	are	
significant	at	a	population	level.		

There	were	two	key	questions	asked	in	these	surveys:	

QUESTION	1:	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	maternity	
and	women’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	
meeting	needs	(2)	

This	is	option	ranking.	Sections	4.2	-	4.4	report	on	the	quantitative	responses	by	method	on	
the	preferences	of	respondents	when	asked	to	choose	which	option	is	closest	to	or	farthest	

Page 76



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

39	
	

away	from	meeting	needs.		Survey	respondents	were	asked	to	rate	which	of	the	options	
being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	to	
meeting	needs’,	ranking	options	as	1,	and	which	was	least	preferred	or	‘farthest	from	
meeting	needs’,	ranking	2.	

Note:		 The	rationale	for	this	question	was	to	require	respondents	to	choose	the	option	
which	they	felt	most	suitable,	in	their	opinion.		The	question	was	not	mandatory,	
and	respondents	could	opt	out	of	responding	if	they	choose	to.	Therefore,	discussion	
of	the	results	has	primarily	been	limited	to	choices	about	which	option	was	
considered	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’.	

QUESTION	2:	Do	you	feel	that	Option	[1	or	2]	for	maternity	and	women’s	healthcare	services	
would	meet	your	needs	or	the	needs	of	people	you	care	for	or	those	of	the	group	or	
organisation	you	represent?	

This	indicates	the	scale	of	favourability:	Section	4.5	reports	on	the	scale	of	support	for	each	
option.	This	question	encouraged	respondents	to	begin	to	consider	their	preferences	about	
the	options	whereas	the	question	above	requires	a	clearer	choice	to	be	made	once	all	the	
options	have	been	considered.	Answer	choices	were	presented	as:	

I	feel	this	

option	will	

fail	to	meet	

needs	

I	feel	this	

option	will	

slightly	fail	to	

meet	needs	

I	feel	this	

option	will	

neither	meet	

nor	fail	to	

meet	needs	

I	feel	this	

option	will	

slightly	meet	

needs	

I	feel	this	

option	will	

fully	meet	

needs	

Don’t	

Know	/	

Prefer	not	

to	say	

This	is	reported	for	the	Resident	Street	Survey	and	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	
only.		It	is	also	reported	by	area	for	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey.		

Note:		 For	all	other	data	this	breakdown	is	not	presented.		Because	of	the	low	numbers	
involved,	results	would	be	likely	to	be	a	co-incidence	and	therefore	we	would	have	
no	confidence	in	them.	

	 	

Page 77



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

40	
	

4.2 Resident	Street	Survey	Analysis	

4.2.1 Overall	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Preferred	Option	(Resident	

Street	Survey)	

Overall	as	a	total	sample,	responses	to	this	question	are	shown	below:	

Q Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	maternity	and	
women’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	
from	meeting	needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	

	

Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	

Option	1	 72%		 582	 15%		 118	
Option	2	 15%	 118	 72%		 582	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents.	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	
not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

From	the	results	for	the	total	sample	responding	to	this	question,	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• A	strong	majority	of	respondents	believe	Option	1	to	be	the	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’	
at	72%	with	only	15%	answering	that	this	was	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’;		

	

4.2.2 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	preferences	by	Area	(Resident	

Street	Survey)	

Preferences	for	the	options	being	consulted	on	were	also	considered	by	area	–	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland	separately.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1	 69%	 226	 95%	 356	 31%	 101	 5%	 17	
Option	2	 31%	 101	 5%	 17	 69%	 226	 95%	 356	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

For	respondents	who	gave	a	response	to	this	question	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	1	is	the	most	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	with	
69%	ranking	it	1.	

For	respondents	living	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	significantly	more	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	with	95%	ranking	it	1.	

Therefore,	although	Option	1	is	agreed	as	the	option	to	be	highest	ranked	by	all	
respondents	in	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	when	compared	together	the	findings	show	
Sunderland	residents	keener	on	this	option	(95%)	than	South	Tyneside	residents	(69%).	

Page 78



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

41	
	

4.2.3 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	preferences	by	Age	(Resident	

Street	Survey)	

Preferences	were	considered	by	Age:	

	 	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	
	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 87%	 89	 87%	 71	 81%	 101	 85%	 88	 75%	 97	 87%	 79	 88%	 52	
Option	2	 13%	 13	 13%	 11	 19%	 24	 15%	 16	 25%	 33	 13%	 12	 12%	 7	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

From	this	breakdown	we	can	see	that:	

• for	those	who	made	a	choice,	Option	1	is	the	clear	favourite	across	all	age	ranges	

4.2.4 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	(Resident	

Street	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent	it	can	be	
seen	that:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female	 Male	 Female	 Male	

Option	1		 81%	 294	 86%	 288	 19%	 71	 14%	 46	
Option	2	 19%	 71	 14%	 46	 81%	 294	 86%	 288	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

°	No	respondents	indicated	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	‘other	‘were	
offered	as	alternatives.			

• Option	1	is	ranked	equally	highly	among	women	(81%)	and	men	(86%)	as	most	likely	to	
meet	needs;		

4.2.5 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	

Pregnancy/child	under	2	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

For	this	service	area,	responses	were	considered	in	terms	of	those	who	are	either	pregnant	
or	have	a	child	under	two	years:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
Pregnant	or	child	under	2	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	

Yes	 No	 Yes	 No	

Option	1		 85%	 75	 83%	 502	 15%	 13	 17%	 105	
Option	2	 15%	 13	 17%	 105	 85%	 75	 83%	 502	
	

The	results	show	that:	

Page 79



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

42	
	

• Option	1	was	closest	to	meeting	needs	irrespective	of	whether	the	respondent	was	
pregnant/has	a	child	under	2	years	or	not	(85%	and	83%)	

4.3 Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	

4.3.1 Overall	Preferred	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	

(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Respondents	to	the	online/paper	consultation	questionnaire	were	also	asked	to	rate	which	
of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	
1	=	‘closest	meeting	needs’	and	2	=	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’		

Note	that	questions	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	were	not	mandatory	and	
that	respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished.		Therefore,	not	all	
respondents	answered	this	ranking	question	and	the	numbers	tend	to	be	low	and	
therefore	less	reliable.	

Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	maternity	and	women’s	
healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	
needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
Option	1	 35%		 108	 13%		 39	
Option	2		 10%		 32	 38%		 118	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents.	Variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	
not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

From	the	data	available,	for	all	respondents	to	this	question	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	35%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs	and	10%	said	it	was	furthest	from	meeting	needs;	

• A	significant	proportion	chose	not	to	respond	to	this	ranking	question.	

Of	most	note	are	the	high	levels	of	‘no	response/prefer	not	to	say’,	which	represents	
respondents	who	chose	not	to	answer	this	question	in	this	method,	rendering	the	sample	
size	and	therefore	reliability,	low.	

4.3.2 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	preferences	by	Area	

(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Options	were	analysed	by	area	for	this	method.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside		 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1		 74%	 55	 78%	 21	 28%	 26	 20%	 5	
Option	2	 26%	 19	 22%	 6	 72%	 66	 80%	 20	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

Page 80



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

43	
	

The	data	shows	that	of	those:	

• Option	1	was	most	favourable	in	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	areas	at	

similar	levels	–	74%	and	78%	respectively.	

4.3.3 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	preferences	by	Age	

(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

From	the	online/paper	consultation	survey	responses	considered	by	age:	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	feedback	tells	us	that:		

• There	is	a	strong	preference	for	Option	1	by	those	aged	25	and	above	

4.3.4 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	

(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female	 Male	 Female	 Male	

Option	1		 77%	 80	 75%	 15	 27%	 33	 22%	 4	

Option	2	 23%	 24	 25%	 5	 73%	 90	 78%	 14	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			
°Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	

When	analysing	the	responses	by	sex	for	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	we	can	see	
that	for	the	male	and	female	respondents	who	have	chosen	to	answer	this	question.	

• Option	1	is	favoured	to	similar	levels	–	77%	and	75%	respectively.	

4.3.5 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	

Pregnancy/Child	under	2	(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

For	this	service	area,	responses	were	considered	in	terms	of	those	who	are	either	pregnant	
or	have	a	child	under	two	years:	

	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 		

	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 40%	 2	 81%	 26	 86%	 25	 61%	 19	 89%	 16	 67%	 2	 80%	 4	

Option	2	 60%	 3	 19%	 6	 14%	 4	 39%	 12	 11%	 2	 33%	 1	 20%	 1	

Page 81



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

44	
	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	to	meeting	needs	

	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	

	 Yes	 No	 Yes	 No	

Option	1		 78%	 21	 77%	 87	 29%	 10	 24%	 29	
Option	2	 22%	 6	 23%	 26	 71%	 24	 76%	 94	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	who	are	pregnant/have	a	child	under	2	(column	
totals),	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

Like	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	these	results	show	that:	

• Option	1	was	closest	to	meeting	needs	irrespective	of	whether	the	respondent	was	
pregnant/has	a	child	under	2	years	or	not	(78%	and	77%)	

4.4 Direct	Patient	Survey	Analysis	

4.4.1 Overall	Preferred	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	(Direct	

Patient	Survey)		

Respondents	to	the	direct	survey	of	current	and	recent	patients	and	service	users	were	also	
asked	to	express	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	
preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	meeting	needs’	(1	=	closest	meeting	needs	
and	3	farthest	from	meeting	needs).	

For	this	method,	the	survey	was	sent	directly	to	recent	or	current	patients	and	therefore	all	
respondents	were	women.	

Note	that	the	overall	numbers	responding	to	this	method	for	Stroke	Services	was	low	at	
n=141.	In	addition,	respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished	therefore	
not	all	have	answered	every	time.	Therefore,	results	should	be	treated	with	caution.			

	

Q:	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	Maternity	and	women’s	
healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	meeting	
needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
Option	1	 47%	 66	 8.5%		 12	
Option	2		 11%		 16	 43%		 61	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents,	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	
not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

	From	these	preferences	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	has	the	highest	rating	with	47%	of	the	responses	saying	it	was	closest	to	
meeting	needs,	with	11%	favouring	Option	2.	

• A	significant	proportion	chose	not	to	respond	to	this	ranking	question.	

Page 82



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

45	
	

4.4.2 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	preferences	by	Area	(Direct	

Patient	Survey)	

Responses	were	considered	by	area	–	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		

Option	1		 92%	 36	 67%	 16	 10%	 4	 25%	 5	
Option	2	 8%	 3	 33%	 8	 90%	 35	 75%	 15	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

For	respondents	to	this	ranking	question	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	1	is	strongly	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	(92%	
ranking	it	1,	over	Option	2).	

For	those	who	responded	and	live	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	also	the	most	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	for	Sunderland	residents	
responding	to	the	direct	survey,	to	a	slightly	lesser	extent	at	67%	

The	feedback	should	be	treated	with	caution	though	as	for	this	data	numbers	are	low.		

4.5 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Age	

(Direct	Patient	Survey)	

This	method	engaged	current	or	recent	patients	of	maternity	and	women’s	healthcare	
services.	The	breakdown	by	age	can	be	seen:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 	

	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	
Option	1		 4	 100%	 37	 86%	 15	 75%	 5	 71%	 3	 100%	 1	 33%	 1	 100%	
Option	2	 0	 0%	 6	 14%	 5	 25%	 2	 29%	 0	 0%	 2	 67%	 0	 0%	

	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	breakdown	of	responses	to	the	question	on	which	option	is	preferred	by	age	show	that:	

• The	biggest	age	bracket	responding	to	this	question	was	25-34,	followed	by	35-44	
• Option	1	is	the	clear	and	significant	preferred	option,	irrespective	of	age,	apart	from	

age	bracket	65-74	but	the	number	in	this	bracket	is	too	low	to	be	reliable.		

	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	
Option	1		 0	 0%	 4	 10%	 5	 25%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 2	 67%	 0	 0%	
Option	2	 3	 100%	 36	 90%	 15	 75%	 3	 100%	 2	 100%	 1	 33%	 1	 100%	

Page 83



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

46	
	

4.5.1 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	

Pregnancy/Child	under	2	(Direct	Patient	Survey)	

For	this	service	area,	responses	were	considered	in	terms	of	those	who	are	either	pregnant	
or	have	a	child	under	two	years:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2	 Pregnant	or	child	under	2		

	 Yes	 No	 Yes	 No	

Option	1		 84%	 48	 75%	 18	 13%	 7	 21%	 4	

Option	2	 16%	 9	 25%	 6	 87%	 46	 79%	 15	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say	and	consequently	are	not	counted	

Like	the	other	methods,	these	results	show	that:	

• Option	1	was	closest	to	meeting	needs	irrespective	of	whether	the	respondent	was	
pregnant/has	a	child	under	2	years	or	not	(84%	and	75%)	

4.6 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Options	scale	of	meeting	need	

Respondents	were	asked	to	indicate	to	what	extent	the	options	meet	their	need	in	the	
Resident	Street	Survey:	

Q Do	you	feel	that	Option	[1	or	2]	for	maternity	and	women’s	healthcare	services	would	
meet	your	needs	or	the	needs	of	people	you	care	for	or	those	of	the	group	or	
organisation	you	represent?		

4.6.1 Maternity	and	Women's	Healthcare	Services	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 69%	 559	 59%	 476	

Neither		 4%	 31	 8%	 61	

Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	 15.5%	 125	 20%	 164	

Don't	know		 11%	 89	 12.5%	 101	

No	response	 0%	 1	 0%	 3	

The	feedback	overall	suggests	that	Option	1	and	Option	2	are	both	considered	to	either	fully	
or	slightly	meet	needs	(69%	and	59%	respectively).		

There	were	significant	differences	in	the	responses	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	
residents.		

Page 84



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

47	
	

4.6.2 Maternity	and	Women's	Healthcare	Services	by	Area	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	
	 South	

Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	

Tyneside	

Sunderland	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 49%	 199	 91%	 360	 32%	 132	 86%	 344	
Neither		 5%	 22	 2%	 9	 12%	 50	 3%	 11	
Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	 28%	 114	 3%	 11	 35%	 141	 6%	 23	
Don't	know		 18%	 72	 4%	 17	 21%	 84	 4%	 17	
No	response	 0%	 0	 0	 1	 0%	 0	 1%	 3	

• Option	1	was	favoured	as	slightly	or	fully	meeting	needs	by	90%	of	Sunderland	residents	
but	only	49%	of	South	Tyneside;		

• For	Option	2,	86%	Sunderland	residents	agree	that	this	option	meets	their	needs	
fully/slightly	whereas	for	South	Tyneside	residents	the	opinion	is	equally	split	-	32%	cite	
that	it	fully/slightly	meets	needs	vs	35%	fully/slightly	fails	to	meet	needs.		

Respondents	were	also	asked	to	indicate	to	what	extent	the	options	meet	their	needs	in	the	
Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey:	

4.6.3 Maternity	and	Women's	Healthcare	Services	(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 28%	 87	 10%	 32	
Neither		 5%	 16	 4.5%	 14	
Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	 58%	 180	 69%	 213	
Don't	know		 4%	 11	 5%	 15	
No	response	 5%	 15	 11%	 35	

• In	all	cases	for	this	method,	the	options	were	felt	to	fail	fully/slightly	to	meet	needs	
more	than	they	fully/slightly	met	needs.			
	

4.7 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Quantitative	Analysis	Summary		

These	quantitative	methodologies	consider	preferences	for	the	options	under	consultation.	
In	most	cases,	there	is	a	preference	for	Option	1	over	Option	2	in	the	ranking	question.	This	
Option	remains	the	most	popular	when	considered	in	terms	of	the	two	areas,	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland,	although	Sunderland	favours	Option	1	more	strongly	than	South	
Tyneside	residents.	

In	terms	of	the	extent	to	which	the	options	meet	needs,	Option	1	was	strongly	favoured	as	
slightly	or	fully	meeting	needs	Sunderland	residents	but	less	so	by	those	in	South	Tyneside;	

For	Option	2,	Sunderland	residents	strongly	state	that	this	option	meets	their	needs	
fully/slightly	however	for	South	Tyneside	residents	the	opinion	is	equally	split	between	

Page 85



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

48	
	

meeting	and	failing	to	meet	needs.		

In	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	neither	option	was	supported	as	fully/slightly	
meeting	needs	with	respondents	citing	fully/slightly	fails	to	meet	needs	in	larger	numbers.	

It	is	noted	that	there	is	a	significant	number	of	respondents	choosing	not	to	answer	the	
ranked	response	question.			

	 	

Page 86



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

49	
	

5 Quantitative	Responses:	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	(urgent	

and	emergency	paediatrics)	Services	

5.1 Introduction	

The	section	considers	the	responses	from	the	three	quantitative	consultation	methods	to	
the	proposed	options	for	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	(urgent	and	emergency	
paediatrics)	Services.		The	options	put	forward	for	consultation	were:	

Option	1:		 • Provision	of	a	seven-day,	12	hour	(8am	to	8pm)	paediatric	
emergency	department	and	children’s	short	stay	assessment	unit	
at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	with	24-hour,	seven	days	a	
week	paediatric	emergency	department	at	Sunderland	Royal	
Hospital	

Option	2:		 • Development	of	a	nurse-led	paediatric	minor	injury	or	illness	
service	between	8am	and	8pm	at	South	Tyneside	District	
Hospital	with	a	24	hour,	seven	days	a	week	paediatric	emergency	
department	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

As	previously	noted,	the	Resident	Street	Survey	is	the	only	method	for	which	results	are	
significant	at	a	population	level.		

There	were	two	key	questions	asked	in	these	surveys:	

QUESTION	1:	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	three	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	maternity	
and	women’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	
meeting	needs	(2)	

This	is	option	ranking.	Sections	5.2	-	5.4	report	on	the	quantitative	responses	by	method	on	
the	preferences	of	respondents	when	asked	to	choose	which	option	is	closest	to	or	farthest	
away	from	meeting	needs.		Survey	respondents	were	asked	to	rate	which	of	the	options	
being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	
meeting	needs’,	ranking	options	as	1,	and	which	was	least	preferred	or	‘farthest	from	
meeting	needs’,	ranking	2.	

Note:		 The	rationale	for	this	question	was	to	require	respondents	to	choose	the	option	
which	they	felt	most	suitable,	in	their	opinion.		The	question	was	not	mandatory,	
and	respondents	could	opt	out	of	responding	if	they	choose	to.	Therefore,	discussion	
of	the	results	has	primarily	been	limited	to	choices	about	which	option	was	
considered	‘closest	to	meeting	needs’.	

QUESTION	2:	Do	you	feel	that	Option	[1	or	2]	for	maternity	and	women’s	healthcare	services	
would	meet	your	needs	or	the	needs	of	people	you	care	for	or	those	of	the	group	or	
organisation	you	represent?	

Page 87



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

50	
	

This	indicates	the	scale	of	favourability:	Section	5.5	reports	on	the	scale	of	support	for	each	
option.	This	question	encouraged	respondents	to	begin	to	consider	their	preferences	about	
the	options	this	option	whereas	the	question	above	requires	a	clearer	choice	to	be	made	
once	all	the	options	have	been	considered.	Answer	choices	were	presented	as:	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
fail	to	meet	

needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	

slightly	fail	to	
meet	needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	

neither	meet	
nor	fail	to	
meet	needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
slightly	meet	

needs	

I	feel	this	
option	will	
fully	meet	
needs	

Don’t	
Know	/	

Prefer	not	
to	say	

This	is	reported	for	the	Resident	Street	Survey	and	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	
only.		It	is	also	reported	by	area	for	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey.		

Note:		 For	all	other	data	this	breakdown	is	not	presented.		Because	of	the	low	numbers	
involved,	results	would	be	likely	to	be	a	co-incidence	and	therefore	we	would	have	
no	confidence	in	them.	

5.2 Resident	Street	Survey	Analysis	

5.2.1 Overall	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Preferred	Option	
(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Overall	as	a	total	sample,	responses	to	this	question	are	shown	below:	

Q:	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	children	and	young	
people’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	
meeting	needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs		 Farthest	from	meeting	needs		

Option	1	 80%	 644	 8%	 61	

Option	2		 7.5%	 60	 80%	 643	
*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents	-	variances	are	explained	by	those	who	
preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

From	the	results	for	the	total	sample	responding	to	this	question,	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	is	ranked	as	the	proposal	respondents	feel	most	closely	meets	needs	

	 	

Page 88



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

51	
	

5.2.2 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	preferences	by	area	
(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Preferences	for	the	options	being	consulted	on	were	also	considered	by	area	–	South	
Tyneside	and	Sunderland	separately.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1	 88%	 294	 95%	 350	 13%	 42	 5%	 19	

Option	2	 13%	 42	 5%	 18	 87%	 293	 95%	 350	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

For	respondents	who	gave	a	response	to	this	question	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	1	is	the	most	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	with	
88%	ranking	it	1.	

For	respondents	living	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	more	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	with	95%	ranking	it	1.	

Therefore,	although	Option	1	is	agreed	as	the	option	to	be	highest	ranked	by	all	
respondents	in	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	when	compared	together	the	findings	show	that	
Sunderland	residents	are	slightly	keener	on	this	option	(95%)	than	South	Tyneside	residents	
(88%).	

5.2.3 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Age	
(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Preferences	were	considered	by	Age:	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

• From	this	breakdown	we	can	see	that	for	those	who	made	a	choice,	Option	1	is	strongly	
favoured	across	all	age	ranges.	

	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	

	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	

1		

91

%	

9
7	

94

%	

7
8	

93

%	

11
4	

94

%	

10
0	

89

%	

11
6	

90

%	

8
1	

93

%	

5
4	

Option	

2	

9%	 1
0	

6%	 5	 7%	 9	 6%	 6	 11

%	

15	 10

%	

9	 7%	 4	

Page 89



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

52	
	

5.2.4 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	
(Resident	Street	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent	it	can	be	
seen	that:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female		 Male		 Female		 Male		

Option	1		 92%	 335	 91%	 307	 8%	 28	 10%	 33	

Option	2	 8%	 28	 9%	 32	 92%	 334	 90%	 307	
*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			
°Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	

• Option	1	is	ranked	equally	highly	among	women	(92%)	and	men	(91%)	as	most	likely	to	
meet	needs;		

5.3 Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	Analysis	

5.3.1 Overall	Preferred	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	
(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Respondents	to	the	online/paper	consultation	questionnaire	were	also	asked	to	rate	which	
of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	
1	=	‘closest	meeting	needs’	and	2	=	‘farthest	from	meeting	needs’		

Note	that	questions	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	were	not	mandatory	and	
that	respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	question	if	they	wished.		Therefore,	not	all	
respondents	answered	this	ranking	question	and	the	numbers	tend	to	be	low	and	
therefore	less	reliable.	

	

Q Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	children	and	young	
people’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	
from	meeting	needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	

needs	

Farthest	from	

meeting	needs	

No	response/prefer	

not	to	say	

Option	1	 36%		 109	 13%		 39	 51%		 154	
Option	2		 12%		 36	 31%		 94	 57%		 172	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents.	Variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	
not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted		

From	the	data	available,	for	all	respondents	to	this	question	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• A	high	proportion	of	respondents	preferred	not	to	respond	to	this	ranking	question	

Page 90



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

53	
	

• Of	those	who	responded,	there	was	a	clear	preference	for	Option	1	(36%	closest	to	
meeting	needs)	

5.3.2 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Area	
(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Options	were	analysed	by	area	for	this	method.	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	
	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1		 79%	 69	 66%	 17	 28%	 23	 30%	 7	
Option	2	 21%	 18	 32%	 8	 72%	 59	 70%	 16	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals).		variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	data	shows	that	of	those	who	responded	to	this	question	from	the	two	areas:	

• Option	1	was	most	favourable	over	Option	2	in	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	
areas	at	similar	levels	–	79%	and	68%	respectively.	

	

5.3.3 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Preferences	by	Age	(Online/Paper	
Consultation	Survey)	

From	the	online/paper	consultation	survey	responses	considered	by	age:	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	
variances	are	explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

The	feedback	tells	us	that:	

• There	is	a	strong	preference	for	Option	1	by	those	aged	25	and	above;	
• Treated	separately	age	bracket	numbers	are	low	therefore	not	reliable;	
• Although	the	18-24	age	bracket	all	prefer	option	2,	this	amounts	to	only	3	

respondents	and	therefore	is	not	reliable.	

	

	

	

	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	
	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	 65-74	 75+	

Option	1		 0%	 0	 82%	 28	 80%	 32	 70%	 23	 75%	 15	 40%	 2	 83%	 5	
Option	2	 100%	 3	 18%	 6	 20%	 8	 30%	 10	 25%	 5	 60%	 3	 17%	 1	

Page 91



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

54	
	

5.3.4 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	
(Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female	 Male	 Female	 Male	

Option	1		 78%	 91	 61%	 14	 78%	 29	 47%	 9	

Option	2	 22%	 25	 39%	 9	 22%	 8	 53%	 10	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			
°Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	

When	analysing	the	responses	by	sex	for	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	we	can	see	
that	for	the	male	and	female	respondents	who	have	chosen	to	answer	this	question.	

• Option	1	is	favoured	to	similar	levels	by	both	men	and	women	–	78%	and	61%	
respectively.	

5.4 Direct	Patient	Survey	Analysis	

5.4.1 Overall	Preferred	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	(Direct	

Patient	Survey)		

Respondents	to	the	direct	survey	of	current	and	recent	patients	and	service	users	were	also	
asked	to	express	rate	which	of	the	options	being	consulted	on	they	had	an	overall	
preference	for,	expressed	in	terms	of	‘closest	meeting	needs’	(1	=	closest	meeting	needs	
and	2	farthest	from	meeting	needs).	

Note	that	the	overall	numbers	responding	to	this	method	for	Children	and	Young	People’s	
Healthcare	Services	was	low	at	n=102.	In	addition,	respondents	were	able	to	skip	this	
question	if	they	wished	therefore	not	all	have	answered	every	time.	Therefore,	results	
should	be	treated	with	caution.			

Q	Using	a	scale	of	one	to	two	please	tell	us	which	of	the	options	for	children	and	young	
people’s	healthcare	services	you	feel	is	closest	to	meeting	needs	(1)	and	is	farthest	from	
meeting	needs	(2)	

	 Closest	to	meeting	

needs	

Farthest	from	

meeting	needs	

No	response/prefer	

not	to	say	

Option	1	 58%	 59	 7%		 7	 35%		 36	
Option	2		 7%		 7	 54%		 55	 39%		 40	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents		

	From	these	preferences	it	can	be	seen	that:	

Page 92



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

55	
	

• There	is	a	strong	preference	for	Option	1	for	those	who	responded	to	this	ranking	
question.	

5.4.2 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Area	
(Direct	Patient	Survey)	

Responses	were	considered	by	area	–	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

Option	1		 93%	 38	 78%	 14	 8%	 3	 25%	 4	

Option	2	 7%	 3	 22%	 4	 93%	 37	 75%	 12	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

For	respondents	to	this	ranking	question	living	in	South	Tyneside:	

• Option	1	is	strongly	favoured	in	terms	of	meeting	needs	in	the	ranking	exercise	(93%	
ranking	it	1,	over	Option	2).	

For	those	who	responded	and	live	in	Sunderland:		

• Option	1	is	also	the	most	favourable	in	terms	of	meeting	need	for	Sunderland	residents	
responding	to	the	direct	survey,	to	a	slightly	lesser	extent	at	78%	

The	feedback	should	be	treated	with	caution	though	as	for	this	data	numbers	are	low.		

5.4.3 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Age	(Direct	
Patient	Survey)	

The	breakdown	by	age	for	those	who	responded	to	this	question	can	be	shown:	

	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	in	each	age	range	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	

	 16-18	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55-64	

Option	1		 100%	 1	 0%	 0	 93%	 25	 93%	 25	 73%	 8	 0%	 0	

Option	2	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 7%	 2	 7%	 2	 27%	 3	 0%	 0	

	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 16-18	 18-24	 25-34	 35-44	 45-54	 55+	

Option	1		 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 8%	 2	 8%	 2	 30%	 3	 0%	 0	

Option	2	 100%	 1	 0%	 0	 92%	 23	 92%	 24	 70%	 7	 0%	 0	

Page 93



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

56	
	

The	breakdown	of	responses	to	the	question	on	which	option	is	preferred	by	age	show	that:	

• Option	1	is	the	clear	and	significant	preferred	option,	irrespective	of	age,	though	
numbers	are	low	and	therefore	less	reliable.	

• The	lack	of	younger	people	responding	to	the	Survey	despite	being	a	Children	and	
Young	People’s	Services	survey	is	likely	to	be	because	the	direct	mailing	was	sent	to	
parents	registered	on	behalf	of	their	child.	

5.4.4 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	Preferences	by	Sex	(Direct	
Patient	Survey)	

Turning	to	consider	any	difference	in	opinion	based	on	the	sex	of	the	respondent:	

	 Closest	to	meeting	needs	 Farthest	from	meeting	needs	

	 Female	 Male	 Female	 Male	

Option	1		 91%	 48	 85%	 11	 10%	 5	 15%	 2	

Option	2	 9%	 5	 15%	 2	 90%	 44	 85%	 11	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	of	each	sex	(column	totals),	variances	are	explained	
by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say,	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			
°Note	that	no	respondents	signalled	a	sex	other	than	male/female	in	this	sample	though	‘Transgender’	and	
‘other	‘were	offered	as	alternatives.	
	

From	the	preferences	it	can	be	seen	that:	

• Option	1	is	similarly	favoured	by	both	females	and	males	responding	(91%	and	85%	
respectively)	
	

5.5 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Options	scale	of	meeting	

need	

Respondents	were	asked	to	indicate	to	what	extent	the	options	meet	their	need	in	the	
Resident	Street	Survey:	

Q	Do	you	feel	that	Option	[1	or	2]	for	children	and	young	people’s	healthcare	services	would	
meet	your	needs	or	the	needs	of	people	you	care	for	or	those	of	the	group	or	organisation	
you	represent?		

	

	

	

	

Page 94



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

57	
	

5.5.1 Children’s	and	Young	People's	Healthcare	Services	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 65%	 520	 30%	 238	

Neither		 6.5%	 52	 6%	 49	

Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	

needs	

19%	 154	 55.5%	 447	

Don't	know		 10%	 77	 8%	 67	

No	response	 0%	 2	 0%	 4	

The	feedback	overall	suggests	that	for	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services:	

• Option	1	is	considered	to	fully/slightly	meet	meets	for	65%	of	respondents	to	this	
question,	over	Option	2	at	19%	

• Conversely,	Option	2	is	reported	to	fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	for	55%	of	
respondents	compared	with	30%	who	state	it	fully/slightly	meets	needs.		

When	considered	against	area,	for	those	who	responded	to	this	question:	

5.5.2 Children’s	and	Young	People's	Healthcare	Services	by	Area	(Resident	Street	Survey)	

		 Option	1	 Option	2	

	 South	

Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	

Tyneside	

Sunderland	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 46%	 186	 84%	 334	 13.5	 55	 46%	 183	

Neither		 9%	 38	 3.5%	 14	 8%	 34	 4%	 15	

Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	

needs	

29%	 117	 9%	 37	 65%	 264	 46%	 183	

Don't	know		 16%	 66	 3%	 11	 13%	 54	 3%	 13	

No	response	 0%	 0	 0%	 2	 0%	 0	 1%	 4	

	

• Option	1	was	favoured	as	slightly	or	fully	meeting	needs	by	84%	of	Sunderland	residents	
but	only	46%	of	South	Tyneside,	with	29%	fully/slightly	failing	to	meet	needs	

• For	Option	2,	the	proportion	of	Sunderland	residents	who	report	that	this	option	meets	
their	needs	fully/slightly	and	fails	to	meet	their	needs	fully/slightly	is	the	same	at	46%.	

• However,	for	South	Tyneside	residents	65%	feel	this	Option	2	fully/slightly	fails	to	meet	
needs	vs	only	13%	who	see	it	as	fully/slightly	meeting	needs.		

Respondents	were	also	asked	to	indicate	to	what	extent	the	options	meet	their	needs	in	the	
Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey:	

Page 95



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

58	
	

5.5.3 Children’s	and	Young	People's	Healthcare	Services	(Online/Paper	Consultation	

Survey)	

	 Option	1	 Option	2	

Fully/slightly	meet	needs	 30.5%	 92	 16%	 49	

Neither		 7%	 20	 7%	 23	

Fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	

needs	

58%	 176	 66%	 198	

Don't	know		 3%	 10	 6%	 17	

No	response	 1%	 4	 5%	 15	

Again,	here	we	see:	

• Option	1	is	thought	to	fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	(58%)	more	than	meets	needs	
(30%)	

• Option	2	is	also	thought	to	fully/slightly	fail	to	meet	needs	(66%)	more	than	meets	
needs	(16%)	
	

5.6 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Quantitative	Analysis	
Summary		

In	the	quantitative	methods,	for	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services,	Option	1	
is	in	the	majority	of	cases	the	preferred	option.		There	is	no	significant	difference	in	this	
when	considered	by	age	or	sex	and	the	option	is	strongly	favoured	in	both	South	Tyneside	
and	Sunderland	areas.	

However,	when	asked	to	what	extend	the	Options	meet	needs	in	the	Resident	Street	
Survey,	Option	1	is	seen	to	fully/slightly	meet	needs	over	Option	2	in	Sunderland	whereas	in	
South	Tyneside,	Option	2	is	considered	to	meet	needs	as	oppose	to	Option	1,	which	is	more	
commonly	seen	as	failing	to	meet	needs.			

In	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	both	Options	1	and	2	are	supported	as	meeting	needs	but	
there	is	greater	support	for	Option	1	meeting	needs	in	Sunderland	than	in	South	Tyneside.			

Neither	option	is	favoured	in	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey,	with	respondents	
favouring	‘fails	to	meet	needs’	in	both	cases.			

	

	 	

Page 96



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

59	
	

6 Quantitative	Analysis:	Process	Questions	

6.1 Introduction	

All	survey	respondents	were	asked	to	give	their	opinion	on	the	appropriateness	of	the	criteria	
that	 are	 intended	 to	 be	 used	 to	 assess	 the	 proposed	 options	 and	 to	 help	 inform	 the	
recommendations	to	the	CCGs	making	the	final	decisions.		

The	criteria	are	listed	below	and	are	intended	to	ensure	that	the	proposed	changes	will	be:		

• High	quality	and	safe:	Deliver	high	quality,	safe	care	(that	is	better	than	the	current	
service	arrangements	and	satisfies	all	relevant	standards	set	out	in	law	and	
guidance)	

• Sustainable:	Support	long	terms	service	provision	(including	ensuring	that	the	
clinical	workforce	and	patient	numbers	are	there	to	make	the	service	viable)	

• Affordable:	Be	affordable	(without	any	significant	extra	costs)	
• Achievable:	Be	achievable	within	the	next	couple	of	years		

Respondents	were	firstly	asked	to	rate	each	criterion	on	a	scale	of	1	to	10	(where	10	is	
strongly	agree)	to	what	extent	they	agreed	that	the	criteria	are	appropriate	to	use	as	part	of	
the	decision-making	process.		

Secondly,	using	a	scale	of	1	to	10	(where	10	is	most	important),	respondents	were	asked	to	
rate	the	importance	of	each	in	the	decision-making	process.		

This	section	of	the	survey	was	optional.	Due	to	the	high	number	who	did	not	respond,	
responses	are	calculated	as	a	proportion	of	those	that	answered	each	question.			

6.2 Findings:	Quantitative	Process	Questions	

6.2.1 Criteria	felt	to	be	most	appropriate	to	use	in	the	decision-making	process		

Across	most	of	the	quantitative	samples,	high	quality	and	safe	was	considered	to	be	the	
most	appropriate	criteria	to	use	in	the	decision-making	process.	This	was	also	the	case	when	
looking	at	the	split	of	respondents	by	area.		

The	overall	results	from	each	of	the	quantitative	methodologies	show	that	affordable	is	
considered	the	least	appropriate	criteria	to	use	in	the	decision-making	process.		This	again	
was	also	observed	when	looking	at	the	split	of	respondents	by	area.		

6.2.2 Criteria	felt	to	be	most	important	in	the	decision-making	process		

The	results	from	the	quantitative	methodologies	when	looking	at	both	the	overall	results	
and	split	of	respondents	from	each	area,	suggest	that	high	quality	and	safe	is	perceived	to	
be	the	most	important	factor	to	use	in	the	decision-making	process,	and	affordable	the	least	
important.		

Page 97



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

60	
	

6.2.3 Additional	Criteria	suggestions	

There	were	suggestions	across	all	the	quantitative	methodologies	that	the	following	criteria	
were	absent	and	should	be	considered	in	the	decision-making	process:		

• Impact	on	patient;	safety,	health	and	wellbeing	and	needs	
• Impact	to	other	hospitals,	departments,	ambulance	service	and	GP	practices		
• Impact	on	staff		
• Convenience	and	accessibility	of	services	including	transport	costs		
• Sustainability,	justifiable,	appropriate,	practical,	and	desirable	
	
Note:	 Full	breakdowns	of	the	responses	to	both	questions	in	each	survey	method	by	area	

can	be	found	in	Appendix	Six.		

	
	 	

Page 98



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

61	
	

7 Overall	Options	Preferences	by	Quantitative	Method	

In	collating	the	responses	to	all	quantitative	methods,	it	is	important	to	recognise	that	the	
results	of	the	different	methodologies	cannot	be	amalgamated.	Each	methodology	is	
different	with	differing	response	levels	and	statistical	reliability.	Therefore,	each	
methodology	is	presented	separately,	by	service	area,	as	a	representation	of	overall	options	
preference.	

7.1 Stroke	Services	

7.1.1 Stroke	Services	–	all	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Farthest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Closest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Farthest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Closest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Farthest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Option	1	 59%					478	 17%					139	 25%					77	 19%					59	 38%					31	 12%					10	

Option	2	 2%					19	 25%					139	 8%							23	 7%					21	 1%					1	 3%					2	

Option	3		 24%					190	 40%					319	 17%					52	 23%					68	 12%					10		 15%					12	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents,	including	those	who	
preferred	not	say	

Considering	all	three	methods	together,	Option	1	is	the	most	popular	across	all	methods.		
However,	Option	1	is	most	popular	for	respondents	to	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	followed	
by	the	Direct	Patient	Survey,	with	the	Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	respondents	
offering	the	lowest	level	of	support.	

7.1.2 Stroke	Services	by	area	

Stroke	Services	–	South	Tyneside	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Farthest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Closest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Farthest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Closest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Farthest	to	

meeting	

needs	

Option	1	 61%					190	 37%					107	 38%					25	 52%					37	 38%					6	 73%					8	

Option	2	 2%					6	 14%					41	 17%					11	 13%					9	 6%					1	 9%					1	

Option	3		 37%					116	 49%					142	 45%					30	 35%					25	 56%					9	 18%					2	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

	 	

Page 99



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

62	
	

Stroke	Services	–	Sunderland	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey	 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey	

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 77%					288	 9%					32	 69%					22	 17%					5	 94%					17	 10%					1	

Option	2	 3%					13	 44%					161	 16%					5	 17%					5	 0%					0	 10%					1	
Option	3		 20%					74	 48%					177	 16%					5	 66%					19	 6%					1	 80%					8	
*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

From	this	comparison	by	area	of	residence	we	can	see:	

• Option	1	is	the	preferred	for	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland;	
• However,	Sunderland	residents	are	more	likely	to	state	preference	(77%)	when	

compared	with	people	living	in	South	Tyneside	(61%)	

7.2 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	

7.2.1 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	–	all	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 72%					582	 15%					118	 35%					108	 13%					39	 47%					66	 9%					12	

Option	2	 15%					118	 72%					582	 10%					32	 38%					118	 11%					16	 43%					61	
*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents,	including	those	who	preferred	not	say	

Considering	all	three	methods	together,	it	can	be	seen	that	as	per	Stroke	Services	Option	1	
is	the	most	popular	across	all	methods.		Similarly,	Option	1	is	most	popular	for	respondents	
to	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	followed	by	the	Direct	Patient	Survey,	with	the	Online/Paper	
Consultation	Survey	respondents	offering	the	lowest	level	of	support.	

7.2.2 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	-	by	area	

Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	–	South	Tyneside	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 69%					226	 31%					101	 74%					55	 28%					26	 92%					36	 10%					4	

Option	2	 31%					101	 69%					226	 26%					19	 72%					66	 8%					3	 90%					35		

Page 100



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

63	
	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

	

Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	–	Sunderland	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 95%					356	 5%					17	 78%					21	 20%					5		 67%					16	 25%					5	

Option	2	 5%					17	 95%					356	 22%					6	 80%					20	 33%					8	 75%					15	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

From	this	comparison	by	area	of	residence	we	can	see:	

• Option	1	is	the	preferred	for	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland;	
• However,	Sunderland	residents	are	more	significantly	likely	to	state	preference	(95%)	

when	compared	with	people	living	in	South	Tyneside	(69%)	

7.3 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	

7.3.1 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	-	all	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 80%					644	 8%					61	 36%					109	 13%					39	 58%					59	 7%					7	

Option	2	 8%					60	 80%					643	 12%					36	 31%					94	 7%					7	 54%					55	

*All	%	figures	shown	as	a	percentage	of	all	survey	respondents,	including	those	who	preferred	not	say	

Considering	all	three	methods	together,	it	can	be	seen	that	as	per	the	other	services	areas,	
Option	1	is	the	most	popular	across	all	methods.		Again	Option	1	is	most	popular	for	
respondents	to	the	Resident	Street	Survey,	followed	by	the	Direct	Patient	Survey,	with	the	
Online/Paper	Consultation	Survey	respondents	offering	the	lowest	level	of	support.	

	

	

	

	

Page 101



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

64	
	

7.3.2 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	–	by	area	

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	–	South	Tyneside	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 88%					294	 13%					42	 79%					69	 28%					23	 93%					38	 8%					3	

Option	2	 13%					42	 87%					293		 21%					18	 72%					59	 7%					3	 93%					37	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	–	Sunderland	respondents	

	 Resident	Street	Survey		 Online/paper	 Direct	Patient	Survey		

	 Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Closest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Farthest	to	
meeting	
needs	

Option	1	 95%					350	 13%					42	 66%					17	 30%					7	 78%					14	 25%					4	

Option	2	 5%					18	 87%					293	 32%					8	 70%					16	 22%					4	 75%					12	

*	calculations	are	based	on	the	percentage	of	respondents	living	in	in	each	area	(column	totals),	variances	are	
explained	by	those	who	preferred	not	to	say/other	areas	and	consequently	are	not	counted.			

From	this	comparison	by	area	of	residence	we	can	see:	

• Option	1	is	the	preferred	for	both	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland;	
• However,	Sunderland	residents	are	more	likely	to	state	preference	(95%)	when	

compared	with	people	living	in	South	Tyneside	(88%)	

	

8 Quantitative	Key	Themes	from	Open	Text	Responses	

In	each	of	the	quantitative	methodologies	(online	and	paper	consultation,	direct	patient,	
and	street	survey)	respondents	were	asked	to	comment	for	each	option	on:	

• What	do	you	like	about	this	option?	
• What	don’t	you	like	about	this	option?	

These	questions	were	asked	of	all	respondents,	against	all	options	for	all	services,	though	
responses	were	not	mandatory.	

Page 102



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

65	
	

The	outcomes	from	this	exercise	have	informed	and	largely	reflect	the	further	analysis	of	
the	qualitative	discussions	reported	in	the	Qualitative	Findings	section	below,	which	form	
the	substantive	qualitative	content	of	the	consultation	analysis15.			

The	individual	responses	have	been	grouped	into	themes	using	the	same	grounded	theory	
approach	as	applied	to	the	qualitative	discussions.	

Appendix	Five	provides	a	breakdown	of	the	themes	taken	from	these	questions,	collated	
across	all	quantitative	methodologies,	to	provide	an	indication	of	the	key	feedback	in	each	
theme.	

	 	

																																																								
15	Note	that	the	free	text	responses	in	qualitative	analysis	do	not	provide	the	opportunity	for	discussion	of	the	
options	and	issues	in	depth,	as	is	possible	for	the	qualitative	analysis	methods	and	therefore	whilst	valid	and	
analysed,	are	most	appropriately	viewed	as	additional	information.	

Page 103



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

66	
	

9 Qualitative	Findings:	Public,	Staff	and	Stakeholder	Meetings	

In	total	nineteen	public	consultation	events	were	organised,	delivered,	and	attended	by	the	
public	as	well	as	NHS	staff,	Community	and	Voluntary	Sector	(VCS)/Third	Sector	
organisations	and	elected	members.		This	includes	three	‘launch’	events	which	set	the	scene	
and	gave	information	about	the	consultation.	

Only	one	event,	organised	in	Sunderland	as	a	Q&A	session,	was	not	attended	by	anyone,	
and	was	therefore	not	reported.		

A	breakdown	of	events	is	shown	in	Appendix	Eight	of	this	report.	

9.1 Meeting	Records		

All	meetings	were	supported	by	the	communications	and	engagement	team	from	NECS.	
Events	were	facilitated	by	NECS	alongside	volunteers	from	local	health	organisations,	
including	NHS	staff	and	HealthWatch	volunteers	who	acted	as	table	facilitators	and	note	
takers.	Staff	working	at	the	public	events	had	received	facilitation	training	as	part	of	the	
programme,	which	was	delivered	in	partnership	with	experts	from	The	Consultation	
Institute,	in	order	to	provide	a	good	environment	on	tables	for	all	participants	to	express	
their	views.	
		
In	line	with	good	event	practice,	staff	working	at	the	events	were	fully	briefed	and	received	
an	event	pre-brief	document,	were	asked	to	arrive	early	to	be	briefed	in	advance	of	the	
event,	and	stayed	behind	afterwards	to	take	part	in	a	debrief.	This	ensured	that	key	
learnings	were	taking	forward	into	the	next	events,	and	staff	were	able	to	share	their	
experiences	in	order	to	improve	subsequent	events	again	to	continuously	improve	to	
provide	the	best	safe	environment	for	people	to	participate.	
		
All	notes	were	recorded	in	a	pro	forma	template	and	were	published	within	seven	working	
days	on	the	programme	website	to	allow	time	for	checking	by	meeting	participants.	The	
pro-forma	templates	were	provided	to	SMP	for	analysis	and	reporting.		
	
• Analysis	Caveat:	The	issues	developed	in	this	section	are	based	on	the	reports	provided	

to	us	and	we	make	no	guarantee	of	the	accuracy	of	the	content	we	reviewed.	Where	
responses	are	quoted	these	are	based	on	the	reports	provided.	
	

9.1.1 Summary	of	key	issues	across	all	service	areas		

ABILITY	TO	COPE	(ESTATES	AND	FACILITIES)	

The	extent	to	which	the	options	will	have	a	detrimental	impact	on	the	fabric	of	Sunderland	
Royal	Hospital	(SRH)	was	a	commonly	occurring	theme	across	all	three	service	areas,	in	the	
case	of	this	quote	in	relation	to	maternity	and	gynaecology	department	facilities.		

Page 104



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

67	
	

“Sunderland	will	see	increased	demand	–	will	quality	be	maintained?”	

“Have	we	got	room	in	Sunderland?”	

STAFFING	

The	most	important	question	asked	around	staffing	related	to	the	confidence	that	the	
capacity	to	deal	with	the	increased	demand	existed	or	will	be	able	to	be	put	in	place	in	
Sunderland	to	deal	with	the	proposed	service	change	options.	

“Sunderland	numbers	are	at	capacity	and	to	deliver	to	South	Tyneside	services	as	
well?”		

“Why	are	staff	and	services	moving	to	Sunderland,	and	not	the	other	way	around?	

What	will	happen	to	existing	staff	under	the	proposed	changes:	

“Will	all	jobs	be	open	to	all	staff,	Sunderland	and	South	Tyneside;	or	will	just	
Sunderland	staff	be	safe”	

“What	happens	to	non-medical	staff;	porters,	admin,	and	ward	clerks?”	

The	groups	recognised	the	struggle	to	recruit	staff	and	the	low	numbers	in	South	Tyneside,	
making	staff	skill	development	and	service	quality	an	issue,	and	a	consequent	concern	at	the	
perceptions	that	the	plans	are	“…a	comment	on	South	Tyneside	staff	care	and	
performance.”	

The	feeling	was	also	that	waiting	times	are	likely	to	increase	with	a	detrimental	impact	on	
both	patients	and	staff.	

Ambulance	staff	were	also	considered	in	the	discussions.	

“…huge	impact	on	NEAS	–	how	will	they	manage	both	staff	and	facilities?”	

THE	ADDITIONAL	COSTS	(DEPRIVATION)	

The	group	discussions	identified	the	well	understood	local	issues	of	low	car	ownership	and	
high	levels	of	poverty	in	South	Tyneside	and	felt	that	this	would	increase	the	potential	for	
detrimental	impact	of	moving	services	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland.	

“…this	could	cause	health	problems.		It’s	difficult	if	you	have	no	resources	and	are	in	
some	hospital	miles	away	from	your	family…”	

The	cost	of	parking,	fuel,	and	the	physical	trauma	of	travel	was	raised	with	a	special	
reference	on	the	people	who	live	in	the	most	deprived	areas	of	South	Tyneside	who	will	
have	to	access	services	in	Sunderland.	A	high	percentage	of	those	without	a	car	said	this	was	
worse	for	them	when	considering	the	costs	and	availability	of	public	transport	when	there	
are	no	direct	buses	to	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital,	and	taxis	are	too	expensive	for	lower	
income	families	facing	multiple	disadvantages.		

There	is	of	course	the	overarching	concern	amongst	this	group,	and	others,	of	coping	with	
travel	demands	in	an	urgent	situation.	

Page 105



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

68	
	

“Public	transport;	when	emergency	happens,	it	is	unpredictable…”	

This	led	to	speculation	that	moving	services	to	Sunderland	would	lead	to	an	increase	in	calls	
to	the	Ambulance	Service	from	deprived	areas	due	to	the	simple	economics	of	the	situation.		

“…they	can’t	afford	a	taxi,	so	the	only	other	option	is	to	call	an	ambulance…”	

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT	

Setting	aside	the	issues	of	specific	disadvantage,	the	groups	identified	a	general	and	
significant	concern	over	distance	between	Sunderland	and	South	Tyneside	and	the	time	it	
will	take	to	travel.	This	was	heightened	by	concerns	expressed	over	the	travel	times	used	in	
the	impact	assessment,	with	the	belief	being	that	these	were	not	based	in	reality;	unless	as	
a	‘blue	light’	journey,	and	even	then,	there	was	scepticism.		

“…the	consultation	document	says	12	minutes	from	South	Tyneside	to	SRH…not	
realistic…”	

“…e.g.	page	94,	6	minutes,	is	this	a	misprint?”	

Concerns	were	also	raised	in	the	groups	over	the	public	transport	figures	being	used.		

“…the	stats	on	metro	stations	being	within	800m	of	the	hospital	are	incorrect	–	its	
more	than	a	mile	and	a	half…”	

All	of	which	undermined	faith	in	the	process,	again	aggravated	by	the	real	difficulties	faced	
by	public	transport	users	in	the	journey	between	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland,	
particularly	the	issues	faced	in	making	connecting	buses,	with	no	direct	route	available.		

“You	can’t	get	a	direct	bus	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital”	

There	were	also	requests	that	this	issue	was	addressed	as	part	of	the	service	reorganisation	
by	provision	of	regular	transport,	provided	by	the	NHS,	between	the	two	sites.		

“Will	transfers	be	put	on?”	

Another	area	of	concern	in	the	public	meetings	was	the	extent	to	which	the	safety	of	
patients,	family	and	other	visitors	was	considered	in	the	formulation	of	the	options	and	the	
in	the	potential	implementation.	This	was	felt	to	be	particularly	important	for	vulnerable	
groups.		

“…late	night	travel…	not	safe	for	children…if...discharge	late	night/early	morning…”	

“…issue	for	lone	mothers	with	siblings,	how	will	they	get	there	through	the	night	
with	no	transport?”	

Parking	was	highlighted	as	a	concern	at	the	Sunderland	hospital	site	with	a	strong	message	
that	“…additional	needed	at	Sunderland…”	to	cope	with	an	increase	in	patient	numbers	
resulting	from	the	proposed	service	reorganisation.	The	cost	of	the	parking	was	also		

“…can	you	put	something	like	a	temporary	parking	pass	for	the	duration	of	
treatment…like	Q?”	

Page 106



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

69	
	

One	very	major	concern	around	the	issues	associated	with	travel	and	transport	is	the	view	
that	this	consultation	cannot	influence	transport	providers	and	patients	and	relatives	will	be	
faced	with	service	change	with	no	real	public	transport	options.		

“…new	bus	services	are	under	review	(Stagecoach)…this	link	service	is	being	
removed!”	

There	was	also	an	opinion	that	the	travel	difficulties	between	South	Tyneside	and	
Sunderland	would	result	in	the	transfer	of	demand	to	other	areas,	specifically	Gateshead	
and	Newcastle.		
	

“…from	Hebburn	you	would	go	to	Gateshead	not	Sunderland…”	

“…the	public	want	the	best	on	their	doorstep…people	want	to	go	where	they	have	
always	gone…”	

AMBULANCE	SERVICE	

A	large	strand	of	discussion	was	around	the	provision	of	ambulances	by	the	North-East	
Ambulance	Service	(NEAS)	and	the	perceived	uncertainty	of	their	support	for	the	options,	
sparked	by	the	lack	of	published	information	about	this	at	the	events.	The	key	issue	was:	

“…can	NEAS	cope…have	the	got	the	capacity	for	the	transfers	implied	in	the	
options?”		

“…	NEAS	are	not	guaranteeing	transfer	times…will	they	be	able	to	guarantee	
adequate	coverage?”	

THE	CONSULTATION	PROCESSES	

There	was	widespread	criticism	of	the	Path	to	Excellence	consultation	exercise,	much	of	it	
directed	towards	Government	policies	outside	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	that	are	
viewed	as	driving	these	changes.	These	are	described	below:	

“Government	cuts	driving	this…we	know	Government	cuts	are	having	this	effect”	

“Finance,	it’s	about	money…will	the	saved	money	be	invested	into	the	NHS?”	

There	were	also	strongly	voiced	concerns	that	staff	had	not	been	involved	in	developing	the	
options	and	being	consulted	

“…which	clinicians	were	involved	in	the	options	development?”	

“Staff	(Paediatrics	A&E)	were	not	involved	in	the	process”	

“Staff	don’t	feel	consulted”	

This	was	coupled	with	very	strong	concerns	that	third	options	put	forward	by	staff	for	
maternity	and	paediatric	services	were	not	in	final	cut,	leading	to	staff	feeling	their	opinions	
were	not	listened	to	or	valued.	This	suggestion	was,	at	its	simplest:	

	“There	should	be	an	Option	3	–	where	clinicians	rotate”	

Page 107



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

70	
	

CRITICISM	OF	THE	OPTIONS	

There	were	many	comments	about	why	it	appears	that	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	was	
being	downgraded,	and	concerns	over	the	apparent	lack	of	supporting	evidence	presented	
in	the	meetings:	

“…services	are	all	moving	to	Sunderland,	why	not	South	Tyneside?”	

	“…will	anything	be	moving	from	Sunderland	to	South	Tyneside?”	

There	were	also	concerns	raised	over	the	financial	modelling	of	the	options:	

“Where	does	the	extra	funding	come	from?”	

“…why	does	Option	1	cost	more	but	Options	2	generate	savings?”	

	“Option	1	costs	are	misleading…don’t	make	sense;	how	can	it	close	at	night,	save	
money	and	still	run	at	a	loss?”	(Paediatric	Services)		

The	overall	impact	of	all	the	service	changes	together	were	felt	to	be	detrimental	to	South	
Tyneside:	

“If	Option	2	is	chosen	for	both	Maternity	and	Children	and	Young	people’s	services	
it	would	be	worse	effect	on	South	Tyneside…”	

	

9.1.2 Summary	of	key	Issues:	Stroke	Services	

Discussions	focused	on	the	Stroke	Services	options	produced	the	following	key	themes:	

COMMENTS	ON	CONSULTATION/OPTIONS	

There	was	general	confusion	about	what	the	options	will	mean	in	practice	and	how	the	
benefits	and	costs	had	been	generated.	

“…not	sure	where	the	additional	investment	would	come	from	for	Options	2/3	or	
where	savings	in	Option	1	would	be	invested…”	

Additionally,	there	were	comments	on	the	apparent	lack	of	NEAS	involvement	in	the	
assessment	and	the	fact	that	they	had	not	published	their	assessment	of	the	travel	times,	
and	implications	of	the	various	options.		

CAPACITY	AT	SUNDERLAND	

The	transfer	of	hyper	acute	and	acute	stroke	services	to	Sunderland	led	to	discussions	in	all	
groups	of	the	issues	around	the	fabric	and	facilities	of	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	to	cope	
with	the	consequential	increase	in	capacity:	

“Does	size	of	stroke	ward	need	to	increase?”	

This	also	prompted	discussion	of	the	staffing	levels	in	Sunderland.		

“Will	the	level	of	staffing	need	to	increase?”	

“Will	there	be	a	transfer	of	current	staff	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland?”	

Page 108



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

71	
	

“Is	there	a	recruitment	need	for	staff	to	meet	the	demand?”	

URGENCY	OF	RESPONSE	–	THE	‘GOLDEN	HOUR’	

There	were	very	specific	concerns	around	the	ability	of	the	proposed	service	rearrangement	
to	meet	stroke	victim’s	need	for	treatment	in	the	so-called	golden	hour16.		

“…the	first	hour,	the	‘Golden	hour’	is	important…”	

“In	Stroke,	the	first	30	minutes	is	really	important…”	

This	was	also	linked	to	the	ambulance	service	responses	for	stroke	victims,	not	only	in	terms	
of	ensuring	they	are	in	hospital	receiving	treatment	within	the	golden	hour,	but	also	that	
any	additional	transfer	time	does	not	result	in	a	worse	outcome	for	the	patient.		

“What	about	the	added	stress	in	the	increase	of	travel	when	people	are	having	a	
stroke?”	

SPECIALIST	CARE		

The	importance	of	providing	stroke	patients	with	specialist	care	was	recognised	and	viewed	
as	being	a	very	positive	element	of	the	options	for	rearranged	services.		

“…specialist	care	is	crucial	and	overrides	travel	issues	as	it	impacts	on	recovery…”	

However,	there	was	a	contrary	concern	that	the	travel	burdens,	if	too	repetitious	could	
actually	have	a	negative	impact	on	stroke	patients.		

“…need	to	avoid…unnecessary	transfer	for	specialist	care…”	

“Transferring	patients	back	and	forth	after	three	or	five	days	would	be	bad	
treatment…”	

A	general	query	was	raised	in	the	groups	around	the	way	in	which	people	having	a	transient	
ischaemic	attack	(TIA)	or	‘mini-strokes’,	which	though	felt	to	be	less	serious	are	still	serious	
and	it	is	not	apparent	how	they	are	dealt	with	in	the	options	presented.	

“…what	will	be	the	position	for	people	having	TIAs…	what	is	the	treatment	
pathway?”	

This	was	also	queried	in	terms	of	services	for	younger	stroke	patients,	which	while	
recognised	as	being	rarer	than	in	older	people	is	perhaps	more	distressing	because	of	that.		

“…what	services	are	offered	to	younger	stroke	survivors?”	

There	was	a	real	concern	that	stroke	patients	are	offered	Rehab	and	reablement	closer	to	
their	home,	irrespective	of	the	hospital	in	which	they	received	care.		

	“…how	can	the	relevant	discharge	services	and	care	plans	be	co-ordinated?”	

																																																								
16	The term golden hour is used to designate the hour immediately following the onset of stroke 
symptoms.  Stroke patients have a much greater chance of surviving and avoiding long-term brain 
damage if they arrive at hospital and receive treatment within that first hour.	

Page 109



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

72	
	

The	issue	of	the	length	of	stay	before	transferring	out	of	Sunderland	for	South	Tyneside	
patients,	was	welcomed.	There	were,	however,	specific	concerns	over	the	options	which	
cited	specific	three	or	seven-day	time	windows,	as	being	arbitrary	and	not	taking	account	of	
individual	care	needs	

“…the	days	should	be	specific	to	the	patient	and	decided	by	a	consultant…”	

MENTAL	WELLBEING	OF	PATIENTS	

There	was	a	widespread	recognition	in	the	groups	of	the	need	to	consider	the	mental	health	
impact	for	patients:	

• In	the	case	of	increased	patient	numbers,	and	associated	staff,	etc:	

“…could	affect	Sunderland	patients	if	numbers	went	up...”	

• Where	patients	who	have	had	a	Stroke,	know	family/friends	can’t	visit	so	often	due	to	
the	distance	from	their	home,	and	the	effect	this	could	have	on	their	mental	wellbeing:	

“…older	people	who	end	up	on	a	Stroke	unit	at	Sunderland…how	do	elderly	
relatives	visit	patients	further	away?”	

	

9.1.3 Summary	of	Key	Issues:	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	

Discussions	focused	on	the	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	options	produced	
the	following	key	themes:	

LOW	TO	HIGH	RISK	BIRTHS	

The	most	prevalent	concern	was	for	mothers	in	South	Tyneside	in	circumstances	where	
there	was	an	emergency	for	a	woman	classified	as	being	a	low	risk	birth:	

“…what	about	women	attending	antenatal	clinic	and	need	to	delivery	immediately	
if	there	is	no	delivery	suite?”	

“If	a	low	risk	turns	to	a	high	risk	during	labour,	what	happens	then?”	

This	prompted	further	concerns	that	the	move	to	another	hospital	during	birth	could	be	
unrealistic;	there	was	a	specific	concern	around	Option	One	if	emergency	transfers	are	
required,	specifically	for	caesarean	sections	and	should	this	involve	a	significant	journey	to	
receive	care;	

“…will	there	be	time	for	emergency	C-sections	for	example?”	

“…the	need	for	C-sections	can	change	quickly…is	there	capacity/space	at	
Sunderland	for	an	emergency?”	

With	the	lack	of	a	SCBU	at	South	Tyneside	there	were	concerns	over	neonatal	transfers	too.	

“…provision	for	babies	who	become	high	risk	before	they’re	transferred	to	
Sunderland…what	facilities	are	at	South	Tyneside?”	

Page 110



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

73	
	

SCBU	

There	was	widespread	confusion	about	impact	of	no	option	to	include	a	Special	Care	Baby	
Unit	SCBU	at	South	Tyneside;	

“…what	options	were	considered	and	rejected	for	SCBU?”	

“…why	can’t	a	third	model	be	looked	at	for	SCBU	to	provide	‘transitional’	phase	for	
pre-term	babies	for	weeks/months	before	discharge	in	South	Tyneside…”	

MLUS	

Concerns	about	midwife	led	units	were	widely	expressed:	

“…do	they	work?”	

“…MLUs,	seem	to	have	an	issue	with	sustainability,	there	is	evidence	of	closure	
elsewhere…”	

“Most	Midwifery	Units	end	up	being	closed...”	

However,	some	parents	expressed	contrary	and	more	favourable	views	on	an	MLU	option?	

“I	would	go	for	an	MLU	birth	if	I	had	another	child…”		

TRAVEL		

There	was	a	feeling	that	the	issues	of	traveling	to	Sunderland	could	introduce	bonding	and	
breastfeeding	issues	between	mother	and	child:	

“Travelling	to	Sunderland	and	having	to	breastfeed	–	nightmare…”	

Additionally,	it	was	felt	by	some	that	the	travel	issues	could	increase	the	number	of	home	
births,	sometimes	not	in	the	woman	or	their	child’s	best	interests:	

“…women	may	be	choosing	when	they	shouldn’t	because	they	don’t	want	to	
travel…”	

OPTIONS:	OBSERVATIONS	AND	COMMENT		

There	were	a	number	of	general	comments	about	all	of	the	options:	

“…with	no	consultant	led	option	at	South	Tyneside,	women	will	choose	to	go	to	a	
specialist”		

“Post-natal	depression	considerations	are	not	made	clear…”		

“You	do	not	know	when	things	can	go	wrong,	can’t	predict	it	and	when	things	go	
wrong	they	go	wrong	fast…”	

There	were	also	specific	comments	from	the	groups	on	the	specific	options	

	

Option	One:	

“…monitoring	equipment	is	a	lot	more	advanced	to	pick	up	issues	during	labour…”	

Page 111



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

74	
	

“…saves	£1.3Million,	goes	a	long	way	to	budgets	cuts….”	

“This	won’t	work	as	its	dangerous	unless	transport	issue	is	resolved…”		

“…unsafe	and	unfair…”	

“Only	positive	is	financial	saving…”	

“Might	increase	the	homebirth	rate…”	

“Should	increase	the	consultant	care	and	so	improve	Quality	of	Care…”	

“There	will	be	more	patient	choice…”	

Option	Two:	

“People	from	South	Tyneside	are	being	robbed	in	option…”	

“Option	2	not	liked,	especially	as	there	are	no	births	in	South	Tyneside…”	

“…site	transfer	and	discharge	issues…”	

LOCAL	TRADITION		

While	it	is	paramount	that	all	the	options	provide	a	safe	service,	many	South	Tyneside	
women	are	proud.	There	are	traditional	and	specific	cultural	issues	which	might	mitigate	
against	choosing	to	give	birth	in	Sunderland:	

	“…my	dad	would	be	devastated	if	my	child	was	born	a	Mackem…”	

“…don’t	want	a	Sunderland	baby…”	

SPECIFIC	(CONTENTIOUS?)	CARE	ISSUES	

There	were	specific	concerns	around	the	offer	of	terminations	for	women:	

“…how	would	these	work	for	South	Tyneside…”	

And,	concerns	over	the	professional	pressures	the	options	might	have	on	midwives,	
particularly	in	the	MLU:	

“…could	be	at	risk	if	can’t	offer	the	correct	care,	medical	insurance?”	

	

9.1.4 Summary	of	Key	Issues:	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	(Urgent	and	

Emergency	Paediatrics)	Services	

Discussions	focused	on	the	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	options	
produced	the	following	key	themes:	

TIME	(8	TO	8?)	

There	was	general	confusion	in	the	groups	over	what	will	happen	with	an	8pm	closing	time	
with	a	number	questioning	the	decision	to	close	at	8PM.		Young	people	responding	also	
assumed	that	they	would	be	more	likely	to	require	services	at	night:	

After	hours,	who	will	look	after	paediatric	patients	who	walk	in	with	no	trained	

Page 112



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

75	
	

paediatric	staff?		

“…head	injury	patients	arriving	at	6PM	need	a	six-hour	observation	–	what	happens	
then?”	

“Out	of	hours	–	what	happens?”		

“…children	may	arrive	late	and	still	need	care…”	

“8	pm	the	right	closure	time?	This	is	the	busiest	time	of	the	day	and	where	do	the	
children	in	the	department	go	physically	when	it	closes?”	

“Mental	impact	of	staff	that	have	to	turn	away	a	child	at	8pm….”	

COMMUNICATIONS/INFORMING	THE	PUBLIC	

Communicating	the	change	will	be	important	for	the	service	to	ensure	children	and	young	
people	get	the	right	care,	when	they	need	it.	

‘People	still	turn	up	at	Jarrow	walk	in	centre…”	

“How	will	the	public	know	there’s	no	children’s	A&E?	What	if	they	are	visiting	on	
holiday?”	

“There	is	an	education	need	for	parents,	supported	by	communications,	otherwise	
they	will	still	go	to	STDH…”		

“As	a	member	of	the	public	I	would	like	to	know	where	to	go…”	

CAPACITY	

Does	Sunderland	have	capacity	for	additional	children?	

“How	are	SRH	going	to	look	after	39,000	children?	That’s	double!”	

SPECIALIST	A&E/SPECIALIST	NEEDS	AND	SAFETY	

There	were	very	specific	concerns	around	the	level	of	care	offered	to	children	and	young	
adults	when	the	specialist	paediatric	services	could	be	closed	

“…after	8pm	would	children	have	to	mix	with	Adult	A&E	and	deal	with/be	faced	
with	drunkenness	and	aggression	etc.”		

There	were	also	concerns	over	the	safety	of	the	option	in	promoting	the	best	care	for	
children	and	young	people	

“…the	only	choice	is	to	wait	for	8	am	if	you	can’t	afford	to	travel…”	

“Children	will	be	more	ill	as	they	will	wait	until	morning	-	children	can	
deteriorate…”	

SPECIALIST	EMERGENCY	

Emergency	Paeds	Dental	service	not	involved		

No	day	surgery	can	happen	if	not	general	anaesthetics	

Page 113



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

76	
	

COMMENTS	ON	THE	OPTIONS	

There	were	general,	in	the	most	part	not	very	positive,	comments	on	both	options:		

In	both	options,	children	need	to	be	seen	by	consultants	

Feeling	like	everything	is	going	to	Sunderland	

Travel	at	night	without	access	to	a	car	

Is	8AM-8Pm	the	right	times?	When	do	kids	have	accidents?	

If	you	turn	up	at	A&E	with	a	sick	child	out	of	hours	will	they	be	transferred	by	the	
hospital	to	Sunderland?	

3rd	options	–	could	stay	open	8pm-8am	staffed	by	APNs	(currently	happening)	

Option	One	

Specific	comments	on	Option	One,	included:	

“…more	straightforward	for	parents	to	understand…”	

“Potential	training	base	–	all	experts	in	one	place…”		

“I	want	Option	1	if	this	is	what	we	must	choose	from,	to	retain	what	we	already	
have…”	

Option	Two	

“…more	like	a	walk-in	centre.”	

“…confusion	in	access?”	

“This	feels	a	backward	step…”	

“In	an	emergency	situation	the	public	will	instinctively	go	to	nearest	facility…”	

	

	 	

Page 114



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

77	
	

10 Focus	Groups		

The	Equalities	Impact	assessment	activity	conducted	by	the	Path	to	Excellence	programme	
identified	those	protected	characteristic	and	other	equalities	groups	most	likely	to	be	
affected	by	the	proposed	service	changes.	Recognising	some	of	the	difficulties	NHS	
organisations	face	in	reaching	these	groups	the	programme	adopted	an	asset	based	
approach,	engaging	with	third	sector	and	interest	groups	in	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	
to	support	people	who	may	face	barriers	to	taking	part	in	the	consultation.		

32	focus	groups	were	convened,	moderated,	and	reported	by	Voluntary	and	Community	
Sector	(VCS)/third	sector	partners	across	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland,	though	only	28	
were	reported	for	analysis.			Originally	planned	for	September/October	but	running	into	
November,	the	groups	reached	as	far	as	possible	the	identified	target	groups	likely	to	be	
affected	by	the	proposed	service	changes.	The	dates	and	details	of	the	focus	groups	are	
shown	in	Appendix	Seven.			

We	are	also	aware	of	other	groups	convened	and	moderated	with	a	specific	focus	on	BME	
groups,	however	reports	of	these	events	have	not	been	provided	to	the	consultors.	We	
understand	these	to	have	been	for	reasons	of	genuine	difficulties,	unfortunately	we	are	
unable	to	include	these	in	the	analysis	to	meet	agreed	reporting	deadlines	for	the	decision	
makers	and	scrutineers.	Therefore,	28	of	the	32	groups	were	included	in	this	analysis.	

10.1.1 Format	of	meetings	

Each	of	the	groups	ran	for	a	maximum	of	1.5	hours	and	were	conducted	against	an	
approved	semi-directive	moderator’s	script,	providing	the	main	lines	of	enquiry	along	with	
guidance	on	running	the	groups,	including	prompting	for	depth	responses.			

To	support	the	delivery	of	Focus	Group	sessions,	Voluntary	and	Community	Sector	
(VCS)/third	sector	group	moderators	were	provided	with	access	to	training	to	support	them	
in	running	the	groups	and	with	a	report	template	along	with	guidance	on	completion.		

All	groups	used	a	standardised	feedback	template,	which	form	the	basis	of	our	analysis.		

The	pattern	of	discussion	in	the	focus	groups	tended	to	be	upon	general	issues	around	
access	to	service	rather	than	the	specific	options.	Therefore,	we	present	the	results	from	
these	groups	as	a	discussion	of	the	broad	themes	around	common	issues	for	consideration	
by	the	consultors,	reflecting	the	diverse	opinion	and	ability	of	the	groups.	The	highest	
volume	of	consideration	is	given	to	the	common	and	general	issues,	echoing	the	records.	

• Analysis	Caveat:	The	issues	developed	in	this	section	are	based	on	the	reports	provide	
to	us	and	we	make	no	guarantee	of	the	accuracy	or	independence	of	the	content	we	
reviewed.	Where	responses	are	quoted	these	are	based	on	the	reports	provided.	
	

Page 115



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

78	
	

10.1.2 Summary	of	key	issues	across	all	service	area	discussions		

Each	of	the	focus	groups	considered	all	or	some	of	the	proposed	options	for	service	change	
–	depending	on	the	interest	and	purpose	of	the	group/organisation	being	consulted	-	there	
were	differing	opinions	expressed	based	on:	

• The	specific	needs	of	the	respondent	group	(specifically	learning	disability,	sensory	
disability,	cognitive	impairment,	disability,	English	not	a	first	language	and,	single	
parents);	

• The	social	implications	of	the	options;	
• The	costs	to	the	individual	both	financial	and	time	implied	in	the	options.		

These	are	discussed	throughout	in	each	of	the	specific	service	areas,	however,	it	is	clear	
from	the	review	that	there	are	several	issues	that	are	common	to	all,	which	in	summary	
are:	

WHY	THE	ENHANCED	FOCUS	ON	SUNDERLAND	ROYAL	HOSPITAL;	WHERE’S	THE	EVIDENCE,	CAN	IT	

COPE?	

There	is	a	continuous	theme	in	the	groups’	dialogue	which	questions:	

• The	fundamental	rationale	of	consolidation	of	service,	in	many	cases	recognising	the	
benefits,	but	still	essentially	unconvinced	by	the	evidence	as	presented	to	them,	
particularly	in	the	commonly	held	view	that	South	Tyneside	Hospital	performance	is	the	
better	of	the	two;	

• The	ability	of	estates	and	facilities	(car	parking,	general	hospital	estates/roads	and	hotel	
services)	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	(SRH)	to	cope	with	the	cumulative	increase	in	
demand	implicit	in	all	the	options;	

• The	impact	on	clinical	and	other	staff	at	SRH	coping	with	increased	demand	from	the	
proposed	service	rearrangements,	with	specific	concerns	over	stress	and	morale,	along	
with	concerns	for	Paramedics	and	other	North-East	Ambulance	Service	(NEAS)	
ambulance	staff,	described	as	‘valuable	and	scarce	resources’.		

• The	proposed	options	were	all	felt	to	focus	on	a	downgrading	of	services	at	South	
Tyneside	District	Hospital	(STDH).		The	general	feeling	across	the	groups	was	that	this	–	
irrespective	of	service	under	consideration	–was	likely	to	foster	health	inequalities.	The	
common	rationale	for	this	opinion	was:	

‘most	people	will	put	off	going	to	Sunderland	until	it	becomes	a	major	issue…	more	
health	problems’		

The	feeling	was	that	the	case	for	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	had	not	been	successfully	made	
and	there	was	equal	justification	for	some	or	all	of	the	services	to	be	centred	on	South	
Tyneside	District	Hospital.		

TRAVEL	AND	ACCESS	(SPECIFIC	NEEDS)	

Participants	in	the	groups	with	specific	needs	highlighted	the	specific	issues	around	
transport	and	accessibility,	summarised	as:	

Page 116



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

79	
	

• The	extra	travel	demands	put	on	patients	and	family/friends	of	travelling	from	South	
Tyneside	to	Sunderland	(with	recognised	poor	public	transport	links)	present	significant	
if	not	surmountable	difficulties	for	those	with	additional	needs.	The	view	was	that	for	
any	of	the	current	options	to	be	provided	without	extra	transport	support	leads	to	
inequalities	in	service	provision.	

• Transport	is	difficult	for	stroke	survivors	at	any	time	and	this	will	be	much	worse	for	
those	from	South	Tyneside	who	may	have	to	access	services	in	Sunderland;	

• Accessibility	of	new	services	and	unfamiliar	surroundings	are	particularly	challenging	for	
those	with	sensory/cognitive	impairment,	again	without	additional	support	in	place	they	
are	inequitable.		

These	concerns	cover	the	opinion	expressed	by	groups	representing:		

• Physical	disability;	
• Learning	disability;	
• Sensory	disability;		
• Single	parent	families;	
• BME	communities,	particularly	where	English	is	not	spoken	as	a	first	language;	
• Cognitive	impairment;	and		
• Low	incomes	from	disadvantaged	areas	all	expressed	opinions	

AMBULANCE	RESPONSE	TIMES	

The	groups	expressed	specific	concern	over	the	ability	of	the	ambulance	service	to	respond	
to	emergency	situations,	specifically	the	‘blue	light’	travel	time	to	Sunderland	from	South	
Tyneside,	citing;	

• Concerns	from	stroke	survivors	on	the	likely	impact	of	delivering	hyperacute	care	within	
the	so-called	‘golden	hour’	in	which	the	extent	of	recovery	of	the	individual	is	largely	
determined;		

• For	maternity	services	the	issues	around	labour,	which	can	go	wrong	quickly	and	at	any	
time,	and	the	capacity	of	the	transfer	from	South	Tyneside	quickly	enough	to	ensure	the	
safety	of	mother	and	child.		

• For	children	and	young	people’s	urgent	and	emergency	services	there	are	specific	
concerns	from	South	Tyneside	residents	about	emergency	transfers	to	Sunderland	in	
cases	outside	the	8-to-8	window	or	where	the	24-hour	nurse	led	service	can’t	deal	with	
the	emergency.		

This	is	coupled	with	a	further	concern	over	the	additional	pressure	this	puts	on	ambulance	
services	and	their	crews	dealing	with	these	service	changes.		

Note:	NEAS	have	subsequently	provided	a	statement	detailing	the	impact	on	Ambulance	
services	which	is	available	to	the		

STATUS	QUO	AND	FINANCIAL	PRESSURES	

The	overarching	view	is	that	the	only	fair	and	equitable	service	provision	is	to	leave	it	the	
same	and	there	was	strong	opposition	in	the	groups	to	all	the	implementation	of	all	the	

Page 117



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

80	
	

options.	Equally,	there	is	a	balancing	view	that	the	cuts	in	NHS	funding	are	the	driver	for	
these	changes	and	the	best	care	that	can	be	provided	is	the	most	important,	if	not	ideal,	
factor.		

HEALTH	AND	WELLBEING	

Each	group,	considering	each	of	the	service	areas,	to	a	greater	or	lesser	extent	highlighted	
the	potential	negative	impact	on	the	overall	health	and	wellbeing	of	patients,	service	users,	
family,	friends,	and	staff.		These	involved:	

• The	pressure	of	additional	travel,	impacting	on	mental	health;	
• Isolation	of	patients	whose	friends	and	family	find	it	difficult	to	make	the	journey	

from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	on	a	regular	basis;	
• The	burden	on	physical	and	mental	health	of	friends,	family	and	carers	resulting	

from	the	increased	travelling	required	to	visit	Sunderland	from	South	Tyneside;	and	
• The	pressure	on	all	staff	in	delivering	these	service	changes,	which	the	groups	feared	

would	lead	to	resourcing	crises.		

SHIFTING	SERVICE	TO	OTHER	AREAS	

The	groups	indicated	they	felt	the	intention	of	changes	in	service	options	was	to	redirect	
patients	to	Sunderland	from	South	Tyneside.	However,	it	was	identified	that	this	ignored	the	
local	geography,	preferences	(“we	don’t	mix	well	with	Mackems”),	and	road	networks	and,	
perhaps,	introduced	an	unintended	or	unconsidered	consequence	of	the	changes	resulting	
in	patient	flow	to	other	areas.	Respondents	from	South	Tyneside	cited	the	difficulties	with	
traffic	on	the	A19	and	the	availability	of	services	closer	to	home:	

“QE	and	RVI	17are	easier	to	get	to	than	SRH	–I	wouldn’t	even	think	of	going	to	
Sunderland”	

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT:	THE	FINANCIAL	&	TIME	BURDEN	PLACED	ON	THOSE	WHO	CAN	LEAST	

AFFORD	IT	

Again,	irrespective	of	service	the	proposals	require	extra	travel	time	for	all,	of	concern	
amongst	the	representatives	of	the	equalities	groups	were:	

• The	lack	of	direct	public	transport	links	to	Sunderland	from	South	Tyneside;	
• The	prohibitive	cost	of	public	transport	for	those	on	low	incomes;	
• The	impact	of	having	to	use	public	transport	for	single	parents	with	children;	
• Difficulties	for	people	who	do	not	speak	English	as	their	first	language	in	using	public	

transport;	
• Difficulties	in	travelling	to	Sunderland	from	South	Tyneside	at	night,	particularly	in	

the	case	of	BME	groups	with	a	high	prevalence	of	evening/night	workers.	

																																																								
17	QE	=	Queen	Elizabeth	Hospital,	Gateshead,	and	RVI	=	Royal	Victoria	Infirmary,	Newcastle	

Page 118



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

81	
	

TRUST	

For	many	of	the	equalities	groups	one	of	the	biggest	barriers	is	gaining	trust	in	the	service.	
The	changes	were	felt	to	have	a	disproportionate	effect	on	those	with	sensory	or	learning	
disabilities,	cognitive	impairment	and	people	from	BME	backgrounds	who	find	it	difficult	to	
establish	this	trust	in	new	services	and	particularly	difficult	to	navigate	a	new	environment	
with	confidence.	The	common	issue	being	communication	and	understanding.	

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT:	AN	ADDITIONAL	TIME	AND	COST	BURDEN	ON	THOSE	WHO	CAN	LEAST	

AFFORD	IT	

The	issue	of	travel	and	transport	related	to	the	options	came	up	in	all	groups,	irrespective	of	
their	interest	area,	highlighting	the	problems	and	an	overall	lack	of	additional	transport.	
support	in	the	options	presented.	The	major	concerns	were:	

• The	cost	of	additional	public	transport	for	those	on	low	incomes;	
• The	burden	placed	on	people	from	the	additional	travel	requirements	and	potential	for	

consequential	impacts	on	physical	and	mental	health;	and		
• The	difficulties	associated	with	public	transport	for	those	with	additional	needs,	

summarised	in	one	group	as:	

“Extra	and	complex	humanitarian	demands	on	people	with	additional	needs	
travelling	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland”	

Specific	issues	included:	

• Single	parents	travelling	on	public	transport	with	young	children,	in	terms	of	cost	and	
managing	them	over	a	long	journey;	

• Navigating	a	more	complex	street	system	in	Sunderland	for	drivers	from	South	Tyneside;	
• The	increased	costs	for	drivers	from	South	Tyneside,	in	fuel,	wear	and	tear	and	parking	

charges	in	travelling	to	Sunderland.		

THE	CONSULTATION	PROCESSES	AND	EVIDENCE	BASE	

There	was	widespread	discussion	of	the	consultation	processes	themselves,	the	
presentation	of	the	options	and	the	language	used	to	describe	them,	as:	

• The	option	descriptions	are	all	the	same	or	very	similar,	the	favourite	in	all	of	them	is	
Sunderland,	with	South	Tyneside	facing	service	reduction	in	all	of	them.	Equally	the	
options	are	presented	in	such	a	way	that	it	is	clear	the	way	the	groups	feel	they	are	
expected	to	express	a	preference.	From	one	of	the	groups	it	is	described	as	‘loading	the	
dice’	

• The	overall	format	of	the	consultation	is	too	complex	in	its	language	and	the	number	of	
services	and	options	being	considered.	This	was	particularly	true	for	the	groups	where	
English	is	not	their	first	language,	those	with	learning	disability	or	cognitive	impairment	
and	the	time	pressured,	parents	specifically.		

• There	were	observations,	particularly	from	stroke	survivors,	that:	

“…the	options	had	been	loaded	to	make	you	have	to	choose	the	best	of	a	bunch	of	

Page 119



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

82	
	

unacceptable	options	and	that	there	was	no	evidence	to	show	that	these	options	
were	necessary	for	consideration.”		

Concluding	that	the	case	presented	to	the	groups	offered	no	supporting	evidence	that	
options	were	an	improvement	in	the	“duty	of	care	the	NHS	has	to	the	residents	of	South	
Tyneside.” 

• What’s	the	point:	While	some	groups	were	welcoming	of	the	opportunity	to	be	
consulted	on	the	options,	there	were	a	range	of	specific	and	sometimes	heated	opinions	
on	this	matter,	notably:	
• Young	people	who	feel	their	opinions	are	overlooked;	
• Disability	groups	who	feel	they	are	a	‘tick	box’	consultee	for	the	local	authority	and	

NHS	organisations	whenever	there	is	an	issue;	
• Single	mothers	who	feel	they	have	been	consulted	in	the	past	on	different	issues	

only	to	have	their	views	ignored.	

Overall,	while	continuing	to	support	consultation	the	view	is	increasingly	‘what’s	the	
point’	in	contributing.	

	

10.1.3 Summary	of	key	issues:	Stroke	Services	

OVERALL	COMMENTS	

Overall	the	groups	recognised	that	financial	pressure	and	the	need	for	modern	services	led	
to	the	need	for	a	concentration	of	hyperacute	and	acute	stroke	services	in	one	place,	with	
24-hour,	seven	days	a	week	access	to	specialist	skills,	care	and	equipment.	Stroke	survivors	
were	delighted	to	be	consulted	on	this	issue.	Despite	this,	it	was	also	clear	that	this	
acceptance	comes	with	several	qualifications,	namely:	

• The	move	to	Sunderland	of	the	hyperacute	and	acute	services	is	likely	to	cause	extra	
pressure	on	the	Ambulance	Service	and	Paramedics,	which	could	have	serious	
consequences	for	staff	if	this	additional	pressure	is	not	supported;	

• The	perceived	lack	of	hyperacute	and	acute	stroke	care	at	South	Tyneside	in	a	time	
sensitive	intervention,	would	disadvantage	residents	in	receiving	care	to	minimise	long	
term	damage	in	the	so-call	golden	hour;	and		

• Public	transport	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	is	a	major	issue	described	as	
‘geographical	nightmare’,	overall	the	view	was	that	adding	extra	travel	distance	without	
focussed	support	is	unacceptable.	However,	participants	in	the	Sunderland	coalfields	
area	stated	they	were	used	to	travelling	some	distance	to	SRH	anyway,	and	“…failed	to	
see	why	additional	travel	should	or	would	be	an	issue…”	(Stoke	Survivors)	

QUALITY	OF	CARE	AND	A	CENTRE	OF	EXCELLENCE	(STROKE)	

The	groups	generally	favoured	the	idea	of	a	concentration	of	hyperacute	and	acute	services	
in	one	area,	recognising	this	provided	a	concentration	of	excellence	in	terms	of	skills,	
personnel,	and	equipment.	

Page 120



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

83	
	

“…we	agree	with	the	clinical	people...we’ve	already	moved	stroke	care	from	South	
Tyneside	to	Newcastle	and	Sunderland…that	can	cover	everything	at	the	same	
time…”	(BME	group,	South	Shields)	

“…the	centralisations	of	services	is	far	better	than	having	a	few	mediocre	
services…”	(Stroke	Survivor’s	Carer,	Sunderland)		

INEQUALITIES	

The	main	issues	related	to	service	inequalities	were	associated	with	all	three	options	for	
stroke	services	reorganisation	–	namely	that	South	Tyneside	would	only	have	rehab	services	
provided	locally.	These	were	viewed	by	many	participants	as	being	inadequate	and	were	
therefore	considered	to	result	in	inequalities	in	service	provision	for	South	Tyneside	
residents.		

FINANCES	AND	REALITY	

Many,	but	not	all,	of	the	groups	accepted	the	‘reality’	as	they	perceived	it	that	the	
reorganisation	was	based	on	the	national	pressure	on	NHS	finances	and	the	need	to	do	
more	with	less.	However,	there	was	a	genuine	desire	to	understand	if	these	were	real	
savings	that	could	be	reallocated	or	simply	reductions	in	running	costs.	

“What	happens	to	the	savings?”	

“Are	the	savings	put	into	nurses	and	doctors	for	South	Tyneside?”	

Underpinning	this	was	the	recognition	that	the	benefits	of	centralising	the	acute	and	
hyperacute	services	in	one	area	outweigh	other	issues.	However,	the	overall	savings	were	
felt	to	be	relatively	small.	

“Savings	of	£510,00	does	not	seem	significant	for	such	a	change.”	

OPTION	PREFERENCES	AND	THE	STATUS	QUO	

Option	1	was	the	preferred	option	for	stroke	services	in	the	minority	of	cases	where	the	
groups	were	able	to	agree,	mainly	based	on	the	cost	saving	element.	But,	those	that	did	
agree	did	so	with	the	caveat	that	“dice	heavily	loaded”	in	favour	of	Option	1.	

All	groups	defended	the	current	situation	and	felt	that	provision	of	hyperacute	and	acute	
services	at	SRH	and	STDH	were	the	only	equitable	options.	Perhaps	better	defined	as	status	
quo	plus.		

10.1.4 Summary	of	key	issues:	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	

OVERALL	CONCERNS	

The	major	concern	voiced	in	most	groups	over	the	two	proposed	options	was	the	lack	of	
Consultants	on	site	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital.	This	was	based	on	the	assertion	that	
child	birth	is	not	a	simple,	prescriptive	event	for	anyone	and	reducing	services	would	be	to	
the	detriment	of	the	residents	of	South	Tyneside,	introducing	a	perceived	unnecessary	and	
unacceptable	risk.		

Page 121



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

84	
	

The	time	it	takes	to	independently	transport	a	mother	in	labour	to	Sunderland	could	have	
major	detrimental	effects.	People	unfamiliar	with	Sunderland,	its	road	systems	and	
transport	would	struggle	with	transport	and	extra	costs	incurred	which	would	in	turn	create	
more	issues	and	problems.		

The	groups	were	also	concerned	about	the	proposed	changes	and	felt	that	they	were	
unnecessary	and	would	be	confusing	for	people	who	were	accessing	them.	There	was	a	
general	lack	of	confidence	that	the	decision	had	not	already	been	reached	despite	
information	provided	to	the	contrary	both	verbally	and	in	consultation	documents.		

QUALITY	OF	CARE	AND	A	CENTRE	OF	EXCELLENCE	

The	groups	felt	that,	despite	previously	expressed	reservations	about	the	lack	of	Consultant	
care	at	South	Tyneside,	the	concentration	of	expertise	on	one	site	was	a	major	benefit	of	
the	proposals.	

“Best	care	is	most	important”	

“Most	of	the	patients	would	prefer	to	give	birth	in	a	more	specialised	hospital”	

The	overarching	concern	is	the	safety	of	mother	and	child,	supported	by	a	centre	of	
excellence	in	Sunderland.	However,	this	aspect	of	safety	was	questioned	for	South	Tyneside	
in	terms	of	the	extreme	pressure	this	will	put	Midwives	under;	they	will	be	called	upon	to	
assess	need	and	to	establish	if	a	birth	at	the	MLU	was	becoming	higher-risk	and	have	
responsibility	for	deciding	if	this	requires	emergency	transfer	to	Sunderland.		

There	was	a	strong	feeling	that	the	downgrading	of	maternity	services	in	South	Tyneside	
would	lead	to	an	increase	in	home	births	in	the	borough.		There	was	also	concern	at	the	loss	
of	a	Special	Care	Baby	Unit	(SCBU),	particularly	amongst	recent	mothers.	

“…my	baby	was	in	the	SCBU	(at	STDH)	we	need	that	here;	I’d	be	scared	if	it	wasn’t	
close...”	

AMBULANCE	RESPONSE	TIMES	

Again,	linked	to	the	issues	of	safety	concern	was	expressed	over	the	ability	of	the	
Ambulance	Service	to	respond	to	pregnancies	that	become	high	risk/emergency	very	
quickly.	The	specific	concern	was	around	transporting	mothers’	in	distress	to	Sunderland	in	
time	to	be	safe	for	both	them	and	their	baby.		

TRAVEL		

While	the	groups	discussing	the	maternity	options	identified	the	concerns	over	travel	
discussed	in	the	overall	concerns	there	were	specific	concerns	raised	in	relation	to	
childbirth.	This	was	mainly	concerned	with	issues	associated	with	travel	to	Sunderland	from	
South	Tyneside	for	higher-risk	births	at	night	time,	particularly	amongst	communities	where	
there	are	high	levels	of	employment	in	the	evening/night	time	economy,	meaning	partners	
are	not	always	available.		

“Travel	from	South	Shields	to	Sunderland	to	give	birth	during	night	time	will	be	very	

Page 122



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

85	
	

hard,	time	consuming	and	expensive”	(BME	group)	

OPTION	PREFERENCES	

There	was	no	clear	preference	expressed	with	the	general	feeling	being	that	the	ideal	
solution	would	be	to	provide	the	same	level	of	staff	and	services	in	both	Sunderland	and	
South	Tyneside.		

Where	a	preference	for	an	option	was	expressed	this	was	for	Option	1.		

	

10.1.5 Summary	of	Key	Issues:	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	(Urgent	and	

Emergency	Paediatrics)	Services	

OVERALL	CONCERNS	

Discussions	in	the	groups	highlighted	the	following	overall	concerns	with	the	proposed	
options	

• Children	get	sick	24	hours	a	day,	seven	days	a	week	and	an	appropriate	inclusive	service	
needs	to	reflect	that.	The	groups	highlighted	a	consistent	concern	that	an	illness	or	
condition	that	starts	off	not	being	an	emergency	with	a	child	can	quickly	become	life-
threatening	

• As	with	the	other	services	there	was	concern	over	the	general	downgrading	of	services	
at	South	Tyneside,	particularly	for	a	group	as	vulnerable	as	children	and	young	people.		

QUALITY	OF	CARE	AND	A	CENTRE	OF	EXCELLENCE	

The	groups	felt	the	needs	of	children	to	be	paramount	in	this	dialogue,	the	options	should	
focus	on	delivering	safe	care	always	and	in	the	most	efficient	way.	For	many	this	was	
unclear	under	the	proposals,	particularly	for	services	in	South	Tyneside,	this	confusion	
summed	up	as:	

“…don’t	understand,	if	you	go	and	nurse	can’t	diagnose	you	would	you	be	
transferred	to	Sunderland?”	“...wasted	time,	there	and	back	and	then	sent	to	
Sunderland…”	

AMBULANCE	SERVICE	RESPONSE	TIMES	

There	was	a	view	that	an	increased	number	of	ambulances	would	be	needed	to	cover	the	
transfer	issues	for	children	and	young	people	between	the	twelve	hour	or	nurse	led	services	
at	South	Tyneside	to	those	in	Sunderland.	

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT	

There	were	several	specific	concerns	raised	over	the	issues	of	transport	and	travel	in	the	
care	of	children	and	young	people,	notably:	

What	decision	should	be	made	about	taking	a	‘poorly’	child	to	South	Tyneside	at	
18:50	“how	would	the	8pm	cut-off	be	managed,	where	should	I	go?”	

“How	would	the	proposed	service	accommodate,	and	support	families	from	South	

Page 123



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

86	
	

Tyneside	who	have	complex	issues	with	transport,	financial	hardship,	and	lack	of	
knowledge	of	the	area?”	

ACCESS	INEQUALITIES		

There	was	felt	to	be	an	inequity	in	access	for	parents,	children,	and	young	people	through	
the	changes	in	services	in	South	Tyneside,	specifically	in	terms	of	impacting	on	employment:	

“More	time	off	work	as	I’ll	need	to	go	between	8am	and	8pm’	

The	issue	of	access	to	an	8am	to	8pm	service	was	also	highlighted	for	younger	children,	
where	symptoms	are	generally	only	noticed	later	in	the	day:	

“…don’t	usually	notice	a	rash	until	bath	time…”	

HEALTH	AND	WELLBEING	

There	were	concerns	raised	over	the	general	health	and	wellbeing	of	children	and	young	
people	based	on	a	delay	in	care	if	people	can’t	get	to	Sunderland	and	they	decide	to	‘wait	
and	see’	if	the	issue	will	resolve	itself.	This	was	felt	to	lead	to	“more	health	problems	for	
kids”	and	ultimately	it	“…might	put	kids	in	danger	if	you	waited”	

OPTION	PREFERENCES	

The	preferred	option	where	consensus	was	reached	was	for	Option	1	on	the	basis	that	there	
would	at	least	be	Doctors	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	for	twelve	hours	a	day.	
However,	this	was	felt	to	be	a	compromise	and	ultimately	led	to	downgrading	of	service	at	
South	Tyneside.		

	

10.1.6 Impact	on	Equalities	Groups	of	the	Proposals	

In	addition	to	the	discussions,	participants	at	each	of	the	focus	group	were	asked	to	
complete	a	monitoring	form.	As	well	as	the	standard	demographics	and	satisfaction	
inquiries	participants	were	asked	the	following	question	to	help	assess	the	impact	of	the	
options	on	the	representative	equalities	groups:	

Q Can	you	think	of	any	way	in	which	the	proposals	in	the	Path	to	Excellence	consultation	
will	affect	you	more	than	other	people?		

Where	answers	were	provided18,	it	is	possible	to	group	these	impacts	around	five	major	
areas	of	concern,	which	broadly	support	the	overall	thematic	concerns	of	the	focus	groups:	

• Impacts	upon	the	family,	for	single	parents,	caused	by	moving	service	from	South	
Tyneside	to	Sunderland;	

• Concerns	related	to	the	proposed	options	relate	to	specific	present	and	future	need	
from	representatives	of	the	equalities	groups;	

• Developing	trust	in	the	new	services	and	demonstrating	respect	for	the	specific	needs	of	
the	community	with	additional	needs;	

																																																								
18	It	is	important	to	note	the	relatively	small	response	rate	from	the	overall	group	attendance;	however,	these	
provide	an	insight	to	be	investigated	in	the	consultation	dialogue.	

Page 124



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

87	
	

• The	impact	on	the	overall	health	and	wellbeing	–	their	mental	health	included	–	of	the	
equalities	groups	represented	in	discussions;	

• Representatives	of	the	equalities	groups	resident	in	South	Tyneside	are	more	likely	to	be	
concerned	about	the	additional	travel	burdens	placed	on	them	by	the	proposed	move	of	
services	to	Sunderland.	This	is	largely	due	to	a	reliance	on	public	transport,	which	
presents	complex	challenges	including,	but	not	limited	to,	confidence,	ability	and	
communication.	

The	grouped	comments19,		leading	to	these	themes	are	shown	below:		

FAMILY	IMPACTS:	

• As	a	single	parent	if	I	had	to	stay	overnight	in	Sunderland	it	would	be	impossible	
regarding	childcare/visits.		I	would	not	see	my	daughter	and	if	it	was	a	prolonged	stay	
this	would	be	awful.	

FUTURE	AND	PRESENT	NEEDS	–	SPECIFIC	CONCERNS	OVER	THE	OPTIONS:	

Reponses	show	a	real	concern	for	the	ability	of	the	proposed	service	changes	on	their	
specific	needs,	now	and	in	the	future:	

• At	any	time,	I	could	have	a	stroke	and	require	gynaecology	services.	
• Because	I	am	pregnant,	and	nobody	can	predict	what	labour	will	look	like	but	in	case	of	

any	emergency	the	women	and	baby	are	at	risk.	
• I	am	a	carer	of	a	stroke	patient.	
• As	recently	had	to	use	emergency	services.	
• I	am	a	single	parent	with	3	children	on	a	low	income.	
• I	have	young	children	who	may	be	affected	to	the	changes	

TRUST	AND	RESPECT:	

• Need	to	be	more	‘deaf	aware’	and	be	more	flexible	to	the	deaf	community.			We	are	
human	beings.	

HEALTH	AND	WELLBEING:	

• I	have	long	term	health	problems	and	anxiety	and	travelling	to	Sunderland	would	make	
this	worse.		

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT:	

• If	everything	goes	to	Sunderland	it	will	make	getting	my	children	to	hospital	harder	(one	
is	disabled,	I	always	have	to	take	both	children	along)	

• Lack	of	funds	and	transport.	
• Transport	
• Travelling	would	create	anxiety	as	I'm	nervous	about	medical	appointments	anyway.	
• Unable	to	drive.		Restricted	walking.		
• Distance	to	travel	and	lack	of	transport	(affordable).	 
																																																								
19	Reported	as	verbatim	from	the	anonymised	data	provided	to	SMP.		

Page 125



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

88	
	

 

10.2 Travel	and	Transport	Discussion	Group	
In	line	with	the	principles	of	consultation	as	a	continuous	dialogue,	the	consultors	
recognised	the	importance	of	the	issues	around	travel	and	transport	arising	in	public	groups	
convened	a	specific	discussion	on	the	issues.	This	event	took	place	on	the	4th	of	October	
2017	and	was	attended	by	52	people.		

The	discussions	mainly,	but	not	exclusively,	focused	around	public	transport	and	the	use	of	
taxis.	The	broad	themes	emerging	from	these	discussions	were:	

ACCESSIBILITY		

Discussion	focused	around	the	issues	faced	by	people	with	physical	disabilities	using	public	
transport	to	get	to	hospital	for	appointments	and	treatment.	

“…lady	in	a	wheelchair…took…4	hours	to	travel	by	bus	from	Whitburn	to	
Sunderland.		Not	all	the	busses	were	wheelchair	accessible	and	those	who	did	had	
no	space…either	being	used	by	another	person	or	by	someone	with	a	pram...”			

“…	how	is	a	wheelchair	user	expected	to	get	to	hospital	in	the	middle	of	the	night	–	
there	are	no	wheelchair	friendly	taxis	and	the	metro	is	not	wheelchair	friendly.		She	
has	a	family	and	is	concerned	that	if	her	daughter	is	rushed	to	hospital	in	an	
ambulance	she	is	unable	to	travel	with	her	as	the	wheelchair	won’t	fit.	

There	were	also	concerns	raised	around	the	provision	of	ambulance	transfers	for	people	
with	additional	needs.		

“…(he)	needed	2	people	to	take	him	to	hospital	for	an	appointment.		He	rang	NEAS	
and	was	told	there	would	be	two	people	to	take	him	but	not	to	bring	him	back	and	
because	of	this	he	missed	his	appointment…”	

EXISTING	AND	EXTRA	BUS	AND	METRO	PROVISION	

	There	was	a	major	issue	identified	in	the	lack	of	direct	bus	services	from	STDH	to	SRH,	
which	will	have	an	impact	on	ability	to	travel	by	public	transport.	

“…need	a	direct	bus	service,	the	direct	service	needs	to	be	reinstated.	The	bus	
service	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	goes	all	through	the	borough	and	is	not	
currently	going	to	Park	Lane.	A	bus	operator	needs	to	provide	the	service…”		

“…Want	to	go	direct	without	changing,	we	need	several	buses	on	a	borough	wide	
basis	–	not	just	one	bus	service,	that	will	take	too	long…”	

	“…need	a	direct	bus	service	from	Sunderland	to	South	Tyneside	hospital…”	

There	were	also	concerns	around	using	the	Metro	system	to	get	to	hospital.		

“Metro	system	is	very	unreliable	–	how	will	sick	people	cope?”	

“…concern	about	Metro	safety	at	stations…”	

Page 126



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

89	
	

There	was	a	genuine	desire	to	understand	the	role	of	the	operator	providing	public	
transport	and	the	extent	to	which	they	had	been	involved	in	the	process	so	far.			

“We	want	to	know	what	the	bus	companies	have	to	say…”	

Tempered	with	a	healthy	level	of	scepticism	around	the	issue	of	the	same	operators	being	
‘for	profit’	organisations:	

“…public	transport	operators	will	be	richer	but	residents	poorer.”	

Parents	also	felt	there	was	an	issue	for	them	in	terms	of	Paediatric	services	moving	to	
Sunderland	and	the	likelihood	of	high	volumes	travelling	at	the	same	time	on	public	
transport	without	the	capacity	to	deal	with	them.		

“…only	2	prams	on	a	bus	at	one	time…	wheelchair	priority	over	prams…access	to	
buses?”	

PRIVATE	TRANSPORT	(TAXIS)	

It	was	acknowledged	that	taxis	offered	the	most	flexible	means	of	getting	to	hospital	for	
those	without	their	own	car	or	access	to	other	means	of	transport.	It	was	also	
acknowledged	that	the		

“…people	can’t	afford	to	get	taxis...”	

“Taxi	fares	are	£11	a	day	and	£16	after	10pm...”	

This	was	particularly	difficult	for	people	with	low	incomes.		

People	who	are	unemployed	won’t	use	them	for	transfers.	

It	was	also	commented	on	that	while	there	is	existing	support	for	people	who	need	to	
use	taxis	this	is	a	limited	facility	which	could	be	useful	if	more	widely	available.		

The	taxi	card	facility	is	not	for	everyone.	

OUT	OF	HOURS?	

The	relocation	of	services	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	was	particularly	troubling	
when	considering	the	need	to	travel	at	night	for	those	lacking	their	own	transport.		

This	centred	around	general	concern	about	night	time	discharge	or	completion	of	treatment	
and	being	unable	to	return	to	their	own	home,	again	coupled	to	concerns	over	cost	of	other	
forms	of	transport.		

“Overnight	we	need	a	24-hour	patient	mini	bus	service	to	take	people	back	to	their	
home…”	

This	was	particularly	troubling	for	those	with	children	who	have	additional	needs	requiring	
care	in	the	night.		

“…how	do	you	get	a	child	who	is	disabled	from	one	place	to	another	overnight?”	

Page 127



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

90	
	

AMBULANCE	SERVICE	RESPONSES	

The	overall	comments	around	the	Ambulance	Service	focused	on	the	perceived	lack	of	
concrete	information	around	their	responses	to	the	proposals	and	the	difficulty	in	
making	any	informed	input	into	the	consultation.		

“…there	is	not	clear	evidence	re	NEAS	to	consult	properly…”	

	“Discussions	with	NEAS	have	been	taking	place	for	over	a	year	and	we	are	still	no	
further	forward.”	

It	was	also	noted	that	the	Path	to	Excellence	is	a	phased	process,	with	concern	raised	over	
the	effect	of	additional	change	on	NEAS	services.	The	worry	was	that	this	had	not	been	
accounted	for	in	planning	or	cost	saving	calculations.		

“…this	is	just	the	first	phase	–	what	will	happen	when	more	trusts	come	together	–	
what	will	the	overall	impact	on	NEAS	be	across	the	region…”	

Service	specific	issues	were	also	raised,	in	particular	the	ability	of	ambulances	to	respond	to	
Strokes	and	ensure	the	patient	is	treated	within	the	‘golden	hour’.		

“Stroke:	does	the	12-minute	transfer	time	include	the	time	you	wait	for	a	blue	light	
ambulance?”		

Passenger	Transport	Service	(PTS)	ambulances	were	also	seen	as	an	issue,	particularly	for	
those	reliant	on	them	and	needing	to	attend	appointments	at	short	notice.		

“…booking	PTS	ambulance	-	need	5	days’	notice…”	

PARKING	

The	first	and	most	common	comment	made	around	parking	was	the	cost,	seen	as	a	major	
barrier	to	access	for	patients,	family,	and	visitors.			

“Car	parking	fees	should	be	abolished	or	there	should	be	a	system	to	get	a	free	slot	
if	you	are	a	regular	visitor.”	

“Stop	parking	charges	for	all	staff	and	patients.”	

This	was	also	supported	by	several	suggestions	of	practical	solutions	to	the	issue,	mostly	
focused	on	aiding	staff	parking	to	help	families	and	visitors.		

Staff	to	use	multi-story	car	park	which	is	separate	to	patients	–	also	safer	as	they	
will	leave	through	a	separate	entrance…free	up	space	for	patient	parking.	

	COST	(PARTICULARLY	FOR	THOSE	ON	LOW	INCOMES)	

The	most	notable	concern	in	this	area	was	the	affordability	of	transport	for	those	on	low	
incomes,	particularly	those	living	in	areas	of	deprivation.	

“…high	unemployment/poverty	in	South	Tyneside	–	people	can’t	afford	to	get	
taxis…”	

Page 128



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

91	
	

Furthermore,	the	proposed	move	to	Sunderland	of	services	from	South	Tyneside	was	felt	to	
add	worries	about	the	cost	of	transport	in	already	difficult	time.	A	specific	example	was	
given	in	relation	to	Stroke	services.		

“…how	does	someone	get	to	hospital	to	visit	their	loved	ones	when	they	are	dying	
in	the	middle	of	the	night?		There	is	no	public	transport	and	taxis	are	expensive…”	

This	issue	was	also	discussed	in	relation	to	Maternity	services.		

“…women	can’t	afford	to	go	home	currently	from	maternity	at	South	Tyneside…”	

This	is	linked	to	the	discussions	around	support	for	transport	needs	and	the	need	to	
overcome	any	attached	stigma	to	ensure	those	who	need	it	most	are	able	to	access	help	
with	transport.	

“…parents	don’t	apply	for	free	school	meals	so	how	will	they	apply	for	transport	
help...”	

This	was	extended	to	cover	all	patient	travel	needs.		

Patient	transport	should	not	be	means	tested,	but	be	available	to	those	who	
genuinely	need	it.	

ADDITIONAL	BURDENS	ON	RELATIVES	AND	FRIENDS	

The	most	significant	issue	was	in	relation	to	immediate	family,	partners	and	the	additional	
pressure	travelling	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	will	put	on	them.		

“…neighbour’s	husband…suffered	a	stroke	and	had	been	taken	to	Sunderland	
hospital	–	where	he	later	died.		She	spent	all	day	travelling	back	and	forward	to	
Sunderland	from	South	Shields	to	visit	her	husband	and	then	come	back	to	see	to	
her	dog.		This	took	her	all	day	and	cost	her	a	fortune.		She	would	have	had	a	much	
better	quality	of	life	if	her	husband	had	been	in	South	Tyneside	and	someone	could	
have	looked	after	her	dog,	taking	the	pressure	off	her...”	

This	was	also	extended	to	include	the	wider	family,	the	need	to	visit	and	the	potential	
isolation	of	patients	if	this	is	not	possible.	

“…how	will	anyone	without	a	car	(family/visitors)	get	back	to	South	Shields	from	
Sunderland…”	

The	group	recognised	this	burden	to	include	both	time	and	money,	resources	in	very	short	
supply	for	many	people.		

“…Cleadon	Park	to	Sunderland	bus	station	£3	and	takes	78	minutes…”	

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT	ANALYSIS	CONCERNS	

There	was	some	scepticism	of	the	validity	of	the	field	testing	used	in	the	transport	
impact	assessment	and	the	assumptions	contained	around	travel	times.	

Is	the	field	testing	late	at	night/overnight?		

Page 129



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

92	
	

“(I)	dispute	20-minute	time	to	SRH	from	South	Shields.		There	are	lots	of	bus	
changes	and	this	is	particularly	difficult	for	mums	with	kids.	Whiteleas	takes	3	
buses,	Hebburn	2/3	buses	–	therefore,	not	20	minutes	with	lots	of	bus	
connections…”	

In	some	cases,	people	involved	in	the	qualitative	discussions	held	the	perception	that	
evidence	was	not	available	on	the	travel	and	transport	issues	during	the	consultation	
period,	despite	its	publication	and	widespread	availability.		Consequently,	some	
respondents	felt	meant	decisions	were	being	made	without	having	the	facts	available.		

Evidence	will	appear	later,	and	public	won’t	get	a	chance	to	have	a	say	–	will	the	
consultation	be	extended?	

ALTERNATIVE	SOLUTIONS	

The	group	did	offer	several	practical	suggestions	to	address	the	travel	issues,	which	were:	

Provision	of	travel	advice	at	both	hospitals	to	support	travellers		

“…travel	plan	coordinators	at	SRH	and	STDH…”	

The	adoption	of	more	community	focused,	not-for-profit	solutions	to	transport	issues.		

“…community	transport/subsidised	shuttle	bus…”	

The	use	of	technology	as	an	alternative	to	travelling	such	as	telemedicine:	

“Stroke	consultants	do	video	inks	in	SRH	so	why	can’t	we	do	that	in	STDH?”	

	

10.3 Staff	Q&A	events	
Consultation	groups	were	held	to	provide	the	staff	in	the	services	impacted	by	the	options	
put	forward	in	the	Path	to	Excellence	consultation	with	the	opportunity	to	contribute	to	the	
consultation	process.	In	total	twelve	clinician	led	briefing	sessions	were	conducted	in	either	
South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	(STDH)	Lecture	Theatre	of	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	(SRH)	
Lecture	Theatre.		

These	briefing	sessions	were	attended	by	174	members	of	staff	from	the	three	services	the	
subject	of	Phase	1	consultations.	The	details	of	these	sessions	are	shown	below.		

Service	 Date	and	Venue	 Staff	Attending	

Stroke	Services	 26th	September	2017,	STDH	
29	September	2017,	STDH		
20	September	2017,	SRH	
20	September	2017,		

13	
8	
7	
19	

Maternity	and	Gynaecology	

Services	

21	September	2017,	STDH	
22	September	2107,	STDH	
8	September	2017,	SRH	

31	
21	
10	

Page 130



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

93	
	

20	September	2017,	SRH	 9	
Paediatrics	Services	 27	September	2017,	STDH	

3	October	2017,	STDH	
8	September	2017,	SRH	
28	September	2017,	SRH	

13	
26	
10	
7	

TOTAL	 174	

	

The	overall	sentiment	of	the	staff	groups,	irrespective	of	the	service	focus	of	the	discussion,	
was	reflected	in	the	following	points:	

• Concern/disapproval	that	as	a	group	they	had	not	been	involved	in	the	pre-consultation	
stages	of	this	exercise.	The	feeling	was	their	expertise	and	experience	had	been	
overlooked	and	where	they	had	

• A	real	uncertainty	over	the	security	of	jobs	and	anxiety	over	an	unknown,	not	fully	
described,	new	job	role	with	undetermined	risk	and	protections.		

• There	is	a	reliance	on	a	responsive	ambulance	service,	staff	feel	this	has	not	been	
confirmed	which	makes	meaningful	discussion	difficult,	if	not	impossible.		

Recent	experience	of	a	request	for	an	8-minute	ambulance	transfer	which	took	45	
minutes.	

NEAS	response	and	risk	assessment	hasn’t	been	shared	–	asking	for	comment	with	
the	full	facts	

	

10.3.1 Stroke	Services	

CONSULTATION	PROCESS	AND	THE	OPTIONS	

There	was	a	general	concern	that	the	documentation	and	wording	of	the	options	were	
heavily	leading	the	decisions.	

All	the	documentation	seems	to	support	Option1	–	are	staff	being	told	this	is	the	
only	option	

OPERATIONAL	REALITY?	

While	there	was	a	positive	recognition	of	the	fact	that	other	realities	than	individual	fault	
are	drivers	for	these	changes,	including	long	term	recruitment	difficulties.	However,	there	
were	concerns	that	the	options	seemed	to	have	been	developed	in	isolation,	without	staff	
consultation	and	involvement	in	the	early	stages.		

None	of	the	senior	therapy	staff	were	involved	in	the	early	stages	of	preparing	the	
consultation	

Can	staff	put	forward	their	own	options?	

Page 131



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

94	
	

COSTS	

It	is	not	clear	where	the	financial	models	come	from,	and	until	costs	are	understood	it	is	
difficult	to	become	fully	engaged.		

CAPACITY	AT	SUNDERLAND	

There	was	a	concern	over	the	overall	capacity	of	the	facilities	and	staff	at	Sunderland	to	
cope	with	the	increased	demand.	

REHAB/REABLEMENT		

Staff	felt	that	while	the	service	would	benefit	from	the	proposals,	the	major	omission	was	
consideration	of	the	discharge	support	and	service	offers.	

“Care	packages	are	influencing	length	of	stay,	dependent	on	borough…”	

SAFE	STAFFING	

Once	the	changes	are	implemented	and	the	temporary	measures	lifted	will	the	need	to	
meet	NICE	safe	staffing	levels	have	a	negative	impact	on	savings	or	has	this	been	
considered?	

PRACTICAL	ISSUES	

There	were	a	number	of	practical	issues	not	fully	explained	or	explored	in	the	options	such	
as:	

“if	we	get	a	suspected	stroke	via	ambulance	in	ED	but	the	diagnosis	is	not	stroke	
would	the	patient	be	repatriated	back	to	South	Tyneside?”	

“Would	patients	from	South	Tyneside	have	to	move	to	STDH	even	if	they	chose	not	
to?	

	

10.3.2 Children	and	Young	People’s	healthcare	Services		

STAFF	CONSULTATION	

Some	staff	feel	their	opinions	are	neither	listened	to	nor	valued	and	that	a	third	option	put	
forward	for	Paediatric	A&E	was	not	considered.	More	importantly,	they	feel	that	the	reason	
for	this	was	not	communicated	to	them.	

IDENTITY	

The	general	feeling	among	staff	was	that	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	was	being	
systematically	downgraded	and	with	this	comes	a	loss	of	identity	as	a	hospital.	

TRANSPORT	

The	move	to	Sunderland	was	of	great	concern,	for	staff	who	will	be	required	to	travel	and	
more	importantly	for	the	residents	of	South	Tyneside.	Many	cannot	afford	to	travel	to	
Sunderland	and	this	was	felt	to	be	likely	to	have	a	long-term	impact	on	the	health	of	local	
children	where	parents	will	delay	care	for	financial	reasons.		

Page 132



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

95	
	

ADULT	A&E?	

Staff	felt	strongly	that	children	and	young	people	should	not	have	to	be	treated	in	adult	A&E	
between	8pm	and	8am,	citing	concerns	over	drunkenness,	violence,	and	aggression.	They	
were	particularly	concerned	over	existing	A&E	staff	being	trained	in	paediatric	medicine	
when	the	skills	already	exist	in	them.	

MINOR	ISSUES	

It	was	not	clear	what	the	pathway	was	for	children	presenting	with	minor	health	conditions,	
particularly	out	of	hours.	

CONSULTANT	REVIEW	

The	need	for	consultant	review	and	how	this	would	be	handled	is	not	clearly	explained	in	
the	options,	leading	to	concerns	over	patient	safety.	

EVIDENCE	BASE	AND	24-HOUR	DEMAND	

The	overall	evidence	base	to	support	the	options	was	queried	and	the	decision	to	close	from	
8pm	to	8am.		8pm-12pm	was	highlighted	by	a	number	of	respondents	to	be	the	
departments	busiest	time.	

CAPACITY	

Overall,	along	with	other	services,	staff	have	concerns	over	the	ability	(capacity)	of	SRH	to	
cope	with	the	increased	demand.		

	

10.3.3 Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services		

THE	IMPACT	ON	COMMUNITY	TEAMS	

In	terms	of	the	impact	of	the	options	on	community	teams,	staff	feel	that	this	does	not	
appear	to	have	been	thought	through	and	that	Option	1	is	likely	to	see	an	increase	in	home	
births	and	increased	risk	for	high	risk	women.	

MIDWIFE	LED	UNITS	(MLU)	

There	was	a	general	concern	over	recent	history	of	MLU	closures	across	the	region,	coupled	
with	concerns	over	no	specialist	Doctors	being	at	STDH		

Low	risk	is	a	retrospective	diagnosis.	You	can’t	foresee	complications.		

Evidence	for	locating	MLU	in	South	Tyneside	

“You	cannot	compare	it	to	an	affluent	area…we	have	higher	levels	of	deprivation	
and	morbidity”	

	“…Option	1	is	nonsense	and	just	to	make	Joe	public	reassured	that	they	have	a	
unit.	Why	would	we	put	our	staff	through	that	when	we	know	they	don’t	work…”	

“Many	women	will	come	to	a	high-risk	unit	because	they	think	they’ll	get	better	
care…”	

However,	some	midwives	supported	the	MLU	

Page 133



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

96	
	

“If	there	is	a	MLU	at	STDH,	I	would	want	it	to	be	successful,	however	Im	aware	they	
are	under	pressure.	I	support	a	MLU,	but	it	will	be	important	to	have	excellent	
transport.”	

ROLE	OF	STAFF	

Pre-consultation	business	case,	not	specific	about	integration	of	community	teams	and	the	
role	of	those	who	don’t	drive	in	this	integration	

“…we	need	to	get	away	from	seeing	ourselves	as	two	separate	units	and	have	staff	
working	across	both	sites…”	

TRAVEL	IMPACT		

Query	evidence	base	and	concerns	over	‘facts’	cited	in	the	travel	impact	assessment:	

“…need	to	be	clear	about	transfer	times	and	we	don’t	have	that	detail	yet	from	
NEAS...”	

STAFF	

There	is	a	general	level	of	disquiet	about	the	staffing	implications	of	the	proposals:	

“…most	midwives	are	wondering	about	their	jobs.	We	need	to	know	how	many	
midwives	will	be	needed…”	

“…some…are	terrified	of	working	in	a	free	standing	MLU	–	will	midwives	be	given	a	
choice	of	where	they	work?	

11 Individual	Submissions		

11.1 Introduction		
To	ensure	as	fair	an	opportunity	as	possible	was	given	for	all	to	provide	a	contribution	to	the	
Phase	1	Pathway	to	Excellence	consultation	direct	communications	were	accepted	and	
actively	encouraged.		In	total	57	submissions	to	the	consultation	were	received	from	the	
following:	

• Health	Scrutiny	and	HealthWatch	organisations;	
• NHS	Organisations;	
• VCS	Organisations	–	including	national	organisations;	
• Patients	and	public;	
• NHS	staff	groups	including	governors;	
• Trade	unions	and	staff	groups	
• Elected	representatives,	Members	of	parliament	and	political	parties.		

The	detailed	submissions	were	collected	centrally	by	NECS	during	the	consultation	period	
and	are	available	to	consider	in	the	ongoing	decision-making	process.	The	summary	of	these	
responses,	and	broad	emerging	themes	are	discussed	in	turn	in	the	remainder	of	this	
section.		

Page 134



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

97	
	

11.2 Health	Scrutiny	and	Healthwatch	organisations	
Submissions	were	received	from:	

• HealthWatch	South	Tyneside	
• HealthWatch	Sunderland		
• South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	JHOSC	
• South	Tyneside	Council	
• Sunderland	Health	and	Wellbeing	Board	
• Durham	County	Council	

11.2.1 HealthWatch		

CONSULTATION	PROCESS	

The	level	of	involvement	by	the	programme	team	and	the	appointment	of	an	independent	
assessor	(the	Consultation	Institute)	was	welcomed,	but	there	were	criticisms	of	the	
process,	namely:	

• Easy	Read	versions	being	available	late	(Note:	Easy	Read	versions	were	made	available	in	
September)			

• Comment	that	they	considered	uptake	at	consultation	events	to	be	low	despite	
proactive	publicity	

• The	perception	that	minority	groups	were	involved	late,	and	a	request	for	a	detailed	
breakdown	of	representation	and	attendance;	

OPTIONS	

There	was	support	for	the	options,	with	the	caveat	that	travel,	and	access	were	major	issues	
in	all.		

DOWNGRADING	SOUTH	TYNESIDE	HOSPITAL	

There	is	concern	STDH	is	being	downgraded	which	causes	concerns	for	the	future.		

TRAVEL	AND	TRANSPORT	

There	are	concerns	over	the	impact	of	the	travel	times	and	availability	of	public	transport.	
There	are	also	concerns	over	the	ability	of	NEAS	to	support	the	proposed	options.	

11.2.2 Health	Scrutiny	

Responses	from	the	scrutiny	function	of	the	local	authorities	gave	support	for	the	
consultation	process,	with	specific	concerns	around:	

• The	impact	on	local	authority	social	care	budgets	through	frequent	NHS	changes	
• Assurances	that	dialogue	is	happening	between	the	other	STP	footprints	in	the	region	
• Consideration	of	the	need	to	retain	a	SCBU	at	South	Tyneside	
• Enhancement	of	rehabilitation	services	
• Assurances	from	NEAS	on	their	capacity	to	support	these	changes	
• Consideration	of	the	availability	of	specialist	paediatric	nurses	out	of	hours	at	STDH	

Page 135



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

98	
	

• Transport	and	travel	issues	being	addressed	
• Service	safety	is	paramount	
• The	ability	of	SRH	to	cope	with	increased	demand	is	considered	
• The	future	of	STDH	is	considered	in	this	consultation	and	beyond,	including	MLU	viability	
• Staffing	issues	and	delivery	models	are	fully	developed	
• A	review	of	the	consultation	process	and	logistics	is	conducted	

All	have	qualified	their	interim	position	with	a	request	for	a	further	presentation	of	the	final	
results	of	the	consultation	before	any	decision	is	made.		

11.3 NHS	Organisations	
Submissions	were	received	from	the	following	NHS	organisations	–	including	clinical	
networks	and	local	NHS	commissioner	or	provider	organisations:	

• Child	Health	Network,	NHS	England		
• City	Hospitals	Sunderland	NHS	Foundation	Trust	
• Gateshead	Health	NHS	Foundation	Trust	
• Maternity	Clinical	Advisory	Group	-	NHSE	
• Newcastle	Gateshead	CCG	
• Newcastle	upon	Tyne	Hospitals	NHS	Foundation	Trust		
• North	of	England	Clinical	Networks	
• Northern	Neonatal	Transport	Service	(NNeTS)	
• Northumberland	CCG	
• Screening	and	Immunisation	-	NHSE	
• South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust		
• NTWD	LMS	Board			
• North	East	Ambulance	Service	(NEAS)	

All	NHS	organisations	recognise	the	clinical	and	workforce	issues	driving	the	changes	and	
support	the	principles	and	recognise	the	safety	of	the	options,	with	specific	concerns	
around:	
• Ambulance	Response	Times;	and		
• The	sustainability	of	MLUs	and	a	need	to	learn	from	elsewhere.		

Both	NEAS	and	NNeTS	have	provided	detailed	submissions	on	their	capacity	and	capability	
to	meet	the	changes	in	the	Options	being	consulted	on.	This	will	be	considered	in	decision-
making.		

11.4 Voluntary	and	Community	Sector	(VCS)/Third	Sector	Organisations	–	Including	

National	Organisations	

Responses	to	the	consultation	were	submitted	directly	from	the	following	organisations	
from	the	community	and	voluntary	sector,	either	locally	or	nationally,	with	an	interest	in	the	
process.	Submissions	were	received	from:	

Page 136



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

99	
	

• Alzheimer’s	Society		
• Hearing	Loss	UK		
• South	Tyneside	TEN	young	carers		
• Stroke	Association	
• Young	Parents	Pathway	-	Places	for	People	Living+	

The	observations	and	requests	related	to	the	Path	to	Excellence	Phase	1	consultation	were:	

• The	incorporation	of	dementia	assessment	in	new	Stroke	care	services;	
• Travel	and	transport	impacts	in	both	cost	and	time	in	all	service	proposals	

o The	impact	on	young	carers		
o The	impact	on	young	people	and	families		

• Concerns	over	the	proposed	Stroke	services	
o Transport	for	carers	(public	transport	between	sites	is	poor).	
o Access	to	carer	support	services	in	South	Tyneside	(i.e.	mechanism	put	in	

place	to	familiarise	Sunderland	staff	with	South	Tyneside	services).	
o Ensuring	effective	discharge	planning	is	in	place	to	support	people	going	back	

home	in	South	Tyneside.	
o Need	to	ensure	good	communication	between	South	Tyneside	and	

Sunderland	Community	Stroke	Team	services.	
• Ensuring	safety	and	safeguarding	in	the	proposed	changes	

11.5 Patients	and	Public	
A	total	of	fourteen	responses	to	the	consultation	were	received	from	patients	and	members	
of	the	public.	These	are	presented	as	broad	themes,	recognising	the	commonality	in	the	
discussions.		

11.5.1 Detailed	Technical	Responses	

Submissions	included	very	detailed	and	comprehensive	analysis	of	the	proposals,	supported	
by	petitions	opposing	the	options	proposed	for	service	reorganisation	on	the	grounds	they	
represent	a	fundamental	downgrading	of	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	and	the	local	
community.	

The	petition	supporting	this	response	attracted	30,692	signatures.	

These	responses	have	been	received	directly	and	are	being	considered	by	the	CCG.			

11.5.2 Summary	of	Key	Themes	

TRANSPORT	

The	majority	of	submissions	focused	on	the	transport	difficulties	in	making	the	journey	from	
South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland.	The	two	main	issues	were	cost	for	those	who	could	least	
afford	it	and	the	lack	of	any	direct	connection	by	public	transport.	

Page 137



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

100	
	

These	submissions	contained	various	suggestions	for	improving	this	situation	from	
reinstating	bus	services	to	an	NHS	shuttle	bus	between	the	two	sites.			

WHY	SUNDERLAND?	

A	small	number	focused	on	the	suggestion	that	instead	of	moving	services	to	Sunderland,	
instead	they	should	move	to	South	Tyneside.		

AMBULANCE	RESPONSE	TIMES	

Concerns	were	raised	over	the	increased	ambulance	transfer	times	to	Sunderland	for	South	
Tyneside	residents	and	the	worry	over	a	detrimental	impact	this	will	have	on	care.	

TRUST		

	A	small	number	of	submissions	focussed	on	a	lack	of	trust	in	the	services	provided	by	South	
Tyneside	District	Hospital,	offering	support	for	the	move	to	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital.		

COMMUNITY	AND	SOCIAL	CARE	

There	was	some	criticism	of	the	consideration	of	hospital	care	without	considering	changes	
in	community	care	and	rehabilitation	along	with	the	availability	and	cost	of	social	care.	

SHIFTING	SERVICES	TO	OTHER	AREAS	

A	feeling	was	expressed	that	for	communities	in	South	Tyneside,	that	moving	services	to	
Sunderland	would	instead	see	people	seeking	care	at	Gateshead	or	Newcastle,	which	have	
better	transport	links.		

11.6 NHS	Governors	and	Staff	
Submissions	were	received	from	

• Joanne	Proffitt,	Community	Stroke	Team,	South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	
• Fiona	Kerr	South,	Tyneside	Paediatric	ED	
• Melanie	Soutar,	Matrix	Young	People's	Service	
• Alan	Roulston,	Professor	Emeritus	in	Disability	and	Long-Term	Conditions.	Former	Co-

Chair	of	NIHR	Research	for	Patient	Benefit	(North	East)	
• Graeme	Howe	 South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	Governor	

The	main	concern	of	this	group	was	the	impact	of	changes	to	travel	and	transport	in	the	
proposals	which	will	have	a	very	negative	impact	on	services	and	safety	if	no	mitigation	is	
taken.	

11.7 Trade	unions	and	staff	group	representatives	
Submissions	were	received	for	consideration	in	the	consultation	from:	

• Royal	College	of	Midwives		
• South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	Delivery	Suite	Manager		
• Sunderland	Trades	Union	Council	
• Unison	

Page 138



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

101	
	

• Unite	
• Gateshead	and	South	Tyneside	Local	Medical	Committee	

The	RCM	wholly	endorsed	Option	1	as	being	“…in	keeping	with	the	latest	evidence-based	
guidelines	and	maternity	policy;	Option	2	contravenes	these	and	would	be	a	disservice	to	the	
women	and	families	of	the	region…”	However,	in	summary,	whilst	there	is	support	from	the	
RCM,	other	trade	union	and	staff	group	representatives	commonly	oppose	the	changes	on:	
• Workforce	issues;	
• Safety	grounds;	
• Lack	of	meaningful	engagement	of	staff	in	the	consultation	process;	
• Capacity	issues	at	Sunderland;	
• The	long-term	impact	on	South	Tyneside.	

These	are	presented	as	well	thought	out	and	reasoned	arguments	that	will	be	considered	in	
the	final	decision-making	process		

11.8 Elected	representatives,	Members	of	parliament	and	political	parties.		

Submissions	were	received	from:	
	
• Millfield	Branch	Labour	Party	
• South	Shields	Constituency	Labour	Party	
• South	Tyneside	Labour	Group	
• Sunderland	Central	Constituency	Labour	Party		
• Stephen	Hepburn	MP	Jarrow	Constituency		
• Emma	Lewell-Buck	South	Shields	MP	
• South	Tyneside	Green	Party	
	
Overall	the	proposals	were	opposed	by	MPs	who	cited	the	interests	of	their	constituents	as	
being	seriously	disadvantaged	by	these	proposals,	both	as	patients	and	staff.	
	
The	constituency	parties	also	expressed	strong	opposition	but	were	supportive	of	the	work	
of	local	trade	unions	and	community	activists	to	represent	their	views.		 	

Page 139



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

102	
	

12 Summary	of	Findings	

Consideration	of	the	analysis	shows	that:	

1. There	is	a	clear	consensus	on	preferred	options	in	quantitative	feedback	where	a	
choice	has	been	made,	but	less	so	in	the	qualitative	discussions;	and	

2. There	are	a	range	of	overall	concerns	expressed	about	the	options	available	by	
respondents	in	qualitative	discussions.		

Each	of	these	areas	is	discussed	in	turn	below.		

Overall	Concerns	

Consideration	of	the	results	of	the	consultation	tell	us	that	there	are	specific	concerns	over	
the	following	areas:	

• There	are	specific	concerns	that	the	options	all	result	in	a	downgrading	of	services	and	
facilities	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital.	Linked	to	this	are	concerns	over	the	estates,	
facilities	and	staff	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	being	able	to	cope	with	the	increased	
volume	of	patients	and	visitors.		

• The	issues	of	travel	and	transport	from	South	Tyneside	to	Sunderland	for	residents	of	
the	former	borough	are	of	major	concern	in	term	of	additional	driving	time	for	those	
with	cars	and	the	significant	burdens	on	relying	on	public	transport	with	no	direct	links	
for	those	without.	

• There	is	concern	that	equalities,	special	interest	groups	and	those	living	in	deprived	
circumstances	will	be	significantly	disadvantaged	by	the	proposals	in	terms	of	access	and	
financial	costs;	

• The	additional	travel	burdens	for	patients,	carers	and	visitors	are	felt	to	have	a	
potentially	detrimental	impact	on	their	health	and	wellbeing;	

• The	ability	of	Ambulance	Services	to	provide	safe	and	timely	transfer	services	for	South	
Tyneside	residents	travelling	to	Sunderland	in	urgent	or	emergency	circumstances	was	
questioned.	Specifically,	meeting	the	golden	hour	treatment	for	stroke	victims,	
situations	where	labour	deteriorates	and	children	and	young	people	needing	A&E	
services	–	either	under	a	nurse	led	service	or	‘out	of	hours.’.	

Preferred	Option	Stroke	Services		

• The	quantitative	methodologies	reporting	on	preferences	for	the	options	indicate	a	
clear	preference	for	Option	1	in	most	of	the	Reponses.					

• In	qualitative	discussion	in	the	minority	of	cases	where	the	groups	were	able	to	agree	
Option	1	was	preferred	for	stroke	services,	mainly	based	on	the	cost	saving	element.			

All	groups	defended	the	current	situation	and	felt	that	provision	of	hyperacute	and	
acute	services	at	SRH	and	STDH	were	the	only	equitable	options,	perhaps	better	defined	
as	status	quo	plus.		

	

Page 140



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5th	December	2017	

103	
	

Preferred	Option	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services		

• In	most	of	the	quantitative	methodologies	there	is	a	preference	for	Option	1.		

• In	qualitative	discussion	there	was	no	clear	preference	expressed	with	the	general	
feeling	being	that	the	ideal	solution	would	be	to	provide	the	same	level	of	staff	and	
services	in	both	Sunderland	and	South	Tyneside.	Where	a	preference	for	an	option	was	

expressed	this	was	for	Option	1.		

Preferred	Option	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services		

• In	the	quantitative	methods,	for	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services,	
Option	1	is	the	preferred	option	in	most	cases.			

• In	qualitative	discussion	the	preferred	option	where	consensus	was	reached	was	for	
Option	1	on	the	basis	that	there	would	at	least	be	Doctors	at	South	Tyneside	District	
Hospital	for	twelve	hours	a	day.	

• 	However,	this,	and	in	particular,	the	8am-8pm	service	proposal,	was	felt	to	be	a	
compromise	and	ultimately	led	to	downgrading	of	service	at	South	Tyneside.		

	

Alternative	Solutions		

In	addition	to	the	wealth	of	feedback	from	all	methods,	several	practical	suggestions	to	
address	the	travel	issues	were	suggested:	

• Provision	of	travel	advice	at	both	hospitals	to	support	travellers		
• The	adoption	of	more	community	focused,	not-for-profit	solutions	to	transport	issues	

(shuttle	buses.)	
• The	use	of	technology	as	an	alternative	to	travelling	such	as	telemedicine:	

In	addition,	as	an	alternative	to	the	options	considered,	it	was	suggested,	as	a	series	of	
undefined	comments,	that	the	inclusion	of	‘focusing	main	service	provision	and	developing	a	
centre	of	excellence	in	South	Tyneside’	as	an	additional	option.		

Page 141



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5
th

	December	2017	

104	

	

13 Appendix	One:	Detailed	Consultation	Options	for	All	Services	

OPTION	 OPTION	DETAIL	 IMPACT	

Stroke	Services	

Stroke	Option	1:		

	

• Combine	all	hyperacute	and	acute	stroke	care	

at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

• Patients	from	both	South	Tyneside	and	

Sunderland	will	have	their	continuing	hospital	

based	rehabilitation	at	Sunderland	Royal	

Hospital	before	being	discharged	to	their	local	

community	stroke	teams	who	will	provide	any	

further	rehabilitation	and	support	locally	

	

• This	option	would	deliver	the	greatest	clinical	improvements	

• It	would	fund	more	therapy	staff	to	improve	recovery	

• It	would	be	a	more	appealing	working	arrangement	to	help	

recruit	medical	staff	

• Local	clinics	for	people	who	have	a	mini	stroke	(TIA)	would	be	at	

both	hospital	sites	

• Visitors	of	240-300	South	Tyneside	patients	each	year	(less	than	

1%	of	the	population)	will	experience	additional	travel	

• £510,000	savings	would	be	possible	

This	option	is	preferred	by	the	clinical	teams.	

Stroke	Option	2:		 • Combine	all	hyperacute	and	acute	stroke	care	

at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

• After	seven	days,	patients	who	live	in	South	

Tyneside	can	be	moved	to	South	Tyneside	

• District	Hospital	for	continuing	in	hospital	

rehabilitation	before	being	discharged	to	their	

local	community	stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	

support	locally	

• Sunderland	patients	will	continue	to	receive	

their	stroke	rehabilitation	care	at	Sunderland	

Royal	Hospital	before	being	discharged	to	their	

• Working	arrangements	would	be	less	appealing	to	staff	

• Would	still	present	difficulties	in	ensuring	adequate	doctor	cover	

• Mini	stroke	or	transient	ischaemic	attack	(TIA)	clinics	would	be	

available	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	as	there	would	not	be	

enough	medical	staff	to	provide	clinics	at	both	hospitals	

• Visitors	of	240-300	South	Tyneside	patients	will	experience	

additional	travel	for	seven	days	

• No	savings	would	be	made	to	invest	in	more	clinical	

improvements	

• This	would	require	an	additional	investment	of	£431,000	

This	option	is	not	preferred	by	the	clinical	teams	

P
age 142



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5
th

	December	2017	

105	

	

local	community	stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	

support	locally	

Stroke	Option	3:		 • Combine	all	hyperacute	stroke	care	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

• After	three	days,	patients	who	live	in	South	

Tyneside	can	be	moved	to	South	Tyneside	

District	Hospital	for	their	acute	stroke	care	and	

continuing	in	hospital	rehabilitation	before	

being	discharged	to	their	local	community	

stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	support	locally	

• Sunderland	patients	will	continue	to	receive	

their	acute	stroke	care	and	in	hospital	

rehabilitation	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	

Hospital	before	being	discharged	to	their	local	

community	stroke	rehabilitation	team	for	

support	locally	

Working	arrangements	would	be	less	appealing	to	staff	

• Would	still	present	difficulties	in	ensuring	adequate	doctor	cover	

• Mini	stroke	or	transient	ischaemic	attack	(TIA)	clinics	would	be	

available	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	as	there	would	not	be	

enough	medical	staff	to	provide	clinics	at	both	hospitals	

• Visitors	of	240-300	South	Tyneside	patients	will	experience	

additional	travel	for	seven	days	

• No	savings	would	be	made	to	invest	in	more	clinical	

improvements	

• This	would	require	an	additional	investment	of	£431,000	

This	option	is	not	preferred	by	the	clinical	teams	

Maternity	(Obstetrics)	and	Women’s	Healthcare	(Gynaecology)	Services	

Obstetrics	and	

Gynaecology	

Option	1	

• Retaining	a	consultant-led	maternity	unit	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	continuing	to	

provide	alongside	midwifery-led	care	for	low	

risk	births	

• Developing	a	free-standing	midwifery-led	unit	

at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	for	low	risk	

births	

• Women	with	a	low	risk	pregnancy	would	have	four	birthing	

choices	(home	birth,	freestanding	midwifery-led	unit	(MLU),	

alongside	midwifery-led	care	and	consultant-led	unit)	

• All	women	with	higher-risk	pregnancies	would	give	birth	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		

• Approximately	320	women	from	South	Tyneside	would	give	birth	

at	the	freestanding	MLU	at	South	Tyneside	each	year	

P
age 143



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5
th

	December	2017	

106	

	

• The	provision	of	community	midwifery	care,	

including	all	community	antenatal	and	

postnatal	care	will	remain	unchanged	

• Providing	inpatient	gynaecology	surgery	from	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	while	continuing	to	

provide	day-case	operations	and	outpatients	

consultations	at	both	South	Tyneside	District	

and	Sunderland	Royal	Hospitals	

• Single	special	care	baby	unit	at	Sunderland	

Royal	Hospital	

• Approximately	460	women	from	South	Tyneside	with	high-risk	

pregnancies	would	give	birth	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital.	A	

further	520	may	choose	to	give	birth	at	Gateshead	or	Newcastle	

• £1.13	million	savings	would	be	achieved.	

	

Obstetrics	and	

Gynaecology	

Option	2	

• Retaining	a	consultant-led	maternity	unit	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	continuing	to	

provide	alongside	midwifery-led	care	for	low	

risk	births	

• The	provision	of	community	midwifery	care,	

including	all	community	antenatal	and	

postnatal	care	will	remain	unchanged	

• Providing	inpatient	gynaecology	surgery	from	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	while	continuing	to	

provide	day-case	operations	and	outpatients	

consultations	at	both	South	Tyneside	District	

and	Sunderland	Royal	Hospitals	

• Single	special	care	baby	unit	at	Sunderland	

Royal	Hospital	

• Women	with	a	low	risk	pregnancy	would	have	three	birthing	

choices	(home	birth,	alongside	midwifery-led	care	and	

consultant-led	unit)	

• There	would	be	no	provision	to	give	birth	in	South	Tyneside	

District	Hospital,	home	birth	would	remain	a	choice	for	low	risk	

women	in	South	Tyneside	

• All	women	with	higher-risk	pregnancies	would	give	birth	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		

• Around	780	South	Tyneside	women	would	give	birth	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	520	may	choose	to	give	birth	at	

Gateshead	or	Newcastle	each	year	

• There	would	be	no	provision	to	give	birth	in	South	Tyneside	

District	Hospital,	home	births	would	still	be	possible	

P
age 144



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5
th

	December	2017	

107	

	

• An	investment	of	around	£300,000	would	be	needed	to	increase	

space	

• £1.16million	savings	would	be	achieved	

Obstetrics	and	

Gynaecology	

Option	1	&	2	

N/A	 • Women	from	Sunderland	and	parts	of	County	Durham	could	

choose	to	continue	to	give	birth	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

• Antenatal	and	out	of	hospital	postnatal	care	would	take	place	

locally	

• Dating	scans	and	consultation	appointments	would	be	available	

at	both	hospitals	

• A	single	special	care	baby	unit	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

would	continue	to	serve	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	

communities	

• All	gynaecology	care	requiring	an	overnight	stay	would	take	

place	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

• Around	400	women	from	South	Tyneside	would	receive	

gynaecology	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	with	

approximately	200	women	receiving	care	at	Gateshead	or	

Newcastle	

• Routine	day	case	gynaecology	surgery	would	be	available	at	both	

hospitals	

• Visitors	from	South	Tyneside	would	experience	additional	travel	

to	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	or	Gateshead.	

There	is	no	clinically	preferred	option	P
age 145



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5
th

	December	2017	

108	

	

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	

Children	and	

Young	People’s	

Healthcare	

Services	Option	1	

• Provision	of	a	seven-day,	12	hour	(8am	to	

8pm)	paediatric	emergency	department	and	

children’s	short	stay	assessment	unit	at	South	

Tyneside	District	Hospital	with	24-hour,	seven	

days	a	week	paediatric	emergency	department	

at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		

• Eight	out	of	ten	patients	from	South	Tyneside	would	continue	to	

be	treated	locally	

• Approximately	3,000	patients	from	South	Tyneside	who	need	

urgent	and	emergency	care	overnight	would	be	treated	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	each	year,	with	approximately	400	

treated	at	Gateshead	or	Newcastle	

• It	would	be	possible	to	provide	more	specialised	children’s	

outpatients	clinics	in	South	Tyneside	

• Would	cost	approximately	£370,000		

Children	and	

Young	People’s	

Healthcare	

Services	Option	2	

• Development	of	a	nurse-led	paediatric	minor	

injury	or	illness	service	between	8am	and	8pm	

at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	with	a	24	

hour,	seven	days	a	week	paediatric	emergency	

department	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	

• Six	out	of	ten	patients	from	South	Tyneside	would	continue	to	be	

treated	locally	

• Around	6,600	patients	from	South	Tyneside	needing	specialist	

treatment	would	be	treated	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	each	

year	with	approximately	700	of	those	treated	at	Gateshead	or	

Newcastle	

• It	would	be	possible	to	provide	more	specialised	children’s	

outpatients	clinics	in	South	Tyneside	

• Savings	of	£220,000	would	be	made	

Children	and	

Young	People’s	

Healthcare	

N/A	 • Provide	locally	accessible	7-day	urgent	and	emergency	

children’s	services	at	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	during	

peak	times	of	need	

P
age 146



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	–	Final	Draft	Report	 5
th

	December	2017	

109	

	

Services	Option	1	

&	2	

• Offer	specialised	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	for	more	

seriously	ill	children	and	young	people	

• Would	improve	the	quality	and	experience	of	care.	

• Would	involve	some	additional	travel	for	families	of	South	

Tyneside	patients	requiring	more	specialist	care	or	urgent	

treatment	

• Sunderland	and	some	County	Durham	patients	would	access	

urgent	and	emergency	children’s	care	at	Sunderland	Royal	

Hospital		

There	is	no	clinically	preferred	option.	

P
age 147



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
110	

14 Appendix	Two:	Targeted	Equality	Focus	Groups	Demographics	

14.1 Introduction	
The	Equalities	Impact	assessment	activity	conducted	by	the	Path	to	Excellence	programme	
identified	those	protected	characteristic	and	other	equalities	groups	most	likely	to	be	
affected	by	the	proposed	service	changes.		

32	focus	groups	were	convened	and	moderated	by	Voluntary	and	Community	Sector	
(VCS)/third	sector	partners	across	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland,	though	only	28	were	
reported	for	analysis.		Originally	planned	for	September/October	but	running	into	
November,	the	sessions	reached	as	far	as	possible	the	identified	target	groups	likely	to	be	
affected	by	the	proposed	service	changes.		

To	understand	the	extent	to	which	the	focus	groups	were	representative	of	the	protected	
characteristics	groups	and	additional	targeted	special	interests	(people	living	in	deprived	
neighbourhoods,	people	over	65,	teenage	mothers)	participants	at	each	group	were	invited	
to	complete	an	equality	monitoring	form.	The	results	of	which	are	shown	below.	

14.2 General	Demographics	
Do	you	consider	yourself	Disabled	
Blank/No	Response	 18	
No	 95	
Rather	not	say	 2	
Yes	 30	
Grand	Total	 145	

 

Are	you	Currently	Pregnant	

	

Partner/Spouse	Currently	
Pregnant		

	

Do	you	currently	have	a	
child	of	less	than	24	
months	

Blank/No	Response	 22	 Blank/No	Response	 34	 Blank/No	Response	 14	
No	 113	 No	 100	 No	 118	

Rather	not	say	 7	 Rather	not	say	 10	 Rather	not	say	 1	

Yes	 3	 Yes	 1	 Yes	 12	

Grand	Total	 145	 Grand	Total	 145	 Grand	Total	 145	

	
Sex	 	 Sexuality	

Blank/No	Response	 6	 	 Blank/No	Response	 13	
Female	 117	 Bisexual	 4	
Male	 22	 Gay	 8	
Grand	Total	 145	 Heterosexual	or	straight	 113	

	 Lesbian	 4	
Rather	not	say	 3	
Grand	Total	 145	

Page 148



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
111	

	
Race	 	 Religion	

Blank/No	Response	 10	 Blank/No	Response	 137	
Asian/British	Asian:	Bangladeshi	 20	 Atheist	 1	
Asian/British	Asian:	Chinese	 2	 Catholic	 1	
Asian/British	Asian:	Indian	 6	 CofE	 1	
Asian/British	Asian:	Pakistani	 1	 Hindu	 4	
Black/British	Black:	African	 5	 Jehovah's	Witness		 1	
Mixed	race:	Asian	&	White	 10	 Grand	Total	 145	
Mixed	Race:	Black	&	White	 3	 	 	
Other	(please	specify)	 13	 Age	
Rather	not	say	 4	 Blank/No	Response	 17	
White:	British	 67	 16	to	17	 4	
White:	European	 3	 18	to	24	 7	
White:	Irish	 1	 25	to	34	 26	
Grand	Total	 145	 35	to	44	 20	
	 	 	 45	to	54	 24	
	 	 	 55	to	64	 25	
	 	 	 65	to	74	 13	
	 	 	 75	or	older	 9	
	 	 	 Grand	Total	 145	

14.3 Living	in	a	Deprived	Neighbourhood	
Using	the	first	three	characters	of	the	postcodes	provided	on	the	monitoring	form20and	
using	a	look-up	table	provided	by	the	NECS	Informatics	team	the	approximate	Index	of	
Multiple	Deprivation	(IMD)	scores,	1-10	with	1	being	highest	level	of	deprivation.			

From	the	table	below,	it	can	be	seen	the	bulk	of	participants	are	from	areas	in	the	top	third	
most	deprived	areas	in	England.		

IMD	Score	 Total		
1	 19%	
2	 22%	
3	 12%	
4	 9%	
5	 8%	
6	 3%	
7	 6%	
8	 5%	
9	 6%	
10	 8%	

Grand	Total	 100%	
	 	

																																																								
20	Only	the	first	three	characters	were	asked	for	and	recorded	to	prevent	identifiability	to	individual	address.		

Page 149



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
112	

15 Appendix	Three:		Equalities	Groups	–	Key	Issues	from	the	Focus	Groups	

In	the	main	report,	a	narrative	of	the	main	themes	from	the	focus	groups	is	presented.	This	
appendix	concentrates	on	the	specific	issues	reported	by	the	targeted	equalities	groups.	

It	is	worth	pointing	out	that	the	general	themes	of	support	and	concerns	echo	those	of	the	
qualitative	discussions	with	the	general	population	of	South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland.	
However,	where	the	groups	did	report	specific	concerns	these	are	shown	below	as	broad	
themes	with	a	range	of	generalise	supporting	comments.	

LOSS	OF	INDEPENDENCE	(SENSORY	DISABILITIES)	
• Being	deaf	strips	away	independence	of	individuals	when	dealing	with	NHS,	which	has	a	

domino	effect	on	other	areas	of	life	
• difficulties	faced	by	the	Deaf	Community	in	accessing	and	being	appropriately	supported	

in	accessing	NHS	services	be	they	emergency,	elected	procedures,	or	routine	
appointments.	

SPECIFIC	SUPPORT	NEEDS	(PHYSICAL,	SENSORY	AND	LEARNING	DISABILITIES	AND	COGNITIVE	
IMPAIRMENT)	
• Lack	of	signers	and	other	interpretation	is	a	very	complex	area	and	there	are	many	

different	systems	and	technologies	available	that	allow	a	more	inclusive	experience	for	a	
deaf	person.		However,	the	participants	were	concerned	that	these	technologies	would	
not	be	available,	nor	had	they	been	considered	in	the	costings.		

• Specific	Support	Needs	(Cognitive	Impairment	–	Stroke	Victims)	
• The	change	to	a	new	and	unfamiliar	environment	without	any	navigation	support	is	a	

major	fear.	
ISOLATION	
• There	are	some	very	specific	issues	(e.g.	isolation,	mental	health,	travelling,	trust	and	

appropriate	interaction)	that	need	to	be	addressed	
• All	groups	based	in	South	Tyneside	reported	a	real	concern	that	being	in	hospital	in	

Sunderland	would	isolate	them	from	friends	and	family,	removing	an	important	support	
network	leading	to	a	fear	of	isolation	and	the	impact	that	would	have	on	their	health.		

TRAVELLING	DISTANCES	
• A	significant	concern	for	all	participants	from	South	Tyneside	were	the	difficulties	

anticipated	in	travelling	to	Sunderland,	particularly	for	those	reliant	on	public	transport.		
• Amongst	these	concerns	was	that	of	communication	and	understanding	when	people	

face	significant	difficulties	in	this	area	and	concern	that	without	additional	and	specific			

AGE:	MISSING	GOLDILOCKS		
Young	people	feel	they	are	overlooked	and	older	people	feel	they	are	forgotten,	the	
concern	is	that	only	those	in	the	‘Goldilocks’	age	group,	not	too	old	and	not	too	young	are	
heard	and	consequently,	they	feel	a	potential	for	their	needs	not	to	be	considered.	This	was	
a	source	of	concern	and	felt	to	have	a	detrimental	impact.		

Page 150



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
113	

OVER	CONSULTED,	MOSTLY	NOT	HEARD	
There	was	a	feeling	that	NHS	bodies	and	local	authorities	only	consult	with	equalities	groups	
as	a	‘tick	box’	exercise.	The	concern	was	that	irrespective	of	the	opinion	shared	their	views	
would	not	be	considered,	leading	to	concerns	over	inequalities	of	access	to	the	new	service	
provision	discussed	in	the	options.		

WOMEN	FROM	A	BME	BACKGROUND	
The	concern	was	of	disproportionate	impact	on	women	of	a	BME	background	from	South	
Tyneside,	due	to:	

• A	lack	of	confidence	to	attend	services	in	Sunderland	and	to	engage	with	the	hospital	
when	things	go	wrong	

• Language	barriers	in	accessing	changed	and	unfamiliar	services	
• Travel	issues	at	night	when	partners	work	evenings/nights		

SINGLE	PARENTS	TRAVELLING	WITH	CHILDREN	
Concern	was	also	expressed	over	a	feeling	of	disproportionate	impact	on	single	parents	
living	in	South	Tyneside	and	reliant	on	public	transport.	The	relocation	of	women’s	services	
and	paediatric	A&E	was	viewed	as	very	difficult	for	parents	dealing	with	more	than	one	
child,	one	of	whom	could	be	ill	or	if	a	mother,	unwell	themselves.	This	is	of	course	tied	in	
with	wider	concerns	over	childcare.		

	

	

	

	

	 	

Page 151



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
114	

16 Appendix	Four:	Individual	submissions	

	

From	(name)	 Organisation	(if	applies)	

Robert	Tinnion	 Northern	Neonatal	Transport	Service	(NNeTS)	

Graeme	Howe	 South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	Governor		

Dr.	K.	Megson	 Gateshead	and	South	Tyneside	Local	Medical	Committee	

Cllr.	John	Robinson	 Durham	County	Council	
Roger	Nettleship	 Save	South	Tyneside	Hospital	Campaign		

Peter	Moore	 Stroke	Association	
Dr.	Stuart	Huntley		 North	of	England	Clinical	Networks	
Anne	Hill	 South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	Delivery	Suite	Manager		

AR	 Patient/public	
Alan	Roulstone	 Professor	Emeritus	in	Disability	and	Long-Term	Conditions.	Former	

Co-Chair	of	NIHR	Research	For	Patient	Benefit	(North	East)	

Vicci	McGurk	 Maternity	Clinical	Advisory	Group	-	NHSE	

Neil	Hawkins	 Newcastle	Gateshead	CCG	
Melanie	Soutar	 Matrix	Young	People's	Service	
John	Anglin	 South	Shields	Constituency	Labour	Party	

Julie	Bloomfield		 Screening	and	Immunisation	-	NHSE	
Paul	Baldasera	 South	Tyneside	Council	
Simone	Gray	 South	Tyneside	Labour	Group	
Dave	Telford	 Unite	
Stephen	Hepburn	 MP	Jarrow	Constituency		
Angela	Allen	 Young	Parents	Pathway	-	Places	for	People	Living+	

Joanne	Proffitt	 Community	Stroke	Team,	South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust	

Paul	Baldasera	 South	Tyneside	and	Sunderland	JHOSC	

Karen	Graham	 Sunderland	Health	and	Wellbeing	Board	

Dave	Allan	 Sunderland	Trades	Union	Council	

Page 152



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
115	

Jan	Pyrke	 Healthwatch	South	Tyneside	
Fiona	Kerr	 South	Tyneside	Paediatric	ED	
Emma	Lewell-Buck	 South	Shields	MP	
Laura	Murrell	 Sunderland	Central	Constituency	Labour	Party	

Clare	Williams	 Unison	
Shirley	Ford	 South	Tyneside	Green	Party	
MP	 Patient/public	
MF	 Patient/public	
DR	 Patient/public	
PB	 Patient/public	
Anonymous	via	
HealthWatch	
Sunderland		

		

KF	 Patient/public	
MW	 Patient/public	
Members		 Millfield	Branch	Labour	Party	
Dr.	Alistair	Blair	 Northumberland	CCG	
Members		 Royal	College	of	Midwives		
Wendy	Hunter	 Alzheimer’s	Society		
SP	 Patient/public	
Susan	Watson	 Gateshead	Health	NHS	Foundation	Trust	

SR	 Patient/public	
Karen	Ahmed	 South	Tyneside	TEN	young	carers		
SM/HF	 Patient/public	

AR		 Patient/public	
Alan	Patchett		 HealthWatch	Sunderland		
Ken	Bremner		 City	Hospitals	Sunderland	NHS	Foundation	Trust	

Ken	Bremner		 South	Tyneside	NHS	Foundation	Trust		

Dr.	Robin	Mitchell		 Child	Health	Network,	NHS	England		
Dr.	S.N.	Sturgiss	 Newcastle	upon	Tyne	Hospitals	NHS	Foundation	Trust		
Dr.	Andrew	Beeby	 NTWD	LMS	Board			
Rebecca	Miller		 Hearing	Loss	UK		
Richard	Upright	
Viki	Murrary	

Sunderland	Central	Constituency	Labour	Party		

EH	 Patient/public	
Mark	Cotton		 North	East	Ambulance	Service		
	

Page 153



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
116	

Note:	Submissions	from	patients/public	show	initials	only	
17 Appendix	Five:		Key	Themes	of	Open	Text	Analysis	from	Quantitative	

Methods	

17.1 Introduction	

In	each	of	the	quantitative	methodologies	(online	and	paper	consultation,	direct	patient,	
and	street	survey)	respondents	were	asked	to	comment	for	each	option	on:	

• What	do	you	like	about	this	option?	
• What	don’t	you	like	about	this	option?	

These	questions	were	asked	of	all	respondents,	against	all	options	for	all	services.	Discussed	
in	turn	below	are	the	responses	for:	

• Stroke	services;	
• Maternity	and	women’s	healthcare	services;	and	
• Children	and	young	people’s	healthcare	services	(urgent	and	emergency	paediatric	

care.)	

The	individual	responses	are	grouped	into	themes	using	the	same	grounded	theory	
approach	as	applied	to	the	qualitative	discussions21.	The	outcomes	from	this	exercise	have	
informed	and	largely	reflect	the	further	analysis	of	the	qualitative	discussions	reported	in	
the	main	body	of	the	report.		

17.2 Stroke	Services	

Stroke	Services	Option	1	-	What	do	you	like	about	this	option?		

• A	Centre	of	Excellence	with	specialised	staff	and	equipment	
• Meets	the	needs	of	Sunderland	residents	
• Improved	clinical	care		
• Funding	for	more	staff	including	therapy	staff		
• The	option	savings	make	this	a	more	affordable	option	
• Good	reputation	and	easy	access	to	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			

	

Stroke	Services	Option	1	–	What	don’t	you	like	about	this	option?	

• Lack	of	stroke	services	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	/	service	focused	on	care	at	
Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		

• Distance	/	time	required	for	patients/visitors	of	ST	to	travel	to	Sunderland		

																																																								
21	Note:	the	same	themes	have	sometimes	emerged	in	responses	to	different	questions	and	therefore	
are	reported	each	time	they	appear,	which	means	themes	can	be	duplicated	across	the	service	areas.	

	

Page 154



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
117	

• Increased	demand	placed	on	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	ambulance	service			
• Both	hospitals	need	stroke	services		
• Parking	issues	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• Poor	rehabilitation	after	stroke	/	discharge	planning		
• Negative	comment	about	consultation	and	options			
	

Stroke	Services	Option	2	-	What	do	you	like	about	this	option?		
• All	services	and	facilities	under	one	roof	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	/	continuous	care	/	

covers	all	stroke	needs	
• Extra	services	/	facilities	available	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital				
• Good	service	available	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• Patient	moved	back	to	STDH	after	7	days	/	faster	turnovers	of	patients	
• Good	reputation	and	easy	access	to	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
	

Stroke	Services	Option	2	-	What	don’t	you	like	about	this	option?	

• Negative	impacts	of	option		
• Concern	with	patients	being	transferred	to	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	after	7	days	
• Distance	/time	required	for	patients/visitors	of	South	Tyneside	to	travel	to	Sunderland		
• Lack	of	stroke	services	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	/	service	focused	on	care	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		
• Both	hospitals	need	stroke	services			
• Negative	comment	about	consultation	and	options	
• Difficult	option	to	achieve	following	temporary	move		

	

Stroke	Services	Option	3	-	What	do	you	like	about	this	option?	

• Extra	services	/	facilities	available	at	South	Tyneside		
• All	services	and	facilities	under	one	roof	/	continuous	care	/	covers	all	stroke	needs	
• Good	service	available	in	Sunderland	
• Patient	able	to	return	to	South	Tyneside	after	3	days	/	faster	turnovers	of	patients	

	

Stroke	Services	Option	3	-	What	don’t	you	like	about	this	option?	

• Negative	impacts	of	option			
• Concern	with	patients	being	transferred	back	to	South	Tyneside	after	3	days	
• Distance	/	time	required	for	patients/visitors	of	South	Tyneside	to	travel	to	Sunderland	
• Lack	of	stroke	services	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	/	service	focused	on	care	at	

Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		
• Negative	comment	about	consultation	and	options			
• Both	hospitals	need	stroke	services			

Page 155



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
118	

	

17.3 Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	

Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	1	-	What	do	you	like	about	
this	option?	

• Services	/	facilities	available	at	both	hospitals		
• All	maternity	needs	covered	/	full	range	of	maternity	services		
• Option	gives	patients	a	choice		
• Services	under	one	roof	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• NHS	savings		
• Availability	of	consultants	for	high	risk	pregnancies	/	in	case	of	emergency		
• Availability	of	SCBU	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• Consistency	of	care	
• Local	antenatal	and	postnatal	care	available		
• Women’s	healthcare	/	gynaecology		
	

Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	1	-	What	don’t	you	like	about	
this	option?	

• No	consultant	at	ST	/	only	MLU	at	ST	/	concern	about	complications	occurring	and	being	
transferred		

• Overcrowding	/	ability	of	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	ambulance	service	to	cope			
• Inconvenience	/	extra	travel	for	South	Tyneside	patients	and	families		
• Lack	of	choice	for	high	risk	pregnancies	/	forced	to	travel	further		
• Services	focus	on	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	/	not	enough	services	in	South	Tyneside		
• No	SCBU	at	South	Tyneside		
• No	gynaecology	inpatient	facility	at	South	Tyneside		
• Inefficiencies	/	patient	confusion	with	services	being	located	over	two	hospitals		
• Parking	issues	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		
• Negative	comment	about	consultation	and	options			
• Viability	of	midwife	led	units		
• Priority	should	be	patient,	not	money	
	

Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	2	-	What	do	you	like	about	
this	option?		

• All	maternity	needs	covered	/	sounds	good	/	full	maternity	service		
• Services	under	one	roof	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• Availability	of	consultants	for	high	risk	pregnancies	/	in	case	of	emergency		
• Good	patient	choice	/	options		

Page 156



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
119	

• NHS	savings		
• Maternity	services	/	facilities	available	at	both	hospitals		
• Gynaecology	services	available	at	both	hospitals		
• Local	antenatal	and	postnatal	care	available		
• Option	like	/	same	as	Option	1			
• Low	risk	option	to	give	birth	at	STDH	/	option	for	home	birth		
• Availability	of	SCBU	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		
• Consistency	of	care	
	

Maternity	Services	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	2	-	What	don’t	you	like	about	
this	option?	

• No	maternity	service	or	MLU	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	/	unable	to	give	birth	in	
South	Tyneside	

• Overcrowding	/	ability	of	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	ambulance	service	to	cope	
with	extra	demand			

• Patient	(and	family)	required	to	travel	to	give	birth	/	unsafe	for	mothers	to	travel	
further	than	necessary	

• Lack	of	choice	for	high	risk	pregnancies	/	forced	to	travel	further		
• Investment	needed		
• No	SCBU	at	South	Tyneside		
• No	gynaecology	inpatient	service	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital			
• Lack	of	maternity	services	in	South	Tyneside	makes	having	a	home	birth	too	dangerous			
• Option	not	fair	/	good	for	South	Tyneside	residents		
• Women	/	babies	lives	put	at	risk		
• Parking	issues	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital				
• Comment	about	space	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital				
	

17.4 Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services		

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	1	-	What	do	you	like	about	this	
option?	

• Access	to	care	24/7	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	
• Children	can	still	be	treated	locally	for	emergencies	/	services	at	both	hospitals		
• Separate	department	for	children	with	specialised	treatment	and	professionals		
• More	specialised	outpatient	appointments	at	South	Tyneside	
• Positive	outcomes	of	option			
• Access	to	specialised	care	for	seriously	ill	children	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• Option	covers	all	/	meets	needs	
• Accessible	service			

Page 157



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
120	

• Positive	patient	experience	and	reputation	of	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		
• Greater	availability	of	beds		
	

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	1	-	What	don’t	you	like	about	this	
option?	

• Limited	opening	hours	of	the	emergency	department	at	South	Tyneside	/	downgrade	of	
services	at	South	Tyneside		

• Extra	travel	for	children	and	parents	during	the	night	from	South	Tyneside	/	
implications	if	emergency		

• Extra	demand	placed	on	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	ambulance	service		
• Both	areas	should	have	access	to	24-hour	emergency	care	for	children		
• Extra	cost	required	/	options	not	cost-effective		
• Transport	issues	for	parents	to	access	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	in	the	night		
• A&E	should	be	available	for	all	ages			
• Concern	over	the	lack	of	facilities	for	children	to	stay	overnight	at	South	Tyneside	

District	Hospital		
• Parking	issues	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital		
• Option	will	be	confusing	to	families	(i.e.	what	is	open	and	when)	
• Concern	that	some	families	will	still	use	South	Tyneside	A&E	at	night	–	pressure	on	staff	

/	staff	not	specialised	to	treat	children	
• Negative	comment	about	consultation	and	options			
• Duplication	of	services	/	dilutes	consultant	led	care	over	two	sites		
	

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	2	-	What	do	you	like	about	this	
option?	

• 24/7	access	to	children’s	emergency	department	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• NHS	Savings		
• Positive	outcomes	of	option		
• Children	can	still	be	treated	locally	/	services	at	both	hospitals		
• Option	covers	all	needs	and/or	meets	needs	
• More	specialised	outpatient	appointments	at	South	Tyneside	
• Access	to	specialised	care	for	seriously	ill	children	at	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital			
• Greater	availability	of	beds	
• Benefits	of	a	nurse	led	minor	injuries	unit		
	

	

	

	

Page 158



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
121	

	

Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	Services	Option	2	-		

What	don’t	you	like	about	this	option?	

• No	emergency	provision	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	/	downgrade	of	services	in	
South	Tyneside		

• Overcrowding	/	ability	of	Sunderland	Royal	Hospital	and	ambulance	service	to	cope			
• Distance	required	for	South	Tyneside	to	access	emergency	care	and	the	issues	

associated	with	this		
• Negative	impact	on	children’s	wellbeing	(i.e.	travelling	in	an	emergency)	
• Waste	of	resources	having	a	Children’s	Minor	Injuries	Unit	/	not	viable	option		
• A&E	provision	needed	in	both	areas		
• Concern	that	the	A&E	department	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital	will	close	/	open	

A&E	for	all			
• Cost-cutting	exercise		
• Concern	that	some	families	will	still	use	South	Tyneside	A&E	at	night	–	pressure	on	staff	

/	staff	not	specialised	to	treat	children	
• Negative	comment	about	consultation	and	options			
• Option	prevents	children’s	day	case	surgery	at	South	Tyneside	District	Hospital		

Page 159



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
122	

18 Appendix	Six:	Process	Questions	all	outputs	

Criteria	felt	to	be	most	appropriate	to	use	in	the	decision	making	process		

Across	the	majority	of	quantitative	samples,	high	quality	and	safe	was	considered	to	be	the	most	appropriate	criteria	to	use	in	the	decision	
making	process.	The	overall	results	from	each	of	the	quantitative	methodologies	show	that	affordable	is	considered	the	least	appropriate	
criteria	to	use	in	the	decision	making	process.	In	both	cases,	this	was	also	observed	when	looking	at	the	split	of	respondents	by	area.	

18.1 Resident	survey	results		
Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 Strongly	disagree	 Strongly	agree	
	 1/2	 3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

High	quality	and	safe		 3%		 13	 3%		 12	 5%		 21	 12%		 46	 76%		 297	
Sustainable	 5%		 18	 4%		 14	 9%		 33	 15%		 55	 68%		 250	
Affordable		 7%		 26	 6%		 21	 9%		 32	 18%		 65	 61%		 223	
Achievable		 6%		 21	 5%		 20	 7%		 26	 15%			 55	 68%			 257	

	

Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area		

	 Strongly	disagree	 Strongly	agree	
	 1/2	 3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	
	 South	

Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	

Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	

Tyneside	 Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		 1%	 2	 9%	 11	 3%	 9	 2%	 3	 7%	 18	 2%	 3	 8%	 22	 19%	 24	 80%	 209	 68%	 88	

Sustainable	 3%	 7	 9%	 11	 4%	 9	 4%	 5	 8%	 19	 11%	 14	 10%	 23	 25%	 32	 76%	 184	 52%	 66	
Affordable		 6%	 14	 10%	 12	 5%	 11	 8%	 10	 6%	 15	 14%	 17	 11%	 27	 30%	 38	 72%	 175	 38%	 48	
Achievable		 4%	 10	 9%	 11	 6%	 15	 4%	 5	 6%	 16	 8%	 10	 8%	 21	 27%	 34	 75%	 189	 53%	 68	

P
age 160



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
123	

	

18.2 Online/paper	results		
Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 27%	 77	 3%		 10	 9%		 26	 7%		 21	 53%	 154	

Sustainable	 26%	 71	 6%		 16	 13%		 35	 12%		 33	 44%		 123	

Affordable		 29%	 78	 7%		 18	 17%	 46	 16%		 44	 31%		 82	

Achievable		 26%	 72	 5%		 13	 12%		 32	 19%		 52	 38%		 105	

	

Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area			

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	Tyneside		 Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		

34%	 59	 13%	 6	 5%	 8	 0%	 0	 9%	 16	 9%	 4	 6%	 11	 11%	 5	 46%	 81	 68%	 32	

Sustainable	 32%	 54	 9%	 4	 7%	 12	 6%	 3	 12%	 20	 11%	 5	 13%	 21	 9%	 4	 36%	 60	 66%	 31	

Affordable		 36%	 59	 14%	 6	 9%	 14	 0%	 0	 16%	 26	 16%	 7	 15%	 24	 18%	 8	 25%	 41	 52%	 23	

Achievable		 33%		 55	 15$	 7	 6%	 10	 2%	 1	 7%	 19	 7%	 3	 17%	 29	 17%	 8	 32%	 54	 59%	 27	

	P
age 161



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
124	

18.3 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	respondents		
Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 7%	 5	 3%	 2	 5%	 4	 12%	 9	 73%	 55	

Sustainable	 5%	 4	 3%	 2	 14%	 10	 18%	 13	 60%	 44	

Affordable		 11%	 8	 4%	 3	 26%	 19	 34%	 25	 25%	 18	

Achievable		 8%	 6	 3%	 2	 11%	 8	 24%	 18	 54%	 40	

	

Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	Tyneside		 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		

4%	 2	 9%	 2	 0%	 0	 9%	 2	 7%	 3	 4%	 1	 11%	 5	 9%	 2	 78%	 35	 70%	 16	

Sustainable	 2%	 1	 9%	 2	 5%	 2	 0%	 0	 16%	 7	 14%	 3	 23%	 10	 14%	 3	 55%	 24	 64%	 14	

Affordable		 9%	 4	 13%	 3	 5%	 2	 4%	 1	 28%	 12	 30%	 7	 40%	 17	 22%	 5	 19%	 8	 30%	 7	

Achievable		 7%	 3	 9%	 2	 2%	 1	 4%	 1	 16%	 7	 4%	 1	 25%	 11	 26%	 6	 50%	 22	 57%	 13	

	

	

P
age 162



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
125	

18.4 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	respondents		

Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 8%	 8	 1%	 1	 13%	 13	 26%	 27	 53%	 55	

Sustainable	 5%	 5	 3%	 3	 7%	 8	 23%	 25	 62%	 66	

Affordable		 9%	 9	 4%	 4	 18%	 18	 39%	 39	 30%	 30	

Achievable		 7%	 7	 2%	 2	 15%	 15	 37%	 38	 40%	 41	

	

Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area	

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	
Tyneside		

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	

High	quality	and	safe		 8%	 4	 10%	 3	 0%	 0	 3%	 1	 20%	 10	 3%	 1	 22%	 11	 30%	 9	 50%	 25	 53%	 16	

Sustainable	 8%	 4	 3%	 1	 2%	 1	 3%	 1	 6%	 3	 17%	 5	 25%	 13	 27%	 8	 60%	 32	 50%	 15	

Affordable		 14%	 7	 4%	 1	 4%	 2	 4%	 1	 20%	 10	 18%	 5	 45%	 23	 25%	 7	 18%	 9	 50%	 14	

Achievable		 9%	 5	 4%	 1	 0%	 0	 7%	 2	 21%	 11	 11%	 3	 34%	 18	 43%	 12	 36%	 19	 36%	 10	

	

	

P
age 163



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
126	

18.5 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Stroke	Services	respondents		
Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 5%	 2	 5%	 2	 12%	 5	 17%	 7	 62%	 26	

Sustainable	 9%	 4	 7%	 3	 2%	 1	 14%	 6	 68%	 30	

Affordable		 8%	 3	 5%	 2	 13%	 5	 28%	 11	 46%	 18	

Achievable		 5%	 2	 5%	 2	 18%	 7	 20%	 8	 53%	 21	

	

Table:	Appropriate	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area			

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	
Tyneside		

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	

High	quality	and	
safe		

11%	 2	 0%	 0	 6%	 1	 7%	 1	 22%	 4	 7%	 1	 17%	 3	 20%	 3	 44%	 8	 67%	 10	

Sustainable	 11%	 2	 7%	 1	 16%	 3	 0%	 0	 5%	 1	 0%	 0	 16%	 3	 13%	 2	 53%	 10	 80%	 12	

Affordable		 20%	 3	 0%	 0	 13%	 2	 0%	 0	 27%	 4	 7%	 1	 13%	 2	 47%	 7	 27%	 4	 47%	 7	

Achievable		 13%	 2	 0%	 0	 6%	 1	 7%	 1	 38%	 6	 7%	 1	 13%	 2	 33%	 5	 31%	 5	 53%		 8	

	

P
age 164



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
127	

18.6 Criteria	felt	to	be	most	important	in	the	decision-making	process		

The	results	from	the	quantitative	methodologies	when	looking	at	both	the	overall	results	and	split	of	respondents	from	each	area,	suggest	that	
high	quality	and	safe	is	perceived	to	be	the	most	important	factor	to	use	in	the	decision-making	process,	and	affordable	the	least	important.		

18.6.1 Resident	survey	results		
Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 4%	 13	 3%	 11	 7%	 22	 12%	 42	 74%	 249	

Sustainable	 6%	 19	 4%	 12	 11%	 32	 22%	 67	 56%	 168	

Affordable		 10%	 31	 8%	 23	 15%	 44	 26%	 76	 41%	 123	

Achievable		 8%	 24	 5%	 16	 10%	 31	 21%	 67	 56%	 174	

	

Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	Tyneside		 Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		

1%	 3	 8%	 10	 4%	 9	 2%	 2	 9%	 18	 3%	 4	 11%	 23	 15%	 19	 75%	 157	 72%	 92	

Sustainable	 5%	 8	 9%	 11	 6%	 10	 2%	 2	 11%	 19	 11%	 13	 15%	 26	 34%	 41	 64%	 114	 45%	 54	

Affordable		 9%	 16	 13%	 15	 7%	 13	 8%	 10	 10%	 18	 22%	 26	 18%	 32	 37%	 44	 56%	 100	 19%	 23	

Achievable		 6%	 12	 10%	 12	 7%	 14	 2%	 2	 9%	 17	 11%	 14	 17%	 32	 28%	 35	 60%	 114	 49%	 60	P
age 165



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
128	

18.6.2 Online/paper	results		
Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 6%	 17	 1%	 4	 6%	 16	 8%	 22	 78%	 209	

Sustainable	 10%	 24	 6%	 14	 17%	 42	 29%	 73	 39%	 998	

Affordable		 18%	 45	 7%	 17	 21%	 52	 28%	 68	 26%	 64	

Achievable		 10%	 24	 2%	 6	 17%	 43	 30%	 73	 41%	 100	

	

Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area	

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	Tyneside		 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	 Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		

8%	 13	 2%	 1	 2%	 3	 0%	 0	 6%	 10	 4%	 2	 8%	 13	 9%	 4	 76%	 122	 84%	 38	

Sustainable	 12%	 18	 7%	 3	 6%	 9	 5%	 2	 17%	 26	 9%	 4	 30%	 46	 27%	 12	 34%	 52	 52%	 23	

Affordable		 20%	 30	 12%	 5	 8%	 12	 0%	 0	 22%	 34	 20%	 8	 26%	 40	 29%	 12	 24%	 36	 39%	 16	

Achievable		 12%	 18	 5%	 2	 3%	 5	 0%	 0	 19%	 28	 14%	 6	 28%	 42	 29%	 12	 38%	 58	 52%		 22	

	

	 	

P
age 166



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
129	

18.6.3 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Stroke	Services	respondents		
Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 2%	 1	 2%	 1	 5%	 2	 14%	 6	 77%	 34	

Sustainable	 7%	 3	 12%	 5	 2%	 1	 19%	 8	 60%	 26	

Affordable		 7%	 3	 2%	 1	 7%	 3	 37%	 15	 46%	 19	

Achievable		 7%	 3	 0%	 0	 16%	 7	 30%	 13	 47%	 20	

	

Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area	

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	
Tyneside		

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	

High	
quality	and	
safe		

0%	 0	 0%	 0	 6%	 1	 0%	 0	 11%	 2	 0%	 0	 11%	 2	 19%	 3	 72%	 13	 81%	 13	

Sustainable	 16%	 3	 0%	 0	 11%	 2	 0%	 0	 21%	 4	 0%	 0	 16%	 3	 20%	 3	 37%	 7	 80%	 12	

Affordable		 18%	 3	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 12%	 2	 0%	 0	 29%	 5	 53%	 8	 41%	 7	 47%	 7	

Achievable		 17%	 3	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 28%	 5	 7%	 1	 22%	 4	 40%	 6	 33%	 6	 53%	 8	

	

	

P
age 167



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
130	

18.6.4 Direct	Patient	survey	results	–	Maternity	and	Women’s	Healthcare	Services	respondents		

Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 3%	 3	 1%	 1	 7%	 7	 7%	 7	 82%	 84	

Sustainable	 2%	 2	 2%	 2	 17%	 16	 32%	 29	 47%	 43	

Affordable		 13%	 12	 1%	 1	 17%	 15	 34%	 31	 34%	 31	

Achievable		 3%	 3	 1%	 1	 13%	 12	 36%	 33	 46%	 42	

	

Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area			

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	
3/4	 5/6	 7/8	

9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	
South	

Tyneside	
Sunderland	

South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	
South	

Tyneside	
Sunderland	

South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		

2%	 1	 7%	 2	 2%	 1	 0%	 0	 8%	 4	 11%	 3	 4%	 2	 7%	 2	 84%	 42	 75%	 21	

Sustainable	 4%	 2	 0%	 0	 2%	 1	 4%	 1	 24%	 11	 11%	 3	 27%	 12	 30%	 8	 42%	 19	 56%	 15	

Affordable		 20%	 9	 4%	 1	 2%	 1	 0%	 0	 14%	 6	 24%	 6	 34%	 15	 28%	 7	 30%	 13	 44%	 11	

Achievable		 4%	 2	 4%	 1	 2%	 1	 0%	 0	 16%	 7	 12%	 3	 33%	 15	 36%	 9	 44%	 2	 48%		 12	

	

	

P
age 168



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	
	

	
131	

18.6.5 Direct	Patient	survey	results–	Children	and	Young	People’s	Healthcare	respondents		
Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	all	respondents		

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

High	quality	and	safe		 1%	 1	 1%	 1	 3%	 2	 6%	 5	 88%	 68	

Sustainable	 4%	 3	 0%	 0	 9%	 7	 39%	 29	 47%	 35	

Affordable		 8%	 6	 4%	 3	 25%	 18	 29%	 21	 34%	 25	

Achievable		 3%	 2	 0%	 0	 10%	 7	 30%	 22	 58%	 42	

	

Table:	Most	important	to	use	in	decision	making	process	–	by	area			

	 1/2	

Strongly	disagree	

3/4	 5/6	 7/8	 9/10	

Strongly	agree	

	 South	Tyneside		

	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland	 South	
Tyneside	

Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	

	

Sunderland		 South	Tyneside	

	

Sunderland	

High	quality	
and	safe		

0%	 0	 0%	 0	 2%	 1	 0%	 0	 2%	 1	 5%	 1	 6%	 3	 10%	 2	 90%	 44	 86%	 18	

Sustainable	 4%	 2	 5%	 1	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 9%	 4	 14%	 3	 45%	 21	 24%	 5	 43%	 20	 57%	 12	

Affordable		 9%	 4	 9%	 2	 4%	 2	 5%	 1	 24%	 11	 32%	 7	 29%	 13	 18%	 4	 33%	 15	 36%	 8	

Achievable		 4%	 2	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 0%	 0	 11%	 5	 9%	 2	 14%	 14	 23%	 5	 53%	 24	 68%	 15	

	

P
age 169



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	

	

	
132	

19 Appendix	Seven:	Focus	Group	Meetings	(Dates,	Venues)	

	

Organisation	name	 Date	held	
		 		
BLISS=Ability 13/09/2017 

LGBT Fed North East  20&27&28/09/2017 
 

North of England Refugee service 22/09/2017 

Stroke Association South Tyneside  12/09/2017 

Stroke Association Sunderland - Coalfileds 15/09/2017 

Stroke Association Sunderland - Mackem 14/09/2017 

Stroke Association Sunderland North  20/09/2017 

Talk 2 Us 28/09/2017 

WHIST - Long term health 28/09/2017 

WHIST - Volunteers 25/09/2017 

WHIST - conversational English 27/09/2017 

Children and Young People's mental health 
service  

05/10/2017 

WHiST - living with long term illness 11/10/2017 

Sight Service 04&06/10/2017  

South Tyneside CCG Patient Reference Group 05/10/2017 

The Studio @ CIC 10/10/2017 

The Studio @ CIC 12/10/2017 

The Studio @ CIC 13/10/2017 

Talk and sign  09/10/2017 

Parent and toddler group 06/10/2017 

Clervaux toddler morning 11/10/2017 

St. Matthews toddler group 12/10/2017 

St. Matthews toddler group 10/10/2017 

South Tyneside TEN Young Carers  19/10/2017 

Apna Ghar  31/10/2017 

Sunderland People First 31/10/2017 

		 	

Page 170



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	

	

	
133	

20 Appendix	Eight:	Public	Meetings	(Dates,	Venues)	

	

Venue/location	 Date	held	 Focus	of	the	event	
		 		 		
Jarrow Community Centre, South 
Tyneside  

05-Jul-17 Launch event  

Hope Street Xchange, Sunderland  05-Jul-17 Launch event  

Glebe Centre, Durham  06-Jul-17 Launch event  

Hope Street Xchange, Sunderland  11-Jul-17 Focused event on maternity, women's and 
children's services  

Customs House, South Tyneside  12-Jul-17 Consultation discussion event - all service 
areas  

Clervaux Exchange, South 
Tyneside  

15-Jul-17 Focused event on maternity, women's and 
children's services  

Bangladeshi International Centre, 
Sunderland 

18-Jul-17 Focused event on stroke services  

Living Waters Church, South 
Tyneside  

19-Jul-17 Focused event on stroke services  

Software Centre, Sunderland  26-Jul-17 Consultation discussion event - all service 
areas  

Customs House, South Tyneside  13-Sep-17 Consultation discussion event - all service 
areas  

Clervaux Exchange, South 
Tyneside  

13-Sep-17 Focused event on maternity services 

Easington Social Welfare Centre, 
Durham 

14-Sep-17 Consultation discussion event - all service 
areas  

Hetton Centre, Sunderland 16-Sep-17 Consultation discussion event - all service 
areas  

Software Centre, Sunderland  19-Sep-17 Focused event on maternity services 

Bunny Hill Centre, Sunderland  20-Sep-17 Q&A session 

Customs House, South Tyneside  21-Sep-17 Q&A session 

Clervaux Exchange, South 
Tyneside  

23-Sep-17 Focused event on children and young 
people's services 

Arts Centre Washington, 
Sunderland 

28-Sep-17 Focused event on children and young 
people's services 

Sea Hotel, South Tyneside 02-Oct-17 Travel and transport event  

	

	

	 	

Page 171



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	

	

	
134	

21 Appendix	Nine:	Resident	Street	Survey	Sampling	Detail	

21.1 Quota:	Sunderland	
Gender	and	Age	(2015	MYE)	 Population	 %	 Quota	

Male	18-34	 31,224	 14.0%	 56	
Male	35	-	54	 35,248	 15.8%	 63	
Male	55+	 40,498	 18.2%	 73	

Female	18-34	 31,010	 13.9%	 55	
Female	35	-	54	 37,727	 16.9%	 68	
Female	55+	 47,140	 21.2%	 85	

	 	 TOTAL	 400	
	

Sample	Quota	(Ethnicity)	 	 Localities	 Quota	
White	British/Irish/Traveller	 380	 	 Coalfield	 67	
White	(Eastern	European)	 3	 	 Washington	 67	
Mixed	Ethnicity	 3	 	 Sunderland	North	 67	
Asian	 11	 	 Sunderland	East	 67	
Black	 2	 	 Sunderland	West	 67	
Arab/Any	Other	Ethnic	Group	 1	 	 High	traffic	areas	 67	
Total	 400	 	 TOTAL	 400	
	

Localities	 Quota	 	 Sample	Size	of	400		 	
Coalfield	 67	 	 Confidence	Level	 95%	
Washington	 67	 	 Confidence	Interval	 4.9	
Sunderland	North	 67	 	 	 	
Sunderland	East	 67	 	 	 	
Sunderland	West	 67	 	 	 	
High	traffic	areas	 67	 	 	 	

TOTAL	 400	 	 	 	

	

	 	

Page 172



The	Path	to	Excellence	Consultation	Analysis	

	

	
135	

21.2 Quota:	South	Tyneside	
Gender	and	Age	(2015	MYE)	 Population	 %	 Quota	
Male	18-34	 15,461	 12.9	 52	
Male	35	–	54	 18,989	 15.9	 63	
Male	55+	 22,668	 19	 76	
Female	18-34	 15,440	 12.9	 52	
Female	35	–	54	 20,561	 17.2	 69	
Female	55+	 26,359	 22.1	 88	
	 	 TOTAL	 400	
	

Sample	Quota	(Ethnicity)	
White	British/Irish/Traveller	 381	
White	(Eastern	European)	 3	
Mixed	Ethnicity	 4	
Asian	 9	
Black	 1	
Arab/Any	Other	Ethnic	Group	 3	

	

Localities	 Quota	
Hebburn	 67	
Jarrow	&	Boldon	 67	
West	Shields,	Leadon,	&	East	Boldon	 67	
East	Shields	&	Whitburn	 67	
Riverside	 67	
High	traffic	areas	 67	
TOTAL	 400	

	

Sample	Size	of	400		
Confidence	Level	 95%	
Confidence	Interval	 4.9	

	

	

	

	

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

19 January 2018

North Durham CCG – Rapid Specialist 
Opinion service

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships

Purpose of the Report
1 To provide the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee with an update in respect of a clinical audit undertaken in respect  
of North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group’s Rapid Specialist Opinion 
(RSO) service.

Background
2 With effect from 17 October 2016, North Durham Clinical Commissioning 

Group introduced a new Rapid Specialist Opinion service which aimed to 
ensure that patients receive the most appropriate treatment for their condition 
in the most appropriate place.

3 The service was brought to the attention of the Adults Wellbeing and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee following local press and media coverage 
which resulted in a request being made to the CCG to provide a briefing paper 
to the Committee setting out the provisions of the service and the rationale for 
its introduction. A briefing paper was received from North Durham CCG in 
November 2016 and circulated to members of the Adults Wellbeing and 
Health OSC (Appendix 2 refers). 

4 The issue was subsequently discussed during consideration of the media 
issues item at the Committee’s meeting held on 14 November 2016. 

5 Members were advised that the RSO service covered referrals for a specified 
range of specialties including dermatology; ophthalmology; ear, nose and 
throat; gastroenterology; cardiology and gynaecology.

6 The service did not include all referrals with very urgent and cancer two-week 
wait referrals being specifically excluded from the service.

Representations from Roberta Blackman-Woods, M.P. for City of Durham 
Constituency

7 At a meeting of the Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC on 2 October 2017, 
Roberta Blackman-Woods, MP addressed the Committee and questioned 

Page 175

Agenda Item 8



representatives from North Durham CCG about the RSO process. Concerns 
raised by Ms. Blackman-Woods and Councillors included:-

 The speed with which the new process had been introduced;

 The lack of engagement with patients, local councillors and MPs;

 The concerns of GPs who considered the RSO process to be compulsory;

 The Data Protection issues associated with sharing patient information 
and how this was undertaken for patients who may have mental health 
capacity issues;

 The perception that the SRO process was an attempt to further privatise 
an element of the NHS. 

8 In response, Dr Neil O’Brien, Chief Clinical Officer for North Durham CCG 
stressed that Rapid Specialist Opinion (RSO) was a process whereby GPs 
were encouraged to seek an SRO where alternative treatments might be 
more appropriate rather than an immediate referral to a consultant. Dr O’Brien 
stated that the scheme was not mandated. The CCG did monitor the number 
of practices that had taken up the new scheme and engaged with those who 
hadn’t to find out if they had any concerns. The web based guidelines were 
developed over two and half years ago and were considered to be best 
national practice.

9 Dr O’Brien gave an example of acne treatment where the RSO might suggest 
that the patient’s GP try antibiotics before referral to a specialist. The system 
is coordinated by a private company but NHS consultants look at the data and 
they looked at primary treatments before a referral. The system does allow 
diversion of a referral to advanced primary care, it is a voluntary scheme but 
excludes all urgent referrals.

10 North Durham CCG had engaged with practices and talked to GPs and whilst 
it has been conceded that the scheme was implemented quickly, no adverse 
incidents have been reported about the process.

11 A serious of clinical audits have been undertaken to evaluate the RSO 
process and the CCG has agreed to brief scrutiny on the outcome of the 
audit.

RSO Process – Clinical Audit findings

12 Representatives of North Durham CCG will be in attendance at the meeting to 
report upon the findings of the clinical audit undertaken of the RSO process 
and what the findings mean for the future of the service moving forward. A 
copy of the audit report is attached to this report (Appendix 3)

Page 176



Recommendation
13 The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 

recommended to:-

1. receive this report;

2. note and comment on the information provided by North Durham CCG 
in respect of the clinical audit into the RSO process.  

Background papers

Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC Agenda and minutes - 2 October 2017

Contact: Stephen Gwillym, Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer
Tel: 03000 268140

Page 177



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance - None

Staffing - None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - None

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder - None

Human Rights - None

Consultation - None

Procurement - None

Disability Issues - None

Legal Implications - None

Page 178



Rapid Specialist Opinion (RSO)  

As from the 17th October 2016 a new Rapid Specialist Opinion (RSO) service is being introduced in 
North Durham CCG.

Patients are our primary concern.  The aim of this service is to ensure patients are receiving the most 
appropriate treatment for their condition in the most appropriate place.

It is North Durham CCG’s responsibility to make efficient use of resources.  GPs have responsibility to 
make best use of NHS resources and need up to date evidence and advice to be able to treat 
patients in practice or refer on appropriately. Unnecessary outpatient appointments are a large cost 
to the NHS.  RSO is being put in place to make sure practices follow clinical guidelines which have 
been agreed locally with GPs, hospital consultants and many other relevant practitioners.  All GPs 
within North Durham CCG are expected to use the scheme which has been implemented with the 
support of GPs.  RSO will improve referral quality and ensure that all referrals follow the most recent 
clinical guidelines.  This will ensure that patients are treated in the most appropriate way, first time.  

An example of this:  A teenager waited for a dermatology appointment for 8 weeks for acne.  The 
patient’s GP hadn't tried any first line treatment.  With the new RSO system, the outpatient 
appointment would be saved and the patient would have received treatment 8 weeks earlier.

Referral letters will be looked at by Consultants and specialist GPs and reviewed in the light of 
agreed clinical evidence and expertise.  Hospital outpatient appointments should usually only be 
made when available practice and community based solutions have been tried. The scheme has 
been introduced following the success of a similar scheme which has been running by North 
Tyneside CCG for a year.  

RSO is an administrative process change rather than a service change so there was no requirement 
for us to consult with the public.  Nevertheless, the CCG and practices are continuing to speak to our 
patient representatives.  The patient leaflet and frequently ask questions which are available on the 
North Durham CCG website, http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/key-documents/patient-
information/  , have been developed and amended following consultation with practice patient 
reference groups.  

Patients continue to be offered choice during their discussion their GP.  There should be no adverse 
impact on the patients experience or care they receive.  RSO only covers referrals for a specified 
range of specialties (Dermatology, Ophthalmology, ENT, Gastroenterology, Cardiology  and 
Gynaecology)  it does not cover all referrals, very urgent and Cancer Two Week Wait referrals are 
specifically excluded from the scheme.  The RSO process should take a maximum of 3 working days.  
Referrals for a secondary care which are not felt to be the most appropriate option are returned via 
the e-referral system to the GP along with suggestions for an alternative pathway or treatment.  
When a clinical decision is made at triage the responsibility sits with the organisation providing the 
service and they have appropriate clinical negligence cover for this. 

 The cost of the contract is £10 per referral letter considered by the specialist opinion service. The 
approximate cost of an unnecessary outpatient appointment varies depending on the specialty but is 
typically around £150.

Page 179

http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/key-documents/patient-information/
http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/key-documents/patient-information/


This page is intentionally left blank



1

 

Meeting date: ……
                                                                                                                           Item No: …..

EXECUTIVES IN COMMON – DDES AND NORTH DURHAM

Title of report: North Durham CCG Rapid Specialist Opinion 

Author of report: Barbara Harker, Finance & Performance Manager

Sponsor Director: Mike Brierley, Director of Corporate Programmes, Delivery and 
Operations

Date of report: November 2017
Name of person presenting 
the report at the meeting:

Mike Brierley, Director of Corporate Programmes, Delivery and 
Operations

Reason for report:   ‘’ 
please tick relevant category

 Information only 
 Development / Discussion 
 Decision / Action  

Recommendations: 
(i.e. action being sought 
from the meeting)

Executives in Common are asked to:
 Consider the report,
 Note the impact of the North Durham CCG Rapid 

Specialist Opinion Scheme,
 Discuss the options going forward and consider 

option 2 ‘Continue with the current RSO scheme with 
additional specialties and review the current 
specialties’ to be the recommended option,

 Confirm that Trauma and Orthopaedics is excluded 
from RSO at this time,

 Acknowledge that if RSO continues resource will be 
required to support the procurement process,

 Acknowledge that GP Federations had little appetite 
for providing an alternative scheme.

Report status:  ‘’ please 
indicate relevant category 

 Official        
 Official Sensitive: Commercial    
 Official Sensitive: Personal  

Is this report confidential?
please delete as appropriate

   
 No

Page 181



2

Procurement Conflict of 
Interest completed and 
attached:
please delete as appropriate

 n/a       

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Are any members of the 
meeting likely to have a 
conflict of interest for this 
agenda item:

Any members as general practitioners of primary care services. 

Who is conflicted and why – 
please give the name(s) of all 
conflicted members?

These members would have non-financial professional interest 
as providers of primary care services who would be involved in 
the process:

Dr Neil O’Brien   
Dr Ian Davidson
Dr Patrick Ojechi

Are the conflicted members 
detailed above allowed to 
receive this paper and attend 
the meeting?

                                  
Yes 

If Yes - what is the action to 
be taken at the meeting as a 
consequence of the conflict?

‘’ please indicate relevant 
category

The conflicted member(s):  
 Can attend because there is no financial information included in the 

paper that could influence or benefit any conflicted member. 
 Can attend but must refrain from taking part in the discussion
 Can attend and take part in the discussion but should not be 

involved with any decision making
 Must leave the room for the agenda item

Purpose of the report and 
summary of key issues:

 The purpose of this paper is to provide an update and 
evaluation of the North Durham Rapid Specialist Opinion 
(RSO) service to Executives in Common.

 RSO went live 17th October 2016, the information in the 
report is based on 52 weeks triage data and ten months 
activity data.

 The CCG has not been made aware of any adverse 
clinical outcomes as a consequence of the RSO 
process.  Joint Quality Committee continues to be 
assured that the scheme was safe for patients and 
clinically effective.  A clinical audit was carried out to 
capture detail of referrals returned to primary care.  No 
significant adverse clinical outcomes were identified. 

 There have been some process issues which may have 
caused inconvenience to patients and or practices, but 
these have been addressed and resolved as quickly as 
possible.  Issues in receiving monitoring information 
relate to limitations with the reporting functionality of the 

Page 182



3

national E-referrals system and the capacity of the 
booking provider to be able to manage the alternative 
workaround.

 Subjectively, feedback has been very mixed with regard 
to attitudes of patients, practices and wider public.

 The most recent set of data suggests there is no 
particular correlation between the CSI hit rate, RSO 
usage rate and GP referrals received rate.  The data is 
still limited by time period and detail and therefore 
further information and analysis is required before any 
firm conclusions can be drawn.

 Based on the feedback received via the Demand 
Management Audit as part of the Primary Care Scheme 
2017/18 we are aware of three practices that are not 
fully using RSO and two that are using it but with some 
restrictions.  It appears overall approximately 62% of 
eligible referrals received by providers have been 
through RSO. (This percentage varies from specialty to 
specialty).

 Based on 52 weeks triage data, 1,306 referrals were 
returned to primary care with advice, equating to 9.73%, 
the percentage has reduced compared to the position 
reported in the July update when the total percentage 
was 9.97%. Data has been available from December 
2016 showing the number of referrals being referred to 
Tier 2 (GPSI), 1,536 referrals have been referred to Tier 
2, 11.45% of the referrals triaged.

 Secondary Care referral data up to 31st July 2017 
shows there has been an increase in the number of 
appropriate and relevant referrals to secondary care 
which is evidenced by an overall reduction in 
inappropriate referrals of 13% across all six specialties 
within the scheme.

 Secondary Care activity information shows that for each 
point of delivery there has been a reduction in activity 
although this varies at specialty level.

New Outpatient attendances show a 8.3% reduction
Follow-up Outpatient attendances show a 2% increase
Elective admissions show a 16.8% reduction  
The increase in follow-up activity primarily relates to 
Ophthalmology.  There has been a change in the coding 
within Ophthalmology relating to Lucentis®.  The 
increase within outpatient follow-ups is offset by a 

Page 183



4

reduction in Elective for this specialty.

 There has been an increase in Tier 2 (GPSI) activity of 
5.5% the increase varies by specialty.

 The financial impact calculated based on actual activity 
of £1,270,534 is higher than the predicted impact based 
on the RSO Triage data of £828,000 but lower than that 
based on the Referrals data of £1,584,552.  This 
variance is to be expected as the values calculated 
based on the RSO Triage and Referrals data are based 
on a number of assumptions.  The actual activity data 
may also include the impact of other factors including 
case mix and waiting times.  Despite these caveats the 
RSO has had a significant financial impact.

 It should be noted that the percentage reductions do not 
factor in growth in activity which was estimated to be 
2%.

 The costs incurred to manage the RSO scheme for 12 
months total £206,000

 Following review of specialties currently within RSO, if 
the service continues, it is suggested five remain within 
the scheme and the sixth, cardiology, is removed as 
from 1st April 2018.

 If RSO is to continue it is suggested further specialties 
are introduced including Colorectal, General Surgery 
and Urology in the first instance.

 Review of Trauma and Orthopaedics indicates that the 
Tier 2 pathway introduced in February 2017 is having a 
positive impact, therefore Trauma and Orthopaedics has 
not been considered as an additional specialty for RSO.

 As the pilot is due to end in 31st March 2018 there are 
three options to consider

 Option 1 – Continue with the current RSO 
scheme

 Option 2 – Continue with the current RSO 
scheme with additional specialties and review the 
current specialties.

 Option 3 – Discontinue with RSO with no 
alternative, other than Advice and Guidance 
provided by Foundation Trusts 

Page 184



5

 The previous option to introduce an alternative to RSO 
has been considered. At this time, GP Federation Leads 
expressed limited interest in providing a triaging service 
similar to RSO due to limitations on their existing 
capacity and they felt it unlikely they would be able to 
complete against other providers in a future procurement 
process.

 The concept of Primary Care Homes has recently come 
to the forefront of discussions. It is suggested how 
Demand Management fits into Primary Care Homes, it 
needs to be considered alongside any decision that is 
made with regards to triaging services and RSO.  If 
option one or two is taken forward the RSO scheme may 
need to be adapted if Primary Care Homes evolve.

 A number of CCGs now use the current provider for the 
triage service; procurement is planned for this service.  It 
is anticipated that the successful provider will take on 
the triage service from 1st April 2018 for all CCGs 
currently using the existing provider.

Consultation and other 
approval routes 
(including outcomes):

Meeting/route
Executives in 
Common

Date 
28.11.2017

Outcome

Supporting documents/
Appendices:

 Appendix 1 Conclusion of RSO Clinical Audit
 Appendix 2 Monthly Triage Activity and Outcome by 

Specialty
 Appendix 3 Comparison of GP referrals per 10,000 

population for the six specialties within RSO across the 
CCGs with the North East Region

Impact Assessment and Risk Management Issues
Consideration given and action taken in this report relating to impact assessment and 
risk management issues is detailed below:

() tick as 
appropriate

Impact area

Does this report identify a risk for the CCG?

Does this report impact on the environment/sustainability of the CCG?

Does this report have legal implications?

Page 185



6

 Are there any resource implications – finance and/or staffing as a result of 
this report
Cost of the scheme if the decision is to continue
Has this report taken into account equality and diversity? 

 Does this report impact on Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention 
(QIPP)
 RSO is one of North Durham CCGs QIPP schemes
Has there been any consultation/engagement (patient, public, stakeholder, 
clinical) with regard to the content of the report?

Are there any clinical quality/patient safety issues identified in this report?

Does this report impact on any information governance issues?

Other implications

Page 186



7

North Durham CCG Rapid Specialist Opinion Scheme 

1. Background

The purpose of this paper is to provide an update and evaluation of the North 
Durham CCG Rapid Specialist Opinion (RSO) service and identify the options to 
consider following the end of the pilot.

Patients are our primary concern.  The aim of RSO is to ensure patients are 
receiving the most appropriate treatment for their condition in the most appropriate 
place.

It is North Durham CCG’s responsibility to make efficient use of resources.  GPs 
have responsibility to make best use of NHS resources and need up to date 
evidence and advice to be able to treat patients in practice or refer on appropriately. 
Unnecessary outpatient appointments are a large cost to the NHS.  

The RSO model is based on the Referral Management Scheme (RMS) implemented 
by North Tyneside CCG.  North Tyneside CCG saw a reduction of 21.6% in 
unwarranted or in appropriate GP referrals into secondary care.  Prior to the 
implementation of RMS, North Tyneside CCG did not have any clinical guidelines in 
place and had no tier 2 service; their practices were not high users of the E-Referral 
System.
 
North Durham already has widely-used, regularly updated and easily available 
clinical support information (CSI) referral guidelines for all the specialties covered by 
the scheme. This should already be used by GPs, and would be used by the triage 
service.
 
Unlike North Tyneside CCG, North Durham CCG did not include Orthopaedics as a 
specialty as this is being covered by another project.  Orthopaedics for North 
Tyneside showed a 40% activity reduction.

The introduction of Referral Management Schemes such as the RSO scheme is 
supported by the guidance issued by NHS England ‘Demand Management Good 
Practice Guide’ issued in August 2016.

2. RSO Scheme

In July 2016 North Durham CCG Management Executive team supported the 
introduction of a Referral Management Scheme.  The scheme is known as the Rapid 
Specialist Opinion (RSO) service. RSO has been introduced to ensure practices 
follow clinical guidelines which have been agreed locally with GPs, hospital 
consultants and many other relevant practitioners.  All GPs within North Durham 
CCG are expected to use the CSI guidelines and the RSO scheme which has been 
implemented with the support of GPs and the Council of Members for North Durham 
CCG .  RSO will improve referral quality and ensure that all referrals follow the most 

Page 187



8

recent clinical guidelines.  This will ensure that patients are treated in the most 
appropriate way, first time.  

The scheme went live on the 17th October 2016 to run initially for one year as a pilot.  
In July 2017 Management Executive agreed to extend the scheme for a further six 
months to the 31st March 2018 to allow for an evaluation of the scheme and options 
to be considered following the evaluation. The options to consider following the one 
year pilot are included in section 11 of this report. 

RSO covers referrals for a specified range of specialties: 

 Dermatology,
 Ophthalmology, 
 ENT, 
 Gastroenterology, 
 Cardiology,
 Gynaecology. 

The scheme does not cover all referrals; very urgent and Cancer Two Week Wait 
referrals are specifically excluded from the scheme.   Referrals for secondary care 
which are not felt to be the most appropriate option, are returned via the e-referral 
system to the GP along with suggestions for an alternative pathway or treatment, or 
if appropriate referred to Tier 2. 

Members of the project team continue to support the whole process, communicate 
with practices, answer queries, liaise with triaging clinicians and specialist providers 
and keep the system up to date. 

3. Impact of RSO

The aim of RSO is to ensure patients are receiving the most appropriate treatment 
for their condition in the most appropriate place.

During the first 12 months, to October 2017, of the scheme 1,306 referrals have 
been returned to primary care with advice which would have been referred to 
secondary care.  The agreed clinical guidelines suggest that the most appropriate 
care would be within a Primary Care setting.  A further 1,536 referrals have been 
made to Tier 2 (GPSI – GP with special interest).  These patients have therefore 
received treatment in a more appropriate setting.

Although data is not recorded, the CCG has been made aware of some referrals, 
which following triage, were identified as needing a more urgent referral. RSO 
therefore enabled these patients to be referred more rapidly than if the scheme had 
not been in place.

There had been concern that there may be an increase in 2 week wait referrals as a 
way of avoiding using the RSO scheme (although practices are not mandated to use 
the scheme) in particular for Dermatology.  Graph 1 demonstrates the trend in 2 
week wait referrals prior to and following the implementation of the RSO scheme for 
Dermatology for CDDFT only.   It appears as though the proportion of GP-referred 

Page 188



9

dermatology referrals for two week wait at CDDFT has been increasing over time for 
most CCGs. There is no evidence to suggest the increase is solely due to RSO, 
there are a number of factors including skin cancer campaigns.

Graph 1

Feedback from the CCG’s main provider County Durham and Darlington Foundation 
Trust (CDDFT) has been positive and they are seeing benefits, in particular when 
they receive the referrals all documentation is attached to the referral where 
previously they would often have to chase referral letters and documentation.  

Consultants using the CSI guidance to review the referrals have commented on the 
high quality of the clinical guidelines which have been agreed locally with GPs, 
hospital consultants and many other relevant practitioners.

4. Clinical Issues

The CCG are keen to ensure that RSO has not had any adverse impact on patients 
although the CCG do not normally follow the outcome of individual patients care and 
therefore there are not systems available to track every patient.  To gather some 
evidence seven GP practices, covering approximately a third of the total of North 
Durham CCG population, participated in an audit to capture detail on referrals 
returned by RSO to primary care. No significant adverse clinical outcomes were 
identified in the cases that have been reviewed in this audit. A more detailed 
summary of the findings of the audit is available in Appendix 1.

An update was presented to the Confidential Section of the Joint Quality Committee 
in October 2017 and they confirmed they had no substantive concerns with RSO 
following the press article in September 2017 regards referral management.

Page 189



10

The CCG has not been made aware of any adverse clinical outcomes as a 
consequence of the RSO process and have no reason not to allow the service to 
continue from a safety or clinical effectiveness perspective.

  
5. Process Issues

The number of process issues arising since the last update to Management 
Executive has reduced significantly, however we are conscious that these issues can 
cause some inconvenience to patients and or practices.  Any issues that do arise 
continue to be investigated and resolved as quickly as possible.

As highlighted previously RSO has unearthed, but not caused, several other existing 
issues. Whenever possible the project team have either resolved these issues or 
highlighted them to other relevant parties to address where actions required are 
beyond the scope of the RSO project.  One example that is yet to be fully resolved 
includes working with Tier 2/Community service providers to make improvements to 
their appointment booking processes. 

There have been two occasions when system errors have resulted in delayed triage 
for some Gastroenterology and Ophthalmology referrals.  These issues were 
investigated and resolved promptly once identified. 

The CCG are not aware of any adverse clinical outcomes as a consequence of any 
of the process issues and have no reason not to allow the service to continue from a 
process perspective.

Issues with regards to the availability of data have now been rectified. The triaging 
provider have now been able to provide reports to monitor  triaging times against the 
2 working day target and no significant concerns have arisen from this.

Issues remain with regards to receiving management (non clinical) data from the 
booking provider; however there are no known issues with the time it is taking to 
book actual appointments.  The issues are in part due to limitations with the reporting 
functionality of the national E-referrals system and the capacity of the booking 
provider to be able to manage the alternative workaround.  

6. Practice Utilisation

Practice level data is limited, particularly due to the limitations of reporting 
functionality of the national E-referrals system.  However it has been possible to 
obtain data to compare CSI hits, RSO usage and GP referrals received into 
secondary care by practice and specialty.  On reviewing the most recent set of data 
no particular correlation between the CSI hit rate, RSO usage rate and GP referrals 
received rate appears to be emerging.  The data is still limited by time period and 
detail and therefore further information and analysis is required before any firm 
conclusions can be drawn.

Page 190



11

Clinical Support Information (CSI) Activity

The CSI system is a set clinical guidelines that have been compiled by local primary 
and secondary care clinicians. They offer advice on best practice and are to assist 
clinicians when they make decisions on the most appropriate treatment option to 
provide care for their patients. This assists with the overall management of referrals 
and demand on secondary care. The guidelines have been developed for and are 
available to GP practices in all three CCGs in County Durham and Darlington i.e. 
North Durham, DDES and Darlington CCGs. Since RSO went live activity on CSI 
has increased, Graph 2 shows the increase in CSI usage, as measured by clicks 
(hits) on individual online information buttons.  Data relating to CSI clicks is available 
up to 30th September 2017.  The average number of clicks over the 12 month period 
from October 2016 is 4,811 per month compared to an average of 2,943 for the 
same period in the previous year for North Durham CCG. The number of hits in 
December 2016 and January 2017 dropped, but this could be as a result of 
Christmas and Bank Holidays as demonstrated in Graph 2.  The increase in usage of 
CSI guidelines may also account for the referrals to RSO being lower than 
anticipated.

Graph 2: CSI Hits by Month

Table 1 below shows the comparison of CSI Hits and RSO usage (December 16 to 
August 17) and GP Referrals (comparing December 2015 to August 2016 to 
December 16 to August 2017) ordered by the reduction in the GP referrals received 
over the two time periods.  The green shading indicates where the practice is above 
the CCG average for weighted CSI clicks or weighted referrals triaged.

Page 191



12

Table 1: Practice Comparison of CSI Hits and RSO usage (December 16 to 
August 17) and GP Referrals (comparing December 2015 to August 2016 to 
December 16 to August 2017)

Row Labels

 Dec 16 - 
Aug 17 
Weighted 
CSI Clicks

 Dec 16 - 
Aug 17 
Weighted 
Referrals 
Triaged

 Dec 15 - 
Aug 16 
Weighted 
GP 
Referrals 
Received

 Dec 16 - 
Aug 17 
Weighted 
GP 
Referrals 
Received Difference

Dunelm Medical Practice 84.86 38.16 57.80 38.16 -19.64
Consett Medical Centre 23.11 34.65 52.69 37.58 -15.11
West Rainton Surgery 49.86 30.03 51.63 36.69 -14.94
Great Lumley Surgery 126.77 30.27 51.30 36.36 -14.94
Annfield Plain Surgery 59.53 25.19 46.68 31.86 -14.82
West Road Surgery 23.11 39.88 65.37 50.96 -14.40
Chastleton Medical Group 47.42 51.73 68.40 54.14 -14.26
Brandon Lane Surgery 141.68 21.25 46.05 32.27 -13.77
Bowburn Medical Centre 2.14 29.71 52.05 38.98 -13.07
Tanfield View Medical Group 32.05 47.89 58.47 45.91 -12.56
Browney House Surgery 20.88 74.07 71.04 58.58 -12.46
Oakfields Health Centre 11.81 9.57 54.76 42.75 -12.01
Queens Road Surgery 11.83 26.54 54.19 43.05 -11.14
Bridge End Surgery 131.55 50.05 55.56 46.16 -9.40
Cedars Medical Group 53.03 38.51 46.95 38.51 -8.44
Claypath & University Medical Group 29.22 24.91 48.09 39.70 -8.39
Middle Chare Medical Group (Dr Preston) 76.00 54.93 58.93 51.78 -7.15
Pelton & Fellrose Medical Group 174.91 37.57 44.58 37.47 -7.11
Belmont & Sherburn Medical Group 21.02 45.57 54.51 47.84 -6.67
The Medical Group 58.70 37.98 50.46 45.05 -5.41
Coxhoe Medical Practice 15.57 42.77 50.24 45.18 -5.06
Dipton Surgery 15.66 6.80 54.08 49.05 -5.02
Craghead Medical Centre 31.36 30.67 41.35 36.53 -4.82
Gardiner crescent surgery 24.91 36.31 51.50 46.86 -4.64
Stanley Medical Group 23.04 31.80 42.61 38.83 -3.78
Cestria Health Centre 122.16 43.33 51.38 47.79 -3.60
The Haven Surgery 23.27 13.50 24.20 25.13 0.93
Sacriston Medical Centre 130.95 28.12 41.81 43.59 1.78
Cheveley Park Medical Centre 79.89 17.45 45.68 50.73 5.05
Leadgate Surgery 64.60 0.46 38.58 45.01 6.43
Lanchester Medical Centre 48.37 65.89 47.54 57.13 9.59
Grand Total 1,759.25 1,065.54 1,578.47 1,339.61 -238.87
Average 56.75 34.37 50.92 43.21 -7.71

There are limitations in drawing any firm conclusions by comparing practices in the 
absence of a structured control group. There are a number of factors which could 
also impact on the number of practice referrals.

We continue to be grateful to practices for their feedback and information that has 
helped to resolve issues and refine the process. 

Information has also recently been received via the Demand Management Audit that 
was completed by all practices as part of the Primary Care Scheme 2017/18. 
Approximately two thirds of practices did not give any additional feedback with 
regards to RSO.  Approximately a third of practices provided additional feedback and 
opinion with regards to RSO. Where feedback was also received there were some 
negative comments, however there were also comments to say that, after a slow 
start and some initial process issues, it seemed to be working well now.

Patients can refuse to have their referrals processed through RSO.  Practices are 
asked to inform the CCG when this happens (the CCG does not request any 
personal or clinical details) although this relies on practices complying with our 
request to capture this data, therefore the data may not be reliable.

Page 192



13

7. Activity

There are a number of data sources available which provide information relating to 
the impact of RSO on activity levels.
  

 RSO Weekly Triage data
 Secondary Care provided referrals data
 Outpatient new attendance data
 Outpatient follow-up data
 Elective admission data
 Tier 2 activity data

RSO triage and Secondary Care referrals data is un-validated and therefore may not 
give an accurate position.  It is not possible to reconcile these two data sources as 
they each contain different data.  The RSO weekly triage data includes referrals to 
Tier 2 which will not be included in the Secondary Care referrals data.  

The RSO weekly data covers the 52 weeks from the go live date of 17th October 
2016 to the 13th October 2017, whereas the Secondary Care Referrals and 
outpatient data covers from the 1st October 2016 to the end of July 2017.

RSO Weekly Triage Data

Weekly data is received showing the number of referrals passing through the RSO 
scheme; this has allowed the CCG to assess the number of referrals being returned 
to practices with advice.  Table 2 provides a summary of the data up to week 
commencing 9th October 2017 (52 weeks of the scheme).  The table shows that 
there have been a total of 1,306 referrals returned to primary care with advice, 
equating to 9.73% over this period. The percentage returned to primary care has 
reduced since the scheme commenced, and is variable as demonstrated in graph 3.  
A reduction in the number of referrals returned to primary care is to be expected as 
GPs take on board the learning from advice provided and follow CSI guidance. 

Since the beginning of December 2016 we have also been receiving information on 
the number of referrals being referred to Tier 2 (GPSI).  1536 referrals have been 
made to Tier 2, 11.45% of the referrals triaged. Referrals redirected to tier 2 
represent a cost saving, and are consistent with the aim of providing community 
rather than hospital care.

Page 193



14

Table 2: Outcome of Triaged Referrals by Specialty for the 52 weeks to W/C 
09th October 2017 

Dermatology Ophthalmology ENT Gastroenterology Cardiology Gynaecology TOTAL
Number of Referrals Triaged 2629 3161 3398 1109 1166 1956 13419
Number Accepted as Secondary 
Care 1612 2316 2778 1017 1097 1757 10577
Number Returned to Primary 
Care with advice 160 701 160 92 69 124 1306
%Returned to Primary Care with 
advice 6.09% 22.18% 4.71% 8.30% 5.92% 6.34% 9.73%

Number Referred to Tier 2 (GPSI 857 144 460 0 0 75 1536
% Referred to Tier 2 (GPSI 32.60% 4.56% 13.54% 0.00% 0.00% 3.83% 11.45%

Graph 3 below demonstrates the decrease in referrals returned to primary care and 
the increase in referrals to Tier 2 (GPSI) and the number of referrals triaged by 
month.  Further graphs in Appendix 2 show the detail at specialty level. 

Graph 3: Monthly Triage Activity and Outcome

The number of referrals triaged on a weekly basis averages 258. There has been 
some fluctuation during December, January and April as demonstrated in Graph 3, 
which is due to Christmas and Bank Holidays. It should also be noted that the data in 
October 2016 and 2017 are for part months due to the scheme commencing mid-
month rather than the beginning of a month.

Although the average number of referrals being triaged each week has increased, 
the number is lower than originally anticipated.  The original data used to estimate 
referrals was based on GP referred First Out Patient attendances, this data will 
include fast track referrals (2 week wait cancer referrals and very urgent referrals) 
which are outside of the scope of RSO therefore over estimating the activity which 
would be covered by the scheme.  

Although we continue to monitor the weekly triage data it is does not provide the full 
picture of the reduction in referrals, some referrals continue to be made directly to 

Page 194



15

the provider. Practices are encouraged but not mandated to use RSO, we are also 
aware of potentially three practices not fully using the RSO process.   There is also 
anecdotal evidence that where referring clinicians are confident they have followed 
CSI guidelines they are bypassing RSO.

The number of referrals returned to Practice with advice continues to be around 10% 
which would suggest that the scheme continues to achieve the original aims but as 
expected the impact is reducing.  To maximise the future impact a decision would be 
needed on which specialties should continue to be included and whether or not 
additional specialties should be included.  This is discussed further in section 9.

Secondary Care Referrals Data

Secondary Care referral data is available up to 31st July 2017.  Based on the data 
provided, for the period RSO has been running, there has been an overall reduction 
in referrals of 13% across all six specialties within the scheme.   Table 3 shows the 
breakdown by specialty.

Based on the triage data you would expect a reduction in referrals of around 20% 
when you factor in the activity referred to Tier 2.  There are a number of factors 
which may account for the difference:

 The triage data and secondary care referrals data are looking at different time 
periods (secondary care referrals data is limited to 10 months),

 A proportion of the referrals returned to practice will still result in a referral to 
secondary care,

 The secondary care referrals data does not account for any expected growth 
which would further increase the reduction for this data source.

Table 3: Comparison of Referrals from Secondary Care Data 
October to July 
2015/16

October to July 
2016/17 Difference Variance

Cardiology 2,418 2,422 4 0%
Dermatology 2,062 1,478 -584 -28%
ENT 3,992 3,407 -585 -15%
Gastroenterology* 1,163 1,113 -50 -4%
Gynaecology 2,836 2,625 -211 -7%
Ophthalmology 3,851 3,203 -648 -17%
All Specialties 16,322 14,248 -2,074 -13%

This data excludes 2 week wait referrals.
*In previous  information  referra ls  for Gastroenterology fol lowing March 2017 has  been 
excluded due to  referra ls  for endoscopies  being included in the dataset by one 
provider.  The provider has  s ince provided a  flag in the data  a l lowing endoscopies  to be 
excluded.  The activi ty under this  specia l ty for the time period of Apri l  2017 to July 2017, 
with these endscopies  excluded, s i l l  shows  as  higher than we would expect.  This  has  
been veri fied by the provider, who s tated this  i s  the best they have in identi fying 
endoscopies  so they can be excluded but the data  qual i ty and accuracy has  been 
compromised.  Therefore, caution should be taken when scrtinis ing the data  for 
Gastroenterology referra ls .

Page 195



16

Secondary Care Activity Data

Tables 4, 5 and 6 show the changes in activity levels by point of delivery and 
specialty, of the six specialties included in the RSO scheme. This is validated via 
secondary uses service (SUS). Although this information is based on ‘frozen’ activity 
data it needs to be used with caution.  The data is taken from the first ten months of 
the scheme; realistically the scheme could not have impacted or would have had 
minimal impact on activity in the months of October or November for follow-up 
attendances or elective admissions.  

There are other factors which could impact on the actual activity including changes in 
waiting times for appointments and admissions.

Table 4: Comparison of New seen outpatient attendances including Outpatient 
Procedures

Overall there is a reduction of 8.3% in outpatient attendances, two specialties are 
showing increases in activity, Gastroenterology and Gynaecology as mentioned 
above there are other factors which could impact on the actual activity in particular 
the reduction in waiting time for appointments or additional capacity being made 
available by providers.  

Table 5: Comparison of Follow-up outpatient attendances including Outpatient 
Procedures

Outpatients Follow-up attendance
October 2015 
to July 2016

October 2016 
to July 2017 Difference

% 
Change

Cardiology 4,806 4,845 39 0.8%
Dermatology 8,168 7,901 267-           -3.3%
ENT 5,877 5,358 519-           -8.8%
Gastroenterology 3,328 3,229 99-            -3.0%
Gynaecology 5,220 5,010 210-           -4.0%
Ophthalmology 21,123 23,140 2,017 9.5%
All Specialties 48,522 49,483 961 2.0%

Overall there appears to be an increase in follow-up activity but this relates primarily 
to Ophthalmology.  There has been a change in the coding within Ophthalmology 
relating to Lucentis®.  The increase within outpatient follow-ups is offset by a 
reduction in Elective admissions shown in Table 6.  Excluding ophthalmology the 
overall reduction is 3.9%

Page 196



17

Table 6: Comparison of Elective admissions

Admitted care
October 2015 
to July 2016

October 2016 
to July 2017 Difference

% 
Change

Cardiology 789 681 108-           -13.7%
Dermatology 665 601 64-            -9.6%
ENT 713 668 45-            -6.3%
Gastroenterology 560 544 16-            -2.9%
Gynaecology 1,391 1,346 45-            -3.2%
Ophthalmology 4,192 3,076 1,116-        -26.6%
All Specialties 8,310 6,916 1,394-        -16.8%

The overall reduction in elective admissions is inflated by ophthalmology; the 
reduction excluding ophthalmology is 6.8%.

It should be noted that the percentage reductions are based on the comparison of 
actual activity for October 2015 to July 2016 to October 2016 to July 2017, the 
reductions do not account for any growth which was estimated to be 2%.

Tier 2 (GPSI) Activity

Table 2 above shows that 1,536 referrals have been made to Tier 2 (GPSI) services, 
which equates to 11.45% of the referrals triaged.   Overall the activity data to the end 
of July 2017 for these services shows an increase of 5.5%.  The percentage change 
varies by service:

 Gynaecology increase of 15.9%
 Ophthalmology increase of 64.5%
 ENT increase of 21.5%
 Dermatology/Skin Surgery increase of 1.26%

The increase previously observed in Dermatology has reduced; at March 2017 an 
increase of 16.83% was reported.  As a result of RSO the requirement to have a 
Prior Approval Ticket (PAT) for some procedures is more closely monitored which 
may have resulted in this reduction.

Although the actual activity data available is limited to ten months the information 
suggests that since the introduction of RSO there has been a reduction in outpatient 
attendances and elective admissions. 

The increase in Tier 2 activity suggests patients are receiving treatment in a more 
appropriate setting, often closer to home.

8. Financial Impact

Table 7 shows the potential impact based on 52 weeks triage data to week 
commencing 9th October 2017.  The impact includes potential savings relating to 
follow-up appointments and elective admissions based on the new to review ratios 
and the conversion rates for each specialty.  The following assumptions were applied 
in these calculations to account for referral to treatment time:

Page 197



18

 Reductions in outpatient first attendances should have materialised from mid 
November 2016 

 Reductions in outpatient follow-up attendances should have materialised from 
mid December 2016

 Reductions in elective admissions should have materialised from January 
2017 

Table 7: Potential Financial Impact based on 12 months Triage Information
Potential savings Based on 52 weeks RSO data Dermatology Ophthalmology ENT Gastroenterology Cardiology Gynaecology TOTAL

Potential New appointment savings over 12 months 21,280 97,439 19,200 17,296 10,833 19,716 185,764
Potential review savings over 12 months 18,071 68,553 9,738 9,530 2,409 8,193 116,494
Potential inpatient savings over 12 months based on 18 week 
RTT 34,691 275,773 49,138 19,872 13,538 52,923 445,935
Potential savings from Tier 2 36,851 20,016 20,240 - - 2,700 79,807
Potential Total savings over 12 months 110,893 461,781 98,316 46,698 26,780 83,532 828,000

The figures shown in table 7 are based purely on triage information there may be 
additional savings as a result of RSO now encouraging clinicians to follow guidance 
and not actually making a referral.  The potential financial impact based on actual 
referrals is shown in table 8; only ten months referrals information is available.

Table 8: Potential Financial Impact based on 10 months Referrals Information
Potential savings Based on 9 months Referrals data Dermatology Ophthalmology ENT Gastroenterology Cardiology Gynaecology TOTAL

Potential New appointment savings over 12 months 103,563 120,096 93,600 12,533 837 44,732 375,361
Potential review savings over 12 months 87,944 84,493 47,473 6,906 186 18,588 245,590
Potential inpatient savings over 12 months based on 18 week 
RTT 168,831 339,898 239,546 14,400 1,046 120,073 883,793
Potential savings from Tier 2 36,851 20,016 20,240 - - 2,700 79,807
Potential Total savings over 12 months 360,337 544,487 380,619 33,839 2,070 183,393 1,584,552

As mentioned under Secondary Care Activity Data in section 7 there have been 
reductions in activity at all points of delivery and although this information needs to 
be taken with caution an element of the savings may be due to other factors rather 
than the impact of RSO.  Tables 9, 10 and 11 show the financial savings during the 
first ten months of the scheme by point of delivery and specialty, for the six 
specialties included in the RSO scheme.  

Table 9: Financial Comparison of New seen outpatient attendances including 
Outpatient Procedures

 

Outpatient First Attendance
October 2015 
to July 2016

October 
2016 to 

July 2017 Difference % Change
Cardiology 474,319 421,374 52,945-     -11.2%
Dermatology 231,356 208,543 22,813-     -9.9%
ENT 407,486 370,461 37,025-     -9.1%
Gastroenterology 267,598 287,294 19,696 7.4%
Gynaecology 590,430 623,169 32,738 5.5%
Ophthalmology 698,012 556,197 141,815-   -20.3%
All Specialties 2,669,201 2,467,037 202,164-   -7.6%

Page 198



19

The increase in costs for Gastroenterology and Gynaecology reflect the increase in 
activity showing in table 4 above.

Table 10: Financial Comparison of Follow-up outpatient attendances including 
Outpatient Procedures

Outpatient Follow-up Attendance
October 2015 
to July 2016

October 
2016 to 

July 2017 Difference % Change
Cardiology 484,990 457,195 27,794-     -5.7%
Dermatology 593,483 556,620 36,862-     -6.2%
ENT 477,876 414,799 63,077-     -13.2%
Gastroenterology 362,049 305,704 56,345-     -15.6%
Gynaecology 495,112 447,879 47,233-     -9.5%
Ophthalmology 1,651,449 1,891,550 240,101 14.5%
All Specialties 4,064,958 4,073,748 8,789 0.2%

Ophthalmology is an outlier showing an increase in activity.  Excluding 
Ophthalmology the percentage decrease for outpatient’s follow-up attendances is 
9.6%

Table 11: Financial Comparison of Elective admissions

Admitted patients
October 2015 
to July 2016

October 
2016 to 

July 2017 Difference % Change
Cardiology 1,170,355 1,072,797 97,558-     -8.3%
Dermatology 425,024 378,931 46,093-     -10.8%
ENT 1,036,570 1,015,801 20,769-     -2.0%
Gastroenterology 331,014 311,815 19,199-     -5.8%
Gynaecology 1,484,252 1,339,592 144,660-   -9.7%
Ophthalmology 2,502,675 2,041,822 460,853-   -18.4%
All Specialties 6,949,891 6,160,759 789,132-   -11.4%

Table 12 shows a summary of the actual total savings against the specialties 
included in the scheme for the ten months to the end July 2017 and a forecast for 12 
months based on this information by Point of Delivery; as mentioned previously not 
all of these savings can be attributed to RSO but we have no way of determining the 
actual reductions purely attributable to the scheme.  With the exception of 
Gastroenterology and Gynaecology Outpatient first attendances, all specialties have 
savings at all points of delivery. Excluding Ophthalmology the percentage decrease 
for elective admissions is 7.4%.  The increase in cost for Ophthalmology in Follow- 
up attendances in table 9 reflects changes in the charging of Lucentis® and is offset 
by the reduction in Elective Admissions shown in table10.  Note that follow-up 
attendances in table 9 include every patient already under regular review from before 
the start of the scheme.

Page 199



20

Table 12: Financial Comparison of all Points of Delivery for 10 months to the 
end July 2017 and 12 month forecast

October 2015 
to July 2016  

£

October 2016 
to July 2017  

£
Difference  

£ % Change

 October 
2015 to 

September 
2016  £ 

 October 2016 
to July 2017 + 
Estimate for  

August & 
September  £ 

Difference  
£ % Change

Outpatients First 2,669,201.24 2,467,037 202,164-   -7.6% 3,214,564 2,985,520 229,043-   -7.1%
Outpatients Follow-up 4,064,958 4,073,748 8,789 0.2% 4,912,226 4,779,707 132,518-   -2.7%
Elective 2,103,261 1,931,087 172,174-   -8.2% 2,520,797 2,293,706 227,091-   -9.0%
Daycase 4,846,630 4,229,672 616,958-   -12.7% 5,640,853 4,958,972 681,882-   -12.1%
Total 13,684,050 12,701,543 982,507-   -7.2% 16,288,439 15,017,905 1,270,534- -7.8%

Nine months 12 month Forecast

Graph 4 demonstrates that there has been greater reductions in expenditure in the 
later months of the scheme therefore the estimated expenditure of August and 
September is based on the average expenditure for April to July 2017 rather than the 
full ten months.

Graph 4 Total Expenditure by month October 2016 to July 2017

The financial impact calculated based on actual activity of £1,270,534 is higher than 
the predicted impact based on the RSO Triage data of £828,000 but lower than that 
based on the Referrals data of £1,584,552.  This variance is to be expected as the 
values calculated based on the RSO Triage and Referrals data are based on a 
number of assumptions as explained above.  The actual activity data may also 
include the impact of other factors including case mix and waiting times.  

The secondary care reduction in cost will take into account the reduction in activity 
as a result of the increased referrals to Tier 2 the cost of which is estimated to be 
£82,190.

As mentioned in section 7 it should be noted that the reductions in cost are based on 
the comparison of actual costs for October 2015 to July 2016 to October 2016 to July 
2017, the reductions do not account for any growth which was estimated to be 2%.

Page 200



21

Costs

The costs incurred to manage the RSO scheme for 12 months total £206,000.  

Despite caveats the RSO scheme has had a significant beneficial financial impact.  
The calculations for Secondary Care Activity are based on actual activity data 
therefore this net financial impact of £982,344 shown in Table 13 is the most reliable.

Table 13: Summary of the Financial Impact

Triage Data Referrals Data
Secondary 

Care Activity
£ £ £

Estimated 12 month reduction in cost 828,000 1,584,552 1,270,534
Cost of Additional Tier 2 Activity 82,190 82,190 82,190
Cost of Triage 206,000 206,000 206,000
Net Financial Impact 539,810 1,296,362 982,344

9. Review of Specialties

Existing Specialties

When considering the GP referral and outpatient new seen attendance data for the 
period October 2016 to July 2017 compared to October 2015 to July 2016 at a 
specialty level, see Table 3 and 4, the largest reductions in activity can be seen in 
Dermatology, Ophthalmology and ENT.

For Gastroenterology there is a small reduction in GP referrals, however a small 
increase in outpatient new seen attendances, however as previously outlined there 
are some concerns with regards to the accuracy of the data for this specialty. 

During implementation stage there was consideration given to include referrals to 
Upper GI within RSO, however after discussion with CDDFT it was agreed this would 
not be included from the outset as these referrals are classed as diagnostics as 
opposed to outpatients and the current referral method is via a faxed proforma rather 
than E-referrals and other services being referred to under RSO were for outpatient 
services and made via E-referrals. There was also a concern raised by CDDFT that 
including upper GI referrals within RSO could increase their risk of failing to meet the 
6 week diagnostic wait target that had previously been under pressure. 
Consideration could now be given to include upper GI referrals in future however it is 
worth noting further work would be required to implement this fully as the method of 
referral would need to be changed from fax to E-referrals in addition to the other 
steps that would be required when introducing a new speciality or service within 
RSO. Upper GI is potentially an area that could see significant savings as treatment 
is categorised as an outpatient procedure and this incurs a higher cost than an 
outpatient attendance.    

For Cardiology, there is a small reduction in outpatient new seen attendances, 
however a very small increase in GP referrals. When considering the outcome of 
triaged referrals data, see Table 2, for Cardiology a relatively small number (69) and 

Page 201



22

small percentage (5.92%) of referrals reviewed have been returned to primary care 
with advice and there are no local Cardiology services to be considered as an 
alternative to secondary care. When considering the triage cost of the volume of 
Cardiology referrals that have been triaged during 52 weeks (£11,660) against the 
potential savings identified in the potential financial impact Tables 7 and 8 which are 
based on estimates as detailed in section 8. Depending upon what actual savings 
result it may be that the cost of triaging cardiology referrals is greater than the 
savings generated. 

For Gynaecology there is a small reduction in GP referrals, however a small increase 
in outpatient new seen attendances.  As mentioned in section 7 there has been an 
increase in Tier 2 activity for Gynaecology. Work is currently underway within the 
gynaecology project to consider if there are pathways and service changes that 
could help reduce referrals into secondary care. 
Comparison of GP referrals per 10,000 populations for the six specialties within RSO 
across the ten CCGs with the North East Region are shown in Appendix 3. Table 14 
summarises the movement and change in rate since the implementation of RSO.  
The lower positions are deemed to be move favourable.

Table 14: Comparison of GP referrals per 10,000 populations for the six 
specialties within RSO across the CCGs with the North East Region
Specialty Position October 2016 Postion August 2017 Movement in Positon Change in Rate
Cardiology 4th lowest 5th lowest Increase Increase
Dermatology Joint 3rd lowest 2nd lowest Decrease Decrease
ENT 3rd lowest 3rd lowest No movement Decrease
Gastroenterology 3rd lowest 4th lowest Increase Increase
Gynaecology 3rd lowest 3rd lowest No movement No movement
Opthalmology 4th highest Lowest Decrease Decrease

It can be difficult to draw any conclusions when comparing North Durham CCG with 
other CCGs as each may have different care pathways and services in their areas.  
The information indicates that from this comparison four of the six specialties have 
improved either in change in position and or change in rate.  Although 
Gastroenterology does not show favourable movement in position or change in rate 
we are aware of data issues with this specialty as explained in section 7 (table 3).

If RSO is to continue beyond 31st March 2018 consideration should be given to with 
which of the existing specialties are to continue and with which are to cease going 
forward. Given the above it is recommended five specialties remain i.e. 
Dermatology, Ophthalmology, ENT, Gynaecology and Gastroenterology, (possibly 
introducing upper GI), and one specialty, Cardiology, is removed from RSO as from 
1st April 2018. 

New Specialties

Consideration could also be given to introducing new specialties.  Table 15 and 
graph 5 show the GP referral activity by specialty for the top 20 specialties 
comparing October 2015 to July 2016 to October 2016 to July 2017.
 

Page 202



23

Graph 5: Top 20 Specialty Comparison October 2015 to July 2016 to October 
2016 to July 2017

Table 15: Top 20 Specialty Comparison October 2015 to July 2016 to October 
2016 to July 2017

Page 203



24

CDDFT have previously requested Colorectal be included in RSO and CSI, 
guidelines have been worked up to allow this. These guidelines are now in their final 
stages of completion alongside guidelines for General Surgery. 

Urology and Neurology are two more specialties that have been highlighted 
previously as potential specialties for inclusion and activity data indicates there 
would be a sufficient volume of activity to make it viable to include. The CSI 
guidelines for Urology and Neurology are also currently under development.

Table 16 below shows the potential impact of including the suggested specialties 
General Surgery, Colorectal, Urology and Neurology.  Due to data issues Colorectal 
activity is included within General Surgery for some provides.

Table 16: Potential Impact of Proposed Specialties General Surgery, 
Colorectal, Urology and Neurology

Treatment Function 
Name

Outpatients First 
attendance 
(including 

procedures)

Outpatients 
Follow-up 
attendance 
(including 

procedures)

Admitted care

Outpatients 
First 

attendance 
(including 

procedures)

Outpatients 
Follow-up 
attendance 
(including 

procedures)

Admitted care

Outpatients 
First 

attendance 
(including 

procedures)
£

Outpatients 
Follow-up 
attendance 
(including 

procedures)
£

Admitted care
£

Total
£

All acute providers
General Surgery 6,665 12,162 4,249 -553 -474 -289 -90,168 -33,202 -577,536 -700,907
Urology 3,492 6,829 2,801 -290 -266 -190 -29,273 -14,382 -194,432 -238,088
Colorectal Surgery 170 515 166 -14 -20 -11 -2,022 -1,285 -20,520 -23,827
Neurology 1,235 2,453 -102 -96 0 -18,960 -9,853 -28,813
Totals 11,562 21,959 7,216 -960 -856 -491 -140,424 -58,722 -792,489 -991,635

Extimated 12mths based on Oct 2016 to July 2017 Potential Activity Reduction Potential Financial impact

Pain Management is another specialty that has been discussed previously for 
possible inclusion, however given there will soon be a single point of access for all 
referrals to pain management, there is no longer a need to consider including this 
specialty at this point in time. The single point of access will be monitored on an 
ongoing basis. 

Rheumatology is another of the higher volume specialties in Table 15 above that 
could potentially be considered, however work is currently underway within the 
Rheumatology project to consider if there are pathway and service changes that 
could help reduce referrals into secondary care, so it may be appropriate to await the 
outcome of this work before considering this further.

If RSO is to continue beyond 31st March 2018  and subject to CSI guidelines being 
available, it is recommended Colorectal and General Surgery are introduced into 
RSO as soon as practical, followed by Urology.  Neurology could also be included, 
although the information in Table 15 indicates that referrals to this specialty have 
reduced by 13.4% and there may be little further benefit by including the specialty. 

It should be noted the introduction of additional new specialties will require further 
set up work, the volume and timescales of which will be dependent upon the 
specialties chosen. In addition, it is also worth noting a significant amount of the set 
up work will need to be carried out by the triaging provider. It is anticipated the 
existing provider may be reluctant to carry out this work unless they knew they were 
going to be continuing to provide the triage service in future, and this will be subject 
to the outcome of the regional procurement.

Page 204



25

10. Trauma and Orthopaedics and Matrix

During the implementation phase it was agreed not to include Trauma and 
Orthopaedics specialty in Phase 1 of RSO, and leave these referrals to go through 
the MSK Tier 2 triage in accordance with the revised MSK referral pathway that 
came into effect on 2nd February 2017. If this proved not to be successful, it should 
be considered for inclusion in the future.

More recently is has been suggested North Durham CCG should consider utilising 
the approach DDES CCG have introduced to help manage referrals to Trauma and 
Orthopaedics, which is using Matrix to triage referrals. This service commenced on 
7th February 2017.  

Analysis has been carried out using GP referrals data received directly from local 
acute providers, (excluding Spire), to compare activity levels for specialties covered 
by RSO and other specialties not covered by RSO. The data excludes Spire as their 
referral data has only been received from April 2016 onwards, so as their data is not 
available for all months included in the report, it has been excluded completely as if 
were included, it would create an incorrect variance. 

This analysis shows a 21.2% reduction in GP referrals to Trauma and Orthopaedics 
when comparing the period October 2016 to July 2017 with October 2015 to July 
2016. See table 15 and graph 5.

The actual and percentage variances for Trauma and Orthopaedics from earlier 
editions of this data are also shown in Table 17.

Table 17: Comparison of three years Trauma and Orthopaedics GP Referrals 
Data
GP referrals, 
Trauma and 
Orthopaedics

Activity Activity Variance % Variance

Oct 15 to Mar 16 
compared to Oct 
16 to Mar 17

1,817 1,988 171 9.4%

Oct 15 to Jun 16 
compared to Oct 
16 to Jun 17

3,058 2,692 -366 -12.0%

Oct 15 to Jul 16 
compared to Oct 
16 to Jul 17

2,999 2,363 -636 -21.2%

Further analysis has been carried out using GP referrals data received directly from 
local acute providers, (excluding Spire), to compare activity levels for specialties 
covered by RSO and Trauma and Orthopaedics with North Durham CCG and DDES 
CCG and other CCGs within the North East region. 

Graph 6 shows the rolling six months of rate per 10,000 populations of GP referrals, 
excluding two week waits for Trauma and Orthopaedics, over the two year period 

Page 205



26

September 2015 to August 2017. By the end of this time period North Durham CCG 
had the lowest rate in comparison to all other CCGs. It is also worth noting DDES 
CCG had the highest rate at the start of the period and the third highest by the end.

Graph 6: Trauma and Orthopaedics by CCG

Graph 7 shows the rate per 10,000 populations of GP referrals, excluding two week 
waits for Trauma and Orthopaedics over the two year period September 2015 to 
August 2017. It indicates the rate for North Durham CCG is consistency lower than 
DDES CCG over this time period. 

Graph 7: Trauma and Orthopaedics North Durham and DDES CCG

As Spire has historically been North Durham CCGs second largest provider of 
Orthopaedic services further information has been gathered to consider this provider. 
Outpatient new seen attendance data has been extracted from RAIDR and reviewed 

Page 206



27

by NECS. This data precedes April 2016 and allows us to compare North Durham 
CCG Trauma and Orthopaedic activity carried out by the main local acute providers, 
including Spire. See Graph 8

Graph 8: Trauma and Orthopaedic Outpatient New Seen Activity by provider

 

This chart indicates although Orthopaedic attendances at County Durham and 
Darlington NHS Foundation Trust are showing a downward trend, this is not being 
offset by an increase at other providers, most notably Spire. 

Early indications suggest that GP referrals to MSK Tier 2 are increasing which may 
be consistent with the MSK Pathway going live in February 2017 in North Durham, 
however further analysis is underway within the MSK project.

It can be difficult to draw any conclusions when comparing North Durham CCG with 
other CCGs as each may have different care pathways and services in their areas, 
however given the data above, at this time it is recommended that North Durham 
CCG do not include referrals to Trauma and Orthopaedics in RSO and do not 
introduce Matrix to triage these referrals. 

Given that Matrix and the Tier 2 MSK Pathway both went live in February 2017 it 
would beneficial to review the position when another three to six months data is 
available. Within this time period the MSK project team will have carried out a more 
in depth analysis as part of the work to progress an integrated model.

10. Other items for consideration

Increase Utilisation
When comparing weekly triage activity data received from About Health with the GP 
referrals data received directly from local acute providers and referrals data received 
directly from the local community services for the six specialties currently covered by 
RSO, it appears overall approximately 62% of referrals received by these providers 

Page 207



28

have been through RSO. This percentage varies from specialty to specialty as 
demonstrated in Table 18. (Two week wait referrals have not been included in the 
referrals data used for this analysis). 

Table 18: Percentage of GP Referrals Triaged through RSO

This would suggest approximately 38% of referrals are not being processed via 
RSO. 

Practices have been asked to inform the CCG when referrals are made outside of 
RSO by sending basic, non-patient identifiable data, to the generic RSO email 
address when this occurs. Since the start of the scheme until early November 2017, 
the CCG have only been notified of 40 such cases. Half of these cases were 
reported as being due to patient refusal and the other half for some other reason. 
Based on the feedback received via the Demand Management Audit as part of the 
Primary Care Scheme 2017/18 were aware of three practices that are not fully using 
RSO and two that are using it but with some restrictions. It is unlikely that the volume 
of referrals generated from these practices, alongside the 40 cases referred to 
above, make up the 38%. It may be that encouraging further uptake and usage of 
RSO is another option to consider further refining and reducing referral activity, 
although there is a risk this may be met with some resistance.

Regional procurement
A regional procurement is currently underway to commission referral management 
triage services. The intention is for the successful provider to be delivering the 
service for CCGs as from 1st April 2018. North Durham CCG has expressed interest 
in being in the scope of this procurement.  It is likely that the timelines for the 
procurement will be revised.

Primary Care Homes
The concept of Primary Care Homes has recently come to the forefront of 
discussions. It is suggested how Demand Management fits into Primary Care Homes 
needs to be considered alongside any decision that is made with regards to triaging 

Page 208



29

services and RSO.  RSO could still be a useful tool for practices to manage referrals, 
although if it is not mandated practices may be a reluctant to continue to use the 
scheme, resulting in lower through put.  This would reduce the cost of triage but the 
block cost for onward referrals would remain unless there is a step change.  When 
RSO was offered to Primary Care Home groups within Durham Dales, Easington 
and Sedgefield CCG (DDES) they declined the implementation as they felt they 
could achieve similar results by different means within their group.

Alternative options
At the point of the previous evaluation and presentation to Management Executive it 
was agreed to extend RSO until 31st March 2018 during which time alternative 
options for referral management would be considered. RSO project team members 
joined GP Federation leads in their meeting in September 2017 to discuss demand 
management. At this time, GP Federation Leads expressed limited interest in 
providing a triaging service similar to RSO due to limitations on their existing 
capacity and they felt it unlikely they would be able to complete against other 
providers in a future procurement process.  Further dialogue will be had with one 
federation regarding an alternative model.

11. Options going forward

RSO has been successful in ensuring patients receive care in the most appropriate       
setting, 1,306 referrals have been returned to primary care with advice for an 
alternative pathway.  There has been an increase in Tier 2 activity with 1,536 
referrals going through RSO to these services.  

There has been reductions in activity at all points of delivery generating a reduction in 
cost of £982,507 in ten months which gives forecast savings of £1,270,534 over 12 
months and although this information needs to be taken with caution an element of 
the savings will have been as a result of RSO.  

Based on the evidence within this report there are three options to be considered for 
the future of the RSO scheme.

Option 1 – Continue with the current RSO scheme in its current format
 The scheme is already established and therefore this would be a seamless 

transition.  
 There is a possibility that if we continue with only the same specialties, there 

will be a diminishing return, as GPs take on board the advice and follow CSI 
guidelines, and learn previous lessons, so the referral rejection rate may 
decline.

 However, ongoing triage and scrutiny of referrals is likely to maintain a lower 
baseline level of referrals than was previously the case.

 To ensure effectiveness the scheme would need to be monitored and reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. 

Option 2 – Continue with the current RSO scheme with additional specialties 
and review the current specialties.

 The scheme is already established and therefore the processes are in place to 
expand. 

Page 209



30

 The introduction of additional specialties and review of initial specialties could 
maximize the financial benefits of the scheme.

 To ensure effectiveness the scheme would need to be monitored and reviewed 
on an ongoing basis.

If options one or two is taken forward the RSO scheme may need to be adapted if 
Primary Care Homes evolve.   

Option 3 – Discontinue RSO with no alternative other than Advice and 
Guidance provided by Foundation Trusts 

 The Advice and Guidance (A&G) scheme has recently gone live with CDDFT 
and therefore, there is no feedback from the service at the time of this report.

 The opinion of an independent clinician without conflict of interest may be lost.  
 We have no offer or guarantee that A&G could be used to triage the same 

level of referrals (approximately 250 per week), or if this was scaled up to all 
16 specialties (possibly 600-700 per week).

 Not all providers are currently offering A&G.

About Health currently provide the triage element of the RSO scheme, procurement is 
planned for the provision of the triage service for the CCGs who currently use this, 
including North Durham CCG.  The successful provider will take on the triage service 
from 1st April 2018 for all CCGs currently using the existing provider.  There could be 
a sub option to Options 1 and 2 should we decide to procure a service individually 
although we would lose any benefit of being part of a wider group of users of the 
service.

12. Recommendation

Executives in Common are asked to:
 Consider the report,
 Note the impact of the North Durham CCG Rapid Specialist Opinion Scheme,
 Discuss the options going forward and consider option 2 ‘Continue with the 

current RSO scheme with additional specialties and review the current 
specialties’ to be the recommended option,

 Confirm that Trauma and Orthopaedics is excluded for RSO at this time,
 Acknowledge that if RSO continues resource will be required to support the 

procurement process,
 Acknowledge that GP Federations had little appetite for providing an 

alternative scheme.

Author: Barbara Harker, Finance & Performance Manager, North Durham CCG
Sponsor: Mike Brierley, Director of Corporate Programmes, Delivery and 

Operations
Date: November 2017

Page 210



31

Appendix 1

Conclusions from RSO Clinical Audit

7 GP practices participated in an audit to capture detail on referrals returned by RSO 
to GP practices during the 7 week period 14th Aug 2017 to 29th Sep 2017.
These 7 GP practices cover approximately a third of the total of North Durham CCG 
population.
22 referrals were returned to practices during this audit period.

It is thought the number of rejections seen in the audit is lower than may have been 
expected when compared to the forecast number rejections based on patterns 
derived from the weekly activity data for North Durham CCG as a whole, however it 
is believed the results are representative of the wider experience.

The returns were reviewed and collated into three categories as follows:

Improved information
36% of the referrals rejected were returned so further information or pre-referral 
work-up could be completed. These had already been subsequently re-referred, or it 
is likely they will be in the future. This however would still be of benefit to the patient 
as any subsequent referral will be with improved information which should help 
ensure the overall pathway of care is shorter, more efficient and more appropriate for 
these patients.

Community care
32% of the referrals reviewed had alternative recommendations for care within a 
community setting suggested. The final outcome of trying these alternatives is not 
known at the time of this audit however it is hoped that onward referral to secondary 
care will have potentially been avoided and the community care successful.

Redirect to right service (GIRFT- get it right first time)
32% of the referrals reviewed were returned advising patients should be seen in a 
different secondary care setting to that which was originally proposed. This should 
mean the patient will be seen in the right place, first time rather than having been 
sent to an inappropriate service only to be later returned to practice, or referred on 
again from one consultant to another. 
In three of these cases the referrals were returned with advice that the patients 
needed to be seen more urgently than had originally been recognized and so the 
patients should have been seen even sooner than had RSO not been in place, 
therefore potentially significantly improving the pathway of care for these patients.

No significant adverse clinical outcomes were identified in the cases that have been 
reviewed in this audit.

Appendix 2

Page 211



32
Page 212



33
Page 213



34

Appendix 3

Page 214



35
Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee

19 January 2018

Decommissioning of Stroke Support 
Service by County Durham and Darlington 
CCGs Update
Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Partnerships and 
Transformation

Purpose

1. To provide the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
with further information in respect of the proposed decommissioning of the 
stroke support service currently provided by the Stroke Association across 
County Durham and Darlington CCGs. 

Background

2. At its meeting held on 3 April 2017, the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee considered representations by Peter Moore, Regional 
Director of the Stroke Association regarding proposals by County Durham and 
Darlington CCGs to decommission the stroke support service provided by the 
Stroke Association.

3. At the meeting, Sarah Burns, Director of Commissioning, Durham Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield CCG advised members of the rationale behind the 
decision to serve the Stroke Association with a de-commissioning notice. She 
advised members that the CCGs had not viewed the proposed change as a 
substantial variation or significant service development and therefore no formal 
consultation with the Committee had been undertaken.

4. Members of the Committee agreed that, in view of the fact that the de-
commissioning notice had been served on a service that potentially affected a 
significant number of residents across County Durham, this did constitute a 
substantial change and the Committee should have been consulted.

5. Accordingly, the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee:-

“ Resolved :

(i) That the report be received.
(ii) That a further, more detailed report be brought back to the Committee 

which includes details of service user and carer engagement undertaken 
as part of the decommissioning process, the rationale behind the 
proposed change in service model including evidence from Stroke 

Page 217

Agenda Item 9



service practitioners and the impact assessment undertaken as part of 
the decommissioning process.”

6. In accordance with the recommendations made by the Adults Wellbeing and 
Health OSC detailed above, representatives of North Durham CCG and 
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG attended the Committee on 7 
July 2017 and provided members with a presentation to members detailing the 
service user and carer engagement undertaken as part of the decision to 
decommission the stroke support service.

7. Representations were also received from County Durham Healthwatch in 
respect of the de-commissioning proposals.

8. At the meeting, members were advised that the CCG had agreed to a further 
contract extension to allow for more detailed engagement to be undertaken in 
association with stroke patients, carers and their families which would include 
Durham Healthwatch to assess the service currently provided and to examine 
potential future service model options available which would enable 
performance standards to be improved.

9. The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
subsequently “ Resolved : That the report be received and a further report 
detailing the findings of the engagement process and options for future service 
provision be brought back to the November meeting of the Committee.”

10.  During an update report to the Committee’s meeting on 9 November 2017, 
Sarah Burns, Director of Commissioning, DDES CCG advised members that 
the a service review had commenced in November 2017 following a 2 month 
engagement exercise undertaken with patients, families, carers and stroke 
groups. A total of 155 surveys had been received and options for the future 
development of the service were being prepared following consideration of the 
feedback received.

11.As a consequence, the existing service contract had been extended further to 
31 March 2018.

Latest Position

12.Following the engagement exercise DDES CCG have prepared a report 
setting out proposals for the future of the stroke support service and Sarah 
Burns, Director of Commissioning, DDES CCG will present to members the 
findings from the engagement exercise and the proposed service model that 
has been developed.

13.A copy of the report together with the Healthwatch Engagement report are 
attached to this report (Appendices 2 and 3). 

Page 218



Recommendation

14.Members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are requested to receive this report and consider and comment on 
the presentation and the information contained therein.

Background Papers

Report and Minutes of the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 3 April 2017, 7 July 2017 and 9 November 2017.

Contact and Author: Stephen Gwillym, Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer Tel: 
03000 268140

Page 219



Finance – None

Staffing - None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – None

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder – None

Human Rights - None

Consultation – Details of the consultation and engagement undertaken as part of the 
review are detailed within the attached report of DDES CCG.

Procurement - None

Disability Issues – None

Legal Implications – None

Appendix 1:  Implications

Page 220



Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

19 January 2018

Update Report for Stroke Association Support Services 
provided to County Durham CCGs (North Durham and 
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCGs) 

Purpose

To provide the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
further information in respect of Stroke Association Support Services, engagement 
activity and future of the service across County Durham CCGs.

Background

1. At the meeting held on Wednesday 7 July 2017, the Adults Wellbeing and 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee resolved that a further, more 
detailed report be brought back to the Committee to include details of service 
user and carer engagement undertaken as part of the commissioning 
process, the rationale behind the proposed change in the service model 
including evidence from Stroke service practitioners and the impact 
assessment undertaken as part of the decommissioning process.

2. In March 2017, North Durham and Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
CCG’s advised the Stroke Association that support services were no longer 
going to be commissioned from the organisation, giving the CCG the 
opportunity to re-focus stroke services for patients in County Durham.  

3. The need to re-focus services was important as performance against one of 
the key national targets for stroke patients (percentage having a review six 
months after experiencing a stroke) was very poor.  This target is important as 
it identifies any ongoing needs a patient may have or additional support they 
may require.

4. Following discussions at the Durham Adult Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee it was agreed that the CCGs would extend the arrangements with 
the Stroke Association and undertake an engagement exercise with stroke 
patients to help shape the new clinical services. The engagement was 

Page 221



undertaken by HealthWatch County Durham (HWCD) with significant support 
from DDES and ND CCGs communications and engagement team. The 
engagement exercise ran for 12 weeks from August 2017 to October 2017.

5.

Engagement

An engagement exercise was undertaken with stroke patients starting in September 
2017.  Information packs including a letter, a questionnaire and a freepost envelope 
were sent to stroke patients via their GP practice. The survey was also available on 
line via survey monkey and this closed on October 12th. A total of 155 surveys were 
received. A copy of the report is attached.  

The key Healthwatch recommendations based on the engagement work for 
commissioners to consider as part of their development of new services are:

• There needs to be a clear pathway of support for patients who have strokes. 
This should include support for those who suffer from TIA

• All patients should be given a care plan, either on discharge or shortly after 
they return home. Care plans should be discussed with patient and carers to 
help them understand what support can be provided. These plans should be 
person-centred and appropriate for the needs of the individual, we recognise 
that some will be very simple, but that personalised plans will be more useful 
than just being given a leaflet

• There should be clear and simple literature given to patients, families and 
carers information about the support available in their locality. This should 
include emotional/mental wellbeing support as many patients told us they had 
struggled emotionally to come to terms with the effects the stroke had on their 
lives.

• Patients should be given advice from appropriately trained practitioners about 
heathy lifestyles and what preventative measures they can introduce into their 
daily living.

Current Arrangements

Stroke Association arrangements are in place until 31 March 2018, whereby the 
association are providing a Stroke Recovery Service (Information/Advice service) 
and a Communications Support service.

Also in addition, the Durham CCGs in August 2017 have requested that the 
Association undertake six month reviews of stroke survivors as advised by NICE 
guidelines.  Currently the Association and CDDFT are completing the necessary 
information governance arrangements to allow the Trust to share patient information 

Page 222



with the Association.  Unfortunately the process at the Trust is still waiting 
completion. The reviews will be undertaken once the information sharing agreement 
is in place. The Association will also update the Sentinel Stroke National Audit 
Programme (SSNAP) on behalf of the CCGs.

The Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP) is the single source of 
stroke data in England, Wales and Northern Ireland. There are three main 
components of SSNAP, the clinical audit, acute organisational audit, and post-acute 
organisational. 

The Association have trained staff available to undertake the reviews, are registered 
with SSNAP and have the appropriate equipment (AF and BP monitors).

Changes since April 2017

The service is now operated on a referral from the Trust basis as opposed to a 
blanket approach; this means only stoke survivors who express an interest in the 
services available, the Trust will refer and will be seen by the Association.  This gives 
a much more focused service.  Some patients and carers will require a high level of 
support and this can be achieved.

The service now incorporates communication support as part of the recovery service 
providing a more seamless service, rather than being a separate element.

As previously stated the six month reviews will be performed by the Association with 
any necessary actions being undertaken by the Association e.g. provide support, 
onward referral etc.

Future Arrangements

Following the engagement exercise and close liaison with the Stroke Association 
and CDDFT, an options paper was taken to the CCG Collaborative Working Group 
(CWG) Meeting in January 2018. 

The CWG agreed the following: 

A contract for the service is put in place from April 2018 to March 2019 with the 
Stroke Association with a specification for the navigator service (Stroke support and 
communication service) and six month reviews. This would incorporate Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) and expected outcomes. Quality requirements for the 
service will be provided by the Stroke Association and the CCGs quality team. 

Ensure that appropriate service information is provided in the right way on stroke 
wards, CCG to liaise with stroke wards to have a discussion on best way to do this. 

Page 223



This would be on the basis of a referral from the Trust and would provide support, 
including communications support, as part of the service.

Ensure that the CCG can work with primary care to follow up any patients that have 
declined involvement from Stroke Association service. The support would offer some 
low level intervention for most users, but users who require more intense support 
would receive it.

The Stroke Association would also undertake the six month reviews and where 
support was required, provide it, or if appropriate sign post or onward referral to 
appropriate services.

Summary

All of the actions above will ensure that more patients across County Durham are 
receiving important follow up care following a stroke.  It will also ensure that there is 
regular feedback to the hospital base stroke services in order to facilitate continual 
service improvement.  This would help support many of the recommendations made 
within the engagement exercise.

There has been a great deal of good communication and collaborative working to 
achieve this outcome, from the Healthwatch, Patients, Carers, Stroke Association, 
CDDFT and CCGs which will provide a better service for patients and carers who 
have experienced Stroke in County Durham.

Page 224



Contents

Healthwatch County Durham.................3
Publication: October 2017

Stroke Support Services in 
County Durham

 Research into patient access to stroke support services in 
County Durham

Page 225



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 2 of 30

Executive summary ................................................................4

Background to this work...........................................................6

What we did.........................................................................7

What we heard......................................................................7

Analysis of date....................................................................10 

Recommendations.................................................................12

Appendices.........................................................................13

Page 226



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 3 of 30

Healthwatch County Durham (HWCD)

On the 1st April 2013 under the provisions of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 152 local 
Healthwatch organisations established throughout England.  

These local Healthwatch have been set up across England to create a strong, independent 
consumer champion whose aim is to: 

 Strengthen the collective voice of citizens and communities in influencing local health 
and social care services to better meet their needs 

 Support people to find the right health and social care services for them by providing 
appropriate information, advice and signposting 

 To encourage and support people and groups to share their views about services; listen 
to people's needs and experiences of services 

We achieve this by:  

 Listening to people, especially the most vulnerable, to understand their experiences and 
what matters most to them  

 Influencing those who have the power to change services so that they better meet 
people’s needs now and into the future  

 Empowering and informing people to get the most from their health and social care 
services and encouraging other organisations to do the same

Page 227



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 4 of 30

Executive Summary

In March 2017 stroke patients were advised by the Stroke Association that they would no longer 
receive support services from them as the service was being de-commissioned by North Durham 
and Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). 46 service 
users contacted Healthwatch County Durham (HWCD) to raise concerns about lack of 
engagement or information about alternative provision.

HWCD contacted the CCGs to raise concerns about the change to services, the way in which this 
had been communicated and the impact this was having on service users and carers. The CCGs 
responded to the concerns raised and also advised that the current contract with the Stroke 
Association had been extended to the end of July 2017 and that following our involvement they 
would be undertaking engagement with stroke patients to help shape the new clinical services. 
The CCG engagement team submitted a work plan request to the HWCD Board for the support of 
HWCD, as an independent body, who can speak to patients and gather rich feedback to help 
identify the best clinical services and pathways for stroke patients. This was agreed in principle 
by the Board on 1 June 2017 but outstanding concerns about timescales and gaps in service 
provision were raised with the CCGs and Adult Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Appendix 1). These were addressed as the existing service was extended till March 2018 and 
the period of engagement agreed till December 2017. The CCG engagement team produced a 
questionnaire with input from Healthwatch County Durham and other Voluntary Organisations 
and commissioned HWCD to deliver independent engagement activities to complement their 
own, and to collate all completed questionnaires. This engagement took place from the 
beginning of September to mid October 2017.

The CCG engagement team arranged for a letter (Appendix 2) from both CCGs and HWCD to be 
sent to all stroke patients who had a stroke within the last 12 months. An online survey was 
created and the link was included in the letter, in our e-bulletin and in social media posts. The 
survey was also widely promoted by partners. HWCD carried out engagement over a 10-12 week 
period with identified patients and using a range of consultation method including phone calls, 
drops ins at community venues and home visits. Additional engagement activities were carried 
out by the Engagement Leads at both CCGs (Appendix 4) but this report details the findings and 
recommendations of the work done by HWCD.

HWCD consulted with 155 stroke patients over the consultation period using a mixture of on line 
surveys, postal questionnaires and face to face engagement.

The responses showed a wide variance of experience for patients recovering from a stroke. 
Some of the key things they told us were:

 Most patients told us they were given clear information about their medication when 
leaving hospital

 Patients who had a TIA (minor stroke) seemed to indicate they had not received the same 
information/support as a patient being admitted to hospital

Page 228



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 5 of 30

 There is an element of fear and anxiety for many patients, not being clear about what 
they can do to prevent future strokes

 Care planning seems to be an area where there is some confusion and disparity. A high 
percentage of patients told us they do not have a care plan, however the small number 
that indicated they do have one, are not aware of what is included in the plan

 Patients are not clear about the range of support which might be available, this includes 
physical, emotional and financial support. Approximately 46% of patients told us they 
were not given clear written information on discharge

 Having timely appointments for therapeutic support and care was identified as 
problematic for 25% of the patients (29 individuals) who responded to the question

 The majority of patients told us they felt that health professionals had listened to them 
when they discussed their care

 Most patients said they felt confident managing their health at home, although some had 
struggled to get aids and adaptations sorted out

 Many carers felt they were not given information and advice

Recommendations

Some of our key recommendations, based on what patients and carers told us, for 
commissioners to consider as part of their development of new services are:

 There needs to be a clear pathway of support for patients who have strokes. This should 
include support for those who suffer from TIA

 All patients should be given a care plan, either on discharge or shortly after they return 
home. Care plans should be discussed with patient and carers to help them understand 
what support can be provided. These plans should be person-centred and appropriate for 
the needs of the individual, we recognise that some will be very simple, but being 
personalised is so much more useful than just being given a leaflet

 There should be clear and simple literature giving patients, families and carers 
information about the support available in their locality. This should include 
emotional/mental wellbeing support as many patients told us they had struggled 
emotionally to come to terms with the effects the stroke had on their lives

 Patients should be given advice from appropriately trained practitioners about heathy 
lifestyles and what preventative measures they can introduce into their daily living

Page 229



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 6 of 30

Background to the work

In March 2017 North Durham and Durham, Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG’s advised the 
Stroke Association they were no longer going to commission support services from them, giving 
them an opportunity to re-focus stroke services for patients in County Durham. This proposal 
advised that the core provision from Durham County Council and NHS Foundation Trust would be 
strengthened by:

  Reinvestment of funding into clinical stroke support services based around GP practices. 
This is to provide support for local patients of stroke based on their on-going rehabilitation 
needs.

 The service will undertake recommended needs based reviews in partnership with Primary 
Care, community services and charities, to support and signpost patients and carers to the 
most appropriate services.

 Making effective use of the existing services provided via Durham County Council including 
o Hospital from home
o Care Connect
o Social Care Direct
o Health Trainers
o Intermediate Care Services

HWCD was contacted by both the Stroke Association and  46 service users who were concerned 
about the de-commissioning of the service, the short transition time and the lack of detailed 
information  on what any new service would look like.

HWCD contacted the CCGs to raise the concerns about the change to services, the way in which 
this had been communicated and the impact this was having on service users and carers. 
Marianne Patterson the Project Manager of Healthwatch County Durham also spoke at the North 
Durham CCG Patient Public and Carer Engagement Committee about the need to escalate the 
concerns identified and then met with Sarah Burns, Director of Commissioning for DDES CCG and 
Brian Jackson, Chair of HWCD.

The CCGs responded to the concerns raised and also advised that the current contract with the 
Stroke Association had been extended to the end of July 2017 and that that following our 
involvement they would be undertaking engagement with stroke patients to help shape the new 
clinical services. The CCG engagement team submitted a work plan request to the HWCD Board 
for the support of HWCD, as an independent body, who can speak to patients and gather rich 
feedback to help identify the best clinical services and pathways for stroke patients. This was 
agreed in principle by the Board on 1 June 2017 but outstanding concerns about timescales and 
gaps in service provision were raised with the CCGs and Adult Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Appendix 1). These were addressed and due to the timescale for meaningful 
engagement and analysis of the data the existing contract was extended for a further eight 
months to the end of March 2018.

Page 230

https://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/glossary/gp/
https://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/glossary/darlington-borough-council/
https://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/glossary/social-care/
https://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/glossary/intermediate-care/


Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 7 of 30

What we did 

The work was part of a process to identify and improve clinical outcomes for stroke patients. 

A letter from both CCG’s and HWCD (Appendix 2) was sent out to all stroke patients who had a 
stroke within the last 12 months. An on-line survey was created (See Appendix 3) and the link 
was included in the letter, in our e-bulletin and in social media posts. The survey was also 
widely promoted by partners. Telephone details were included in the letter to offer patients an 
opportunity to call us. A total of 22 patients called to advise us of their stroke experiences and 
to go through the survey. A home visit was undertaken at the request of one stroke patient. 
Healthwatch carried out engagement over a 10-12 week period with identified patients and 
using a range of consultation methods. Six drop-in appointments were arranged in community 
buildings across County Durham and four stroke patients were interviewed on a one-to-one 
basis. These venues included Stanhope, Stanley, Tudhoe, Barnard Castle, Chester-le-Street and 
Peterlee.

What we heard

In total HWCD engaged with 155 stroke patients over the engagement period, which was a 
mixture of on line surveys, postal questionnaires and face to face engagement and

 73% who completed the survey were stroke patients
 13% had a caring responsibility
 14% were a family member or relative of someone who has had a stroke
 44% experienced their stroke in the last 6-12 months
 88% of those responding were aged 60 -80yrs +

As part of the equality data collected we asked for the town or area stroke where patients 
lived.  Although a high number responded stating they lived in County Durham, there was still a 
good geographic area covered in the other responses provided across County Durham.

Some of the key messages from the questionnaires are outline below and a full summary of all 
responses can be seen in (Appendix 5)

Support

We asked patients what support was provided to them when they left hospital to help them 
settle in at home. From the 146 that replied, 

Page 231



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 8 of 30

 56 (38%) received information leaflets 
 28 (19%) advised us they received no support. 

Common themes for the types of support provided were from stroke nurses and other therapists. 

54% of patients advised us that they did know where to go for support however 37% did not 
know. 

When asked if patients were confident accessing other support groups or activities, 39% told us 
they were not.

Yes No Don't Know

Did you know where to  go for 
support?

Yes No Don't Know

Were you confident in accessing 
other types of support?

Patients commented that the most important information for them when leaving hospital and 
returning home are details of stroke groups and what help is available if required.

                                            

We asked patients about the types of support they received after discharge from hospital. As 
well as the appointments identified below, 36% of the respondents told us about appointments 
they had attended for other therapies/assistance these included physical support and follow-up 

“They may feel ok but it’s a question of 

what’s to come - anxiety and a lot of fear”

Page 232



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 9 of 30

GP appointments.  A small percentage mentioned that they had received no support.ed to take 

this 

Physiotherapy Occupational 
health

Speech and 
Language 
Therapy

Dietetics Podiatry
0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

Since you left hospital have you had appts. with the 
following?

 test I would away due to 

We asked stroke patients what could make them more confident to manage their own health, 61 
(39%) patients responded and mentioned that they rely on family members and carers for 
support, others told us they have had to have mobility aids in their homes such as stair lifts, 
toilet risers and personal aids such as walking sticks. me

“My husband left work to give me 24/7 
help so I could live at home instead of a 

care home”

Page 233



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 10 of 30

Care Plans

60% of stroke patients stated that they did not have a health and social care plan. However a 
higher percentage did respond to some of the further questions we asked in relation to care 
planning, which leads us to believe it is an area of confusion for many stroke patients.

Yes No Don't Know
0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

Do you have a Health and Social Care plan?

A large proportion of patients did not know what was in their plan and also many patients stated 
they did not have care plans explained to them. Almost 40% of the respondents told us they had 
been unable to ask questions about their care plan.

Analysis of data 

We have analysed the responses on the questionnaire and identified some key themes for 
consideration. Some of the issues captured from the questionnaire were from general comments 
made by stroke patients and their carers. 

 Most patients told us they were given clear information about their medication when 
leaving hospital

 Patients who had a TIA (minor stroke) have not received the same information/support as 
a patient being admitted to hospital.

 There is an element of fear and anxiety for many patients, not being clear about what 
they can do to prevent future strokes.

 Care planning seems to be an area where there is some confusion and disparity. A high 
percentage of patients told us they do not have a care plan, however the small number 
that do have one, are not aware of what is included in the plan.

 Patients are not clear about the range of support which might be available, this includes 
physical, emotional and financial support. Approximately 46% of patients told us they 
were not given clear written information on discharge.

Page 234



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 11 of 30

 Having timely appointments for therapeutic support and care was identified as 
problematic for 25% of the patients (29 individuals) who responded to the question.

 The majority of patients told us they felt that that health professionals had listened to 
them when they discussed their care.

 Most patients said they felt confident managing their health at home.
 Many carers felt they were not given information and advice

The types of support patients valued were, physiotherapy, emotional support & speech 
therapy.

Some of the things that patients thought were important as part of their recovery and feeling 
confident back at home were

 Having coping strategies
 Knowing where to go for help, someone to talk to
 Being given useful contacts
 Knowing what to expect
 Support with recovery

”

“I had visits from therapists to assist me with 
exercise and to help with speech, stress and my 

memory. I got information about stroke groups in 

my area”

Page 235



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 12 of 30

Recommendations
Following a review of our findings we would recommend the following actions:

 There needs to be a clear pathway of support for patients who have strokes. This should 
also include those who suffer from TIA

 All patients should be given a care plan, either on discharge or shortly after they return 
home. Care plans should be discussed with patient and carers to help them understand 
what support can be provided. These plans should be person-centred and appropriate for 
the needs of the individual, we recognise that some will be very simple, but being 
personalised is so much more useful than just being given a leaflet

 There should be clear and simple literature giving patients, families and carers 
information about the support available in their locality. This should include 
emotional/mental wellbeing support as many patients told us they had struggled 
emotionally to come to terms with the effects the stroke had on their lives

 Patients should be given advice from appropriately trained practitioners about healthy 
lifestyles and what preventative measures they can introduce into their daily living

Thank you……

Healthwatch County Durham, North Durham and Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
Clinical Commissioning Groups would like to thank those who have contributed to this piece of   
work, including:

The stroke patients, families and carers who took the time to complete the questionnaires and 
share their experiences.

Stroke Association

GP practices across County Durham

Page 236



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 13 of 30

Appendices

Appendix 1 
Healthwatch County Durham

Whitfield House
St Johns Road

Meadowfield Industrial Estate
Durham   DH7 8XL

Tel: 0191 378 1037
Email: healthwatch@pcp.uk.net

15 June 2017

Dear Overview and Scrutiny Committee Member

Re: Concerns and recommendations regarding stroke services in Co Durham

Healthwatch County Durham has received 46 letters from stroke survivors, expressing their concerns that the 
service they currently receive from the Stroke Association is being decommissioned. These concerns include:

 Communication – when contacting CCGs people have been signposted to the website with a response 
which hasn’t answered their concerns. They were frustrated to be signposted to Locate, which they 
have not found accessible

 Timescales – people wanted to know if the new services will offer them the same level and range of 
support for the same length of time as they have had previously. In addition they wanted to know if 
there will be a gap in provision, or a seamless transition

 Process – people are telling us they are quite angry about the way this has been handled and asked if 
the correct process has been followed

 Engagement – people asked about plans to engage with service users and involve them in the design of 
new services, to make sure that their needs will be met

Having contacted both CCGs, we met with DDES’s Director of Commissioning and received a written response, 
which was discussed by our Board on 1st June.  It was decided that the response did not address the issues 
raised or outline a plan to deliver meaningful service user engagement.  We therefore wish to escalate our 
concerns to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and make the following recommendations:

 An extension to the current service of at least three months, until the replacement service is in place 
that will meet the needs of users

 Meaningful engagement to take place with stroke survivors so that users are at the heart of designing a 
new service

 A user friendly information pack to be produced, for all patients when they are discharged from 
hospital, with clear information and signposting to support available in the county

 A user friendly letter to be sent to all stroke survivors with clear information about when the new 
service will be in place and how to access it

We will attend the Overview and Scrutiny meeting on 7th July and look forward to your consideration of our 
recommendations. 
Yours faithfully,

BJackson
Brian Jackson, Chair, Healthwatch County Durham 

Page 237

mailto:healthwatch@pcp.uk.net


Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 14 of 30

Appendix 2 

1st September 2017

Dear Patient,

Stroke Services in County Durham

We would like to hear from you, your family or carers who may have been affected by stroke within 
the last 12 months.  Specifically we would like to find out about your experiences of hospital 
discharge and your follow up care. Hearing your views helps us to improve services for the future.

We have a number of ways for you to share your experiences with us and we would be really 
grateful if you could take the time to do this.

We have enclosed a questionnaire which can be returned in the freepost envelope by Thursday 
12th October 2017.

The questionnaire is also available online https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/Strokecountydurham. 
if you would prefer to complete it electronically

Healthwatch County Durham is an independent organisation that can help you to share your 
views. We are happy to arrange opportunities for you to give your feedback in whichever way is 
best for you:

 Freephone: 0800 3047039
 Text: 07756 654218
 Email: healthwatchcountydurham@pcp.uk.net
 Home visits (call, text or email to arrange)

One to one appointment sessions are available, please see list below. You can call, text or email 
to book an appointment:

o Wednesday 6th September – Barnard Castle
o Thursday 13th September – Stanhope
o Thursday 21st September – Chester le Street
o Wednesday 27th September – Stanley
o Wednesday 4th October – Peterlee
o Tuesday 10th October - Tudhoe

Page 238

https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/Strokecountydurham
mailto:healthwatchcountydurham@pcp.uk.net


Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 15 of 30

This is a joint piece of work and is being undertaken by NHS Durham Dales, Easington and 
Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group (DDES CCG), NHS North Durham CCG and 
Healthwatch County Durham. 

We very much hope that you are able to give your feedback and views through one of the ways 
that we have given above.

Yours sincerely

Sarah Burns Julia Catherall
Director of Commissioning Engagement & Signposting Lead
On behalf of North Durham/ Healthwatch County Durham
Durham Dales, Easington 
and Sedgefield CCGs

Further information

Clinical Commissioning Groups are the NHS organisations that are responsible for planning and 
paying for the majority of healthcare services. You can read more about the work of these 
organisations using the links below;

 NHS North Durham (ND) CCG - www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk
 NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) CCG - 

www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk

Healthwatch County Durham is the independent consumer champion created to gather and 
represent the views of the public and play a role at both a national and local level, making sure 
that the views of the public and people who use services are taken into account. 

You can find more information about them and their work on the following link: 
www.healthwatchcountydurham.co.uk/

Appendix 3

Page 239

http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.healthwatchcountydurham.co.uk/


Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 16 of 30

Stroke services across County Durham questionnaire 

 
1. Are you completing this survey as: 

A stroke patient        ☐  

A carer of someone who has had a stroke    ☐  

A family member/relative of someone who has had a stroke                           ☐  

Other ___________________          

 
 

2. How long ago did you experience your stroke? Please put a X over your answer  

 
In the past 6 months       ☐  

6-12 months        ☐  

1-3 years                                              ☐  

  

Leaving hospital: 

 

3. What support was provided when you left hospital to help you settle in at home? For example: 
information leaflets, therapy team contact details etc. 

 
 

4. Did you know where to go for support? 
 
Yes   No  Don’t know 

   
 

 
 
 

5. Were you confident in accessing other types of support groups / activities? 

Page 240



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 17 of 30

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
  

 

 
 

6. Were you provided with clear written information about your medications?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

   
 

 
 
 

7. Were you provided with clear written information about your therapies (physical / emotional)?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

   
 

 
 
 

8. What information and support has been provided to carers / friends /family involved in your care? 
For example information / advice, appointment details etc 

  

9. What information do you think is the most important to stroke patients when they leave 
hospital and return home?  

        

 

Your care plan: 

 

10.Do you have a Health and Social Care plan 

Page 241



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 18 of 30

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
  

 

  

11.Do you know what is in the plan?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

   
 

 
 
 

12.Did someone explain the care plan to you? 

Yes   No  Don’t know 

   
 

 
 
If Yes, Who did this? 

  

13.Were you able to ask questions about your care / plan?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
 

  
  

14.Who did you go to if you had any questions about your plan?  
 

Support and follow up care  

 

15.Since you left hospital, have you had appointments with the following: 
 

 No  

Page 242



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 19 of 30

a. Physiotherapy                   Yes     Don’t know                                

b. Occupational health                   Yes       No  Don’t know 
c. Speech and Language Therapy               Yes                      No  Don’t know 

d. Dietetics    Yes                              No Don’t know 

e. Podiatry     Yes   Don’t know 

f. Any other support _______________________ 

 
 
 

16.Did you feel that your appointments for the therapies / care listed above were given to you at the 
right time?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
 

  
  

17.Have you been able to review your care plan?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
 

  
  

18.When did you have a review of your care/treatment? 
 

• 1 month (after returning home)         ☐ 
• 2 – 5 months (after returning home) ☐ 
•  6 months (after returning home)       ☐ 
• 6-10 months (after returning home)  ☐ 

   

19. Who was involved in the review with you? Eg: nurse, physiotherapist 
  

20. What did you discuss as part of the review? Eg: treatment, medication 

 No 

Page 243



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 20 of 30

 

21. Would you have liked to have been able to discuss anything else in the review? 

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
 

  
 

If yes, what would you have liked to discuss 

 
 
 

22. Did the health professional listen to you about your care?  

Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
 

  
    

23. Were there any changes to your support? 

Yes   No  Don’t know 

    
 

If yes, what were the changes? 

  

What has worked for you?  

 

Page 244



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 21 of 30

24. What type of support has made a difference to you? For example, physical therapies, emotional 
support 

 

  
 

25. Would you like to access any other type of support? 
Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
 

                                              

25. Would you like access to any other type of support? 
 
Yes   No  Don’t know 

 
                                        

If yes, what support would you have liked to access? 

   

26. Are you confident in managing your own health / condition at home? 

Yes   No  Don’t know 

    
  

27. What could help make you more confident to manage your own health? 
  

Page 245



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 22 of 30

EQUALITY MONITORING 

As a public sector organisation, it is important that the NHS finds out how different people experience services. 
These next questions ask for some information about you but, you DO NOT have to answer any questions if you 
don’t want to. 

 

28. Are you   A woman 

          A man 

    Transgender 

 

What is your age?  17 years & under                                         18-29 years 

 30-39 years             40-49 years  

50-59 years            60-69 years 

 70-79 years   80 years & over 

 

Do you have any of the following; 

• Caring responsibilities for a family member, friend or neighbour  
• Children under 16 years of age       
• Paid employment        

 

Do you have a physical or mental impairment, which has lasted or will last at least 12 months and 
affects your ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities?  

 Yes                                           No 

 

If Yes, please indicate the nature of the disability; ____________________________ 

What is your ethnicity 

Page 246



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 23 of 30

These categories are based on the Census 2011 categories and recommended by the Commission for Racial 
Equality.  

 
 
Asian, Asian British, Asian English, 
White  
Asian Scottish, or Asian Welsh   British  

 Asian / Asian British   English  

 Bangladeshi   Gypsy or Irish Traveller  

 Chinese  Irish   

 Indian   Scottish  

 Pakistani   Welsh  

 Other Asian background (specify if you  Other White background (specify if you 

wish):       wish):        
 
Black, Black British, Black English, 

 
Mixed  

Black Scottish, or Black Welsh  White and Asian  
 African   White and Black African  

 Caribbean       White and Black Caribbean  

 Other Black background (specify if you  White and Chinese  

wish):         Other mixed background (specify if you 

wish):        

Other ethnic group  
 Arab Prefer not to say  

 Other ethnic group (specify if you wish):  

      
 

What is your religion/belief? 

 No religion   Jewish 

 Buddhist   Muslim 

 Christian (including Church of  Sikh 

Page 247



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 24 of 30

England,  Other (specify if you wish):       
Catholic, Protestant and all other  Prefer not to say Christian denominations)  

 Hindu   

Which of these best describes you? 

 Heterosexual/straight 

 Bi-sexual 

 Gay 

 Lesbian 

 

In which town or area do you live? ______________________________ 

   Prefer not to say 

Appendix 4 

North Durham and Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) 
embarked on engagement with stroke survivors in July 2017; working in partnership with 
Healthwatch County Durham.

Conversations took place between the provider of the stroke services at County Durham and 
Darlington Foundation Trust (CDDFT) to agree the best, most sensitive way to approach stroke 
survivors. 

The aim of the engagement was to speak to stroke survivors who had been discharged within the last 
year to gain feedback and knowledge of what services and care they had received to gather a fuller 
picture.

The CCGs engagement teams visited stroke groups and contacted other relevant stakeholders across 
County Durham. Over thirty stroke survivors were engaged in this face to face discussion where they 
were able to explain their varying experiences after being discharged from hospital. 

Page 248



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 25 of 30

Due to patient confidentiality information that would have been used to identify stroke survivors was 
not able to be shared with the CCG. To reach patients who had a stroke in the last year and 
subsequently been discharged from hospital, we worked with our primary care data team who were 
able to run a search on each individual General Practice systems for any patient who had a read code 
(diagnosis code) on their records as having a stroke within that time period. 

From here, we were able to provide the different GP practices with the correct number of packs for 
them to address and send onto the patients and therefore no patient data was shared.

These packs included a letter, the questionnaire (appendix 2) and a free post addressed envelope. 
This information was put into a plain stamped envelope which the practices agreed to put the patient 
address on and send out.

The deadline for the survey was October 12th. The questionnaire and the Healthwatch appointment 
sessions were communicated via the CCGs social media platforms and Healthwatch.

The Engagement Team from the two CCGs visited the following stroke groups:

 Exercise After Stroke Easington – Healthworks on Friday 18th August 
 Exercise After Stroke Easington – Healthworks on 11th September
 Durham Stroke Club - Stroke Association on Tuesday 8th August
 County Durham Stroke Club - Stroke Association on Tuesday 15th August

At all of the groups, the Engagement Team based the conversations around the stroke services survey 
and gathering views about patients’ experiences of services after discharge from hospital. The 
feedback received varied within the different groups. Even though this engagement work was focused 
around patients who experienced stroke services within the past twelve months, we spoke to people 
who had experienced a stroke more than two years ago and more. All of the information captured was 
able to give us a more historical view of the stroke services and patients experiences.

The information gathered from discussions is detailed below:

1. Stroke survivors who experienced a stroke in the past year

When discharged care workers came out from the council but were not found to be suitable and now 
the family pay for a carer.

The family were informed that a stair lift was required for their home and a downstairs bed. The 
family put this in place, and did not have any financial support. 

Complicated information was provided on finance and benefits which resulted in difficulties.

There is a need for continuity of a social worker.

Page 249



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 26 of 30

Health and Social Care plan was provided but there had been no review.

The family found the stroke club by word of mouth. Stroke survivor takes part in Reiki at the club. 
This is found to be enjoyable.

Speech and Language Therapist (SALT) now comes out to the family home but this had not been put 
in place until eight months after the stroke and it was felt that this would’ve been beneficial earlier. No 
other therapies had been provided.

The family did not have a lot of information on contacts for help.

Carers association support is very good as is the GP.

Felt that at discharge meetings the family were not listened to. Professionals need to take more 
consideration to personal circumstances – very important for the family.

2. Stroke survivors who experienced a stroke two years ago

No care plan. Received speech therapy for six months and supported by Stroke Association. Leaflets 
were received on having a stroke.

3. Stroke survivors who experienced a stroke two to three years ago

Physio was received for arm mobility in hospital. Physio was then provided at home. Took part in 
physio trial for university – a number of months.

A review was provided. 

Stroke association came out to the house to support with lifestyle advice – helped stop smoking. – 
Family not sure if this was the health and social care plan.

No emotional support was received, though the family were advised of potential concerns following a 
stroke.

4. Stroke survivors who experienced a stroke over four years ago

After discharge a nurse came out for a visit and Stroke Association information was provided by the 
hospital.

No six month review was been experienced.

Page 250



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 27 of 30

Counselling and emotional support was needed and was important.

Transport and finance problems experienced by all.

No physio received, though would’ve helped. Stroke survivor very reliant on family care.

The stroke club was positive as they find it beneficial to be around others with similar experiences. 
The hospital informed the patient of the club.

Stoke survivor and family do not know where to get help. No support from stroke support since the 
stroke was experienced.

Carers come out to the family home.

The GP was helpful when needed.

5. Stroke survivors who experienced a stroke over five years ago

Review was provided after one year.

Stroke survivor experiences epileptic seizures following stroke which has knocked the confidence. 
Epileptic nurse arranged talking changes, though only six sessions were offered. Family felt that if 
more emotional support was provided for the confidence then the physical recovery would improve.

Family paid for private physio. Physio was provided in hospital for three months.

No help received from Stroke Association, though a lot of information was provided via post/email.

Carers association provide carers day out but the family carer is not able to uptake this as this would 
leave the stroke survivor without care – and with lack of confidence if the carers was to have a day 
out, this would result in stress/worry.

No follow up had taken place apart from for medication purposes. No annual check ups. Family felt 
that a six month review was not was not long enough to be signed off as the family are still adjusting 
and wouldn’t know all the needs.

6. Stroke survivors who experienced a stroke over eight years ago

Stroke survivor had speech difficulties.

Physio used at the stroke club. Private physio at home useful.

Page 251



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 28 of 30

Discharge – hospital suggested three carers a day and family were able to have input and have the 
preference of one a carer a day on a morning as partner could support otherwise and stroke survivor 
did not wish to have carer help on an evening/bedtime.

SALT and physio was provided on and off for one year but was not offered following this.

Accessed NETA (North East Trust for Asphasia) for two years.

Art therapy – Gilesgate - helps as prior to stroke handcrafts was the hobby and now not able due to 
mobility. 

Carer support information provided via word of mouth. Carers enjoys a day out but difficult to have 
care in place.

Would be useful to have local GP more involved.

Received medication reviews but no stroke specialist.

Stroke club was accessed by Stroke Association. The club was found to be beneficial as it was good to 
be social and be out and about.

7. Durham Stroke Club feedback 

Six people attended who had experienced a stroke in the past four to twelve years.

Many of the group had received no follow up care, one had been offered Occupational Therapy and 
they attended the patients’ home once.

None of the group got a health and social care plan.

One stroke survivor had found that the physio was more focused on walking to push for him to be able 
to walk before being discharged from hospital, which neglected the physio required on his arm. Now 
unable to use his arm.

Speech and language therapy was found to be really helpful. For the first year following discharge 
SALT was provided at home and up to the three years following SALT was accessed at hospital.

Patient refused carer support as they felt the carers were to local and this would inflict on their 
privacy in the community. At home care was provided by friends and family.

Page 252



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 29 of 30

It was generally felt that there needed to be consideration that there were all different types of 
strokes and all patients are affected and cope differently. Patient confidence is affected and from this 
in some cases fear is developed.

It was strongly felt that social interaction helped the stroke survivors to recover and was still highly 
important to date to help them cope with the changes to their everyday life. 

None of the stroke survivors had been offered counselling.

It was felt that there was considerable lack of referral to the group which they felt could be valuable to 
other stroke survivors. Transport issues were raised and the financial impact on stroke survivors for 
whom the only transport they have the ability to access is a taxi.

Recommendations

We recommend that when the Commissioning Team are looking at procuring stroke services they 
need to take into consideration:

 Social interaction is highly important to patients and they need information on sign posting to 
stroke groups for support

 Speech and Language Therapy (SALT) is very valuable to patients
 There was an obvious lack of after-care was recognised – all patients need a health and social 

plan and a follow up six months after discharge
 There is a lack of emotional support and this should be something that is offered to patients as 

part of their after care
 Consideration in professionals of how patients may be affected differently
 Consideration needed in professionals of how patients may cope differently 
 There may be financial impact eg: travel costs, this should be highlighted in the sign posting 

services
 This Stroke club isn’t well publicised – as part of signposting, patients should have information 

on different services which offer non clinical support
 Care needs to be consistent for every patient
 There is a requirement for some level of emotional support to be offered along with treatments 

such as physiotherapy and speech and language therapy.  

Appendix 5

Page 253



Healthwatch stroke services report

Page 30 of 30

Please find below and excel workbook containing all the summary data used in this report. If 
you would like to look at the data and have trouble opening the workbook please contact 
Healthwatch using the details below.

Summary data- 
questionnaire Oct 17.xlsm

Healthwatch County Durham
Whitfield House
Meadowfield
County Durham
DH7 8XL
Tel 0800 3047039
healthwatchcountydurham@pcp.uk.net

Page 254

file://pcp-server/shared/Project%20Services/Healthwatch%20County%20Durham/2016/Engagement/Stroke%20Services/Draft%20report/healthwatchcountydurham@pcp.uk.net


Adults, Wellbeing & Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

19th January 2018 

Draft Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
2018-21

Report of Amanda Healy, Director of Public Health County Durham, 
Adults & Health Services 

Purpose of the report

1. Under the Health and Social Care Act (2012), the Health and Wellbeing Board 
(HWB) is responsible for the production of a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
(PNA) every 3 years. The current HWB-led PNA 2015-18 can be found at 
www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-
Assessment. 

2.  The next PNA is due for publication by the HWB on 1st April 2018 and is currently 
undergoing a statutory 60 day public consultation at 
www.durham.gov.uk/consultation.  This began on 28th November 2017 and 
closes on 26th January 2018. Following this consultation the HWB will approve a 
final version of the PNA in March 2018 before publication by 1st April 2018 at 
www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-
Assessment.

Background

3. A PNA considers the health needs of the population and the provision of 
pharmaceutical services (i.e. community pharmacies and dispensing GP 
practices), and therefore whether there are any potential gaps in pharmaceutical 
service delivery. It is used by NHS England in its consideration of applications to 
join the pharmaceutical list (i.e. applications to open new pharmacies / GP 
practice dispensaries in County Durham), and by commissioners of 
pharmaceutical services (e.g. pharmacy services commissioned by the Public 
Health Department and the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). The PNA for 
County Durham links to the health needs identified in the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) and the priorities in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS). An updated PNA must be produced by the HWB every 3 years.

4. The Public Health Department leads on the development of the PNA on behalf of 
the HWB. A small steering group was established in May 2017 in order to 
oversee the development of the PNA 2018-21. Membership consists of:

 Public Health - Public Health Pharmacist, Consultant in Public Health 
 Transformation and Partnerships - Public Health Intelligence Specialist, 

Partnership Manager
 Spatial Policy Team – Senior Policy Officer 
 The Local Pharmaceutical Committee 
 A CCG Medicines Optimisation Lead 

Page 255

Agenda Item 10

http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.durham.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment


 Healthwatch 

5. The public consultation at www.durham.gov.uk/consultation asks questions that 
are based on the work of a previous Healthwatch online survey of pharmaceutical 
services (see Appendix 2).

6. The key conclusion of the draft PNA 2018-21 is that there are sufficient 
pharmaceutical services across County Durham. This can be demonstrated with 
the following points:

(a) There is a good distribution of pharmaceutical services in areas of high 
population density, and in areas with more significant health needs (i.e. areas 
with a high population density of older people, and in areas of deprivation). 

(b) A reasonable distribution of pharmacies exists with extended and weekend 
opening hours in all localities. However, this may need to be reviewed as the 
development of urgent care services proceeds.

(c) The estimated builds of future housing developments by 2021 will not require 
new pharmaceutical services.

(d) County Durham has 24 pharmacies per 100,000 population. This is higher 
than the England average of 21 per 100,000.

  
7. This key PNA conclusion should be kept under review by the HWB particularly as 

urgent care services develop, and as part of the HWB ongoing responsibility to 
continue to assess the impact of any future changes to pharmaceutical services. 
If a change to a pharmaceutical service is judged by the HWB to be significant 
(i.e. judged to have an impact on future pharmaceutical service provision) then 
the HWB publishes a supplementary statement against the PNA to this effect. 
This could then open up the market to potential new providers of pharmaceutical 
services. Appendix 3 illustrates the recent work of the HWB against the current 
PNA 2015-18.

8. The other key conclusion of the draft PNA 2018-21 is that there is still scope to 
further develop locally commissioned services from the existing pharmacies in 
order to further support priorities in the JHWS. These services should particularly 
focus on:

(a) The growing older population, the health and social care integration agenda, 
and incorporating pharmacy services into Teams Around Patients (TAPs).

(b) The further expansion of community pharmacy based public health services 
(e.g. Stop Smoking Services) now that every pharmacy is working towards 
becoming a Healthy Living Pharmacy (HLP) as part of the national pharmacy 
contract introduced in December 2016.

(c) Continuing to ensure that pharmacy supports key priorities in the Sustainable 
and Transformation Plans (STPs) around prevention and self-care. 

Recommendations 

9. Adults, Wellbeing & Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee is asked to comment 
on the draft PNA 2018-21 before the statutory 60 day consultation ends on 26th 
January 2018.

Background papers

The draft PNA 2018-21. 
Page 256

http://www.durham.gov.uk/consultation


Contact: Claire Jones, Public Health Pharmacist 
Tel: 03000 267662

Page 257



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance – No significant implications within the current public health financial 
arrangements for public health pharmacy services 

Staffing – No implications with the current public health staffing structure 

Risk – No significant implications since the HWB will be fully supported to consider 
the implications of any future changes to pharmaceutical services 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – No implications

Accommodation – No implications 

Crime and Disorder – No implications

Human Rights – No implications

Consultation – Statutory 60 day consultation December 2017 – January 2018

Procurement – No significant implications within the current procurement 
arrangements for public health pharmacy services 

Disability Issues – No implications 

Legal Implications – Under the Health and Social Care Act (2012), the HWB is 
responsible for the production of a PNA every 3 years

Page 258



Appendix 2: Public consultation questions 

The statutory 60 day consultation at www.durham.gov.uk/consultation provides a 
generic email for responses and a small number of consultation questions which are:

1. Do you feel that pharmacies or GP practice dispensaries are easily accessible 
in your area? 

2. Are there any other services that should be available from a pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? 

3. Is there any way that pharmacy or GP practice dispensary services could be 
improved? 

4. Do you agree or disagree with the overall conclusion that there are sufficient 
pharmacy and GP practice dispensary services across County Durham? 

5. Please tell us any other comments you may have about the draft 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018/21. 

These questions are based on a previous Healthwatch online survey which was 
carried out in the summer of 2017 with a view to gaining an initial insight into how a 
small sample of the public (total of 164 responses) are accessing pharmaceutical 
services and their overall views of the services they receive. 
The results of this survey are described in the draft PNA 2018-21, and include that 
93% of people who responded to the survey can easily access pharmaceutical 
services.

Page 259

http://www.durham.gov.uk/consultation
http://www.durham.gov.uk/consultation


Appendix 3: Closure of the Weardale Practice dispensary in October 2017 

On 27th November, the HWB discussed the closure of the Weardale Practice 
dispensary and whether this closure could leave a significant gap in essential 
pharmaceutical services.

The key points that were discussed at the HWB included that:

 The GP practice did not give patients the usual 3 month notice for the closure, 
however it did act quickly to prevent dispensing patients being put at risk of 
potential medication errors due to a lack of suitably trained dispensary staff.

 The GP practice dispensary was only dispensing approximately 14% of all the 
prescriptions issued by the practice, and was only open a half day Monday – 
Friday.  

 The two nearest pharmacies in Stanhope and Wolsingham are already 
dispensing over 80% of the prescriptions issued by the practice and both 
indicated that they can manage an increase in workload.

 The GP practice can electronically transmit prescriptions to a pharmacy of a 
patient’s choice negating the need for the patient to collect a repeat 
prescription from the practice.

 Stanhope Pharmacy is implementing changes to its goodwill delivery service 
to accommodate vulnerable patients. 

 Emergency medicines will continue to be provided directly from the doctor’s 
bag.

 The GP practice has offered to attend a further Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee in order to provide an update.

The decision of the HWB was that this dispensary closure does not leave a 
significant gap in essential pharmaceutical services in the area. 

Please note that in this case, the HWB then issued a voluntary supplementary 
statement against the current PNA 2015-18 clearly stating the above facts. This 
statement can be found at 
www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-
Assessment. 

Page 260

http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment


 

1 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment   
 

2018-21 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 261



 

2 
 

Contents 
 

  Page 
number 

  
Executive Summary 
 

4 

Section One: Introduction 6 
 

1.1 Policy drivers 6 
 

1.2 Pharmaceutical needs assessment 8 
 

1.3 Market entry 9 
 

1.4 Process followed for developing the PNA 9 
 

1.5 Process for updating the PNA 10 
 

1.6 Localities for the purpose of the PNA 11 
   
Section Two: Population profile and health needs 12 

 
2.1 Population profile 12 

 
2.2 Health inequalities and deprivation 13 
   
Section Three: Access to pharmaceutical services 15 

 
3.1 Number, type of pharmaceutical service and geographical distribution 15 

 
3.2 Ease of access to pharmaceutical services 16 

 
3.3 Access to pharmaceutical services by opening hours 17 

 
3.4 The public view 19 

 
3.5 Future housing developments 20 

 
3.6 Future new GP practices 22 
   
Section Four: Service provision 23 

 
4.1 Overview 

4.1a National community pharmacy contract reforms and the local picture 
4.1b National vision for the future of community pharmacy 

24 
24 
26 
 

4.2 Pharmaceutical services 
4.2a Essential services 
4.2b Advanced services 
        4.2b(i) Medicines use reviews and the new medicine service 
        4.2b(ii) Appliance use review and stoma customisation service 
        4.2b(iii) Flu vaccination service 
        4.2b(iv) NHS urgent medicine supply advanced service 

26 
27 
27 
27 
29 
30 
30 

Page 262



 

3 
 

4.2c Enhanced services 32 
 

4.3 Locally commissioned services 
4.3a CCG commissioned services 
        4.3a(i) Minor ailment services 
        4.3a(ii) Anticoagulant monitoring 
        4.3a(iii) Reimbursement of tuberculosis medication costs 
        4.3a(iv) Food thickening voucher scheme 
        4.3a(v) Palliative care sceme 
4.3b Public Health commissioned services 
        4.3b(i) Sexual health services 
        4.3b(ii) Stop smoking services 
        4.3b(iii) Substance misuse services 

33 
33 
33 
34 
34 
35 
35 
35 
35 
36 
37 
 

4.4 Healthy living pharmacy award 38 
 

4.5 The public view 39 
 

Section Five: Conclusion and recommendations 43 
 

List of abbreviations 44 
 
Appendices  
 

  

Appendix 1 GP Federations and Teams Around Patients 45 
 

Appendix 2 Targets in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-19 46 
 

Appendix 3 NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 
2013 
 

50 

Appendix 4 The County Durham PNA timeline 55 
 

Appendix 5 Organisations that responded during the statutory 60 day consultation 56 
 

Appendix 6 Results of the community pharmacy survey 57 
 

Appendix 7 Results of the Healthwatch online public survey 66 
 

Appendix 8 Summary of public responses received during the statutory 60 day 
consultation 
 

73 

Appendix 9 Housing developments in County Durham of 1000 properties or more, 
and estimated builds by 2020-21 
 

74 

Appendix 10 Location and opening hours of pharmaceutical services 
 

76 

Appendix 11 Pharmaceutical service maps 
11.1  Master map of pharmaceutical services in County Durham  
11.2  Dales 
11.3  Easington 
11.4  Derwentside 
11.5  Sedgefield 
11.6  Durham 
11.7  Chester-le-Street 

92 
94 
95 

106 
117 
128 
139 
150 

Page 263



 

4 
 

Executive summary 
 
County Durham is a predominantly rural county with a total population of just under 
518,000 people. The County has a large and increasing aging population. The 
County also experiences higher levels of deprivation than the national average, and 
hence significant health inequalities.  
 
A Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) considers the health needs of the 
population and the provision of pharmaceutical services, and therefore, whether 
there are any potential gaps in pharmaceutical service delivery. It is used by NHS 
England in its consideration of applications to join the pharmaceutical list, and by 
commissioners of pharmaceutical services. The PNA for County Durham links to the 
health needs identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and the 
priorities in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS).  
 
Under the Health and Social Care Act (2012), the Health and Wellbeing Board 
(HWB) is responsible for the production of the PNA. This process is led by the Public 
Health Department. An updated PNA must be produced every 3 years or sooner if 
there are significant changes to pharmaceutical services that are relevant to the 
granting of future pharmacy applications (this can also be accomplished by the 
publication of a supplementary statement). Changes to pharmaceutical services are 
more likely to occur within the timeline of this PNA due to the financial pressures in 
the national pharmacy contract and the potential closure / consolidations of existing 
pharmacies. The PNA, an up to date map of pharmaceutical services, and any 
supplementary statements can be found at  
www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-
Assessment 
 
The PNA report includes information on the following: 
 

 The number and geographical distribution of pharmacies and dispensing GP 
practices in County Durham. In 2017, there are 125 pharmacies and 17 
dispensing GP practices in County Durham. These are presented in 6 localities to 
reflect the configuration of GP Federations and Teams Around Patients (TAPs). 

 Ease of access and type of pharmaceutical service in County Durham and a 
judgement on the potential gaps in the provision of pharmaceutical services.  

 
The key conclusion from the PNA is that there are sufficient pharmaceutical services 
in the 6 localities across County Durham. This can be demonstrated with the 
following points: 
 

 There is a good distribution of pharmaceutical services in areas of high population 
density, and in areas with more significant health needs (i.e. areas with a high 
population density of older people, and in areas of deprivation).  

 A reasonable distribution of pharmacies exists with extended and weekend 
opening hours in all localities. However, this may need to be reviewed as the 
development of urgent care services proceeds. 

 The estimated builds of future housing developments by 2021 will not require new 
pharmaceutical services. 

Page 264

http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment


 

5 
 

 County Durham has 24 pharmacies per 100,000 population. This is higher than 
the England average of 21 per 100,000. 

 
However, there is still scope to further develop locally commissioned services from 
the existing service providers in order to further support targets in the JHWS. These 
services should particularly focus on: 
 

 The growing older population, the integration agenda, and incorporating 
pharmacy services into TAPs. 

 The further expansion of community pharmacy based public health services now 
that every pharmacy is working towards becoming a healthy living pharmacy 
(HLP) as part of the national pharmacy contract introduced in 2016. 

 Continuing to ensure that pharmacy supports key priorities in the Sustainable and 
Transformation Plans (STPs) around the promotion of self-care, a more 
appropriate use of health services, and the development of urgent care services.  

 
In order to achieve these developments the public need to be made aware of what 
pharmacy can do by all stakeholders working together to promote the role of 
pharmacy by providing information, advertising, and education of targeted 
populations in County Durham.  
 

Page 265



 

6 
 

Section One: Introduction 

 

 
Key points 

 
The PNA describes the health needs of the population, current pharmaceutical 
services provision and any gaps in that provision.  
 
Pharmacy can support the achievement of a number of priorities in the JHWS. This 
includes developing services focusing on the growing older population and the 
integration agenda; expanding community pharmacy based public health services 
particularly in the areas of deprivation across the county; and continuing to ensure 
that pharmacy supports key priorities in the STPs around the promotion of self-care, 
a more appropriate use of health services, and the development of urgent care 
services. 
 

 

1.1 Policy drivers 
Implementation of the NHS Five Year Forward View (5YFV) is a key policy driver 
across the health and social care sector. The 5YFV describes the need to remove 
barriers across providers and the various healthcare settings and describes networks 
of care centred around the patient, with care is provided closer to home. Next steps 
on the NHS Five Year Forward View1 reviewed the progress made since the launch 
of the 5YFV in October 2014 and set out how the NHS will deliver improvements 
particularly in the areas of cancer, mental health and GP access, and how the way 
that care is delivered will change to ease pressure on hospitals by helping frail and 
older people live healthier, more independent lives. Described changes include: 
 

 Boosting mental health services by, for example, the provision of more mental 
health professionals in the community and hospitals to prevent crisis admissions. 

 Better access to GP services with everyone benefiting from extended opening in 
the evenings and weekends, newly designated ‘Urgent Treatment Centres’ and 
an enhanced NHS 111 service to ease pressure on Accident and Emergency 
(A&E). 

 Better care for older people by bringing together services provided by GPs, 
hospitals, therapists, nurses and care staff; and cutting emergency admissions 
and time spent in hospitals. 

 
To accelerate delivery of the 5YFV every health and social care system in the 
country came together in 44 geographic areas to create STPs which set out a clear 
approach to how the challenges in the 5YFV will be delivered locally by 2020-21.2 In 
July 2017, North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) was part of the 
Northumberland, Tyne and Wear, and North Durham STP3; and Durham, Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) CCG was part of the Darlington, Durham Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield, Hambleton, Richmondshire and Whitby, Hartlepool and 

                                            
1 Next steps on the NHS Five Year Forward View. NHS England, March 2017. www.england.nhs.uk/publication/next-steps-on-

the-nhs-five-year-forward-view/  
2 Delivering sustainability and transformation plans: From ambitious proposals to credible plans. The Kings Fund, February 
2017. www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/delivering-sustainability-and-transformation-plans  
3 www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/involve-me/stp/  

Page 266

http://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/next-steps-on-the-nhs-five-year-forward-view/
http://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/next-steps-on-the-nhs-five-year-forward-view/
http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/delivering-sustainability-and-transformation-plans
http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/involve-me/stp/


 

7 
 

Stockton-on-Tees, and South Tees STP4. Local STP priorities include:  
 

 Preventing ill health to reduce health inequalities and increasing self-care - this 
involves strengthening the public health agenda and supporting people to 
manage their own health and any medical problems they already have. For 
example, 27% of people seen by their GP for could have had their problem 
resolved in a different way, such as getting advice from a pharmacist5. 

 Health and care in communities and neighbourhoods – this involves supporting 
people to stay well and independent for as long as possible by improving health 
and care services within their community (including improving access to mental 
health support locally). For example, 25 – 50% of hospital beds are used by 
people who do not need hospital care6. 

 
Sitting alongside the integration agenda in the STPs is the ongoing integration work 
in County Durham funded by the Better Care Fund (BCF)7 which was announced in 
2013 and is a single pooled budget for health and social care services to work more 
closely together, based on plans agreed by the HWB, in order to support more 
person-centred, coordinated care. Local areas should ensure the financial planning 
and overall direction of travel within BCF plans and the local STP(s) are fully aligned. 
 
In 2017, the TAPs work stream began in order to enhance integration across health 
and social care in line with STPs and the BCF. TAPs represent a small group of GP 
practices and a collection of services for a 30-50,000 population in County Durham. 
These services aim to integrate health and social care services in order to promote 
seamless care for a patient with care being delivered in the community 
setting/person’s own home. A front line workforce across a number of disciplines will 
deliver care to patients, with a greater focus on prevention and independence. There 
are 13 TAPs in County Durham which are aligned to the GP Federations (see 
Appendix 1). Phase 1 began in summer 2016 with an initial focus on adult patients 
that are at very high/moderate risk of admission to hospital and care homes, with 
services to include the following: 
 

 GP practices 

 Social care 

 Community nursing  

 Community pharmacy  

 Vulnerable adults service  

 Specialist nursing services e.g. respiratory 

 Falls prevention services  

 Palliative care 

 Continence services  

 Intermediate care  

 Stroke services  

 Dietetics  

 Physiotherapy  

                                            
4 www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/sustainability-transformation-plan-stp/  
5 www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/involve-me/stp/ 
6 www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/involve-me/stp/ 
7 Integration and Better Care Fund Policy Framework 2017 to 2019. DH, March 2017. 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/integration-and-better-care-fund-policy-framework-2017-to-2019  

Page 267

http://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/sustainability-transformation-plan-stp/
http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/involve-me/stp/
http://www.northdurhamccg.nhs.uk/involve-me/stp/
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/integration-and-better-care-fund-policy-framework-2017-to-2019


 

8 
 

 Occupational therapy  

 Podiatry  

 Wellbeing for Life services 

 Voluntary sector 
 
Locally, HWBs bring local authorities and CCGs together by promoting integrated 
working between commissioners of health services, public health and social care 
services in order to improve the health and wellbeing of local people. The County 
Durham JSNA8 provides the detailed overview of the current and future health and 
wellbeing needs of the people of County Durham and aims to: 
 

 Highlight areas where there is a need to improve health and wellbeing outcomes 
for the local community. 

 Aid decision makers in targeting resources. 

 Act as a resource document to support health and wellbeing planning and 
commissioning. 

 Help inform HWB plans and strategies to provide a basis upon which to plan for 
the achievement of local outcomes and targets. 
 

Since 2016 the JSNA has been presented within the health, social care and 
wellbeing section of the County Durham Integrated Needs Assessment9 (INA) as a 
series of factsheets. These factsheets are updated regularly and provide current 
data and information for stakeholders in order to inform planning and commissioning 
of services. The JSNA informs the JHWS 2016-1910 for County Durham. The JHWS 
outlines a three year vision for improving health and wellbeing, and addressing 
health inequalities in the county. It informs and influences decisions about health and 
social care services in County Durham, so that they are focused on the needs of the 
people who use them and tackle the factors that affect health and wellbeing, for 
example smoking, drugs, alcohol, unhealthy weight, mental and physical wellbeing. 
Overarching priorities in the JHWS include to reduce health inequalities and early 
deaths; to improve the quality of life, independence, and care and support for people 
with long term conditions (LTCs); and to improve the mental and physical wellbeing 
of the population. Appendix 2 describes some of these targets in more detail.  
 
1.2 Pharmaceutical needs assessment  
A PNA considers the health needs of the population and the provision of 
pharmaceutical services, and therefore, whether there are any potential gaps in 
pharmaceutical service delivery. The PNA for County Durham links to the health 
needs identified in the JSNA and the priorities described in the JHWS. 
 
All HWBs must produce an updated PNA every 3 years. A PNA is used by NHS 
England in its consideration of applications to join the pharmaceutical list under The 
NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 (and 
2016 amendments), and by service commissioners to ensure that pharmaceutical 
and medicines optimisation services are commissioned to reflect the health needs 
and ambitions outlined within the JHWS. 

                                            
8 www.durham.gov.uk/jsna  
9 www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/8461/Integrated-Needs-Assessment  
10 www.durham.gov.uk/jhws  

Page 268

http://www.durham.gov.uk/jsna
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/8461/Integrated-Needs-Assessment
http://www.durham.gov.uk/jhws


 

9 
 

 
1.3 Market entry 
Under the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 
2013 (and the accompanying 2016 amendments) a person (a pharmacist, dispenser 
of appliances, or in some rural areas a GP) who wishes to provide NHS 
pharmaceutical services must apply to NHS England to be included on the relevant 
pharmaceutical list. There are two types of application – excepted and routine. 
  
There are 5 types of routine market entry application. These are applications that 
seek to prove they are able to meet a pharmaceutical need as set out in the relevant 
PNA, and hence are judged against the PNA by NHS England. These routine 
applications seek to: 
 

 Meet a current need in the PNA 

 Meet a future need in the PNA 

 Improve current access 

 Improve future access 

 Fulfil an unforeseen benefit (where the applicant provides evidence of a need that 
was not foreseen when the PNA was published)  

 
‘Excepted’ applications are not judged against the pharmaceutical needs described 
in a PNA and include applications to provide pharmaceutical services on a distance-
selling (i.e. internet or mail order only) basis, no significant change relocations, and 
consolidation applications. Consolidation applications were introduced in 2016 by 
amendments to the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 
Regulations 2013 to allow for the consolidation of two or more pharmacies on a 
single existing site where such a change would not create a gap in provision (as 
described by a supplementary statement that the HWB must produce on receipt of a 
consolidation application). 
 
1.4 Process followed for developing the PNA 
The PNA process follows Regulations 3-9 and Schedule 1 of The NHS 
(Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 201311 (see 
Appendix 3), with particular regard to Regulation 9 (what to consider when making 
an assessment) and Schedule 1 (information to be contained in PNAs). 
The PNA process also follows the supporting guidance in the Pharmaceutical Needs 
Assessment, Information Pack for Local Authority Health and Wellbeing Boards 
published by the Department of Health (DH) in 201312.  
 
The Public Health Department of Durham County Council (DCC) oversaw the 
development of the PNA on behalf of the HWB. A small steering group was 
established in May 2017 in order to produce the first draft of the PNA. Membership 
consisted of: 
 
  

                                            
11The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013.   

www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made  
12 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, Information Pack for Local Authority Health and Wellbeing Boards. DH 2013. 
www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-pack  

Page 269

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-needs-assessments-information-pack


 

10 
 

Table 1: PNA steering group members  

Name Role 

Claire Jones Public Health Pharmacist, Public Health, DCC 

Nick Springham Consultant in Public Health, Public Health, DCC 

Kirsty Roe Public Health Intelligence Specialist, Transformation and 
Partnerships, DCC 

John Russell Senior Policy Officer, Spatial Policy Team, Regeneration and 
Local Services, DCC 

Julie Bradbrook Partnership Manager, Partnerships and Community 
Engagement, Transformation and Partnerships, DCC 

Emma Morris  Local Pharmaceutical Committee (LPC) 

Joan Sutherland  Medicines Optimisation Lead, North Durham CCG 

Zena Jones Healthwatch  

 
During May – August 2017, the Public Health Department gathered the relevant 
information from each steering group member; pharmaceutical service information 
from various service commissioners and portfolio leads; responses from a LPC-
approved community pharmacy questionnaire; and responses from an online 
Healthwatch questionnaire before preparing a draft PNA. This was signed off by 
steering group members in August 2017, before starting the process of internal DCC 
scrutiny. A revised draft then underwent the statutory 60 day public consultation 
during December 2017 – January 2018 before final sign off by the HWB in March 
2018. Appendix 4 contains the PNA timeline and Appendix 5 summarises the 
stakeholder organisations that commented on the draft PNA during the statutory 60 
day consultation.  
 
1.5 Process for updating the PNA 
Regulation 6(3) of The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 
Regulations 2013 describes the process of PNA updates (see Appendix 3).  
 
HWBs must produce an updated PNA every 3 years or sooner if there are any 
significant changes to pharmaceutical services that are relevant to the granting of 
future pharmacy applications. The latter can also be accomplished by the publication 
of a supplementary statement: 
 

 A supplementary statement must be issued in connection with the granting of a 
consolidation application (see Section 1.3).  

 A supplementary statement may be issued following a change in provision / 
availability of pharmaceutical service since the publication of the PNA that is 
relevant to the granting of future routine applications. 

 Changes to pharmaceutical services that are relevant to the granting of future 
routine applications are generally changes that lead to a gap in pharmaceutical 
services, or changes that meet an identified need in the PNA (e.g. to improve 
access or an identified need in the PNA). However supplementary statements 
may also be issued for opening / closing of premises and no significant change 
relocations of pharmacy premises which do not impact on the granting of future 
routine applications, but could be relevant to the granting of future routine 
applications due to Regulation 31 (adjacent premises).  

Page 270



 

11 
 

 Supplementary statements are a way of updating what the PNA says about which 
pharmaceutical services are provided and where. They are not a way of updating 
what the PNA says about needs (this is covered by Regulation 6(2) of the 2013 
regulations). For example: A HWB identifies that a housing development is 
anticipated to commence in the second year its PNA and that there would be a 
need for the provision of pharmaceutical services to the development at the point 
of occupation of the hundredth house. Subsequently the housing development is 
delayed – a supplementary statement is not appropriate as there have been no 
changes to the availability of pharmaceutical services (i.e. pharmaceutical need). 

 
1.6 Localities for the purpose of the PNA  
Based on how the population of County Durham lives and travels, the localities 
chosen for the 2015-18 PNA, and the configuration of GP Federations and TAPs 
(see Appendix 1), the following localities were chosen: 
 

1. Dales 
2. Easington 
3. Derwentside 
4. Sedgefield 
5. Durham 
6. Chester-le-Street 

 
 
 
  

Page 271



 

12 
 

Section Two: Population profile and health needs13 
 

 
Key points 

 
There is generally a good distribution of pharmacies across the 6 localities to match 
the areas of higher population density. 
 
Similarly, there is generally a good distribution of pharmacies across the 6 localities 
to match the areas of higher population density of older people. This is important 
since the older population is increasing. In addition, older patients often have higher 
morbidity and generally require more support with their medicines and to access 
pharmaceutical services. 
 
County Durham experiences higher levels of deprivation than the national average. 
Research by Durham University has shown that 99.8% of the population in the areas 
of highest deprivation in England have access to a community pharmacy within a 20 
minute walk. This pattern is generally supported locally in each of the 6 localities 
where pharmacy locations are mapped against areas of deprivation. Therefore 
community pharmacy is already well-placed to provide pharmaceutical and public 
health services in the heart of deprived communities. 
 

 
2.1 Population profile  
Population information for County Durham shows that: 
 

 The total population had increased to 517,800 in 2014. 

 Projections indicate a further increase of 2.8% by 2021 (to 532,200 from the 2014 
base year), rising to 548,500 people by 2030.  

 The 65+ age group is projected to increase from almost one in five people in 
2014 (19.6%) to one in four people (25.3%) by 2030, which equates to an 
increase of 36.8% from 101,500 to 138,800 people. In addition, the proportion of 
the County’s population aged 85+ is predicted to almost double by 2030. 

 
Appendix 11 contains maps in each of the 6 localities where pharmacy locations are 
mapped against population density (all ages). There is generally a good distribution 
of pharmacies across the 6 localities to match the areas of higher population density. 
Similarly, Appendix 11 contains maps in each of the 6 localities where pharmacy 
locations are mapped against population density of the over 65’s. Again, there is 
generally a good distribution of pharmacies across the 6 localities to match the areas 
of higher population density of older people. This is important since older patients 
often have higher morbidity and generally require more support with their medicines 
and to access pharmaceutical services. 
 
 
 

                                            
13 Information taken from the JSNA (and accompanying INA factsheets) and the JHWS 2016-19. More detailed information is 

available at www.durham.gov.uk/jhws and www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/8461/Integrated-Needs-Assessment  

 

Page 272

http://www.durham.gov.uk/jhws
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/8461/Integrated-Needs-Assessment


 

13 
 

2.2  Health inequalities and deprivation  
Average life expectancy in County Durham has improved for males (78.1 years) but 
reduced slightly for females (81.4 years). Both are still behind the England average 
of 79.5 years for males and 83.2 years for females. Both prevalence of LTCs (such 
as diabetes, coronary heart disease (CHD), and stroke) and mortality rates for the 
major causes of death (cardiovascular disease (CVD), cancer and stroke) are 
significantly higher in County Durham than England. Between 2011 and 2013 CVD 
and cancer accounted for 63% of early or premature deaths in County Durham and 
as such are priority areas for action locally.  
 
It is therefore important that community pharmacy becomes aware of and signposts 
to the forthcoming Join the Dots service which will provide one stop support for any 
County Durham resident with a diagnosis of cancer; and is involved in the NHS 
Health Check Service.  
 
The links between poor health outcomes and deprivation are well documented. In 
County Durham, levels of deprivation are higher and life expectancy is lower than the 
England average, and there is also inequality within the geography of County 
Durham itself for many measures, including life expectancy and premature mortality. 
For example, in County Durham, men born in the most affluent areas will live 6.9 
years longer than those born in the most deprived areas; women born in the most 
affluent areas will live 7.6 years longer than those born in the most deprived areas. 
 
Much of our population suffer from avoidable ill-health or premature deaths. Lifestyle 
factors remain a key driver to reducing premature deaths. For example: 
 

 Smoking remains the biggest single contributor to the shorter life expectancy 
experienced locally and contributes substantially to the cancer burden. 

 The levels of excess weight are higher across County Durham (69% of adults) 
than the North East (68.6%) and significantly higher than England (64.6%). 

 The rate for alcohol-specific admissions to hospital for adults at 788 per 100,000 
population is worse than the England average of 645.  
 

Local priorities for tackling health inequalities in County Durham therefore include 
reducing smoking, tackling childhood and adult unhealthy weight, promoting 
breastfeeding, reducing alcohol consumption, reducing teenage conceptions (and 
promoting good sexual health), promoting positive mental health, and reducing early 
deaths from heart disease and cancer. 
 
A study published in the British Medical Journal (BMJ) in 2014 by Durham 
University14 sought to determine the percentage of the population in England that 
have access to a community pharmacy within a 20 minute walk, and how this linked 
to social deprivation. It found that 90.2% of the population in the areas of lowest 
deprivation have access to a community pharmacy within a 20 minute walk, whilst 
99.8% of the population in the areas of highest deprivation have access to a 
community pharmacy within a 20 minute walk.  

                                            
14 Todd et al. The positive pharmacy care law: an area level analysis of the relationship between community pharmacy 

distribution, urbanity and social deprivation in England. BMJ 2014 4(8) 1-8. http://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/4/8/e005764  

Page 273

http://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/4/8/e005764


 

14 
 

This is supported locally by the maps in Appendix 11 where pharmacy locations are 
mapped against deprivation to show a good availability of pharmacies across the 
areas of deprivation in the 6 localities. Therefore community pharmacy is already 
well-placed to provide pharmaceutical and public health services in the heart of 
deprived communities, and to work closely with these local communities in order to 
change the health inequalities that exist. 
  

Page 274



 

15 
 

Section Three: Access to pharmaceutical services  
 

 
Key points 

 
County Durham has a good distribution of pharmaceutical services. This is reflected 
by the view of a small sample of the public where 93% of people who responded to a 
Healthwatch survey stated that they can easily access pharmaceutical services 
 
At the time of writing the PNA in 2017, County Durham has an above national 
average supply of community pharmacies. This is an opportunity to allow for more 
patient choice, and for additional pharmaceutical services to the ageing and deprived 
populations in County Durham. However with the funding cuts in the national 
pharmacy contract a number of pharmacies may close or consolidate during the life 
of this 3 year PNA. The HWB will then consider whether this leaves a gap in 
pharmaceutical services in County Durham.  
 
A good distribution of pharmacies exist with extended and weekend opening hours in 
all localities. People requiring urgent medication from primary care services are 
generally directed to a 100-hour pharmacy open in that locality. The CCGs will 
continue to monitor the nature of the prescribed medication and the distances that 
people travel to receive any urgent medication in order to make a judgement as to 
whether there continues to be an adequate provision of pharmaceutical services 
across all 6 PNA localities. 
  
None of the predicted housing development builds by April 2021 will require new 
pharmaceutical services due to satisfactory cover from already existing services. 
However this position should be particularly reviewed again in the 2021-24 PNA as 
builds on the larger developments start to progress.  
 
A review of the rurality of County Durham is required by NHS England following an 
appeal to the NHS Litigation Authority in 2011. 
 

 
3.1 Number, type of pharmaceutical service and geographical distribution 
As highlighted in Section 2.2, a study published in the BMJ in 2014 by Durham 
University15 found that 90.2% of the population in the areas of lowest deprivation in 
England have access to a community pharmacy within a 20 minute walk, whilst 
99.8% of the population in the areas of highest deprivation in England have access 
to a community pharmacy within a 20 minute walk.  
 
In 2017 there are 125 pharmacies in County Durham (see Appendix 10 for 
pharmaceutical services in each locality, including which pharmacies are distance 
selling and which are 100-hour pharmacies; and Appendix 11 for the locations of 
pharmacy services in each of the 6 localities). The number reported in the last PNA 
of 2015 was also 125.  
 

                                            
15 Todd et al. The positive pharmacy care law: an area level analysis of the relationship between community pharmacy 

distribution, urbanity and social deprivation in England. BMJ 2014 4(8) 1-8. http://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/4/8/e005764  

Page 275

http://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/4/8/e005764


 

16 
 

The County Durham population in 2014 was 517,800. Projections indicate this will 
increase to 532,200 people by 2021. This means that County Durham has 24 
pharmacies per 100,000 population (reducing to 23 pharmacies per 100,000 
population in 2021). The current figure is therefore higher than the 2016 North-East 
and England average of 23 and 21 per 100,000, respectively. This is an opportunity 
to allow for more patient choice, and additional pharmaceutical services to the 
ageing and deprived populations in County Durham. However with the funding cuts 
in the national pharmacy contract a number of pharmacies may close or consolidate 
(see Section 1.3) during the life of this 3 year PNA. The HWB will then consider 
whether this leaves a gap in pharmaceutical services. 
 
In 2017 there are 16 dispensing GP practices (see Appendix 10 for pharmaceutical 
services in each locality, including opening hours of GP practice dispensaries). In the 
last 2015 PNA there were 18 dispensing practices. Dispensing doctors are 
authorised to provide drugs and appliances in designated rural areas known as 
controlled localities. A controlled locality is an area that has been determined to be 
‘rural in character’ by NHS England, a primary care trust (PCT) predecessor 
organisation, or following an appeal to the NHS Litigation Authority. NHS England 
holds the map of controlled localities in County Durham and Darlington. A review of 
the rurality of County Durham is required by NHS England following an appeal to the 
NHS Litigation Authority in 2011. Dispensing doctors do not provide the full range of 
pharmaceutical services that pharmacies do, however, CCGs commission practice 
pharmacists to work in all GP practices including dispensing practices and nationally 
there is a drive to integrate clinical pharmacists into GP practices as is already 
happening is some areas of County Durham in 2017. 
 
The map in Appendix 11.1 shows that there is a good distribution of pharmacies and 
dispensing practices across County Durham, with the rural population mainly being 
served by dispensing practices. Locality mapping of pharmacy services in Appendix 
11.2 – 11.7 shows that there is good distribution of pharmacies across County 
Durham particularly in areas of higher population density (all ages and the over 65’s) 
and in areas of higher deprivation. Pharmaceutical services need to be targeted to 
the populations with the highest health needs so it is important to ensure that 
services are accessible to the population in the 30% most deprived areas, and to the 
older population.  
 
3.2 Ease of access to pharmaceutical services  
An important consideration in determining the adequacy of pharmaceutical services 
is how long it takes to travel to a pharmacy. However the majority of pharmacies 
provide a non-commissioned goodwill delivery service (Note: from the responses to 
the May 2017 community pharmacy survey there are generally 1-2 pharmacies in 
each locality that do not provide a delivery service however the national pharmacy 
funding cuts may stop the provision of services which pharmacies are not obliged to 
provide, such as these delivery services). In addition the roll out of repeat 
dispensing, the electronic prescription service (EPS), and eRepeats helps to support 
convenience and ease of access for patients across County Durham. As discussed 
in Section 2.2 a study published in the BMJ in 2014 by Durham University16 found 
that over 90% of the population in England have access to a community pharmacy 

                                            
16 Todd et al. The positive pharmacy care law: an area level analysis of the relationship between community pharmacy 

distribution, urbanity and social deprivation in England. BMJ 2014 4(8) 1-8. http://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/4/8/e005764  

Page 276

http://bmjopen.bmj.com/content/4/8/e005764


 

17 
 

within a 20 minute walk. This is generally supported locally from the mapping 
exercise in Appendix 11 which shows there is a good distribution of pharmacies 
across the 6 localities. In addition, the previous 2015 PNA stated: ‘of the 291,273 
properties in County Durham only 254 are not within a 20 minute drive of a 
pharmacy or dispensing practice. These households are largely situated in the 
Dales’.  
 
The Equality Act 201017 sets out the framework which requires service providers not 
to discriminate against persons with a disability. A person is regarded as being 
disabled if they have a long term physical or mental impairment which has a 
substantial adverse effect on that person’s ability to carry out day to day activities. If 
there are obstacles to accessing a service then the service provider must consider 
what reasonable adjustments are needed to overcome that obstacle so that access 
is provided to a service as close as it is reasonably possible to get to the standard 
normally offered to the public at large. The provider will be in breach of the legislation 
if there is a reasonable adjustment available which he chooses not to make, making 
the disabled person unable to access the service.  Easy open containers, large print 
labels, and reminder charts are common adjustments in pharmacy. In May 2017, 
19% of pharmacies across County Durham did not have unaided wheelchair access 
(see Table 2). 
 
Table 2: Pharmacies with no unaided wheelchair access in County Durham  

Locality  Total number of 
pharmacies  

No unaided wheelchair 
access*  

Dales 23 4 

Easington 28 6 

Derwentside 20 2 

Sedgefield 21 3 

Durham 22 7 

Chester-le-Street  11 2 

Total 125 24 
Source: Pharmacy PNA survey May 2017 (full summary in Appendix 6)  
*Of the 84% of pharmacies that responded to the survey 

 
3.3 Access to pharmaceutical services by opening hours  
A pharmacy has 40 core contractual hours (or 100 for those that have opened under 
the former exemption from the market entry test), the timings of which cannot be 
amended without the consent of NHS England. A pharmacy can also be open for 
additional ‘supplementary hours’. However, with a 3 month notice period to NHS 
England, these supplementary hours can stop at any time therefore in the climate of 
the financial cuts with the national pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
all assessments on access to pharmacy services by opening hours are made using  
core hours only (however note that Appendix 10 also lists the additional 
supplementary hours for each pharmacy in order to give a full picture of total 
pharmacy opening hours in September 2017).  
 
Appendix 10 shows the locations and opening hours (i.e. both core and 
supplementary opening hours of pharmacies, and opening hours of GP practice 

                                            
17 PSNC Briefing 01/16: Equality Act 2010. January 2016. http://psnc.org.uk/contract-it/pharmacy-regulation/dda/  

Page 277

http://psnc.org.uk/contract-it/pharmacy-regulation/dda/


 

18 
 

dispensaries) of pharmaceutical services across the 6 localities with a distinction of 
which pharmacies are 100-hour and which pharmacies are distance-selling. In 
addition the maps in the 6 localities in Appendix 11 shows the location of pharmacies 
with core opening hours after 6pm (these are the 100-hour pharmacies only) and 
pharmacies with core opening hours at the weekend (with a 100-hour pharmacy 
distinction). There is generally a good distribution of pharmacies open at weekends 
across the 6 localities.  
 
In 2017 there are 12 100-hour pharmacies out of a total of 125 pharmacies in County 
Durham (see Appendix 10) which provide extended and out of hours cover for 
pharmaceutical services across the county (see Table 3). 
 
Table 3: 100-hour pharmacies in County Durham  

Locality  Total number 
of 
pharmacies  

Number of  
100-hour 
pharmacies   

Location 

Dales 23 4 Bishop Auckland 

Easington 28 2 Peterlee, Seaham 

Derwentside 20 3 Consett, Stanley, Tanfield 

Sedgefield 21 2 Newton Aycliffe, Spennymoor 

Durham 22 1 Dragonville Industrial Estate 

Chester-le-Street  11 0 - 

Total 125 12  

 
As part of the 5YFV people continue to be encouraged to help themselves (via the 
information at www.nhs.uk) and to visit their pharmacy for healthcare advice and to 
treat minor ailments. In addition, as part of the 5YFV, there is a drive to improve 
access to urgent care services. DDES CCG began to operate a new primary care 
access scheme in April 2017 (with North Durham CCG implementing a similar 
service in September 2017).  In DDES CCG, if a person urgently requires a doctor 
then they are advised to contact their own GP practice between 8am – 6pm Monday 
to Friday. If their own GP practice cannot see them that day they will be given an 
appointment at the nearest primary care service. If they require an urgent doctor’s 
appointment between 6pm – 8am weekdays, or at weekends, then they are advised 
to contact NHS 111 to be signposted to the appropriate service. The primary care 
services operate between 8am – 8pm Monday to Friday, and 8am – 1pm Saturday, 
Sunday, and Bank Holidays. These are located in: 
 

 Dales – Stanhope, Barnard Castle, and Bishop Auckland  

 Sedgefield  - Spennymoor, Newton Aycliffe, and Sedgefield  

 Easington – Seaham, Easington, and Peterlee 
 

People requiring urgent medication are generally provided with a paper prescription 
and directed to a 100-hour pharmacy open in that locality. In these 3 localities there 
are 100-hour pharmacies in Bishop Auckland, Spennymoor, Newton Aycliffe, 
Seaham, and Peterlee (see Table 3). The CCG will continue to monitor the nature of 
the prescribed medication (i.e. whether the prescribed medication is urgent or could 
be dispensed at that person’s usual pharmacy the following day) and the distances 
that people travel to receive any urgent medication in order to make a judgement as 
to whether there continues to be an adequate provision of pharmaceutical services 

Page 278

http://www.nhs.uk/


 

19 
 

across all localities. The LPC will then work closely with local contractors and the 
CCG to scope the feasibility of increasing pharmacy opening hours. 
 
3.4 The public view 
Healthwatch carried out an online survey in the summer of 2017 with a view to 
gaining an initial insight into how a small sample of the public (total of 164 
responses) are accessing pharmaceutical services and their overall views of the 
services they receive (see Appendix 7). In terms of how the public are accessing 
pharmaceutical services across County Durham: 
 

 56% of people who responded to the survey access pharmaceutical services 
once a month, with 85% of people always / usually using the same 
pharmaceutical service.  

 93% of people who responded to the survey can easily access pharmaceutical 
services, with 66% of them visiting a pharmaceutical service by car.  

 
Appendix 7 also lists the positive and negative comments received on staff, access 
and services from this survey. The comments regarding access across the 6 
localities are summarised below. A common theme seems to be that, in some cases, 
pharmacy opening hours do not match those of GP practices. If a pharmacy wishes 
to change its opening hours to match those of a GP practice, it must first apply to 
NHS England to alter its ‘supplementary’ opening hours (see Section 3.3).  
 
Across County Durham (where no postcode was indicated on the survey return) 
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Good location. 

 It is well located and is open good hours. 

 Long opening hours. 
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Increase in out of hours cover.  
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Later opening hours. Their hours do not match those of the GP practice. 

 Opening hours longer. 

 Longer opening hours and weekend opening times. 

 Open longer hours. 
 
Dales  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Local and convenient. 

 Convenient long opening hours. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Access. 

 Longer Saturday opening times or one late night per week - it is sometimes awkward 
collecting prescriptions with working full time. 

 
Easington  
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Not open very much over the weekend period.  
 
Derwentside  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Long opening hours and 7 day opening. 

 Fantastic opening hours. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

Page 279



 

20 
 

 Pharmacy joined onto the GP should be open the same hours. The pharmacy closes at 5.30 
but the GP appointments run until 6.30 so means not able to pick up an urgent prescription 
the same day. 

 Open Saturdays. 
 
Sedgefield  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Opening hours are good - stay open late, all others close at teatime. 

 Great pharmacy is in house which is convenient. 

 Easily accessible. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Better opening times and weekend opening. 

 Waiting times could be reduced. 

 Later opening hours. 

 Wait time on prescriptions (doctors quicker to get prescription). 
 
Durham 
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Local and convenient prescription service. 

 They are open long hours to coincide with the doctor’s surgery. 
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Yes a Saturday service. 

 They are not open at lunchtimes or evenings.  
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Open Saturdays. 

 More staff at busy times and a better waiting area. 

 Open on a weekend and one late evening per week. 

 Be open at lunchtimes and evenings and Sundays. 

 Longer opening hours. 

 Weekend opening hours. 

 Closed at lunchtime - inconvenient. Stay open all day. 
    
Chester-le-Street 
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 It would be helpful if their opening times were longer for people who work during the day.  
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 The shop is not accessible if you are a wheelchair user.  

 
3.5 Future housing developments 
For potential future changes to pharmaceutical need due to new housing 
developments during 2018-21, an analysis of building ‘commitments’ (i.e. sites with 
planning permission) in County Durham was undertaken during May – July 2017. 
Appendix 9 shows the future housing developments of 100 or more builds and the 
estimated progress by 2020-21.  
 
In summary, none of the predicted builds by April 2021 will require new 
pharmaceutical services. The impact in each locality of 100 or more predicted builds 
is discussed below:  
 
Dales 
The largest estimated build by 2020-21 is at Brack’s Farm (120 houses). However Bishop Auckland is 
already well serviced with 9 pharmacies that are within a 20 minute drive of this site. 
 
 
 

Page 280



 

21 
 

 
Easington 
The largest estimated builds by 2020-21 are at Peterlee (105 houses) and Wheatley Hill (100 
houses). Peterlee is already well serviced with 5 pharmacies that are within a 20 minute drive of this 
site. Similarly Wheatley Hill itself is already serviced by a single pharmacy.  
 
Derwentside 
The largest estimated builds by 2020-21 are in the Consett area (total 360 houses). However the 
Consett area is already well serviced by 6 pharmacies.  
Estimated builds of over 100 houses are also at Stanley (140 houses). However Stanley is well 
already serviced by 4 pharmacies. 
 
Sedgefield 
The largest estimated builds by 2020-21 are in the Spennymoor area (total of approximately 600 
houses). However, for the purposes of this assessment the assumption is made that these 
developments will have a significant proportion of occupants from the existing population, and hence 
there will be sufficient pharmaceutical services in the Spennymoor area which is already serviced by 4 
pharmacies.  
Estimated builds of over 100 houses are also at Shildon (100 houses), Sedgefield (105 houses), and 
Chilton (total of 180 houses). These areas are already serviced by pharmacies (3, 1, and 1 
respectively). 
 
Durham 
The largest estimated builds by 2020-21 are in and around Durham City (total of approximately 540 
houses). Durham City has well connected sustainable transport links which will provide easy access 
to the numerous pharmaceutical services in and around the Durham area.  
Estimated builds of over 100 houses are also at Meadowfield (140 houses), Ushaw Moor (101 
houses) and West Rainton (120 houses). These areas all have a pharmacy.  
 
Chester-le-Street 
The largest estimated build by 2020-21 is at Vigo Lane (90 houses). Chester-le Street is already well 
serviced by 5 pharmacies.  

 
It is recommended that future PNAs reconsider the need for new pharmaceutical 
services across all localities as the larger housing developments progress. At this 
review, factors to take into account for each new housing development should 
include: 
 

 Is it a significant housing development (e.g. with a build of over 100 houses)? 

 What type of houses will be built in this development (e.g. bungalows which are 
more likely to attract an elderly population; a housing association development 
which may be associated with a population experiencing multiple deprivations)? 

 Are other developments planned within that housing development (e.g. a health 
centre or retail units)?  

 Can a judgement be reasonably made as to whether this development may result 
in a re-distribution of the existing population in an area (e.g. a development 
specifically intended to meet localised housing needs) or a new population 
moving in to the area (e.g. a newly retired population moving to a local beauty 
spot, or as a result of the impact of a significant new employment opportunity)? 

 Is the predicted incoming population likely to: 
1. Alter their choice of GP practice? 
2. Have significant health needs (e.g. an elderly population, or a 

population suffering from multiple deprivations)? 
3. Be able to easily access pharmaceutical services e.g. via sustainable 

transport or by car)? 

Page 281



 

22 
 

3.6  Future new GP practices18 
 In the summer of 2017, there are no approved plans for builds for new GP   
 practices. However, in the summer of 2017, there are aspirations for builds for  
 new GP practices in the areas of: 
 

 Bowburn 

 Coxhoe 

 Sedgefield 

 Newton Aycliffe 
 

If any of these aspirations result in a build for a new GP practice then the HWB 
will consider whether this now results in a gap in pharmaceutical services in this 
area.  
 
 

 
 
 
  

                                            
18 Information obtained from NHS Property Services in August 2017  

Page 282



 

23 
 

Section Four: Service provision 
 

 
Key points 

 
All stakeholders should continue to work together to support the ongoing utilisation of 
eRepeats.  
 
Community pharmacy should become an integral part of the integration agenda and 
TAPs to support patients with their medication. Commissioning of services to further 
support medicines optimisation should be considered, particularly with the growing 
elderly population in County Durham. This should include commissioning of 
enhanced services by NHS England, and take into consideration other medicines 
optimisation services e.g. clinical pharmacists working in GP practices and in care 
homes. 
 
For advanced services, the LPC should continue its work to encourage all 
contractors to provide the flu vaccination service and the national pilot the NHS 
Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service (NUMSAS). The LPC should consider 
the potential of improving and extending the NUMSAS to also include a walk-in 
service. The LPC should scope local training packages for the Appliance Use 
Review (AUR) service and the Stoma Customisation Service (SCS), the provision of 
which by community pharmacy is still very minimal in each locality. In addition, all 
stakeholders should continue to work together to support the ongoing utilisation of 
post-discharge medicines use reviews (MURs) through the Transfer of Care (TOC) 
pathway.  
 
As part of the STP priorities to support self-care and the appropriate use of health 
care services by the public, it is important for community pharmacy to engage with 
the NUMSAS and for the CCG commissioning of a minor ailment service to continue 
alongside the national push to encourage the public to self-care.  
 
In terms of public health services, commissioners may wish to continue to increase 
access to the community pharmacy needle exchange service, and to ensure that 
community pharmacy continues to be part of the NHS Health Check Service. 
Commissioners should also continue to promote community pharmacy signposting to 
the Wellbeing for Life Service, and the forthcoming Join the Dots Service.  
 
HLPs should continue to be supported now that attainment of the Level 1 Award is 
part of the national pharmacy contract, and as part of the local drive to expand 
community pharmacy based public health services particularly in the deprived areas 
across the county. This should particularly involve HLPs broadening their signposting 
to also tackle the wider determinants of health (e.g. social, economic and 
environmental factors). 
 
In order to achieve any pharmacy service development the public need to be made 
aware of what pharmacy can do by all stakeholders working together to promote the 
role of pharmacy by providing information, advertising, and education of targeted 
populations in County Durham.  
 

Page 283



 

24 
 

 
The vast majority of prescriptions issued by County Durham GP practices are 
dispensed by pharmaceutical services in County Durham. Therefore pharmacies 
outside County Durham are not ‘necessary’ to provide the essential pharmaceutical 
service in County Durham. However it is important that commissioners work across 
borders to ensure that service developments do not disadvantage those living in 
cross boundary areas. This has been flagged by service providers in the 
Fencehouses area of the Chester-le-Street locality. 
 

 
4.1 Overview   
4.1a National community pharmacy contract reforms and the local picture 
In December 2016 a new national community pharmacy contract was introduced.  
The overall Government vision for this contract is: “for community pharmacy to be 
integrated with the wider health and social care system. This will help relieve 
pressure on GPs and A&E departments, ensure optimal use of medicines, and will 
mean better value and patient outcomes. It will support the promotion of healthy 
behaviour change and ill health prevention, as well as contributing to delivering 7 day 
health and care services.”  
 
The Government also imposed a two-year funding package on community 
pharmacy. These funding cuts - of around 7.5% in 2017-18 compared with 2015-16 
– are likely to force some pharmacies to close or merge (see Section 1.3 for 
consolidation pharmacy applications) since the average pharmacy (excluding very 
large high street pharmacies and supermarket pharmacies) earns 90–95% of its 
income from the national pharmacy contract and the commissioned services it 
provides. 
 
The Government believes these funding cuts can be made without compromising the 
overall quality of services or public access to them because, for example it states 
that: “there are more pharmacies than are necessary to maintain good patient 
access.” 
 
In order to protect patient access in areas of deprivation or where community 
pharmacy provision is sparse a Pharmacy Access Scheme (PhAS) was also 
introduced in December 2016. This scheme pays additional monies to all small and 
medium sized pharmacies that are a mile or more from another pharmacy (this is 
measured by road distance rather than as the crow flies). In County Durham, 34% 
(42) pharmacies are / may be eligible for this payment according to the May 2017 
community pharmacy survey (see Appendix 6). A relatively high percentage would 
be expected due to the rural nature of County Durham.  
 
Pharmaceutical Services Negotiating Committee19 (PSNC) comments on the funding 
cuts included: “Although it is unlikely that pharmacies will close immediately as a 
result of the pharmacy funding cuts, pharmacy owners will be forced to take steps 
quickly to reduce costs. These are likely to include reducing opening hours and 
staffing, and stopping the provision of services which they are not obliged to provide, 

                                            
19 PSNC promotes and supports the interests of all NHS community pharmacies in England. It is national body responsible for 

negotiating the national pharmacy contract with Government. See http://psnc.org.uk/  

Page 284

http://psnc.org.uk/


 

25 
 

such as home delivery of medicines.” In May 2017 only 1-2 pharmacies in each of 
the 6 localities did not deliver medication (see Appendix 6). Delivery of medication is 
goodwill non-commissioned service. 
 
From 2017/18 the new national pharmacy contract also included a Quality Payments 
Scheme where payments are made to pharmacies meeting certain gateway and 
quality criteria. To qualify for payments, pharmacies must first meet four gateway 
criteria: 
 

1. The contractor must be offering at the pharmacy the MUR or the new 
medicines service (NMS) or must be registered to provide the NUMSAS (see 
Section 4.2b). 

2. The NHS Choices entry for the pharmacy must be up to date. From the 
results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% response rate), 
only a single pharmacy had not accomplished this. This is important for both 
the public and NHS111 to be able to access accurate information about the 
availability of pharmacy services.  

3. Pharmacy staff at the pharmacy must be able to send and receive NHS mail. 
From the results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% 
response rate), 35 pharmacies had yet to sign up for a NHS email address. 
Again it is important that all pharmacies have a NHS email address so that 
they can provide the NUMSAS (see Section 4.2b). 

4. The contractor must be able to demonstrate ongoing utilisation of the EPS at 
the pharmacy premises. From the results of the May 2017 community 
pharmacy survey (84% response rate), only a single pharmacy was not EPS 
enabled. This is important as all national, regional, and local primary care 
stakeholders continue their work to roll out the implementation of eRepeats 
(i.e. repeat dispensing via the EPS) for appropriate patients in order to 
improve the patient pathway, reduce GP practice workload, improve the 
clinical care that patients receive in their community pharmacy. It is also 
important to enable the provision of the NUMSAS. 

 
Each pharmacy passing these four gateway then receive quality payments for quality 
criteria including: 
 

1. Achieving the national self-assessment HLP Level 1 Award.  
2. 80% of all pharmacy staff working in patient facing roles trained as Dementia 

Friends. 
3. Evidence of asthma patients, for whom more than 6 short acting 

bronchodilator inhalers were dispensed without any corticosteroid inhaler 
within a 6 month period, being referred to an appropriate health care 
professional for an asthma review. 
 

From the results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% response rate), 
all pharmacies were working towards the Dementia Friends and asthma inhaler 
quality payments. This is important with the current focus on mental health services, 
and the ongoing CCG medicines optimisation respiratory work stream. The 
appropriate links between the community pharmacy contract and these work streams 
should be made.  

Page 285



 

26 
 

A total of 21 pharmacies indicated that they were either not already accredited as 
HLPs or were not currently working towards this Award by the second 2017-18 
quality payment deadline in November 2017. It is important that all pharmacies seek 
HLP accreditation with the increasing focus on the public health role of community 
pharmacies (see Section 4.4).  
 
4.1b National vision for the future of community pharmacy  
The Community Pharmacy Forward View20 describes three key roles for the 
community pharmacy of the future: 
 

1. As the facilitator of personalised care for people with LTCs - community 
pharmacy teams should be integral to supporting and empowering people 
with LTCs and their carers to manage their own health. Community 
pharmacists and their teams should work in partnership across the wider 
health and care system, within the new care models that are emerging across 
the country. 

2. As the trusted, convenient first port of call for episodic healthcare advice and 
treatment - the habit of using or signposting to ‘pharmacy first’ for non-
emergency episodic care, should be ingrained in patient, public and 
professional behaviours. To facilitate this, systems that enable seamless 
triage to and referral from community pharmacy should be included in all local 
urgent care pathways and in the NHS 111 service.  

3. As the neighbourhood health and wellbeing hub - all pharmacies should 
operate as neighbourhood health and wellbeing centres, providing the ‘go-to’ 
location for support, advice and resources on staying well and independent. 
Building on the HLP model, the safe and efficient supply of medicines 
managed by pharmacist-led teams will remain at the core of this community 
pharmacy offer, but will be recognised as one component of a broader set of 
resources and services available within these health and wellbeing centres. 
Seen as a local community resource and trusted source of information and 
advice, pharmacy teams should have great connections with other 
organisations that support health, wellbeing and independence – ranging 
across local community groups, charities, places of worship, leisure and 
library facilities, social care, education, employment, housing and welfare 
services – and will be able to refer and signpost people to them. Some 
pharmacies should host outreach or drop in facilities for these partner 
organisations, and pharmacy team members will be routinely involved in any 
community-based health and wellbeing activities they organise. 

 
4.2 Pharmaceutical services  
Any organisation can commission services from community pharmacy. NHS England 
commissions NHS Pharmaceutical Services (see below) whilst local authorities and 
CCGs commission ‘locally commissioned services’ (see Section 4.3).  
 
NHS England is the only organisation that can commission NHS Pharmaceutical 
Services (i.e. via the national community pharmacy contract). Community 
pharmacies provide three tiers of Pharmaceutical Service which have been identified 

                                            
20 Community Pharmacy Forward View. PSNC, Pharmacy Voice. August 2016.  

http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/community-pharmacy-forward-view/  

Page 286

http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/community-pharmacy-forward-view/


 

27 
 

in The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 
201321. These are: 
 

 Essential services: services all pharmacies are required to provide.  

 Advanced services: services to support patients with safe use of medicines.  

 Enhanced services: services that can be commissioned locally by NHS England.  
 

4.2a Essential services  
Essential services are mandatory in the pharmacy contract and hence all community 
pharmacies are required to provide them. NHS England is responsible for ensuring 
that all pharmacies deliver all of the essential services as specified. Each pharmacy 
has to demonstrate compliance with the community pharmacy contractual framework 
by providing sufficient evidence for delivery of every service on an annual basis. 
 
Essential services include:  
 

 Dispensing medicines and appliances  

 Repeat dispensing 

 Disposal of unwanted medicines  

 Public health (promotion of healthy lifestyles)  

 Signposting  

 Support for self-care  
 
More than 90% of the items prescribed by GP practices in County Durham in 2013-
14 were dispensed in pharmacies in County Durham. This indicates that out of area 
pharmacies do not provide the ‘necessary’ essential pharmaceutical service for 
County Durham (i.e. pharmacies outside County Durham are not ‘necessary’ to 
provide the essential pharmaceutical service in County Durham). 
 
4.2b Advanced services  
There are 6 advanced services within the NHS community pharmacy contract22. 
Community pharmacies can choose to provide any of these services as long as they 
meet the necessary requirements. The 6 advanced services are the: 
 

 Medicines use reviews (MURs)  

 New medicine service (NMS) 

 Appliance use review (AUR)  

 Stoma customisation service (SCS)  

 Flu vaccination service 

 NHS urgent medicine supply advanced service (NUMSAS) 
 
4.2 b(i) Medicines use reviews and the new medicine service  
25-50% of medicines are not taken as intended or directed, and 15% of people 
receiving new medicines take few, if any, doses. This ‘non-adherence’ may lead to 
further prescriptions, tests and investigations, poor clinical outcomes, increased 

                                            
21  www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/made 
22 See information at http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/advanced-services/ and http://psnc.org.uk/services-
commissioning/psnc-briefings-services-and-commissioning/psnc-briefing-04017-nhs-community-pharmacy-advanced-services-
information-for-general-practitioners-and-practice-staff-june-2017/ for further details of each service. 

Page 287

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/made
http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/advanced-services/
http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/psnc-briefings-services-and-commissioning/psnc-briefing-04017-nhs-community-pharmacy-advanced-services-information-for-general-practitioners-and-practice-staff-june-2017/
http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/psnc-briefings-services-and-commissioning/psnc-briefing-04017-nhs-community-pharmacy-advanced-services-information-for-general-practitioners-and-practice-staff-june-2017/
http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/psnc-briefings-services-and-commissioning/psnc-briefing-04017-nhs-community-pharmacy-advanced-services-information-for-general-practitioners-and-practice-staff-june-2017/


 

28 
 

admissions to hospital, and premature mortality. Non-adherence to appropriately 
prescribed medicines is therefore a considerable issue for the NHS. 23 
 
The MUR service consists of accredited pharmacists undertaking structured 
adherence-centred reviews with patients on multiple medicines, particularly those 
receiving medicines for LTCs. A MUR is a way to:  
 

 improve patients' understanding of their medicines,  

 highlight problematic side effects and propose solutions, 

 improve adherence and,  

 reduce medicines wastage, usually by encouraging the patient only to order the 
medicines they require. 
 

A MUR is not a full clinical review and is in addition to any reviews carried out by the 
patient’s GP. Feedback is provided to the patient’s GP where there is an issue 
for them to consider. National target groups for MURs are (70% of the annual 
maximum of 400 MURs undertaken by each pharmacy should be on patients within 
the national target groups): 
 

 patients taking high risk medicines (e.g. anticoagulants); 

 patients recently discharged from hospital who had changes made to their 
medicines while they were in hospital (ideally within four weeks of discharge);  

 patients with respiratory disease; 

 patients with CVD or with another condition which puts them at increasing risk 
of developing CVD, taking four or more medicines. 

 
Non-adherence to prescribed medicines can lead to poor management of LTCs and 
a cost to the patient, NHS and society. The NMS aims to provide early support to 
patients who are newly prescribed a medicine with repeated follow-up in the short 
term to increase adherence and effective medicine taking. Increased patient 
adherence to treatment will consequently reduce drug wastage and medicines 
related hospital admissions. The NMS is targeted to new medicines prescribed in the 
four therapy areas of: 
 

 Hypertension 

 Type 2 diabetes 

 Asthma / chronic obstructive airways disease (COPD) 

 Anticoagulation / antiplatelet therapy 
 

The national evaluation of the NMS24 found that the service is well received by 
patients and increases adherence to new medicines at 10 weeks by approximately 
10% making it an important intervention.  
 
Locally these services could be further developed to enhance feedback mechanisms 
to GP practices, improve patient care, and free to GP practice time. To gain 

                                            
23 Commissioning medicines optimisation services from community pharmacy: Guidance for commissioners. Primary Care 
Commissioning, October 2016. http://psnc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Commissioning-medicines-optimisation-
services-from-community-pharmacy-Guidance-for-commissioners.pdf  
24 Understanding and appraising the new NMS in the NHS in England. The University of Nottingham, University College 

London, DH. 2014. www.nmsevaluation.org.uk   

Page 288

http://psnc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Commissioning-medicines-optimisation-services-from-community-pharmacy-Guidance-for-commissioners.pdf
http://psnc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Commissioning-medicines-optimisation-services-from-community-pharmacy-Guidance-for-commissioners.pdf
http://www.nmsevaluation.org.uk/


 

29 
 

maximum value and benefits from MURs and the NMS it is important that effective 
communication processes exist locally between GP practices and community 
pharmacies in order to: 
 

 Agree referral pathways for GPs and staff to direct patients into the services. 

 Ensure that there are procedures to manage feedback and follow-up with 
community pharmacies. 

 Where possible, timing of MURs could be co-ordinated with GP practice reviews 
to maximise beneficial outcomes and prevent duplication. 

 
According to the results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% 
response rate), the MUR service and the NMS are now routine practice, with only 2 
pharmacies in the Durham locality indicating that they would be introducing the NMS 
in 2018.  This is important particularly with post-discharge MUR referrals to 
community pharmacy from hospital trusts in the area through a TOC pathway. This 
pathway is essentially a communication template operating between local hospital 
Trusts and County Durham pharmacies via PharmOutcomes25. This TOC pathway 
will become even more important as the local TAP integration pathways are 
developed (see Section 1.1).   
 
4.2b(ii) The appliance use review and stoma customisation service 
AURs can be carried out by a pharmacist or a specialist nurse in the pharmacy or at 
the patient’s home. AURs should improve the patient’s knowledge and use of any 
specified appliance by: 
 

 Establishing the way the patient uses the appliance and the patient’s experience 
of such use. 

 Identifying, discussing and assisting in the resolution of poor or ineffective use of 
the appliance by the patient. 

 Advising the patient on the safe and appropriate storage of the appliance. 

 Advising the patient on the safe and proper disposal of the appliances that are 
used or unwanted. 
 

The SCS involves the customisation of a quantity of more than one stoma appliance, 
based on the patient’s measurements or a template. The aim of the service is to 
ensure proper use and comfortable fitting of the stoma appliance and to improve the 
duration of usage, thereby reducing waste. 
 
According to the results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% 
response rate) the provision of the AUR and SCS by community pharmacy are still 
very minimal in each locality, and is still likely to reflect the fact that appliance 
contractors are currently largely providing this service, and that training to provide 
this service is limited. It is therefore recommended that the LPC scope some local 
training packages and determine the level of interest in local provision of this service.  
  

                                            
25 PharmOutcomes is an established and well recognised national web-based system which helps community pharmacies 
provide services more effectively and makes it easier for commissioners to audit and manage these services. See 
https://pharmoutcomes.org/pharmoutcomes/ for more information.  

Page 289

https://pharmoutcomes.org/pharmoutcomes/


 

30 
 

 
4.2b(iii) Flu vaccination service 
This service runs from September to March with the aim of vaccinating eligible 
patients by the end of January. The administration of a flu vaccine is legally 
authorised by a national Patient Group Direction (PGD), and covers patients aged 18 
years and older in the at risk groups that are published each year at 
www.gov.uk/government/collections/annual-flu-programme. Pharmacists providing 
this service attend face-to-face training for both injection technique and basic life 
support training every two years, and must ensure that a notification of the 
vaccination is sent to the patient’s GP practice on the same day the vaccine is 
administered or on the following working day (this can be done locally via 
PharmOutcomes). In 2016-17 pharmacies in County Durham and Darlington 
delivered 11,107 vaccinations.  
 
According to the results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% 
response rate), 75 pharmacies are providing the flu vaccination service from 
September each year, with a further 12 pharmacies planning to do so (see Table 4). 
Alongside GP practices, it is important that this service becomes routine practice in 
all pharmacies in County Durham, in order to provide a consistent message to the 
public about increasing access and patient choice to flu vaccination. The LPC should 
continue its work to encourage and support all contractors to provide this service. 
 
Table 4: Provision of the flu vaccination service 

Locality  Total number of 
pharmacies  

Current 
provision*  

Planned 
provision 

Dales 23 15 2 

Easington 28 15 4 

Derwentside 20 15 1 

Sedgefield 21 12 1 

Durham 22 13 1 

Chester-le-Street  11 5 3 

Total 125 75 12 
Source: Pharmacy PNA survey May 2017 (full summary in Appendix 6)  
*Of the 84% of pharmacies that responded to the survey 
 

4.2b(iv) NHS urgent medicine supply advanced service 
Up to 30% of all calls to NHS 111 services on a Saturday are for urgent requests for 
repeat medication. This can block GP out of hours appointments, disrupt the usual 
repeat prescribing and dispensing cycle, and increase the potential for medicines 
waste. A small number of patients also attend A&E to obtain urgently needed 
medicines26 
 
This service is a national pilot which began in December 2016 and, in the first 
instance, is commissioned to run until 31st March 2018 (with a review point to 
consider progress in September 2017). The objectives of the service are to: 
 

 Manage appropriately NHS 111 requests for urgent medicine supply. 

                                            
26 Quick Guide: Extending the role of community pharmacy in urgent care. NHS England, November 2015. 

www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2015/11/quick-guid-comm-pharm-urgent-care.pdf  
 

Page 290

http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/annual-flu-programme
http://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2015/11/quick-guid-comm-pharm-urgent-care.pdf


 

31 
 

 Reduce demand on the rest of the urgent care system. 

 Resolve problems leading to patients running out of their medicines. 

 Increase patients’ awareness of electronic repeat dispensing (or eRepeats). 
 

NUMSAS is available to patients who contact NHS 111 to advise that they have run 
out of their NHS prescription medicines. NHS 111 will refer patients to the nearest 
pharmacy who is providing the service via NHSmail and the pharmacist will then 
interview the patient to decide if it is appropriate for an ‘emergency supply’ of their 
medicines or appliances to be supplied. 
 
The pharmacy will have ensured that (see Section 4.1a): 
 

 The NHS choices information is accurate. 

 It can receive referrals from NHS 111 via NHSmail.  

 It is EPS enabled in order to check if there is a prescription available to dispense. 
 

Pharmacies must ensure that a notification is sent to the patient’s GP practice on the 
same day the medicine or appliance is supplied or as soon as possible after the 
pharmacy opens on the following working day. 
 
According to the results of the May 2017 community pharmacy survey (84% 
response rate), 47 pharmacies are signed up to provide NUMSAS, with a further 20 
pharmacies planning to do so (see Table 5). Again, it is important that NUMSAS 
becomes routine practice so that all pharmacies in County Durham can support the 
STP-driven agenda to support the appropriate use of health care services by the 
public and the provision of 7 day services with NHS 111 acting as the gateway for 
patients to services (see Section 1.1). The LPC should continue its work to 
encourage and support all contractors to provide this service.  
 
In 2014/15 an out of hours Pharmacy Emergency Repeat Medication Supply Service 
(PERMSS) was commissioned locally. This service was a walk-in service with 
patients self-presenting to community pharmacies during out of hours (OOH) periods 
with emergency repeat medication supply requests. Community pharmacists 
assessed each request for clinical appropriateness and when suitable provide an 
emergency repeat medication supply, with additional pharmaceutical advice and 
services if required. This service was evaluated by Durham University and published 
in the BMJ. Key findings included that patients found this service easy to access and 
were willing to access the community pharmacy in the future for medication-related 
issues. In the absence of this service, 50% of patients would have missed their 
medication(s) until they saw their doctor and a further 46% would have accessed an 
alternative service. The cost of NHS service(s) for patients who would have 
accessed an alternative OOH service was estimated as 37 times that of the 
community pharmacy service provided. Community pharmacists were happy to 
provide this service despite increased consultation times and workload. The paper 
concluded that community pharmacists were able to manage patients’ OOH requests 
for emergency repeat medication; patients were happy with the service provided; 
and since the service cost was favourable when compared with alternative OOH 
services, it would be a viable option to reduce the workload on the wider NHS. 
The LPC should therefore consider the potential of improving and extending the 
NUMSAS to also include a walk-in service. 

Page 291



 

32 
 

 
Table 5: Provision of the NHS urgent medicine supply advanced service   

Locality  Total number of 
pharmacies  

Current 
provision*  

Planned 
provision 

Dales 23 8 5 

Easington 28 7 4 

Derwentside 20 11 2 

Sedgefield 21 10 2 

Durham 22 7 5 

Chester-le-Street  11 4 2 

Total 125 47 20 
Source: Pharmacy PNA survey May 2017 (full summary in Appendix 6)  
*Of the 84% of pharmacies that responded to the survey 
 

4.2c Enhanced services 
Enhanced Services can be commissioned by NHS England to meet a local need. 
There are 20 enhanced services listed in the 2013 Directions27 however none are 
currently commissioned.  
 
The menu of 20 enhanced services largely focuses on supporting the medicines 
optimisation agenda with service templates for a: 
 

 Care home service  

 Disease specific medicines management service 

 Medicines assessment and compliance support service 

 Medication review service 
 
NHS England could support the growing older population and the integration work in 
County Durham by commissioning such enhanced services across the region, whilst 
taking into consideration other medicines optimisation services e.g. clinical 
pharmacists working in GP practices and in care homes. 
 
Commissioning medicines optimisation services from community pharmacy:  
Guidance for commissioners28 states that by integrating a medicines optimisation 
service into the patient pathway, the patient can access the expertise of a 
pharmacist and their team in community pharmacy, which can improve their 
medicines taking, reduce unplanned hospital admissions and reduce pressure on the 
wider health and social care system.  
Medicines optimisation is about ensuring that the right patients get the right choice of 
medicine, at the right time. By focusing on patients and their experiences, the goal is 
to help patients to: 
 

 Take their medicines correctly 

 Avoid taking unnecessary medicines 

 Reduce wastage of medicines 

 Improve their outcomes 

                                            
27 www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-services-advanced-and-enhanced-services-england-directions-2013  
28Commissioning medicines optimisation services from community pharmacy: Guidance for commissioners. Primary Care 

Commissioning, October 2016. http://psnc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Commissioning-medicines-optimisation-
services-from-community-pharmacy-Guidance-for-commissioners.pdf  

Page 292

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pharmaceutical-services-advanced-and-enhanced-services-england-directions-2013
http://psnc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Commissioning-medicines-optimisation-services-from-community-pharmacy-Guidance-for-commissioners.pdf
http://psnc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/07/Commissioning-medicines-optimisation-services-from-community-pharmacy-Guidance-for-commissioners.pdf


 

33 
 

 Improve medicines safety. 
17% of all unplanned hospital admission in the over 65s are due to medication 
issues. 
 
4.3 Locally commissioned services   
Any organisation can commission services from community pharmacy. Local 
authorities and CCGs can commission ‘locally commissioned services’29. Table 6 
describes the services that are commissioned in 2017.  
 
When developing services it is important for commissioners to review and evaluate 
the currently commissioned services and health outcomes achieved. Any review 
should include whether to keep the status quo by allowing all pharmacy contractors 
to engage in new commissioned services by expression of interest, or whether 
targeted delivery by a small number of contractors would be more appropriate. For 
example, where there is a recognised health need in a certain population or location. 
It is also important that any service review includes actual service delivery by 
pharmacists as well as other providers who also meet specific pharmaceutical 
needs. 
 
As discussed in Section 4.2, out of area pharmacies do not provide a ‘necessary’ 
essential pharmaceutical service for County Durham. However it is important that 
those living in cross boundary areas are not disadvantaged in terms of access to 
services. It is therefore important that commissioners work across borders to ensure 
that services are based on the same criteria for patient inclusion. This has been 
flagged by service providers in the Fencehouses area of the Chester-le-Street 
locality. 
 
Table 6: Locally commissioned services in community pharmacy in 2017  

Service Commissioner 

Minor ailment service  CCG 

Anticoagulant monitoring CCG 

Reimbursement of tuberculosis (TB) medication costs CCG 

Food thickening voucher scheme CCG 

Palliative care CCG 

Sexual health services  DCC 

Stop smoking services DCC 

Substance misuse services  DCC 

 
4.3a CCG commissioned services 
 
4.3a(i)  Minor ailment service 
In a minor ailment service patients are encouraged to consult the community 
pharmacy rather than the GP for a defined list of minor ailments. In 2017, patients 
who are registered with a County Durham and Darlington GP practice and are 
exempt from NHS prescription charges receive treatment from an agreed local 
formulary free of charge.  
 

                                            
29 http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/locally-commissioned-services/  

Page 293

http://psnc.org.uk/services-commissioning/locally-commissioned-services/


 

34 
 

It is estimated that 3% of A&E consultations and 5.5% of GP consultations for 
common ailments (such as temperature) could be managed in community pharmacy 
at significantly reduced cost. The NHS England Urgent and Emergency Care 
Review30 therefore recommends these services are commissioned according to local 
need, and that have most impact when referrals are also made from NHS 11131 32.  
Provision of the current local minor ailment scheme is widespread. In 2016-17, 
22,112 consultations were undertaken in North Durham CCG, with 72% of those 
using this service indicating they would have attended their GP practice in the 
absence of the scheme. In 2016-17, 44,334 consultations were undertaken in DDES 
CCG, with 68% of those using this service indicating they would have attended their 
GP practice in the absence of the scheme. 
 
A consistent approach across the North-East region would deliver greater benefits in 
terms of a consistent formulary of product choices and promotion of the scheme to 
patients. This is particularly important with the national drive to better utilise 
community pharmacy to more widely support self-care and to become the first port of 
call for minor ailments (see Section 4.1b), hence moving appropriate patient 
consultations away from GP practices.  
 
4.3a(ii) Anticoagulant monitoring 
An anticoagulation monitoring service with community pharmacists provides patients 
with a local and accessible service utilizing the skills of the pharmacist as the expert 
on drugs. A service within pharmacy means that patients do not have to make 
inconvenient and timely visits to hospital. The maps in Appendix 11 shows that the 
service provision in 2017/18 is very limited, with a total of 4 pharmacies in the Dales 
(Bishop Auckland, Crook) and Derwentside (Consett, Stanley) localities providing the 
pharmacy service. Commissioners may wish to further increase access to this 
service taking into account local prevalence of atrial fibrillation, other drug 
management options, monitoring currently provided by other service providers, and 
the locations of the patients registered with the current pharmacy providers. From 
the results of the community pharmacy survey (see Appendix 6), there is a general 
willingness from contractors to provide this service. To enable this the LPC should 
support pharmacies through the ‘any qualified provider’ process.  
 
4.3a(iii) Reimbursement of tuberculosis (TB) medication costs 
This is a scheme administered across County Durham which enables patients who 
normally pay for their prescriptions to receive anti tuberculosis drugs free of charge. 
Patients present their prescription and a letter from community health services to 
their community pharmacy which then provides the prescription free of charge and 
subsequently claims this charge back from the commissioning team.  
The maps in Appendix 11 show that this service is reasonably spread over all 6 
localities, with the results from the community pharmacy survey in Appendix 6 
indicating a general willingness from more contractors to provide this service in the 
future.  
 

                                            
30 Transforming urgent and emergency care services in England. NHS England, November 2013. 
www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/keogh-review/Documents/UECR.Ph1Report.FV.pdf  
31 Quick Guide: Extending the role of community pharmacy in urgent care. NHS England, November 2015. 
www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2015/11/quick-guid-comm-pharm-urgent-care.pdf  
32 Community Pharmacy- helping provide better quality and resilient urgent care. Version 2. NHS England, November 2014. 
www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/comm-pharm-better-quality-resilient-urgent-care.pdf  

Page 294

http://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/keogh-review/Documents/UECR.Ph1Report.FV.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2015/11/quick-guid-comm-pharm-urgent-care.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/comm-pharm-better-quality-resilient-urgent-care.pdf


 

35 
 

4.3a(iv) Food thickening voucher scheme  
This is a scheme administered across County Durham which enables patients seen 
by the Speech and Language Therapy service to quickly obtain food thickening 
products via a voucher through community pharmacies.  
 
Again the maps in Appendix 11 show that this service is reasonably spread over all 6 
localities, with the results from the community pharmacy survey in Appendix 6 
indicting a general willingness from more contractors to provide this service in the 
future.  
 
4.3a(v) Palliative care scheme 
The aim of this service is to ensure that appropriate palliative care drugs are 
available in the community at the point of need. Designated community pharmacies 
hold an agreed list of palliative care drugs to enable easier access. 
 
The locality maps in Appendix 11.2-11.7 show the distribution of pharmacies 
providing the anticoagulant monitoring, TB medication costs, food thickening 
voucher, and palliative care schemes.  
 
4.3b Public Health commissioned services  
 
4.3b(i) Sexual health services 
This service consists of emergency hormonal contraception (EOHC) provision, 
chlamydia screening, and C card registration and supply. The locality maps in 
Appendix 11.2-11.7 show that there is a widespread EOHC service and a good 
distribution of C card outlets in each of the 6 localities, and that the areas with higher 
prevalence of teenage conceptions are already generally supported with these 
services. 
 
EOHC service 
The aim of the EHOC service is to increase the accessibility and availability of ‘free 
at point of issue’ EHOC to females aged 13 years and over in pharmacies in County 
Durham & Darlington. This service therefore helps to reduce unintended teenage 
pregnancies, and increase the knowledge of emergency contraception and its use, 
especially among young people. The EHOC service is run through accredited 
pharmacists operating under a PGD. All accredited pharmacists attend refresher 
training every two years in order to maintain their competence.  
The total number of annual EOHC consultations has stayed fairly consistent during 
the past 11 years of this service. During 2016/17 the total number of consultations 
fell slightly by 2% to 5335 compared to 2015-16 (EOHC requests had decreased 
slightly in Easington and Sedgefield but had increased in all other locality areas).  
Table 7 shows the age breakdown for EOHC consultations in 2016-17.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 295



 

36 
 

 
Table 7: Age breakdown across County Durham & Darlington for EOHC 
consultations 2016-17 

Age % requests for EOHC in 2016-17 

Under 16 year olds 3% 

16-18 year olds 16% 

19-25 year olds 42% (with 60% of these requests from the Durham and 
Chester-le-Street area likely reflecting the large student 
population in Durham City) 

26-39 year olds 33% 

Aged 40 and over  6% 

 
Chlamydia screening 
For pharmacies also offering the chlamydia screening service, dual screening postal 
packs (for chlamydia and gonorrhoea) are offered during an EOHC consultation, 
where appropriate, to females aged 13-24 years and their partners.  This aids the 
detection of undiagnosed infection.  
 
C card scheme  
The aim of the C Card scheme is to provide young people aged 13-24 with sexual 
health advice and information, and free condoms in a discreet and professional 
setting. Participating pharmacies largely provide the free condom supply service, 
however a small number of pharmacies also provide the initial C card registration 
service in addition to the ongoing supply of free condoms. Pharmacies signed up to 
provide C card registration are specially trained to give advice about sexual health 
and the correct use of condoms. 
  
During 2016-17 pharmacies in County Durham accounted for 32% (or 621 pharmacy 
registrations) of the total of new registrations for C card among all outlets including 
GP practices, colleges, schools, youth clubs and others, and 51% (or 1937 
pharmacy supplies) of the total supply of free condoms.  
 
4.3b(ii) Stop smoking services  
Pharmacies provide either a Level 2 stop smoking service and/or provision of 
nicotine replacement therapy (NRT) via the NRT voucher scheme. The majority of 
pharmacies in County Durham provide NRT supply, and the provision of the Level 2 
stop smoking service is also widespread (the locality maps in Appendix 11.2-11.7 
show that the areas with higher prevalence of COPD hospital admissions are already 
supported with the pharmacy Level 2 service). 
 
NRT voucher scheme 
This scheme uses a pre-numbered voucher distributed via trained stop smoking 
advisers commissioned by the Stop Smoking Service.  Pharmacies act as an NRT 
voucher dispensing point under this service. On week 1 the pharmacy will ensure 
that the NRT product is suitable for the patient based on their smoking status and 
lifestyle, will cover side effects and how the product should be used/applied, and any 
other stop smoking support. On subsequent weeks of dispensing the pharmacy will 
ensure that the product is still suitable and that the patient has suffered no adverse 
effects.   
 

Page 296



 

37 
 

 
Level 2 stop smoking service 
The Level 2 service provides a programme of stop smoking support and access to 
stop smoking treatments from pharmacies. The service includes: 
 

 Identifying smokers and offering support (including targeting the priority groups of 
routine and manual workers). 

 Delivering support by trained staff and enabling access to appropriate 
pharmacotherapy. 

 Offering support for up to12 weeks including weekly support for a least the first 4 
weeks (including carbon monoxide monitoring). 

 Referring smokers to specialist Level 3 services where appropriate (e.g. pregnant 
smokers). 

 Achieving the required number of 4 week quitters. 

 Seeking service user feedback using a standard questionnaire. 
 
GP practices, community pharmacies and the specialist service are the three main 
settings for clients to access support in County Durham. Of all the clients setting a 
quit date in 2016-17 (n=5089), 23% (n=1192) were seen in a community pharmacy 
setting of which 50% (n=601) were quit at 4 weeks, which represents 21% of all 
quitters. This 4-week quit rate of 50% compares to a quit rate of 66% in community 
settings and 56% in the GP practice setting (specialist advisor clinics provided in 
practices included in GP data).  
 
4.3b(iii) Substance misuse services 
The provision of the supervised consumption and alcohol brief intervention service is 
widespread, with the locality maps in Appendix 11.2-11.7 showing that the areas of 
deprivation and with higher rates of alcohol related hospital admission being already 
supported with these services.  
 
However currently only 5 pharmacies in 4 localities provide a needle exchange 
service. A wider provision of community pharmacy-based needle exchange schemes 
should be considered in the future.  
 
Alcohol brief intervention service 
The aims of this service are to: 
 

 Identify levels of drinking amongst those presenting with conditions possibly 
related to alcohol (e.g. persistent gastric symptoms, high blood pressure). 

 Prevent progression to dependent drinking. 

 Raise public awareness of safe levels of drinking and consequences of unsafe 
drinking (particularly targeting women who are pregnant / trying to conceive). 

 Refer appropriately to community based alcohol treatment services. 

 Reduce alcohol related hospital admissions.  
 

Pharmacists and/or their staff attend training in the appropriate use of the World 
Health Organisation alcohol screening AUDIT tool, and how to provide brief advice to 
clients aged 16+years.  
 

Page 297



 

38 
 

In 2016-17, 2672 screens were undertaken in pharmacies in County Durham. The 
majority of these were linked to patients asking for a screen in the pharmacy (e.g. 
following an approach by a member of staff, or in response to information displayed 
in the pharmacy), or as part of a MUR.  
 
Supervised consumption service  
Supervised consumption of methadone and other medications through community 
pharmacies is an integral element to the overall shared care services provided to 
support people who misuse substances – heroin in particular. Current guidelines 
recommend that all new treatment for opiate dependence be subject to supervised 
consumption for the first three months or a longer period considered appropriate by 
the prescriber. The rationale for this recommendation is to provide routine and 
structure for the service user, helping to promote a move away from chaotic and 
risky behaviour. The aims of the supervised consumption service are to:  
 

 Provide drug treatment which will help to ensure that prescribed medication is 
consumed under professional supervision. 

 Co-operate with local services to ensure that service users are aware of all 
treatment options and services which promote recovery from dependence. 
 

During 2016-17 pharmacies in County Durham supervised 30,176 doses of 
methadone or buprenorphine.  
 
Needle exchange service 
The aim of the needle exchange service is to provide a needle exchange facility to 
injecting drug users over the age of 18 in order to reduce the levels of harm 
associated with injecting drug use for individuals, families and local communities. 
Pharmacies distribute sterile injecting equipment, provide advice and information on 
the safe disposal of injecting equipment, and distribute appropriate literature advising 
on harm reduction, safer sex and local services to all injecting drug users.  
 
Service provision in 2017/18 is very limited, with a total of 5 pharmacies in the Dales 
(Bishop Auckland), Derwentside (Stanley), Sedgefield (Ferryhill), and Chester-le-
Street (Chester-le-Street, Sacriston) localities providing this service. 
 
4.4 Healthy living pharmacy award   
The aim of a HLP is to become more involved with the local community in order to 
improve the health and wellbeing of that community. HLPs are largely driven by the 
pharmacy staff who train to become Health Champions and who tend to live and 
work in that local community. 
 
Evaluations of the original schemes in Portsmouth showed that public feedback was 
very positive with 98% saying they would recommend the service to others, and 99% 
feeling comfortable about receiving this service in the pharmacy. 
In a HLP staff will discuss health and wellbeing issues with customers and will be 
aware of local services for referral or signposting. Public health pharmacy services 
will be provided (such as stop smoking services, or alcohol brief interventions) and 
there will be a dedicated health promotion area with health promotion campaigns 
running that are linked to local priorities and health needs. 

Page 298



 

39 
 

In 2016, 27 pharmacies achieved a local HLP Award and were involved in some very 
new and innovative work. For example: 
 

1. The opportunity for HLPs to work with Durham County Carers Support to 
become Carer Friendly Pharmacies to enable the pharmacy to better identify 
carers in order to support their health needs by e.g. offering a flu vaccination 
in 2016.  

2. Pharmacy staff receiving training from Cancer Research UK to enable staff to 
e.g. spot warning symptoms and start conversations about cancer. 

3. An oral health scheme where pharmacy staff showed customers waiting for 
prescriptions how to clean their teeth properly and reminded them of the 
essential oral health checks that dentists do even if they have no teeth at all. 
This work was evaluated by Sunderland University, and published in the 
British Dental Journal. 

4. A free 12 week Slimming World voucher referral scheme which was hugely 
popular with pharmacy staff and customers alike33. Pharmacy staff tend to live 
and work in the local community, making it far easier for them to engage with 
that local community about the sensitive issue of weight loss. This was the 
first pharmacy-only referral scheme in the country and is published in the 
Journal of Perspectives of Public Health.  

 
In addition, over the past 2 years Better Health at Work Award (BHAWA) businesses 
and HLPs have been encouraged to work together. A number of HLPs have for 
example, attended workplace health roadshows, or advised businesses on stop 
smoking or flu vaccinations. HLPs have also been encouraged to signpost their 
customers to the Wellbeing for Life Service and to make contact with their local 
Health Trainers. 
 
The HLP concept has proved such a success that in December 2016 it became part 
of the national pharmacy contract so that every pharmacy in England can now 
potentially become a HLP (see Section 4.1a). From the results of the May 2017 
community pharmacy survey (84% response rate) only 21 pharmacies indicated that 
they were either not already accredited as HLPs or were not currently working 
towards this Award. It is important that all pharmacies seek HLP accreditation with 
the increasing focus on the public health role of community pharmacies, and that the 
Public Health Team continue to support the developments of HLPs in County 
Durham. 
 
4.5 The public view 
Appendix 7 lists the positive and negative comments received on staff, access and 
services from the small Healthwatch online survey carried out in the summer of 2017 
(total 164 responses). The comments regarding services across the 6 localities are 
summarised below.  
 
The general view of Healthwatch is that in order to achieve any pharmacy service 
development the public need to be made aware of what pharmacy can do by all 

                                            
33 21 HLPs provided 2,242 eligible clients with a referral letter to Slimming World in order to access a free 12 week course. In 

May 2017 the clients who then went on to attend a local Slimming World course:  
• Reduced their average Body Mass Index (BMI) from 35.2 to 33.6. 
• Had an average weight loss of 9.6lbs. 

Page 299



 

40 
 

stakeholders working together to promote the role of pharmacy by providing 
information, advertising, and education of targeted populations in County Durham.  
 
Across County Durham (where no postcode was indicated on the survey return) 
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
Positive comments included: 

 Being proactive with my prescriptions as I have made it my nominated pharmacy. 

 Well organized. 

 Explains how to use the medication. 

 Giving advice about a condition and product in order to avoid a doctor visit. 

 Ensure medication is available on time, very helpful. 

 Speedy delivery of medicines. 

 Gives a good overall service. Will deliver where necessary.  
Negative comments included: 

 Could improve service with prescriptions being ready and not always have stock. Recently got 
worse with having to go through pharmacy for repeat prescriptions. 

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Health Checks. 

 Anything they can do should be publicised more.  

 Cheaper non-prescription education on products. 

 Basic first aid type of service. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Make it more of a Health Hub rather than just a pharmacy. 

 A facility to know if what you have been prescribed is in stock before travelling there - or for 
the GP to know that a drug is in short supply before prescribing it to you. 

 Revert back to organising prescriptions via GP Surgery. 

 Telephone ordering/digital rather than visits. 

 Some only take cash payments. 

 Have dispensing of methadone done in a private room and not in full view of the public. 
 
Dales  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Will get all medication as per prescription and if not available will get outstanding medication 
as quickly as possible. 

 Everything very good. 

 Loads of room - good stuff. 

 Confident - a very good service and happy to return. 

 Everything. 

 Always got what you need. 

 Good chemist. 

 Good service. 

 If medication is not in stock go out of their way to find it within 24 hours. 

 Can ask advice. 

 When prescriptions due ring them, they contact GP and let me know when ready to collect. 

 Service is excellent – can’t fault it. 

 Helpful - if they haven't got it they will get it. 
 
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 It would be helpful if my chosen pharmacy could offer the option to pay for a pre-paid 
prescription certificate. 

 Dockets bigger. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 They never have the pills I need. 

 More than two seats required. 

 More seating - and new seats.  

Page 300



 

41 
 

 
Easington  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
Positive comments included: 

 Wide range of items/medicines. 

 Bring medication on time 

 Promptly dispenses medication directly from GPs 
Negative comments included: 

 There are some inconsistencies and mix ups with prescriptions, forgetting to put up pre-
arranged prescriptions and or not having enough of the medication you need which you then 
have to make a return trip. 

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Used to offer a health check but this seems to have stopped.  
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 It takes too long to get medication. Confidentiality is an issue - can see other people’s 
prescriptions at counter. Requests to access minor ailment scheme are awkward, questioning 
seems excessive and is off putting. 

 
Derwentside 
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 They provide an electronic prescription service which is very convenient. 

 Get repeat prescriptions from doctors and have them ready when I go to collect. 

 Pointing out new dosage or strength. 

 The electronic service is really good as is the telephone service. 

 Picks up my prescription from the doctors.  

 Dispensing and medicine check.  

 Good dispensary here. 

 I receive regular medication for diabetes and I find the pharmacy always has my medication 
ready within a few days.  

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 They do offer other things but I don’t require them. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Easier ways to order - an app for your phone maybe and notify when they are due. Quicker 
turnaround for scripts - at the minute it is 3 days often longer if over a weekend. 

 They rarely have repeat online scrips ready. 

 More polite training. 

 GP could improve their service.  

 Yes get it right. 

 GP never have prescription ready. 

 It would be better if there was more room for consultation. 
 
Sedgefield  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Prescription re-order direct to GP. 

 Excellent pharmacy service- will visit your home, collect prescriptions and deliver goods.  

 Quick efficient service. 

 Serve well. 

 Service helpful and friendly. 
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Pharmacy blood pressure monitoring. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 I ceased to use a pharmacy because they rarely had what I needed or they ended up owing 
me part of my prescription. Also have been given someone else’s medication on occasions 
and wrong information.  

 Bigger. 

Page 301



 

42 
 

 
Durham  
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  

 Service is good. 

 Gives advice on conditions and treatment that do not need GP or hospital intervention. 

 Electronic prescriptions sent from GP surgery direct to the pharmacy. 

 Advice if better product and deliver item if not in stock. 

 They pick up prescriptions from the doctors surgery and have them made up for me to collect. 

 Electronic prescribing, text service. 

 Good information and sharing information quickly. 

 Tell me when I can buy over counter more cheaply/ advise on how to take medication. 

 Very helpful. Especially when the GPs goes a bit awry. Are willing to bring medicines around 
to me if I am very unwell.  

 Accommodate personal need around getting medicines.  

 Very prompt with prescriptions.  
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Family planning rather than go to the doctors for the contraceptive pill. 

 Holiday jabs. 

 Blood pressure, checking temperature - where to go next. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 Perhaps an online appointment with pharmacist to review medication. 

 On the budget they have to operate on - pharmacy and GP practice run satisfactory. 
 
Chester-le-Street   
What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
Positive comments included: 

 Delivers medication. 
Negative comments included: 

 I have not had good experiences with the local pharmacy. 
Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP practice 
dispensary? 

 Disposal of used needles and yellow boxes. 
Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  

 They could give the right medication. Recently my father in law was given two lots of 
medication which he took as he knew no better and ended up in hospital. 

Page 302



 

43 
 

Section Five: Conclusion and recommendations 

 
A PNA considers the health needs of the population and the provision of 
pharmaceutical services, and therefore, whether there are any potential gaps in 
pharmaceutical service delivery.  
 
A PNA is used by NHS England in its consideration of applications to join the 
pharmaceutical list, and by commissioners of pharmaceutical services. 
 
The PNA for County Durham links to the health needs identified in the JSNA and the 
priorities described in the JHWS. County Durham is a predominantly rural county 
with a large and increasing ageing population. County Durham experiences higher 
levels of deprivation than the national average.  
 
The key statements from the PNA for County Durham are: 
 
There are sufficient pharmaceutical services in the 6 localities across County 
Durham with good overall access to these services. However the HWB will keep this 
statement under review as urgent care primary care services develop, and as part of 
its ongoing responsibility to assess the impact of any pharmacy closures or 
consolidations.  
 
Out of area pharmacies do not provide necessary essential pharmaceutical services 
for County Durham.  
 
There is still scope to further develop locally commissioned services from the 
existing service providers in order to further support priorities in the JHWS. These 
services should particularly focus on: 
 

 The growing elderly population, the integration agenda, and incorporating 
pharmacy services into TAPs. 

 The further expansion of community pharmacy based public health services now 
that every pharmacy is working towards becoming a HLP as part of the national 
pharmacy contract introduced in 2016. 

 Continuing to ensure that pharmacy supports key priorities in the STPs around 
the promotion of self-care, a more appropriate use of health services, and the 
development of urgent care services.   

 
A review of rurality of County Durham is required by NHS England following an 
appeal to the NHS Litigation Authority in 2011. 
 
HWBs must produce an updated PNA every 3 years or sooner if there are any 
significant changes to population need or any significant changes to pharmaceutical 
services that are relevant to the granting of future pharmacy applications. The latter 
can also be accomplished by the publication of a supplementary statement. The 
PNA, an up to date map of pharmaceutical services, and any supplementary 
statements can be found at 
www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-
Assessment. 

Page 303

http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/article/17588/Pharmaceutical-Needs-Assessment


 

44 
 

 
 

List of abbreviations 
 
A&E  Accident & Emergency  
AUR  Appliance Use Review 
BCF  Better Care Fund 
BHAWA Better Health at Work Award 
BMI  Body Mass Index  
BMJ  British Medical Journal 
BP  Blood Pressure  
CCG  Clinical Commissioning Group 
CHD  Coronary Heart Disease  
COPD  Chronic Obstructive Airways Disease  
CVD  Cardiovascular Disease  
DCC  Durham County Council  
DDES  Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
DH  Department of Health 
EOHC  Emergency Hormonal Contraception 
EPS  Electronic Prescription Service  
HLP  Healthy Living Pharmacy  
HWB  Health and Wellbeing Board 
INA  Integrated Needs Assessment  
JHWS  Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy  
JSNA  Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
LMC  Local Medical Committee  
LPC  Local Pharmaceutical Committee  
LTC  Long Term Condition 
MUR  Medicines Use Review 
5YFV  NHS Five Year Forward View 
NMS  New Medicine Service  
NRT  Nicotine Replacement Therapy  
NUMSAS  NHS Urgent Medicine Supply Advanced Service 
OOH  Out of Hours  
PCT  Primary Care Trust  
PGD  Patient Group Direction   
PhAS  Pharmacy Access Scheme 
PERMSS Pharmacy Emergency Repeat Medication Supply Service 
PNA  Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment  
PSNC  Pharmaceutical Services Negotiating Committee  
SCS  Stoma Customisation Service 
STP  Sustainable and Transformation Plan  
TAP  Teams Around Patients   
TB  Tuberculosis 
TOC  Transfer of Care  
 
  

Page 304



 

45 
 

Appendix 1: GP Federations and Teams Around Patients  
 

North Durham CCG GP Federations 
Central Durham GP Providers Ltd 
Chester-le-Street Health Ltd 
Derwentside Healthcare Ltd  

DDES CCG GP Federations 
South Durham Health CIC 
Durham Dales Health Federation 
Intrahealth 

 

TAP Configuration - North Durham CCG 

TAP 1:  Chester-le-Street 
Bridge End Surgery 
Cestria Health Centre 
The Surgery Great Lumley 
Middle Chare Medical Group 
Pelton and Fellrose Medical Group 
Pelton Fell Surgery 
Sacriston Medical Centre 

TAP 3b: Derwentside East 
Annfield Plain Surgery 
Browney House Surgery 
Craghead Medical Centre 
Stanley Medical Group 
Tanfield View Medical Group 
Cedars Medical Group 
West Road 
The Haven Surgery 

TAP 2a: Durham East 
Belmont and Sherburn Medical Group 
Cheveley Park Medical Centre 
Coxhoe Medical Practice 
Claypath & University Medical Group 
Bowburn Medical Centre 
West Rainton Surgery 

TAP 3a: Derwentside West 
Consett Medical Centre 
Dipton Surgery 
Leadgate Surgery 
Oakfields Health Centre 
Queens Road Surgery 
Lanchester Medical Centre  

TAP 2b: Durham West 
Dunelm Medical Practice 
Chastleton Medical Group 
Denholme House/Brandon Lane 
The Medical Group 

 

 

TAP Configuration - DDES CCG 

TAP 3a: Sedgefield 1 
Hallgarth Surgery 
Bewick Crescent Surgery 
Peaseway Medical Centre 
Shildon Health Clinic 
Jubilee Medical Group 
 

TAP 2a: Easington 1 
Blackhall and Peterlee Practice 
William Brown Centre 
The Horden Group Practice 
Shinwell Medical Group 
Silverdale Family Practice 
Paradise Lane 

TAP 3b: Sedgefield 2 
St Andrews Medical Practice 
Bishops Close Medical Practice 
Oxford Road Medical Practice 
Ferryhill and Chilton Medical Practice 
Skerne Medical Group 
West Cornforth Medical Practice  

TAP 2b: Easington 2 
Station Road Surgery 
Caradoc  
Wingate Medical Practice Intrahealth 
Shotton Medical Practice 
Southdene Medical Centre 
Phoenix Medical Group 

TAP 1a: Dales 1 
Willington Medical Group 
North House Surgery 
The Weardale Practice 
 
 

TAP 2c: Easington 3 
Murton Medical Centre 
Avenue Family Practice 
Marlborough Surgery 
The New Seaham Medical Group 
Deneside Medical Centre 

TAP 1c: Dales 3 
Woodview Medical Practice 
Old Forge Surgery 
Barnard Castle Surgery 
Pinfold Medical Practice 
Gainford Surgery 
Evenwood Surgery 

TAP 1b: Dales 2 
Station View Medical Centre 
Auckland Medical Group 
Bishopgate Medical Centre 
 

Page 305



 

46 
 

Appendix 2: Targets in the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2016-19 

 
The JHWS outlines a three year vision for improving health and wellbeing, and 
addressing health inequalities in the county. The JHWS informs and influences 
decisions about health and social care services in County Durham, so that they are 
focused on the needs of the people who use them and tackle the factors that affect 
health and wellbeing, for example drugs, alcohol, unhealthy weight, mental and 
physical wellbeing. 
 
There are six strategic objectives: 
 

1. Children and young people make healthy choices and have the best start in 
life 

2. Reduce health inequalities and early deaths 
3. Improve the quality of life, independence and care and support for people with 

LTCs 
4. Improve the mental and physical wellbeing of the population 
5. Protect vulnerable people from harm 
6. Support people to die in the place of their choice with the care and the support 

that they need 
 

Each strategic objective is underpinned by a set of strategic actions, some of which 
are described below: 
 
Objective 1: Children and young people make healthy choices and have the 
best start in life  
Strategic actions include: 
 
Reduced childhood obesity  

 Improve support to women to start and continue to breastfeed their babies. 

 Improve support to families and children to develop healthy weight. 
 

Improved early health intervention services for children and young people 

 Support children and young people to achieve their optimum mental health 
and emotional wellbeing. 

 Support the reduction of teenage pregnancies (under 18 conceptions). 

 Support the reduction in oral health inequalities faced by children. 

 Deliver an integrated 0-19 model to include universal mandated services plus 
targeted services for vulnerable groups.  

 Work together to reduce rates of self-harm by young people. 

 Ensure health, social care and third sector organisations work together to 
identify and support young carers. 

 Support young people to manage their risk taking behaviours by building 
resilience and creating a culture that encourages young people to choose not 
to drink. 

 Reduce the negative impact alcohol has on the lives of children, young people 
and their families through parental alcohol use. 

 

Page 306



 

47 
 

Objective 2: Reduce health inequalities and early deaths  
Strategic actions include: 
 
Reduced levels of tobacco related ill health 

 Support an infrastructure that delivers a comprehensive partnership approach 
to wider tobacco control actions to reduce exposure to second hand smoke, 
help people to stop smoking, reduce availability (including illicit trade), reduce 
promotion of tobacco, engage in media and education and support tighter 
regulation on tobacco. 

 Support the local vision statement that “a child born in any part of County 
Durham will reach adulthood breathing smokefree air, being free from tobacco 
addiction and living in a community where to smoke is unusual”. 
 

Reduced obesity levels 

 Implement the Healthy Weight Strategic Framework to develop and promote 
evidence based multi-agency working and strengthen local capacity and 
capability. 
 

Reduced levels of alcohol and drug related ill health 

 Reduce health inequalities and reduce early deaths in County Durham by 
reducing alcohol consumption across the population.  

 Implement the Drugs Strategy to prevent harm, restrict supply and sustain a 
future for individuals to live a drug free and healthy life, whilst minimising the 
impact of drugs on communities and families. 
 

Reduced mortality from cancers and circulatory diseases 

 Work in partnership to develop effective pathways for cancers covering 
prevention, screening, diagnosis, treatment and survivorship. 

 Work in partnership to develop and implement an effective preventative and 
treatment programme for people with and at risk of diabetes through the 
delivery of Integrated Diabetes Model with consultants and GP Practices 
working together to deliver improved health outcomes for people with 
diabetes. 

 Deliver an integrated and holistic Wellbeing Service to improve health and 
wellbeing and tackle health inequalities in County Durham. 

 
Objective 3: Improve the quality of life, independence and care and support for 
people with LTCs 
Strategic actions include: 
 
Adult care services are commissioned for those people most in need 

 Provide better support to people with caring responsibilities by reviewing the 
service delivery model and increasing access to personal budgets for carers. 
 

Improved independence and rehabilitation 

 Continue to progress the model for Frail Elderly which incorporates a whole 
system review that cuts across health, housing, social care and the third 
sector providing safe, high quality seven day integrated services; delivering 

Page 307



 

48 
 

person centred care, and places early identification, timely intervention and 
prevention at its core. 

 Provide safe, high quality seven day integrated services across the health and 
social care economy. 

 Implement the Urgent Care Strategy to ensure patients are seen by the right 
health/social care professional, in the right setting, at the right time, to the 
highest quality and in the most effective way providing the best outcome for 
the patient. 
 

Improved joint commissioning of integrated health and social care 

 Develop a vision and new model of integration for County Durham to 
maximise the use of resources and improve outcomes for local people with 
regard to health and social care. 

 
Objective 4: Improve the mental and physical wellbeing of the population 
Strategic actions include: 
 
Increased physical activity and participation in sport and leisure 

 Provide a wide range of physical activity opportunities across County Durham 
to support more active lifestyles through the development of the Altogether 
Active physical activity framework for County Durham. 
 

Maximised independence 

 Work together to improve timely diagnosis and support for people with 
dementia and their family and carers. 
 

Improved mental health for the population of County Durham  

 Improve access to evidence based programmes which improve mental health, 
wellbeing and resilience. 

 Develop a more integrated response for people with both mental and physical 
health problems, in particular supporting people with common mental health 
problems (such as depression or anxiety) and improve the physical health of 
people with secondary mental health problems. 
 

Increased social inclusion 

 Work in partnership to identify those who are, or who are at potential risk of 
becoming socially isolated to support people at a local level and to build 
resilience and social capital in their communities. 
 

Reduced self-harm and suicides 

 Refresh the Public Mental Health Strategy for County Durham including the 
suicide prevention framework. 

 
Objective 5: Protect vulnerable people from harm 
Strategic actions include: 
 
Prevent domestic abuse and sexual violence and reduce the associated harm 

 Ensure all victims of domestic abuse and sexual violence have access to the 
right help and support and services are available to address their needs. 

Page 308



 

49 
 

Safeguarding children and adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable 
and protect them from avoidable harm 

 Work with partners to help families facing multiple and complex challenges, 
ensuring children are safeguarded and protected from harm and early 
intervention and prevention services are in place. 

 
Objective 6: Support people to die in the place of their choice with the care and 
the support that they need 
Strategic actions include: 
 

 To ensure bespoke support is provided to meet the individual needs of people 
at the end of their life. 

 
 
  

Page 309



 

50 
 

Appendix 3: NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 201334 

 
Regulation 3. Pharmaceutical needs assessments 
3 (1) The statement of the needs for pharmaceutical services which each HWB is 
required to publish by virtue of section 128A of the 2006 Act(a) (PNA), whether it is 
the statement of its first assessment or of any revised assessment, is referred to in 
these Regulations as a “pharmaceutical needs assessment”. 
 
3 (2) The pharmaceutical services to which each PNA must relate are all the 
pharmaceutical services that may be provided under arrangements made by the 
NHSCB for— 
 
a) the provision of pharmaceutical services (including directed services) by a person 

on a pharmaceutical list; 
b) the provision of local pharmaceutical services under an LPS scheme (but not LP 

services which are not local pharmaceutical services); or 
c) the dispensing of drugs and appliances by a person on a dispensing doctors list 

(but not other NHS services that may be provided under arrangements made by 
the NHSCB with a dispensing doctor). 

 
Regulation 4. Information to be contained in PNA 
4 (1) Each PNA must contain the information set out in Schedule 1. 

 
4 (2) Each HWB must, in so far as is practicable, keep up to date the map which it 
includes in its PNA pursuant to paragraph 7 of Schedule 1 (without needing to 
republish the whole of the assessment or publish a supplementary statement). 
 
Regulation 6. Subsequent assessments 
6 (1) After it has published its first PNA, each HWB must publish a statement of its 
revised assessment within 3 years of its previous publication of a PNA. 
 
6 (2) A HWB must make a revised assessment as soon as is reasonably practicable 
after identifying changes since the previous assessment, which are of a significant 
extent, to the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, having regard in particular 
to changes to 
 
a) the number of people in its area who require pharmaceutical services; 
b) the demography of its area; and 
c) the risks to the health or well-being of people in its area, 
d) unless it is satisfied that making a revised assessment would be a 

disproportionate response to those changes. 
 
6 (3) Pending the publication of a statement of a revised assessment, a HWB may 
publish a supplementary statement explaining changes to the availability of 

                                            
34 The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013. 

www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made (accessed 9/6/2017) 
 

 

Page 310

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/349/contents/made


 

51 
 

pharmaceutical services since the publication of its PNA (and any such 
supplementary statement becomes part of that assessment), where— 
 
a) the changes are relevant to the granting of applications referred to in section 

129(2)(c)(i) or (ii) of the 2006 Act; and 
b) the HWB 

a. is satisfied that making its first or a revised assessment would be a 
disproportionate response to those changes, or 

b. is in the course of making its first or a revised assessment and is satisfied 
that immediate modification of its PNA is essential in order to prevent 
significant detriment to the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area. 

 
Regulation 8. Consultation on PNAs 
8 (1) When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a PNA, each HWB 
must consult the following about the contents of the assessment it is making— 
 
a) any Local Pharmaceutical Committee for its area (including any Local 

Pharmaceutical Committee for part of its area or for its area and that of all or part 
of the area of one or more other HWBs); 

b) any Local Medical Committee for its area (including any Local Medical Committee 
for part of its area or for its area and that of all or part of the area of one or more 
other HWBs); 

c) any persons on the pharmaceutical lists and any dispensing doctors list for its 
area; 

d) any LPS chemist in its area with whom the NHSCB has made arrangements for 
the provision of any local pharmaceutical services; 

e) any Local Healthwatch organisation for its area, and any other patient, consumer 
or community group in its area which in the opinion of HWB1 has an interest in 
the provision of pharmaceutical services in its area; and 

f) any NHS trust or NHS foundation trust in its area; 
g) the NHSCB; and 
h) any neighbouring HWB. 

 
8 (2) The persons mentioned in paragraph (1) must together be consulted at least 
once during the process of making the assessment on a draft of the proposed PNA. 
 
8 (3) Where a HWB is consulted on a draft under paragraph (2), if there is a Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee or Local Medical Committee for its area or part of its area 
that is different to a Local Pharmaceutical Committee or Local Medical Committee 
consulted under paragraph (1)(a) or (b), that HWB— 
 
a) must consult that Committee before making its response to the consultation; and 
b) must have regard to any representations received from the Committee when 

making its response to the consultation. 
 
8 (4) The persons consulted on the draft under paragraph (2) must be given a 
minimum period of 60 days for making their response to the consultation, beginning 
with the day by which all those persons have been served with the draft. 
 

Page 311



 

52 
 

8 (5) For the purposes of paragraph (4), a person is to be treated as served with a 
draft if that person is notified by HWB1 of the address of a website on which the draft 
is available and is to remain available (except due to accident or unforeseen 
circumstances) throughout the period for making responses to the consultation. 
 
8 (6) If a person consulted on a draft under paragraph (2)— 
 
a) is treated as served with the draft by virtue of paragraph (5); or 
b) has been served with copy of the draft in an electronic form, but requests a copy 

of the draft in hard copy form, HWB1 must as soon as is practicable and in any 
event within 14 days supply a hard copy of the draft to that person (free of 
charge). 

 
Regulation 9. Matters for consideration when making assessments 
9 (1) When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a PNA, each HWB 
must have regard, in so far as it is practicable to do so, to the following matters— 
 
a) the demography of its area; 
b) whether in its area there is sufficient choice with regard to obtaining 

pharmaceutical services; 
c) any different needs of different localities within its area; 
d) pharmaceutical services provided in the area of any neighbouring HWB which 

affect— 
I. the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, or 
II. whether further provision of pharmaceutical services in its area would secure 

improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services, or 
pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area; and 

e) any other NHS services provided in or outside its area (which are not covered by 
subparagraph (d)) which affect— 

I. the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, or 
II. whether further provision of pharmaceutical services in its area would secure 

improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services, or 
pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area. 

 
9 (2) When making an assessment for the purposes of publishing a PNA, each HWB 
must take account of likely future needs— 
 
a) to the extent necessary to make a proper assessment of the matters mentioned 

in paragraphs 2 and 4 of Schedule 1; and 
b) having regard to likely changes to— 

I. the number of people in its area who require pharmaceutical services, 
II. the demography of its area, and 

III. the risks to the health or well-being of people in its area. 
 

Appendix 3 (continued): Schedule 1: Information to be contained in PNAs 
 

1. Necessary services: current provision 
A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified as services 
that are provided— 

Page 312



 

53 
 

a) in the area of the HWB and which are necessary to meet the need for 
pharmaceutical services in its area; and 

b) outside the area of the HWB but which nevertheless contribute towards meeting 
the need for pharmaceutical services in its area (if the HWB has identified such 
services). 

 
2. Necessary services: gaps in provision 
A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified (if it has) as 
services that are not provided in the area of the HWB but which the HWB is 
satisfied— 
 
a) need to be provided (whether or not they are located in the area of the HWB) in 

order to meet a current need for pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical 
services of a specified type, in its area; 

b) will, in specified future circumstances, need to be provided (whether or not they 
are located in the area of the HWB) in order to meet a future need for 
pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its 
area. 

 
3. Other relevant services: current provision 
A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified (if it has) as 
services that are provided — 
 
a) in the area of the HWB and which, although they are not necessary to meet the 

need for pharmaceutical services in its area, nevertheless have secured 
improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services in its area; 

b) outside the area of the HWB and which, although they do not contribute towards 
meeting the need for pharmaceutical services in its area, nevertheless have 
secured improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services in its area; 

c) in or outside the area of the HWB and, whilst not being services of the types 
described in sub-paragraph (a) or (b), or paragraph 1, they nevertheless affect 
the assessment by the HWB of the need for pharmaceutical services in its area. 

 
4. Improvements and better access: gaps in provision 
A statement of the pharmaceutical services that the HWB has identified (if it has) as 
services that are not provided in the area of the HWB but which the HWB is 
satisfied— 
 
a) would, if they were provided (whether or not they were located in the area of the 

HWB), secure improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services, or 
pharmaceutical services of a specified type, in its area, 

b) would, if in specified future circumstances they were provided (whether or not 
they were located in the area of the HWB), secure future improvements, or better 
access, to pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified 
type, in its area. 

 
5. Other NHS services 
A statement of any NHS services provided or arranged by a local authority, the 
NHSCB, a CCG, an NHS trust or an NHS foundation trust to which the HWB has had 
regard in its assessment, which affect— 

Page 313



 

54 
 

a) the need for pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical services of a specified 
type, in its area; or 

b) whether further provision of pharmaceutical services in its area would secure 
improvements, or better access, to pharmaceutical services, or pharmaceutical 
services of a specified type, in its area. 

 
6. How the assessment was carried out 
An explanation of how the assessment has been carried out, and in particular— 
 
a) how it has determined what are the localities in its area; 
b) how it has taken into account (where applicable)— 

I. the different needs of different localities in its area, and 
II. the different needs of people in its area who share a protected 

characteristic; and 
c) a report on the consultation that it has undertaken. 
 
7. Map of provision 
A map that identifies the premises at which pharmaceutical services are provided in 
the area of the HWB. 
 
  

Page 314



 

55 
 

Appendix 4: The County Durham PNA timeline  
 

Meeting 
 

Date Purpose 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

27/11/17  Agree draft for wider 
consultation 

Statutory 60 day consultation  
 

28/11/17 – 
26/1/18 
 

Public consultation 

Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

19/1/17 Consultation 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

20/3/18  Formal agreement of PNA 

Publication on DCC website 
 

1/4/18 Publication of PNA 

 
 
  

Page 315



 

56 
 

Appendix 5: Organisations that responded during the 
statutory 60 day consultation 

 
Regulation 8 of The NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local Pharmaceutical Services) 
Regulations 2013 describe the process of PNA consultation (see Appendix 3). A 
summary appears below: 
 
The HWB must consult at least once with the following in the HWB area about the 
contents of the pharmaceutical needs assessment it is making: 
 

 The LPC 

 The LMC 

 Persons on the pharmaceutical list and the dispensing doctors list 
 Healthwatch (and any other patient, consumer or community group which in the opinion of 

the HWB has an interest in the provision of pharmaceutical services) 

 The NHS Trusts  
 

In addition, the HWB must consult at least once with: 
 

 NHS England 
 Neighbouring HWBs (these neighbouring HWBs must consult with their LPCs and LMCs 

before responding)  
 

A minimum of 60 days for making responses must be given. The consultation can be 
via an address of a website on which the draft is available during these 60 days (the 

HWB must provide a paper copy within 14 days if requested to do so by a consultee). 

 
To complete following the 60 day statutory consultation.  
 
 

  

Page 316



 

57 
 

Appendix 6: Results of the community pharmacy survey35 
 

Dales 
 
In May 2017, 87% (20 out of 23) of the Dales pharmacies responded to the 
pharmacy survey. The key results are summarised below. 
 
Pharmacy premises 

 4 Dales pharmacies do not have unaided wheelchair access.  

 3 Dales pharmacies do not have hand washing facilities in the consultation room. 
 
National pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
Pharmacy Access Scheme payment 

 7 Dales pharmacies indicated that they would receive PhAS payments with a 
further 2 indicating that they may receive this payment. 
 

Gateway criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 Only a single pharmacy was not EPS2 enabled, and 8 pharmacies were not 
signed up for NHS mail. 

 However, all Dales pharmacies had ensured that their pharmacy information on 
the NHS Choices website was accurate. 
 

Quality criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Dales pharmacies were working towards the two quality criteria of training 
80% of their staff as dementia friends, and intervening where asthma patients are 
receiving too many reliever inhalers.   

 Only 2 Dales pharmacies were either not currently HLP accredited with a local 
award or working towards the national Level 1 self-accreditation Award by the 
second quality payment deadline in November 2017.  

 
Advanced pharmacy services 

 MURs and the NMS are now part of routine pharmacy practice.  

 The provision of the flu vaccination service is now widespread (15 out of 20 Dales 
pharmacies that responded to the survey provide this service, with a further 2 
planning to provide this service in 2018).  

 The provision of AUR service and the SCS is not widespread in the Dales with, 
for example, only a single pharmacy providing these services, with a further 
single pharmacy planning to provide these services in the next 12 months. 

 8 out of 20 Dales pharmacies that responded to the survey already provide the 
NUMSAS, with a further 5 planning to do so in the next 12 months.  

 
Non-commissioned services 

 2 pharmacies (in Bishop Auckland and Teesdale) planned to stop the prescription 
delivery service in the next 12 months.  

 

                                            
35 Survey of all pharmacies carried out via a PharmOutcomes questionnaire (template available on 
request) in May 2017. With the support of the LPC, 84% of contractors (105 out of 125) replied.  

Page 317



 

58 
 

Locally commissioned services 
The data for the maps indicating which pharmacies provide which service were 
compiled based on commissioner service data in April 2017 (for public health 
services) and June 2017 (for CCG commissioned services). In terms of other 
information gathered from the survey responses of Dales pharmacies: 
CCG commissioned services 
 

 The minor ailment scheme service is now offered by the majority of pharmacies. 

 The anticoagulation service is still a very limited commissioned service, with only 
2 Dales pharmacies in Bishop Auckland and Crook providing this service. From 
the survey responses there is a general willingness from other Dales pharmacies 
to provide this service in the future.  

 Similarly the survey results show a general willingness to provide and extend the 
provision of the TB medication cost and the food thickening voucher schemes.  
 

Public health commissioned services 

 The NRT voucher scheme and the EOHC scheme are now offered by the 
majority of pharmacies.  

 Similarly the provision of the supervised consumption and the alcohol brief 
intervention services; the Level 2 stop smoking service, and the C card provision 
service is now widespread. 

 The needle exchange service is still a very limited commissioned service, with 
only a single Dales pharmacy in Barnard Castle providing this service.  

 
Easington 

 
In May 2017, 93% (26 out of 28) of Easington pharmacies responded to the 
pharmacy survey. The key results are summarised below. 
 
Pharmacy premises 

 6 Easington pharmacies do not have unaided wheelchair access.  

 3 Easington pharmacies do not have hand washing facilities in consultation 
rooms. 

 
National pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
Pharmacy Access Scheme payment 

 8 Easington pharmacies indicated that they would receive PhAS payments with 
a further 2 indicating that they may receive this payment. 
 

Gateway criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Easington pharmacies that responded to the survey were EPS2 enabled, and 
had ensured that their pharmacy information on the NHS Choices website was 
accurate. 

 9 pharmacies were not signed up for NHS mail. 
 

Quality criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Easington pharmacies were working towards the two quality criteria of training 
80% of their staff as dementia friends, and intervening where asthma patients are 
receiving too many reliever inhalers.   

Page 318



 

59 
 

 Only 6 Easington pharmacies were either not currently HLP accredited with a 
local award or working towards the national Level 1 self-accreditation Award by 
the second quality payment deadline in November 2017. 

 
Advanced pharmacy services 

 MURs and the NMS are now part of routine pharmacy practice.  

 The provision of the flu vaccination service is now widespread (15 out of 26 
Easington pharmacies that responded to the survey provide this service, with a 
further 4 planning to provide this service in 2018).  

 The provision of the AUR service and the SCS is not widespread in Easington 
with, for example, only a single pharmacy providing these services. 

 In May 2017, only 7 out of 26 pharmacies that responded to the survey already 
provide the NUMSAS, with a further 4 planning to do so in the next 12 months.  

 
Non-commissioned services 

 1 pharmacy in Peterlee does not provide a prescription delivery service. 
 
Locally commissioned services 
The data for the maps indicating which pharmacies provide which service were 
compiled based on commissioner service data in April 2017 (for public health 
services) and June 2017 (for CCG commissioned services). In terms of other 
information gathered from the survey responses of Easington pharmacies: 
CCG commissioned services 
 

 The minor ailment scheme service is now offered by the majority of pharmacies. 

 The anticoagulation service is still a very limited commissioned service, with no 
pharmacies in Easington providing this service. From the survey responses there 
is a general willingness from other Easington pharmacies to provide this service 
in the future.  

 Similarly the survey results show a general willingness to provide and extend the 
provision of the TB medication cost and the food thickening voucher schemes.  
 

Public health commissioned services 

 The NRT voucher scheme and the EOHC scheme are now offered by the 
majority of pharmacies.  

 Similarly the provision of the supervised consumption and the alcohol brief 
intervention services; the Level 2 stop smoking service, and the C card provision 
service is now widespread. 

 The needle exchange service is still a very limited commissioned service, with 
only a single pharmacy in Easington Colliery providing this service.  

 
Derwentside 

 
In May 2017, 85% (17 out of 20) of Derwentside pharmacies responded to the 
pharmacy survey. The key results are summarised below. 
 
Pharmacy premises 

 2 Derwentside pharmacies do not have unaided wheelchair access.  

Page 319



 

60 
 

 All Derwentside pharmacies have hand washing facilities in the consultation 
rooms. 

 
National pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
Pharmacy Access Scheme payment 

 4 Derwenside pharmacies indicated that they would receive PhAS payments with 
a further single pharmacy indicating that it may receive this payment. 
 

Gateway criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Derwentside pharmacies had ensured that their pharmacy information on the 
NHS Choices website was accurate, and were EPS2 enabled. 

 In May 2017, 4 Derwentside pharmacies were not signed up for NHS mail. 
 

Quality criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Derwentside pharmacies were working towards the two quality criteria of 
training 80% of their staff as dementia friends, and intervening where asthma 
patients are receiving too many reliever inhalers.   

 Only a single pharmacy is either not currently HLP accredited with a local award 
or working towards the national Level 1 self-accreditation Award by the second 
quality payment deadline in November 2017. 

 
Advanced pharmacy services 

 MURs and the NMS are now part of routine pharmacy practice.  

 The provision of the flu vaccination service is now widespread (15 out of 17 
Derwentside pharmacies that responded to the survey provide this service, with a 
further single pharmacy planning to provide this service in 2018).  

 The provision of the AUR service and the SCS is not widespread in Derwentside 
with, for example, only 3 pharmacies providing these services, with a further 4 
pharmacies planning to provide these services in the next 12 months. 

 11 out of 17 Derwentside pharmacies that responded to the survey already 
provide the NUMSAS, with a further 2 planning to do so in the next 12 months.  

 
Non-commissioned services 

 A single pharmacy in Stanley does not provide a prescription delivery service. 
 
Locally commissioned services 
The data for the maps indicating which pharmacies provide which service were 
compiled based on commissioner service data in April 2017 (for public health 
services) and June 2017 (for CCG commissioned services). In terms of other 
information gathered from the survey responses of Derwentside pharmacies: 
CCG commissioned services 
 

 The minor ailment scheme service is now offered by the majority of pharmacies. 

 The anticoagulation service is still a very limited commissioned service, with 2 
pharmacies in the Consett area and Stanley providing this service. From the 
survey responses there is a general willingness from other Derwentside 
pharmacies to provide this service in the future.  

 Similarly the survey results show a general willingness to provide and extend the 
provision of the TB medication cost and the food thickening voucher schemes.  

Page 320



 

61 
 

Public health commissioned services 

 The NRT voucher scheme and the EOHC scheme are now offered by the 
majority of pharmacies.  

 Similarly the provision of the supervised consumption and the alcohol brief 
intervention services; the Level 2 stop smoking service, and the C card provision 
service is now widespread. 

 The needle exchange service is still a very limited commissioned service, with 
only a single pharmacy in Stanley providing this service.  

 
Sedgefield  

 
In May 2017, 71% (15 out of 21) of Sedgefield pharmacies responded to the 
pharmacy survey. The key results are summarised below. 
 
Pharmacy premises 

 3 Sedgefield pharmacies do not have unaided wheelchair access.  

 2 Sedgefield pharmacies do not have hand washing facilities in consultation 
rooms. 

 
National pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
Pharmacy Access Scheme payment 

 4 Sedgefield pharmacies indicated that they would receive PhAS payments with 
a further 4 indicating that they may receive this payment. 
 

Gateway criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Sedgefield pharmacies that responded to the survey were EPS2 enabled, 
and had ensured that their pharmacy information on the NHS Choices website 
was accurate.  

 Only 4 pharmacies were not signed up for NHS mail. 
 

Quality criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Sedgefield pharmacies were working towards the two quality criteria of 
training 80% of their staff as dementia friends, and intervening where asthma 
patients are receiving too many reliever inhalers.   

 Only 2 Sedgefield pharmacies were either not currently HLP accredited with a 
local award or working towards the national Level 1 self-accreditation Award by 
the second quality payment deadline in November 2017.  

 
Advanced pharmacy services 

 MURs and the NMS are now part of routine pharmacy practice.  

 The provision of the flu vaccination service is now widespread (12 out of 15 
Sedgefield pharmacies that responded to the survey provide this service, with a 
further single pharmacy planning to provide this service in 2018).  

 The provision of the AUR service and the SCS is not widespread in Sedgefield 
with, for example, no pharmacies providing these services, with a single 
Sedgefield pharmacy planning to provide these services in the next 12 months. 

 10 out of 15 Sedgefield pharmacies that responded to the survey already provide 
the NUMSAS, with a further 2 planning to do so in the next 12 months.  

 

Page 321



 

62 
 

Locally commissioned services 
The data for the maps indicating which pharmacies provide which service were 
compiled based on commissioner service data in April 2017 (for public health 
services) and June 2017 (for CCG commissioned services). In terms of other 
information gathered from the survey responses of Sedgefield pharmacies: 
CCG commissioned services 
 

 The minor ailment scheme service is now offered by the majority of pharmacies. 

 The anticoagulation service is still a very limited commissioned service, with no 
pharmacies in Sedgefield providing this service. From the survey responses there 
is a general willingness from other Sedgefield pharmacies to provide this service 
in the future.  

 Similarly the survey results show a general willingness to provide and extend the 
provision of the TB medication cost and the food thickening voucher schemes.  
 

Public health commissioned services 

 The NRT voucher scheme and the EOHC scheme are now offered by the 
majority of pharmacies.  

 Similarly the provision of the supervised consumption and the alcohol brief 
intervention services; the Level 2 stop smoking service, and the C card provision 
service is now widespread. 

 The needle exchange service is still a very limited commissioned service, with 
only a single Sedgefield pharmacy in Ferryhill providing this service.  

 
Durham 

 
In May 2017, 82% (18 out of 22) of Durham pharmacies responded to the pharmacy 
survey. The key results are summarised below. 
 
Pharmacy premises 

 7 Durham pharmacies do not have unaided wheelchair access.  

 3 Durham pharmacies do not have hand washing facilities in the consultation 
rooms. 

 
National pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
Pharmacy Access Scheme payment 

 4 Durham pharmacies indicated that they would receive PhAS payments with a 
further 2 indicating that they may receive this payment. 
 

Gateway criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All pharmacies were EPS2 enabled. 

 However 6 pharmacies were not signed up for NHS mail, and a single pharmacy 
had not ensured that their pharmacy information on the NHS Choices website was 
accurate. 
 

Quality criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Durham pharmacies were working towards the two quality criteria of training 
80% of their staff as dementia friends, and intervening where asthma patients are 
receiving too many reliever inhalers.   

Page 322



 

63 
 

 8 (or a third of) Durham pharmacies were either not currently HLP accredited with 
a local award or working towards the national Level 1 self-accreditation Award by 
the second quality payment deadline in November 2017.  

 
Advanced pharmacy services 

 MURs and the NMS are now part of routine pharmacy practice (however 2 
Durham pharmacies indicated that they were introducing the NMS in 2018).  

 The provision of the flu vaccination service is now widespread (13 out of 18 
Durham pharmacies that responded to the survey provide this service, with a 
further single pharmacy planning to provide this service in 2018).  

 The provision of the AUR service and the SCS is not widespread in the Durham 
area with, for example, only a single pharmacy providing these services. 

 7 out of 18 Durham pharmacies that responded to the survey already provide the 
NUMSAS, with a further 5 planning to do so in the next 12 months.  

 
Non-commissioned services 

 Only a single pharmacy in Durham did not deliver medication.  
 

Locally commissioned services 
The data for the maps indicating which pharmacies provide which service were 
compiled based on commissioner service data in April 2017 (for public health 
services) and June 2017 (for CCG commissioned services). In terms of other 
information gathered from the survey responses of Durham pharmacies: 
CCG commissioned services 

 The minor ailment scheme service is now offered by the majority of pharmacies. 

 The anticoagulation service is still a very limited commissioned service, with no 
pharmacies in Durham providing this service. From the survey responses there is 
a general willingness from Durham pharmacies to provide this service in the 
future.  

 Similarly the survey results show a general willingness to provide and extend the 
provision of the tuberculosis TB medication cost and the food thickening voucher 
schemes.  
 

Public health commissioned services 

 The NRT voucher scheme and the EOHC scheme are now offered by the 
majority of pharmacies.  

 Similarly the provision of the supervised consumption and the alcohol brief 
intervention services; the Level 2 stop smoking service, and the C card provision 
service is now widespread. 

 The needle exchange service is still a very limited commissioned service, with no 
pharmacies in the Durham area providing this service.  

 
Chester-le-Street 

 
In May 2017, 91% (10 out of 11) of Chester-le-Street pharmacies responded to the 
pharmacy survey. The key results are summarised below. 
 
Pharmacy premises 

 2 Chester-le-Street pharmacies do not have unaided wheelchair access.  

Page 323



 

64 
 

 3 Chester-le-Street pharmacies do not have hand washing facilities in 
consultation rooms. 

 
National pharmacy contract (introduced in December 2016) 
Pharmacy Access Scheme payment 

 3 Chester-le-Street pharmacies indicated that they would receive PhAS 
payments with a further single pharmacy indicating that they may receive this 
payment. 
 

Gateway criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Chester-le-Street pharmacies that responded to the survey were EPS2 
enabled, and had ensured that their pharmacy information on the NHS Choices 
website was accurate. 

 Only 4 pharmacies were not signed up for NHS mail. 
 

Quality criteria for the Quality Payment Scheme 

 All Chester-le-Street pharmacies were working towards the two quality criteria of 
training 80% of their staff as dementia friends, and intervening where asthma 
patients are receiving too many reliever inhalers.   

 Only 2 Chester-le-Street pharmacies were either not currently HLP accredited 
with a local award or working towards the national Level 1 self-accreditation 
Award by the second quality payment deadline in November 2017.  

 
Advanced pharmacy services 

 MURs and the NMS are now part of routine pharmacy practice.  

 The provision of the flu vaccination service is now widespread (5 out of 11 
Chester-le-Street pharmacies that responded to the survey provide this service, 
with a further 3 planning to provide this service in 2018).  

 The provision of the AUR) service and the SCS is not widespread in Chester-le-
Street with, for example, only a single pharmacy providing these services. 

 4 out of 11 Chester-le-Street pharmacies that responded to the survey already 
provide the NUMSAS, with a further 2 planning to do so in the next 12 months.  

 
Locally commissioned services 
The data for the maps indicating which pharmacies provide which service were 
compiled based on commissioner service data in April 2017 (for public health 
services) and June 2017 (for CCG commissioned services). In terms of other 
information gathered from the survey responses of Chester-le-Street pharmacies: 
CCG commissioned services 

 The minor ailment scheme service is now offered by the majority of pharmacies. 

 The anticoagulation service is still a very limited commissioned service, with no 
pharmacies in Chester-le-Street providing this service. From the survey 
responses there is a general willingness from other Chester-le-Street pharmacies 
to provide this service in the future.  

 Similarly the survey results show a general willingness to provide and extend the 
provision of the TB medication cost and the food thickening voucher schemes.  
 
 
 

Page 324



 

65 
 

Public health commissioned services 

 The NRT voucher scheme and the EOHC scheme are now offered by the 
majority of pharmacies.  

 Similarly the provision of the supervised consumption and the alcohol brief 
intervention services; the Level 2 stop smoking service, and the C card provision 
service is now widespread. 

 The needle exchange service is still a very limited commissioned service, with 
two pharmacies in Chester-le-Street and Sacriston providing this service. 

 
  

Page 325



 

66 
 

Appendix 7: Results of the Healthwatch online public 
survey 

 

This online survey was carried out in the summer of 2017 with a view to gaining an 
initial insight into how a small sample of the public are accessing pharmaceutical 
services and their overall views of the services they receive. A total of 164 survey 
responses were received. The results of this survey sit alongside the comments 
received during the formal 60 day consultation in December 2017 – January 2018 
(see Appendix 8).  
 

How are the public accessing pharmaceutical services across County 
Durham? 

 

How often do you 
access local 
pharmacy services 
in your area? 

At least 
once a 
week 
13% 

At least 
monthly 
 
56% 

At least every  
three months 
 
14% 

At least 
every six 
months 
8% 

At least 
once a year 
 
5% 

Less than  
once a year 
 
5% 

 

Do you always visit 
the same pharmacy 
service? 

Always 
 
64% 

Usually 
 
21% 

No 
 
15% 

 

Can you easily 
access pharmacy 
services? 

Yes 
93% 

No 
4% 

Don’t know / NA 
2% 

 

Thinking about the pharmacy service you visit 
most often, how do you normally get there? 

On foot 
 
22% 

Public 
transport 
9% 

Car or taxi 
 
66% 

Other 
 
3% 

 

What type of pharmacy service is it? 
 

High 
street  
49% 

Supermarket 
 
4% 

Doctor’s 
surgery 
21% 

Other 
 
26% 

 
Summary of comments received across County Durham (where no postcode 

was indicated on the survey return) and in the 6 PNA localities 
 

Responses from across County Durham  
(where no postcode was indicated on the survey return) 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Staff 
Pleasant friendly staff. 
Always helpful, polite, answer any questions. 
Pharmacy is friendly, welcoming and gives good advice without needing an appointment. 
Customer service. 
Extremely helpful. 
Knows the patients and their needs. 
 
Service 
Being proactive with my prescriptions as I have made it my nominated pharmacy. 
Well organized. 
Explains how to use the medication. 
Giving advice about a condition and product in order to avoid a doctor visit. 
Ensure medication is available on time, very helpful. 

Page 326



 

67 
 

Speedy delivery of medicines. 
Gives a good overall service. Will deliver where necessary.  
 
Access 
Good location. 
It is well located and is open good hours. 
Long opening hours. 
 
Negative comments included: 
Service 
Could improve service with prescriptions being ready and not always have stock. Recently got 
worse with having to go through pharmacy for repeat prescriptions. 
      

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? Comments included: 
 
Service 
Health checks. 
Anything they can do should be publicised more.  
Cheaper non-prescription education on products. 
Basic first aid type of service. 
 
Access 
Increase in out of hours cover.  
  

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Staff 
Need to communicate problems with customers better (e.g. letting customers know in advance if 
there is a problem with acquiring their prescription. Also need to communicate with doctors surgery 
better as there are often mix-ups with prescription collections). 
More approachable staff.  
 
Service 
Make it more of a Health Hub rather than just a pharmacy. 
A facility to know if what you have been prescribed is in stock before travelling there - or for the GP 
to know that a drug is in short supply before prescribing it to you. 
Revert back to organising prescriptions via GP Surgery. 
Telephone ordering/digital rather than visits. 
Some only take cash payments. 
Have dispensing of methadone done in a private room and not in full view of the public. 
 
Access 
Later opening hours. Their hours do not match those of the GP practice. 
Opening hours longer. 
Longer opening hours and weekend opening times. 
Open longer hours.  
   

 
Responses from the Dales 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Staff 
Good customer service. 
Talk to you as a person. 
Offer advice and support. 
Offer advice re: medication. 
The advice from the pharmacist is always good and usually saves a GP visit.  

Page 327



 

68 
 

Serve customers as individuals.  
Welcoming go out the way to help. 
Friendly service and good advice. 
Talk to me. 
Everything, understanding. 
Good and friendly. 
 
Service 
Will get all medication as per prescription and if not available will get outstanding medication as 
quickly as possible. 
Everything very good. 
Loads of room - good stuff. 
Confident - a very good service and happy to return. 
Everything. 
Always got what you need. 
Good chemist. 
Good service. 
If medication is not in stock go out of their way to find it within 24 hours. 
Can ask advice. 
When prescriptions due ring them, they contact GP and let me know when ready to collect. 
Service is excellent – can’t fault it. 
Helpful - if they haven't got it they will get it. 
 
Access 
Local and convenient. 
Convenient long opening hours.  
   

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? Comments included: 
 
Service 
It would be helpful if my chosen pharmacy could offer the option to pay for a pre-paid prescription 
certificate. 
Dockets bigger. 
 

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Service 
They never have the pills I need. 
More than two seats required. 
More seating - and new seats 
 
Access 
Longer Saturday opening times or one late night per week - it is sometimes awkward collecting 
prescriptions with working full time. 
     

 
Responses from Easington 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Staff 
Excellent advice, compassionate, understanding. They go out of their way to help you even when 
they are so busy. 
Friendly helpful service and recommend various options of medications, etc. 
Friendly staff to greet and help/give advice. 
Friendly and helpful. 
Offers advice. 
 

Page 328



 

69 
 

Service 
Wide range of items/medicines. 
Bring medication on time 
Promptly dispenses medication directly from GPs 
 
Negative comments included: 
Service 
There are some inconsistencies and mix ups with prescriptions, forgetting to put up pre-arranged 
prescriptions and or not having enough of the medication you need which you then have to make a 
return trip. 
         

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? Comments included: 
 
Service 
Used to offer a health check but this seems to have stopped.     
            

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Service 
It takes too long to get medication. Confidentiality is an issue - can see other people’s prescriptions 
at counter. Requests to access minor ailment scheme are awkward, questioning seems excessive 
and is off putting. 
 
Access 
Not open very much over the weekend period.  
      

 
Responses from Derwentside 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Staff 
Their customer service is first class, if they don't have an item they will order it for you. 
Provide a good friendly service. 
Advice. 
Quite up to date. 
Nice staff. 
Attitude. 
 
Service 
They provide an electronic prescription service which is very convenient. 
Get repeat prescriptions from doctors and have them ready when I go to collect. 
Pointing out new dosage or strength. 
The electronic service is really good as is the telephone service. 
Picks up my prescription from the doctors.  
Dispensing and medicine check.  
Good dispensary here. 
I receive regular medication for diabetes and I find the pharmacy always has my medication ready 
within a few days.     
 
Access 
Long opening hours and 7 day opening. 
Fantastic opening hours.  
 
Negative comments included: 
Service 
Pharmacy do mistakes. 
What not do well - there is often mistakes. Just changed chemist for this reason. 

Page 329



 

70 
 

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? Comments included: 
 
Service 
They do offer other things but I don’t require them. 
Blood pressure and weight. 
Dispose of sharps - they have to go back to doctors or council will pick up if organised. 
Certain pharmacies not keeping stock so people will have to travel to next pharmacy if medicines 
needed in particular time. 
 

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Service 
Easier ways to order - an app for your phone maybe and notify when they are due. Quicker 
turnaround for scripts - at the minute it is 3 days often longer if over a weekend. 
They rarely have repeat online scrips ready. 
More polite training. 
GP could improve their service.  
Yes get it right. 
GP never have prescription ready. 
It would be better if there was more room for consultation. 
 
Access 
Pharmacy joined onto the GP should be open the same hours. The pharmacy closes at 5.30 but 
the GP appointments run until 6.30 so means not able to pick up an urgent prescription the same 
day. 
Open Saturdays. 
 

 
Responses from Sedgefield 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Staff 
Good customer service. 
The staff are friendly. 
Excellent - exceptionally quick, polite, pleasant, helpful. I cannot recommend them highly enough. 
Bit crack with you and know you well. 
Everything. 
They are always very helpful and polite. 
Help with advice. 
Very Professional. 
 
Service 
Prescription re-order direct to GP. 
Excellent pharmacy service- will visit your home, collect prescriptions and deliver goods.  
Quick efficient service. 
Serve well. 
Service helpful and friendly. 
Electronic prescriptions. 
 
Access 
Opening hours are good - stay open late, all others close at teatime. 
Great pharmacy is in house which is convenient. 
Easily accessible. 
 

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary 
Service 

Page 330



 

71 
 

Pharmacy blood pressure monitoring. 

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Staff 
The atmosphere at doctor’s surgery dispensary is not conducive to asking questions, etc. They 
volunteer nothing, just do the job. High Street pharmacy cannot be faulted. 
 
Service 
I ceased to use a pharmacy because they rarely had what I needed or they ended up owing me 
part of my prescription. Also have been given someone else’s medication on occasions and wrong 
information.  
Bigger. 
 
Access 
Better opening times and weekend opening. 
Waiting times could be reduced. 
Later opening hours. 
Wait time on prescriptions (doctors quicker to get prescription). 
 

 
Responses from Durham 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Staff  
Very efficient, the pharmacist will give advice on over the counter drugs. 
Friendly and helpful. 
Excellent customer service. 
Local and know the customers. 
Fantastic cheerful helpful team. 
Receptionists are usually very helpful.  
Chemist assistants and pharmacist very kind and helpful in every way. 
Kind a nice.  
Very polite and helpful. 
 
Service  
Service is good. 
Gives advice on conditions and treatment that do not need GP or hospital intervention. 
Electronic prescriptions sent from GP surgery direct to the pharmacy. 
Advice if better product and deliver item if not in stock. 
They pick up prescriptions from the doctors surgery and have them made up for me to collect. 
Electronic prescribing, text service. 
Good information and sharing information quickly. 
Tell me when I can buy over counter more cheaply/ advise on how to take medication. 
Very helpful. Especially when the GPs goes a bit awry. Are willing to bring medicines around to me 
if I am very unwell.  
Accommodate personal need around getting medicines.  
Very prompt with prescriptions.  
 
Access 
Local and convenient prescription service. 
They are open long hours to coincide with the doctor’s surgery. 
  

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? Comments included: 
 
Service 
Family planning rather than go to the doctors for the contraceptive pill. 
Holiday jabs. 

Page 331



 

72 
 

Blood pressure, checking temperature - where to go next. 
Access 
Yes a Saturday service. 
They are not open at lunchtimes or evenings.    
 

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Service 
Perhaps an online appointment with pharmacist to review medication. 
On the budget they have to operate on - pharmacy and GP practice run satisfactory.  
 
Access 
Open Saturdays. 
More staff at busy times and a better waiting area. 
Open on a weekend and one late evening per week. 
Be open at lunchtimes and evenings and Sundays. 
Longer opening hours. 
Weekend opening hours.  
Closed at lunchtime - inconvenient. Stay open all day. 
    

 
Responses from Chester-le-Street 

What does your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary do well?  
 
Positive comments included: 
Service 
Delivers medication.      
 
Negative comments included: 
Service  
I have not had good experiences with the local pharmacy.     
 

Are there any other services you would like to access from your local pharmacy or GP 
practice dispensary? Comments included: 
 
Service 
Disposal of used needles and yellow boxes. 
 
Access 
It would be helpful if their opening times were longer for people who work during the day.  
     

Is there any way your pharmacy or GP practice dispensary could be improved?  
Comments included: 
 
Service 
They could give the right medication. Recently my father in law was given two lots of medication 
which he took as he knew no better and ended up in hospital. 
 
Access 
The shop is not accessible if you are a wheelchair user.  
    

  

Page 332



 

73 
 

Appendix 8: Summary of responses received during the 
statutory 60 day consultation 

 
To complete following the 60 day statutory consultation.  

 
  

Page 333



 

74 
 

Appendix 9: Housing developments in County Durham of 
100 properties or more, and estimated builds by 2020-21 

(information correct at August 2017) 

 
Site name Settlement Total 

number of 
houses left 
to build  

Estimated 
number of 
houses that 
will be built by 
2020/21 
 

Dales 

Brack’s Farm Bishop Auckland  257 120 

Land south of Douglas Crescent, 
Auckland Park 

Bishop Auckland 500 10 

Land at Catkin Way Bishop Auckland 118 15 

Former Cemex concrete batching 
plant 

Bishop Auckland 100 65 

Land to the north of Woodhouses 
Farm And south Of Etherley Moor 
Wigdan Walls Road, Woodhouses 

Bishop Auckland  237 90 

North of Bowes Road Barnard Castle  162 90 

Easington 

North East Industrial Estate, 
Stephenson road 

Peterlee 390 35 

Low hills (land between Easington 
and Peterlee) 

Peterlee 900 60 

Field to the south of Wayside, 
Wingate Lane 

Wheatley hill  106 100 

Land to the south of Wellfield Road  Wingate 161  65 

Derwentside 

Shotley Bridge Hospital Consett – Shotley 
Bridge 

133 120 

Land to the south of Fenwick Way  Consett 182 120 

Berry Edge South, off Genesis Way Consett 446 120 

Middles Farm Village Stanley 191 140 

Tanfield Lea (Everready) Tanfield Lea 365 45 

Sedgefield 

Land to the east of Clare Lodge Chilton 182 105 

Land north of West Chilton Terrace Chilton 135 75 

Whitworth Spennymoor 380 160 

Black & Decker (Durham Gate)  Spennymoor 364 105 

Former Electrolux site, Merrington 
Lane  

Spennymoor 425 30 

Thorns Lighting, Merrington Lane Spennymoor 221 180 

Former Hartwell Factory, Green 
Lane Ind Est  

Spennymoor 116 116 

Land north of Durham Road, 
Middlestone Moor  

Spennymoor 300 45 

Dale Farm, Dale Road Industrial 
Estate  

Shildon 310 0 

Land at Spout Lane Shildon 141 100 

Eldon Whins Newton Aycliffe 240 60 

Land to the south of Eden Drive Sedgefield  
 
 
 
 

276 105  

Page 334



 

75 
 

Site name Settlement Total 
number of 
houses left 
to build  

Estimated 
number of 
houses that 
will be built by 
2020/21 
 

Durham 

Land south of Bowburn and west of 
the A688  

Bowburn 270 80 

Bogma Hall Farm Coxhoe 155 75 

Land to the south of Wallnook Lane 
and east of Recreation Ground 

Langley Park 400 45 

Land west of Browney Lane Meadowfield 185 140 

Land to the north east of St. Mary's 
Terrace 

Coxhoe - Parkhill 190 75 

Land to the east of Mill Lane Sherburn Village 120 50 

Land north of Ladysmith Terrace Ushaw Moor 101 101 

Land to the south west of Station 
Road 

West Rainton 150 120 

Mount Oswald Durham City 254 160 

Milburngate House Durham City 441 150 

Former Police HQ, Aykley Heads Durham City - Aykley 
Heads 

209 140 

Finchale Training College Durham City - 
Countryside 

100 90 

Chester-le-Street 

West House Farm Sacriston 200 60 

Vigo Lane Chester-le-Street 203 90 

Lambton Park, Chester Road Bournmoor 400 60 

Rear of Elm Avenue  Pelton 190 30 

 

 
  

Page 335



 

76 
 

Appendix 10: Location and opening hours of pharmaceutical services36 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

Dales37 
 

FA121 Tesco Stores 
Limited 

 
St Helen Auckland 
Industrial Estate  

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 9AB Mon: 08:00-22:30,  
Tue-Fri: 06:30-22:30, 
Sat: 06:30-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 
 

 
FC495 Boots UK Limited 

 
Unit 8 Bishop 
Auckland 
Shopping Park 

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 9FA Mon-Fri: 08:00-24:00, 
Sat: 09:00-23:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 
FAL36 Lloyds Pharmacy 

Limited 

 
St Helen's 
Industrial Estate, 
St Helen's 
Auckland  

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 9AE Mon: 08:00-23:00,  
Tue-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat: 07:00-22:00,  
Sun: 11:00-17:00 

None 

 
FA415 Asda Stores Ltd 

 
South Church 
Road 

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 7LB Mon: 08:00-23:00,  
Tue-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat: 07:00-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 
  Auckland Medical 

Group  
  The Old Fire 

House, Watling 
Street  

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 6RP Mon-Fri: 08:00-18:00 - 

 
FXF69 Bestway National 

Chemists Limited 
Well Unit 7,  Newgate 

Centre 
Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 7JQ Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Sat: 09.00-1300  

 
FTJ49 Boots UK Limited 

 
Primary Care 
Centre, Watling 
Road 

Bishop 
Auckland  

DL14 6RP Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00  

Mon-Thurs: 08:00-
09:00; 13:00-14:00,  
Fri: 08:00-09:00; 
13:00-14:00; 18:00-
19:00  

                                            
36 Information based on: NHSBSA dispensing doctor list in June 2017; telephone calls to dispensing doctors in July to confirm main surgery dispensary opening hours; NHS England pharmacy 
listing and core opening hours September 2017; subsequent ongoing significant pharmacy changes to this information from September 2017 (information available on request) 
37 Key: Green: 100 hour pharmacies, Blue: Dispensing practices, Purple: Distance selling pharmacies  
 

P
age 336



 

77 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FH490 M & M Pharmacies 
Limited 

 
172-174 Newgate 
Street 

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 7EJ Mon-Fri: 08:00-12:30; 
13:30-17:00,  
Sat: 08.30-12.30  

Mon-Fri:  
17:00-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00  

FHV08 M & M Pharmacies 
Limited 

 
Station View 
Medical Centre, 
29a Escomb Road  

Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 6AB Mon-Fri: 08:45-13:00; 
14:00-17:45 

None 

 
FRA09 Boots UK Limited 

 

31 Newgate Street Bishop 
Auckland 

DL14 7EW Mon-Sat: 09:00-17:30 None 

 
  Barnard Castle 

Surgery 

 

Victoria Road Barnard 
Castle 

DL12 8HT  Mon-Wed: 08:00-17:45,  
Thurs: 08:00 -14:00, 
Fri: 08:00-17:45 

- 

 
FV380 Day Lewis Plc 

 
86 Galgate Barnard 

Castle 
DL12 8BJ Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri: 08:30-

09:00; 17:00-18:00,  
Sat: 08:30-13:00  

FMD09 Boots UK Limited   37-39 Market 
Place 

Barnard 
Castle 

DL12 8NE Mon-Tue: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:30,  
Wed: 09:00-17:30,  
Thu: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:30,  
Fri: 09:00-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:30 

None 

 
FVV69 C & C Forster Ltd Welsh 

Chemist 
144 Melrose Drive  St Helen 

Auckland 
DL14 9DN Mon-Fri: 08:30-13:00; 

14:00-17:30 
Mon-Tues:  
17:30-18:00,   
Thu: 17:30-18:00  

FF689 M J & A Gordon 
Limited 

Tow Law 
Pharmacy 

24 High Street  Tow Law DL13 4DL Mon-Wed: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-18:00,  
Thurs: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-15.00,  
Fri: 09:00-12:30; 13:30-
18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00 

None 

 

P
age 337



 

78 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FRW33 Gill & Schofield 
Pharmaceutical 
Chemists Ltd 

Coundon 
Pharmacy  

Victoria Lane Coundon DL14 8NL Mon-Fri: 08:45-13:15; 
14:00-17:30 

None 

 
FJ779 Stanhope Chemists 

Ltd 
  79 Front Street Stanhope DL13 2TZ Mon-Tues: 09:00-12:15; 

13:30-17:30,  
Wed: 09:00-12:15; 
13:30-16.00, 
Thurs-Fri: 09:00-12:15; 
13:30-17:30, 
Sat: 09:00-12:15 

None 

 
  Woodview Medical 

Practice 

 

  Cockfield DL13 5AF Mon: 08:30 -16:00, 
Tues-Thurs: 08:30- 
15:00, Fri: 08:30-14:00; 
16:30 -18:00 

- 

 
FGF94 Whitworth 

Chemists Limited 

 

38 Front Street Cockfield DL13 5DS Mon: 08:45-13:00; 
14:00-18:15,  
Tue-Thurs: 08:45-
13:00; 14:00-17:30,  
Fri: 08:45-13:00; 14:00-
18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
13:00 - 14:00,  
Sat: 08:45 -14:00 

 
FT188 Wolsingham 

Pharmacy Ltd 

 
12 Market Place Wolsingham DL13 3AE Mon: 09:00-12:15; 

13:30-17:30,  
Tues: 09:00-12:15; 
13:30-17:00,   
Wed: 09:00-12:15,  
Thu: 09:00-12:15; 
13:30-17:00,  
Fri: 09:00-12:15; 13:30-
17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-12:15 

None  

 
  Old Forge Surgery      Middleton-In-

Teesdale 
DL12 0QE Mon-Tues: 08:00-18:00, 

Wed: 08:00- 13:00, 
Thurs-Fri: 08:00-18:00 

- 

 

P
age 338



 

79 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FRH84 Day Lewis Plc   19 Market Place Middleton-In-
Teesdale 

DL12 0QG Mon-Tues: 09:00-17:30, 
Wed: 09:00-13:00,  
Thu-Fri: 09:00-17:30, 
Sat: 09:00-13:00 

None 

 
FQ026 Welcome Health 

Pharmacy Ltd 

 
50 Hope Street  Crook DL15 9HU Mon-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 

Sat: 08:00-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 
FLA09 Boots UK Limited  8 North Terrace  Crook DL15 9AZ Mon-Sat:  09:00-17:30 None  
FR233 Clemitsons Ltd 

 
25A Hope Street  Crook DL15 9HS Mon-Fri: 08:30-12:30; 

13:00-17:00 
Mon-Fri:12:30-13:00, 
Sat: 09:00-12:00  

FXH47 Clemitsons Ltd 

 

51 Hope Street  Crook DL15 9HU Mon-Fri: 08:30-12:00; 
13:30-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 12:00-13:30  
  

FFV56 Britton & Robson 
Ltd 

 

46 High Street Willington DL15 0PG Mon-Fri: 08:30-12:30; 
13:30-17:30 

Mon-Fri: 17:30-
18:00,  
Sat: 08:30-12:30  

  Pinfold Medical 
Practice 

 

Pinfold Lane Butterknowle DL13 5NX Mon: 08:30-19:00,  
Tues 08:30-17:00,  
Wed 08:30-18:30, 
Thurs 08:30-17:00,  
Fri 08:30-18:00.  
Closed every day 
between 12:30-14:00 -  

  Evenwood Medical 
Practice 

 

Copeland Lane Evenwood DL14 9SU Mon: 10.00–12.00; 
15.00-18.00,  
Tues: 08.00-12.00, 
Wed: 08.00-13.00, 
Thurs: 10.00–12.00; 
15.00-18.00,  
Fri: 08.00–12.00; 14.00-
17.00 -  

  Gainford Surgery 

 

Main Road Gainford DL2 3BE Mon-Tues: 08:30-1800, 
Wed 08:30-13:00, 
Thurs-Fri: 08:30-18:00 

- 

 P
age 339



 

80 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

Easington38  

FDE75 Asda Stores Ltd  Surtees Road Peterlee SR8 5HA Mon: 08:00-23:00,  
Tue-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat: 07:00-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 

FHD21 Boots UK Limited   30-32 The Chare Peterlee SR8 1AE Mon - Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-16:45,   
Sat: 09:00-12:00; 
13:00-16:45  

Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 13:00-14:00; 
16:45-17:30, 
Sat: 08:30-09:00;  
16:45-17:30  

FCJ51 Lydon Pharmacy 
Group Ltd 

York Road 
Pharmacy  

60 York Road Peterlee SR8 2DP Mon-Tues: 09:00-13:00; 
13:30-17:30,  
Wed: 09:00-13:00,  
Thu-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
13:30-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00 

None 

 

FDH51 IntraHealth 
Pharmacy Limited 

  William Brown 
Centre Manor Way  

Peterlee SR8 5SB Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 12:30-13:30; 
18:00-19.00 
  

FVF01 Bestway National 
Chemists Limited 

Well 9 The Chare Peterlee SR8 1AE Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-11:30 

Sat: 11:30-13:00 

 

FF604 Boots UK Limited  17 Blackhills Road Horden SR8 4DW Mon - Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-17:30, 
Sat: 09:00-11:30 

Sat: 11:30-12:00 

 

FY376 M Whitfield Limited   30 Forth Street 
 

Horden SR8 4LB Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-11:30 

Sat: 11:30-12:30  

 

FNC75 Boots UK Limited  South Hetton 
Health Centre, 
Front Street 

South Hetton DH6 2TH Mon-Wed: 08:30-17:30, 
Thurs: 08:30-14:00, 
Fri: 08:30-17:30 

None  

 

                                            
38 Key: Green: 100 hour pharmacies, Blue: Dispensing practices, Purple: Distance selling pharmacies  

P
age 340



 

81 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FL649 Boots UK Limited  1 Seaside Lane Easington 
Colliery 

SR8 3PF Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
13:30-17:30 

Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 13:00-13:30  

FCH78 Boots UK Limited  Craddock House, 
Seaside Lane 

Easington 
Colliery 

SR8 3PF Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
13:30-17:30 

Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 13:00-13:30,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00  

FQ606 Asda Stores Ltd  Byron Place, 
South Terrace 

Seaham SR7 7HN Mon: 08:00-23:00,  
Tue-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat: 07:00-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 

FA709 Boots UK Limited   63 Church Street Seaham SR7 7HF Mon-Sat: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-16:45 

Mon-Sat: 13:00-
14:00; 16:45-17:30  

FN907 Bestway National 
Chemists Limited 

Well 43 Church Street Seaham SR7 7HF Mon-Fri: 08:30-12:30; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 08:15-
08:30; 13:30-14:00  

FEM40 Norchem 
Healthcare Limited 

Eilbeck 
Deneside  

1 The Avenue, 
Deneside 

Seaham SR7 8LQ Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

None 
  

FXL31 Lloyds Pharmacy 
Limited 

 8 Blandford Place Seaham SR7 7EL Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 08:15-
09:00; 13:00-14:00  

FX542 Pharmacare4u Ltd  J & J 
Pharmacy  

1 West Grove, 
Westlea Estate  

Seaham SR7 8EL Mon-Fri: 09:00-14:00; 
14:30-17:30 

Mon-Fri:  
14:00-14:30,  
Sat: 09:15-13:00  

FKG29 Norchem 
Healthcare Limited 

 Eilbeck 
Harbour 

Seaham Primary 
Care Centre, St 
Johns Square  

Seaham  SR7 7JE Mon-Fri: 09:00-18:00 Mon: 08:00-09:00; 
18:00-20:30,  
Tue-Fri: 08:00-09:00, 
Sat: 09.00-13.00  

FV165 G Whitfield Limited   16 Woods Terrace 
East 

Murton  SR7 9AA Mon-Wed: 09.00-12.30; 
13.30-18:00, 
Thurs-Fri: 09.00-12.30; 
13.30-17:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:30 

Mon-Wed: 08:30-
09:00; 12:30-13:30,  
Thu-Fri: 08:30-09:00; 
12:30-13:30; 17:00-
18:00  

FEQ59 Whitworth 
Chemists Limited 

 13/15 Woods 
Terrace 

Murton  SR7 9AD Mon-Fri: 08:30-12:30; 
13:30-17:30 

Mon-Wed: 17:30 - 
18:00,   
Sat: 09:00 - 12:00  

P
age 341



 

82 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FJW29 Crispin Pharmacy 
Ltd 

Shotton 
Pharmacy 

2 Front Street Shotton 
Colliery 

 DH6 2LT Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

None  

 

FL004 Haswell Pharmacy 
Ltd 

  80  Front Street Haswell  DH6 2BL Mon-Wed: 09:00-17:30, 
Thurs: 09:00-15.00,  
Fri: 09:00-17:30 

Thurs: 15:00-17:30 

 

FQL31 M Whitfield Limited   2 Stanley Terrace Thornley  DH6 3ES Mon-Wed: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-18:00,  
Thurs: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-17.30,  
Fri: 09:00-12:30; 14:00-
18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00  

Sat: 12:00-12:30 

 

FVH83 Norchem 
Healthcare Limited 

Meikles 
Pharmacy  

51 Middle Street Blackhall 
Colliery 

TS27 4EE Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:30 None 
 

FCK33 M Whitfield Limited 

 

28 Middle Street Blackhall 
Colliery 

TS27 4EA Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-11:30 

Sat: 11:30-12:30 

 

FA773 Boots UK Limited   Front Street Wingate  TS28 5PZ Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
13:00-14:00,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00  

FTA07 Phillips Chemists 
Ltd 

 

11 Luke Street Trimdon 
Colliery 

TS29 6DP Mon-Tues:  
08:30 - 16:30,  
Wed-Fri: 08:30 - 12:30 

None 

 

FFH88 M Whitfield Limited   The Primary Care 
Centre, Thornley 
Road  

Wheatley Hill DH6 3NR Mon-Wed: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-18:00,  
Thurs: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-17.30:00,  
Fri: 09:00-12:30; 14:00-
18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00  

Sat: 12:00-12:30 

 

 Kaur Pharma 
Limited  
 
 

 81 Edenhill Road Peterlee SR8 5DD Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Recent application – 
detail to follow 

 

P
age 342



 

83 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

Derwentside39  

FW704 Boots UK Limited  Tanfield View 
Surgery, Scott 
Street 

Tanfield DH9 8AD Mon-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat-Sun: 09:00-19:00 

None 

 

FTW78 Ashchem Limited Ashchem 
Chemists 

3 West Road Annfield Plain DH9 7XA Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
13:00-14:00,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00  

  Browney House 
Surgery 

  Front Street Langley Park DH7 9YT Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:30 - 
 

FDR43 Bestway National 
Chemists Limited 

Well 40 Front Street Langley Park DH7 9SA Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 17:30-18:00,  
Sat: 08:45-12:30  

FRK79 T & J Healthcare 
Ltd 

Station Road 
Pharmacy 

9 Station Road Consett DH8 5RL Mon-Sat: 08:00-23:00, 
Sun: 10:00-20:00 

None 

 

FR810 John Low Ltd Moorside 
Pharmacy 

Consett Park 
Terrace, Moorside  

Consett DH8 8ET Mon-Fri: 08:30-14:30  None 

 

FJL38 John Low Ltd   83 Queens Road, 
Shotley Bridge 

Consett  DH8 0BW Mon-Fri: 08:30-13:30; 
14:00-17:00  

Mon-Fri:  
08:00-08:30;  
13:30 - 14:00   

FHM85 Lloyds Pharmacy 
Limited 

 12 Station Road Consett DH8 5RL Mon-Fri: 08:45-12:45; 
14:30-17:45,  
Sat: 09:15-13:00 

Mon-Fri 08:30-08:45;  
12:45-14:30; 17:45-
18:30,  
Sat: 08:45-09:15  

FQR60 Bestway National 
Chemists Limited 

Well The Derwent 
Centre, Middle 
Street  

Consett DH8 5QW Mon-Tues 09:30-14:00; 
15:00-17:30,  
Wed-Sat 09:30-14:00; 
15:00-17:00  

Mon-Tues: 09:00-
09:30,   
Wed-Sat: 09:00-
09:30; 17:00-17:30   

FH756 Boots UK Limited  Station Yard West, 
Delves Lane  

Consett DH8 5YA Mon-Fri: 08:30-13:00; 
14:00-17:30 

Mon-Fri: 08:00-
08:30; 13:00-14:00,  
Sat: 08:30-12:00  

                                            
39 Key: Green: 100 hour pharmacies, Blue: Dispensing practices, Purple: Distance selling pharmacies 

P
age 343



 

84 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FA527 Farah Chemists 
Limited 

Burnopfield 
Pharmacy 

Cedar Crescent Burnopfield NE16 6HU Mon-Fri: 09.00-17.30 None 

 

FNR44 Farah Chemists 
Limited 

Dipton 
Pharmacy 

Lesbury House, 
Front Street  

Dipton  DH9 9AD Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
08:30-09:00  

FK668 Farah Chemists 
Limited 

Leadgate 
Pharmacy 

George Ewen 
House, Watling 
Street 

Leadgate DH8 6DP Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Tue: 17:00-18:00 
Thu: 17:00-18:00 

 

FLX61 Lydon Pharmacy 
Group Ltd 

Craghead 
Pharmacy  

6 Standerton 
Terrace 

Craghead DH9 6DD Mon: 08:30-12:30; 
13:00-19:00,  
Tue-Wed: 08:30-12:30; 
13:00-17:30,  
Thu: 08:30-13:00,  
Fri: 08:30-12:30; 13:00-
17:30 

None 

 

FW299 Asda Stores Ltd  Front Street Stanley DH9 0NB Mon: 08:00-23:00,  
Tue-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat: 07:00-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 

FTH09 Boots UK Limited   53 Front Street Stanley DH9 0SY Mon: 08:30-13:00; 
14:00-17:30,  
Tue-Sat: 08:30-13:00; 
14:00-17:00 

Tue-Sat:  
17:00-17:30 

 

FRR32 Lloyds Pharmacy 
Limited 

 Clifford Road Stanley DH9 0AB Mon: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00,  
Tue-Fri: 09:00-12:00; 
14:00-18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00 

Mon: 08:30-09:00; 
13:00-14:00,  
Tue-Fri: 08:30-09:00; 
12:00-14:00,  
Sat: 13:00-14:00  

FWL23 Lydon Pharmacy 
Group Ltd 

Stanley 
Pharmacy  

79 Front Street Stanley DH9 0TB Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 17:00-18:00  
Sat: 09:00-13:00  

  The Haven Surgery    The Haven  Burnhope DH7 0BD Mon-Tues: 08:00-18:00, 
Wed: 08:00-12:00, 
Thurs-Fri: 08:00-18:00 

- 

 

P
age 344



 

85 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FFF81 M D & A G Burdon 
Ltd 

Lanchester 
Pharmacy 

15 Front Street Lanchester DH7 0LA Mon-Fri: 09:00-13.00; 
14.00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
08:30-09:00,  
Sat: 09:00-17:00  

FYR54 Blue House Retail 
Ltd 

Taylors 
Pharmacy 

226 Park Road South Moor DH9 7AN Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri:17:00-18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00  

  Oakfields Health 
Centre 

    Hamsterley 
Colliery  

NE17 7SB Mon-Wed: 08:30-18:00, 
Thurs: 08:30-12:00,  
Fri: 08:30-18:00. 
Closed every day 
between 12:00-14:00 

- 

 

FRQ35 Sri Vijaya Venkata 
LLP 

Consett 
Pharmacy 

Unit 19b Number 
One Industrial Est 

Consett DH8 6SY Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:13:00-14:00,  
Sat: 09:00-18:00  

Sedgefield40  

FMH62 Tesco Stores 
Limited 

 Greenwell Road  Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 4DH Mon: 08:00-22:30,  
Tue-Fri: 06:30-22:30, 
Sat: 06:30-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 

 Bewick Crescent 
Surgery 

 27 Bewick 
Crescent 

Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 5LH Mon: 08.30–10.00; 
16.00–17.30,  
Tues: 08.30–10.00, 
Wed: 08.30–10.00; 
14.00–16.00,  
Thurs: 09.00–11.30; 
16.00–17.30,  
Fri: 08.30–10.00 
(Heighington Branch 
Surgery Dispensary 
Opening Hours) 

- 

 

FPL65 A R McConnell 
Limited 

The Village 
Pharmacy 

Pioneering Care 
Centre, Cobbler's 
Hall, Burn Lane 

Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 4SE Mon-Fri: 08:30-13:00; 
14:00-17:30 

Sat: 09:00-12:00 

 

                                            
40 Key: Green: 100 hour pharmacies, Blue: Dispensing practices, Purple: Distance selling pharmacies  

P
age 345



 

86 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FGR42 Boots UK Limited 

 

57 Beveridge Way Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 4DU Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:00,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-15:00 

Mon: 08:30-09:00; 
17:00-17:30,  
Tue-Fri: 08:30-09:00; 
13:00-14:00; 17:00-
17:30,  
Sat: 15:00-17:00  

FFK86 Robert & Roberts 
Limited 

Bewick 
Pharmacy 

27 Bewick 
Crescent 

 Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 5LH Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 17:00-18:00   

FWF67 Lloyds Pharmacy 
Limited 

 Pease Way 
Medical Centre 

Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 5NH Mon-Fri :09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00  

Mon-Fri: 08:00 - 
09:00; 13:00 - 14:00; 
18:00 - 19:30 
Sat: 08:00 - 18:00  
Sun: 10:00 - 16:00  

FE649 Asda Stores Ltd  St Andrew's Lane Spennymoor DL16 6QB Mon: 08:00-23:00,  
Tue-Fri: 07:00-23:00, 
Sat: 07:00-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 

  St Andrews 
Medical Practice 

  St Andrew's Lane Spennymoor DL16 6QA  Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
16:00-18:00 

 - 

 

FGN07 Bestway National 
Chemists Limited 

Well St Andrews 
Medical Centre 

Spennymoor DL16 6QA Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
13:30-17:30 

Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 13:00-13:30; 
17.30-18.00  

FED01 Robert & Roberts 
Limited 

Miller Chemist 22 Cheapside Spennymoor DL16 6DJ Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 08:45-
09:00; 12:30-13:30,  
Sat: 09:00-13:00  

FPC89 Boots UK Limited  18 Cheapside Spennymoor DL16 6DJ Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
08:45 - 09:00, 
Sat:09:00 - 16:00  

FV584 Boots UK Limited Alliance 
Pharmacy 

2 North Street Ferryhill DL17 8HX Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

None 
 

FE061 J’s Healthcare 
Limited 

Higginbottom 
Pharmacy 

11 Main Street Ferryhill DL17 8LA Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri: 08:30-
09:00; 17:00-17:30   

P
age 346



 

87 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FFC42 Boots UK Limited  1 Durham Road Ferryhill DL17 8LD Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:00; 
13:00-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-11:30  

Mon-Fri:  
08:30-09:00,  
Sat: 11:30-12:00  

FWC49 Centrechem Ltd Sedgefield 
Pharmacy 

11 Front Street Sedgefield TS21 3AT Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00  

Sat: 09:00-12:00 
 

FVW28 M & M Pharmacies 
Limited 

 14 Church Street Shildon DL4 1DX Mon-Fri: 08:30-13:00; 
14:00-17:30 

Sat: 09:00-12:00 

 

FM788 Hancock & Ainsley 
Ltd  

1 Main Street Shildon DL4 1AJ Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Sat: 09:00-12:00 

 

FTH97 Intrahealth 
Pharmacy Limited 

Cheapside 
Pharmacy  

5 Cheapside Shildon DL4 2HP Mon-Fri: 08:45-13:00; 
14:00-17:30,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00 

None 

 

FPM81 Intrahealth 
Pharmacy Limited 

Chilton 
Pharmacy 

Chilton Health 
Centre, Norman 
Terrace 

Chilton DL17 0HF Mon: 08:45-12:30; 
13:30-17:45,  
Tues: 08:45-12:30; 
13:30-17:30,  
Wed: 08:45-12:30; 
13:30-17:45,  
Thu: 08:45-13:30,  
Fri: 08:45-12:30; 13:30-
17:45,  
Sat: 08:30-12:00 

None 

 

FG885 Intrahealth 
Pharmacy Limited  

6-8 High Street West 
Cornforth 

DL17 9HR Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri: 17:00-18:00 

 

FC276 Phillips Chemists 
Ltd 

  21a Church Road Trimdon 
Village 

TS29 6PY Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:45-17:30 

Mon-Fri: 12:00-
12:30; 17:30-18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:00  

FYV47 Phillips Chemists 
Ltd 

  9 Alhambra 
Terrace 

Fishburn TS21 4BU Mon-Fri: 09:00-12.30; 
13.45-17.30 

None 

 

FMN51 Robert & Roberts 
Limited 

Neville 
Pharmacy 

6 Neville Parade Newton 
Aycliffe 

DL5 5DH Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

None 
 
 
  

P
age 347



 

88 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

Durham41  
FLL39 Tesco Stores 

Limited 

 
Dragonville 
Industrial Estate, 
Dragon Lane 

Durham DH1 2XQ Mon: 08:00-22:30,  
Tue-Fri: 06:30-22:30, 
Sat: 06:30-22:00,  
Sun: 10:00-16:00 

None 

 
FVC46 Alrahi & Singh Ltd Pharmacy 

Express 
Hilary House Kelloe DH6 4PE Mon-Fri: 08:30 - 16:30 None 

 
FHD04 Bestway National 

Chemists Limited 
Well 25 Gilesgate Gilesgate DH1 1QW Mon-Fri: 09.00-14:00; 

15:00-18:00 
None 

 
  Belmont & 

Sherburn Medical 
Group  

Sherburn 
Surgery  

Gray Avenue Sherburn DH6 1JE Mon: 09:00-17:30, 
Tues: 09:00-12:00, 
Wed-Fri: 09:00-17:30 
Closed every day 
between 12:00-14:00.  

- 

 
FJ005 J Leak & S Cook Leak 

Chemists 
6 Blue House 
Buildings, High 
Street 

Belmont  DH1 1AR Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Sat: 09:00-13:00; 
14.00-17:30 

 
FK785 James &  Lindsey 

Clark 
J &  L C Clark 
Chemists 

10 Cheveley Park, 
Shopping Centre  

Belmont DH1 2AA Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Fri:  
17.00-17:30,  
Sat: 09.00-13.00  

FD330 Boots UK Limited   Unit 9, Durham 
City Retail Park  

Belmont DH1 2RP Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00  

Mon-Fri: 13:00-
14:00; 18:00-19:00,  
Sat: 09:00-18:00,  
Sun: 10:30-16:30  

FMG71 Boots UK Limited   Unit B, Arnison 
Centre Retail Park 

Pity Me  DH1 5GB Mon-Fri: 09:00-14:00; 
15:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 08:00-
09:00; 14:00-15:00; 
18:00-20:00, 
Sat: 08:00-19:00,  
Sun: 10:30-16:30  

FLJ01 Coolmain Services 
Ltd 

Leak 
Chemists 

29 Front Street Framwellgate 
Moor 

DH1 5EE Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Sat: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:00  

                                            
41 Key: Green: 100 hour pharmacies, Blue: Dispensing practices, Purple: Distance selling pharmacies  

 

P
age 348



 

89 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FRK21 W Smith (Durham) 
Ltd 

  55 Carr House 
Drive 

Framwellgate 
Moor 

DH1 5LT Mon-Fri:  09:00-12:30; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 12.30-13.00 

 
FV365 W Smith (Durham) 

Ltd 
  1 New House 

Road 
Esh Winning DH7 9JU Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 

13:30-18:00 
Sat: 09.00-12.30 

 
FML39 W Smith (Durham) 

Ltd  

Flass Terrace Ushaw Moor  DH7 7LD Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
13:30-18:00 

Sat: 09.00-12.30 

 
FQK30 Parkchem Limited Sherburn 

Village 
Pharmacy 

2 Harley Terrace Sherburn  DH6 1DS Mon-Wed: 08:45-13:00; 
14:00-18:00,  
Thu: 08:45-12:00; 
13:00-17:00,  
Fri: 09:00-13:00; 14:00-
18:00 

Mon-Wed:13:00 - 
14:00,   
Thu:12:00 - 13:00,  
Fri: 08:45 - 09:00; 
13:00 - 14:00 

 
  West Rainton 

Surgery 
  Woodland View West Rainton DH4 6RQ Mon-Fri: 08:00-11:30; 

13:30- 18:00 
- 

 
FX194 Mr T Grey The 

Storehouse 
Pharmacy 

The Store House, 
Rainton Gate 
 

West Rainton DH4 6SQ Mon-Fri: 08:30 - 12:30; 
13:30 - 17:30  

Mon-Fri: 08:15 - 
08:30; 17:30 - 18:00  
  

FTT54 M Whitfield Limited 

 

34 Sunderland 
Road 

Gilesgate DH1 2LG Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-11:30  

Sat: 11:30-12:30 

 
FV167 Lloyds Pharmacy 

Limited 

 
Arnison Retail 
Centre 

Pity Me DH1 5GD Mon-Sat: 09:00-12:00; 
14:00-17:00,  
Sun: 10:00-14:00 

Mon-Fri: 08:00-
09:00; 12:00-14:00; 
17:00-22:00,  
Sat: 08:00-09:00; 
12:00-14:00; 17:00-
21:00,  
Sun: 14:00-16:00  

FKP88 Boots UK Limited   5a-6 North Road Durham City DH1 4SH Mon-Sat: 09:00-12:00; 
13:00-17:00 

Mon-Sat: 08:45-
09:00; 12:00-13:00; 
17:00-17:30   

FYR53 Boots UK Limited 

 

2-5 Market Place Durham City DH1 3NB Mon-Sat: 08:30-17:30, 
Sun: 11:00-17:00 

None 

 P
age 349



 

90 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FA268 Bowburn Pharmacy 
Company Ltd 

 

2 Ash Terrace Bowburn DH6 5AS Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:45; 
13:45-18:00 

None  

 
FGL33 M Whitfield Limited 

 

1 Sanderson 
Street 

Coxhoe  DH6 4DF Mon -Fri: 09:00-12:45; 
14:00-18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-10:15 

Sat: 10:15-12:00 

 
  The Medical Group   Sawmills Lane  Meadowfield  DH7 9NH Mon-Wed: 09:00-17:30, 

Thurs: 09:00-12:00,  
Fri: 09:00-17:30 
Closed every day from 
12:00 -13:00. 

 

 
FRQ38 M & M Pharmacies 

Limited 

 
The Health Centre, 
Sawmills Lane  

Meadowfield DH7 8NH Mon-Fri: 08:15-12:30; 
13:30-17:15 

Mon-Fri: 17:15-18:00 

 
FFC99 Lloyds Pharmacy 

Limited 

 
Manchester 
House, 
Commercial Street  

Brandon DH7 8PL Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri: 13:30-14:00 

 
FDK64 M & M Pharmacies 

Limited 

 
Phoenix House, 4 
Sawmills Lane  

Brandon DH7 8BJ Mon-Fri: 08:00-16:00 Mon-Fri:  
16:00 - 17:00  

Chester-le-Street42 
 

FAX71 Gorgemead Limited Cohens 
Chemist 

6 Bridge End Chester-le-
Street 

DH3 3RA Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-10:00; 
11:30-13:00  

Mon-Fri: 08:00-
09:00; 12:30-14:00, 
Sat: 11:30-13:00 

 
FG999 Gorgemead Limited Cohens 

Chemist 
Middle Chare Chester-le-

Street 
DH3 3QD Mon-Fri:  09:00-17:30 Mon-Fri: 17:30-18:00 

 
FQG19 Boots UK Limited 

 

8-9 St.Cuthberts 
Walk 

Chester-le- 
Street 

DH3 3YQ Mon-Sat: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-17:00  

Mon-Sat: 13:00-
14:00; 17:00-17:30 
  

FDD30 Superdrug Stores 
Plc 

 
48-50 Front Street Chester-le-

Street 
DH3 3BD Mon-Sat: 08:30-14:00; 

14:30-17:30 
None 

 

                                            
42 Key: Green: 100 hour pharmacies, Blue: Dispensing practices, Purple: Distance selling pharmacies  

 

P
age 350



 

91 
 

ODS 
Code 

Pharmacy or GP 
Surgery 

Trading 
Name 

Address 1  Address 2  Postcode Pharmacy Core 
Hours, or GP 
Dispensary Opening 
Hours 

Additional 
Pharmacy 
Supplementary 
Hours   

FPQ55 Boots UK Limited   Cestria Health 
Centre, Whitehill 
Way  

Chester-le-
Street 

DH2 3DJ Mon-Fri: 09:00-17:00 Mon-Wed:08:15-
09:00; 17:00-18:15, 
Thu: 08:15-09:00; 
17:00-20:15,  
Fri: 08:15-09:00; 
17:00-18:15  

  Pelton & Fellrose 
Medical Group 

  Lavender Centre, 
Pelton Lane  

Pelton DH2 1HS Mon-Fri: 08:30-18:00 - 

 
FE898 Centrechem Ltd 

 
Pelton Primary 
Care Centre, 
Ouston Lane  

Pelton DH2 1EZ Mon-Fri: 09:00-18:00 Sat: 09:00-12:00 

 
FCQ82 Fletcher Gamble 

Limited 
Pelton Fell 
Pharmacy 

Fell Road Pelton Fell DH2 2NR Mon-Fri: 09:00-12:00; 
13:00-18:00 

None 

 
FQQ83 G Whitfield Limited   38 Gill Crescent 

North 
Fencehouses DH4 6AW Mon-Wed: 09:00-12:30; 

14:00-18:00,  
Thu: 09:00-12:30; 
14:00-17:00,  
Fri: 09:00-12:30; 14:00-
18:00,  
Sat: 09:00-12:30 

None 

 
FL073 Boots UK Limited 

 
The Medical 
Centre, Front 
Street  

Sacriston DH7 6JW Mon-Fri: 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon: 08:00-09:00; 
13:00-14:00; 18:00-
20:00,  
Tue-Fri: 08:00-09:00; 
13:00-14:00  

FMQ48 J Dinning (Lumley) 
Limited 

 
13 Lombard Place Great Lumley DH3 4QP Mon-Fri: 08:30-17:45 None 

 
FW641 Amerikana LLP Vigo 

Pharmacy 
Unit 1D, Drum 
Industrial Estate 

Chester-le- 
Street 

DH2 1SS Mon-Fri : 09:00-13:00; 
14:00-18:00 

Mon-Fri:  
13:00-14:00, 
Sat:09:00-18:00  

 
  

P
age 351



 

92 
 

Appendix 11: Pharmaceutical service maps 
 

Summary of information 
 
Master map of pharmaceutical services for County Durham  
The map of all pharmacies and dispensing doctors in County Durham appears in Appendix 11.1. This has used the information of 
pharmacy and dispensing doctor listings in Appendix 10. It is a statutory requirement to keep this up to date (see Appendix 3).  
 
Locality information 
All other pharmacy service maps are broken down into the 6 PNA localities of: 

 Dales (Appendix 11.2) 

 Easington (Appendix 11.3) 

 Derwentside (Appendix 11.4) 

 Sedgefield (Appendix 11.5) 

 Durham (Appendix 11.6) 

 Chester-le-Street (Appendix 11.7) 
 
For each locality the following maps are presented:  
 
Population 

 Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages).  

 Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s.   

 Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation.  
 
Access  

 Pharmacies open after 6pm (with a 100 hour pharmacy distinction). 

 Pharmacies open at the weekend (with a 100 hour pharmacy distinction). 
Note: This information is based on core opening hours only since additional supplementary opening hours can, with a 3 month 
notice to NHS England, change at any time. Information on core opening hours was obtained from NHS England in April 2017.  
 
  

P
age 352



 

93 
 

Public health pharmacy services  

 Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions. 

 Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions. 
 Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation. 

 Pharmacies offering the Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions.  
Note: This information was based on commissioner service data in April 2017. Provision of the NRT Voucher Scheme is not mapped since this 
is a widespread service.  
 
CCG commissioned services  

 Pharmacies offering the Anticoagulation, Food Thickening, Palliative Care and/or TB Drug Services. 
Note: This information is based on commissioner service data in June and October 2017. Provision of the Minor Ailment Scheme is not mapped 
since this is a widespread service.  
  

P
age 353



 

94 
 

Appendix 11.1: Master map of pharmaceutical services in County Durham 
 

P
age 354



 

95 
 

Appendix 11.2: Dales 
 

The Dales population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages) 

  

P
age 355



 

96 
 

 
The Dales population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s  

 

P
age 356



 

97 
 

 
The Dales population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 357



 

98 
 

Access to pharmacy services in the Dales (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open after 6pm  

  

P
age 358



 

99 
 

Access to pharmacy services in the Dales (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open at the weekend 

  

P
age 359



 

100 
 

 Public health pharmacy services in the Dales 
 
Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions 

  

P
age 360



 

101 
 

Public health pharmacy services in the Dales 
 
Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions 

  

P
age 361



 

102 
 

Public health pharmacy services in the Dales 
 
Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 362



 

103 
 

Public health pharmacy services in the Dales 
 
Pharmacies offering a Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions 

  

P
age 363



 

104 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in the Dales 
 
Pharmacies offering the Food Thickening and/or TB Drug Services 

 

P
age 364



 

105 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in the Dales 
 
Pharmacies offering the Palliative Care and/or Anticoagulation Services 

  

P
age 365



 

106 
 

Appendix 11.3: Easington 
 

Easington population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages) 

  

P
age 366



 

107 
 

Easington population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s  

  

P
age 367



 

108 
 

Easington population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 368



 

109 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Easington (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open after 6pm  

  

P
age 369



 

110 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Easington (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open at the weekend 

  

P
age 370



 

111 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Easington 
 
Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions 

  

P
age 371



 

112 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Easington 
 
Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions 

  

P
age 372



 

113 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Easington 
 
Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 373



 

114 
 

 

Public health pharmacy services in Easington 
 
Pharmacies offering a Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions 

 

P
age 374



 

115 
 

 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in Easington 
 
Pharmacies offering the Food Thickening and/or TB Drug Services 

 

P
age 375



 

116 
 

 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in Easington 
 
Pharmacies offering the Palliative Care and/or Anticoagulant Services 

  

P
age 376



 

117 
 

Appendix 11.4: Derwentside 
 

Derwentside population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages) 

  

P
age 377



 

118 
 

Derwentside population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s  

 

P
age 378



 

119 
 

Derwentside population  
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 379



 

120 
 

 

Access to pharmacy services in Derwentside (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open after 6pm  

  

P
age 380



 

121 
 

 

Access to pharmacy services in Derwentside (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open at the weekend 

  

P
age 381



 

122 
 

Public health pharmacy services Derwentside 
 
Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions 

P
age 382



 

123 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Derwentside 
 
Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions 

  

P
age 383



 

124 
 

 

Public health pharmacy services in Derwentside  
 
Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 384



 

125 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Derwentside 
 
Pharmacies offering a Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions 

  

P
age 385



 

126 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services Derwentside 
 
Pharmacies offering Food Thickening and/or TB Drug Services 

 

P
age 386



 

127 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services Derwentside 
 
Pharmacies offering Palliative Care and Anticoagulant Services 

 

P
age 387



 

128 
 

Appendix 11.5: Sedgefield 
 

Sedgefield population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages) 

  

P
age 388



 

129 
 

Sedgefield population  
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s  

  

P
age 389



 

130 
 

Sedgefield population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation 

 

P
age 390



 

131 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Sedgefield (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open after 6pm  

  

P
age 391



 

132 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Sedgefield (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open at the weekend 

  

P
age 392



 

133 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Sedgefield 
 
Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions 

 

P
age 393



 

134 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Sedgefield  
 
Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions 

  

P
age 394



 

135 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Sedgefield  
 
Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation 

P
age 395



 

136 
 

Public health pharmacy services Sedgefield 
 
Pharmacies offering a Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions 

  

P
age 396



 

137 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in Sedgefield 
 
Pharmacies offering the Food Thickening and/or TB Drug Services 

 

P
age 397



 

138 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in Sedgefield 
 
Pharmacies offering the Palliative Care and Anticoagulant Services 

 

P
age 398



 

139 
 

 

Appendix 11.6: Durham 

Durham population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages) 

  

P
age 399



 

140 
 

Durham population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s  

  

P
age 400



 

141 
 

Durham population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 401



 

142 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Durham (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open after 6pm  

  

P
age 402



 

143 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Durham (based on core opening hours) 
 
Pharmacies open at the weekend 

 

P
age 403



 

144 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Durham 

 
Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions 

 

P
age 404



 

145 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Durham 

Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions 

  

P
age 405



 

146 
 

 

Public health pharmacy services in Durham  
 
Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 406



 

147 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Durham 
 
Pharmacies offering a Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions 

  

P
age 407



 

148 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services Durham 
 
Pharmacies offering the Food Thickening and/or TB Drug Services 

 

P
age 408



 

149 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services Durham 
 
Pharmacies offering the Palliative Care and Anticoagulant Services 

 

P
age 409



 

150 
 

Appendix 11.7: Chester-le-Street 

Chester-le-Street population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density (all ages) 

  

P
age 410



 

151 
 

 

Chester-le-Street population  
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against population density of the over 65’s  

  

P
age 411



 

152 
 

Chester-le-Street population 
 
Location of pharmacies, mapped against deprivation 

 

P
age 412



 

153 
 

Access to pharmacy services in Chester-le-Street (based on core opening hours) 
Note: There are no pharmacies in the Chester-le-Street area with core opening hours after 6pm. 
 
Pharmacies open at the weekend 

  

P
age 413



 

154 
 

 

Public health pharmacy services in Chester-le-Street 
 
Pharmacies offering sexual health services (EOHC and C card schemes), mapped against prevalence of teenage 
conceptions 

  

P
age 414



 

155 
 

Public health services in Chester-le-Street  
 
Pharmacies offering the Alcohol Brief Intervention Service, mapped against alcohol related hospital admissions 

 

P
age 415



 

156 
 

Public health services in Chester-le-Street  
 
Pharmacies offering the Supervised Consumption Service, mapped against deprivation 

  

P
age 416



 

157 
 

Public health pharmacy services in Chester-le-Street  
 
Pharmacies offering a Level 2 Stop Smoking Service, mapped against COPD admissions 

  

P
age 417



 

158 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in Chester-le-Street  
 
Pharmacies offering the Food Thickening and/or TB Drug Services 

 
  

P
age 418



 

159 
 

CCG pharmacy commissioned services in Chester-le-Street  
 
Pharmacies offering the Palliative Care and Anticoagulant Services 

 

P
age 419



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Adults, Wellbeing and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

19 January 2018

Quarter Two 2017/18 
Performance Management Report 

Report of Corporate Management Team
Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships
Councillor Simon Henig, Leader of the Council

Purpose of the Report
1 To present progress against the council’s corporate performance framework 

for the Altogether Healthier priority theme for the second quarter of the 
2017/18 financial year.  

Background
2 This year, the Sustainable Community Strategy, setting out the vision for the 

county, and supporting Council Plan and service plans are due for review. 
With a strong commitment to progressing the council’s transformation 
programme, driven by a focus on delivering the best possible outcomes within 
available resources, Cabinet agreed that an outcome based approach to 
planning is adopted. 2017/18 is a transition year as we review our vision, 
planning framework and associated performance management arrangements 
to ensure that they operate efficiently and are fit for purpose in the current 
climate. 

Performance Reporting Arrangements for 2017/18

Key Performance Questions 

3 Our performance reporting arrangements have been developed around a 
series of key performance questions aligned to the Altogether framework of 
six priority themes, and are designed to facilitate greater scrutiny of 
performance. The set of performance measures provides an indication to help 
answer these questions for those with corporate governance responsibilities. 
Development of performance reporting will continue throughout the year in 
particular to enhance reporting of qualitative aspects of performance as 
highlighted by the 2016 Ofsted inspection.

4 There are other areas of performance that are measured through more 
detailed monitoring across service groupings and if performance issues arise, 
these will be escalated for consideration by including them in the corporate 
report on an exception basis. 

Page 421

Agenda Item 11



5 The performance indicators are still reported against two indicator types which 
comprise of:
(a) Key target indicators – targets are set for indicators where 

improvements can be measured regularly and where improvement can 
be actively influenced by the council and its partners; and

(b) Key tracker indicators – performance is tracked but no targets are set 
for indicators which are long-term and/or which the council and its 
partners only partially influence.  

6 This report sets out our key performance messages from data released this 
quarter and a visual summary for the Altogether Healthier priority theme that 
presents key data messages from the new performance framework showing 
the latest position in trends and how we compare with others. 

7 A comprehensive table of all performance data is presented in Appendix 3.

8 An explanation of symbols used and the groups we use to compare ourselves 
is in Appendix 2.

9 To support the complete indicator set, a guide is available which provides full 
details of indicator definitions and data sources for the 2017/18 corporate 
indicator set. This is available to view either internally from the intranet or can 
be requested from the Corporate Planning and Performance Team at 
performance@durham.gov.uk.

Key Performance Messages from Data Released this Quarter

10 Positive progress has been made across health measures, including 671 
smoking quitters between April and June 2017, more than the same period 
last year and exceeding the contracted target. The use of e-cigarettes has 
increased as they become more widely available. Smokers who have tried 
other methods of quitting without success have been encouraged to try e-
cigarettes to stop smoking in order to reduce smoking related disease, death 
and health inequalities.1  Although Durham do not currently offer e-cigarettes 
as part of the stop smoking service, anyone who wants to stop smoking and is 
using an e-cigarette can access the service and be offered behavioural 
support. MPs are to carry out an inquiry into e-cigarettes amid concerns there 
are significant gaps in what is known about them and how they are regulated. 
A review is also to be carried out of their effectiveness as a stop-smoking tool 
and the impact of their growing use on health. Previous evidence suggests 
that e-cigarettes are not undermining the long-term decline in cigarette 
smoking among adults and youths, and may in fact be contributing to it. An 
expert review of the evidence in 2015 by Public Health England concluded 
that e-cigarettes are around 95% safer than smoked tobacco and they can 

1 E-cigarettes: an evidence update: Public Health England report 2015

Page 422

mailto:performance@durham.gov.uk


help smokers to quit.2  The number of children and young people regularly 
using electronic cigarettes remains very low3 , nationally and in County 
Durham.4    

11 Adult social care support shows our reablement and rehabilitation service is 
improving with a higher percentage of older people still at home three months 
after discharge from hospital.  More people have achieved their desired 
outcomes from the adult safeguarding process and fewer adults 65+ have 
been admitted on a permanent basis to residential or nursing care. 

12 Three issues to highlight this quarter are:
a. breastfeeding prevalence;
b. people receiving an assessment or review every 12 months;
c. mothers smoking at time of delivery.

13 An ongoing performance challenge is breastfeeding prevalence. Although 
performance has improved slightly this quarter, further improvement is still 
required. The multi-agency breastfeeding action plan for County Durham 
2017-2019 presents a holistic approach that includes maternity, public health 
and local authority children’s services. Key partners are being asked to make 
progress towards their buildings being accredited as breastfeeding friendly 
venues and work is ongoing to develop a communications plan to promote 
County Durham as a breastfeeding friendly county, including the promotion of 
the new Baby Buddy app.

14 A further ongoing performance challenge is adults in receipt of social care 
services receiving an assessment or review every 12 months. Performance 
remains at 87% and this needs further improvement. Delays to reviews are 
being looked at in detail to better understand the issues and identify possible 
solutions for further improvement.

15 An ongoing performance issue is the rate of mothers smoking at time of 
delivery, which has increased and is significantly higher than national and 
regional rates. Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) has the highest rate in the North East and is 
second highest of all CCGs in England. A 15-month incentive scheme began 
in April 2017 in DDES, funded by NHS England, with shopping vouchers 
offered to women who quit smoking whilst pregnant. The scheme is being 
monitored quarterly and early indications for numbers quitting are positive, 
with 59 pregnant women setting a quit date in quarter one 2017/18, of which 
40 (68%) women quit. This is an improvement from the same period last year 
(61%) and the highest recorded.

2 Siegel M. Metals in ECVapor are below USP Standards for Metals in Inhalation Medications. 2013 / 
Burstyn I. Peering through the mist: systematic review of what the chemistry of contaminants in 
electronic cigarettes tells us about health risks. BMC Public Health 2014; 14(1) / Cahn Z, Siegel M. 
Electronic cigarettes as a harm reduction strategy for tobacco control: a step forward or a repeat of 
past mistakes? J Public Health Policy 2011; 32(1):16–31.
3 Statement on electronic cigarettes – Fresh 210916  -ASH Fact Sheet: Use of electronic cigarettes 
among adults in Great Britain; ASH Fact Sheet: Use of electronic cigarettes among children in Great 
Britain
4 County Durham Student Voice Survey 2017

Page 423



16 County Durham continues to have one of the lowest rates of delayed transfers 
of care (DTOC) both regionally and nationally. As advised last quarter, the 
new Better Care Fund guidance introduced a number of new proposals 
including a target to achieve a 3.5% reduction. It was expected that the new 
national DTOC metrics would be proportionate to the extent of the DTOC 
problem in each Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) area but this was not the 
case. Those areas, including County Durham, with a below average rate of 
DTOCs, have all been set targets for a 3.5% reduction in DTOC rate even 
though the starting position was significantly below the national average. 
Therefore, Durham HWB now finds itself in a difficult position in being unable 
to meet the DTOC reductions prescribed. Despite re-submitting a revised 
DTOC trajectory, which provided a realistic profiling reflecting Durham HWB’s 
historically good performance, regrettably this was not accepted by the Better 
Care Fund National Team. As highlighted last quarter, there will also be a 
change in the way the data are reported for 2017/18 therefore no data are 
currently available for quarter two.

17 In terms of long term trends of County Durham’s performance compared to 
regional, in relation to the health of our residents, data shows that we are 
worse than our regional counterparts for suicide rates, mothers smoking at 
time of delivery, estimated smoking prevalence and female life expectancy 
(although only marginally) and have been for a number of years. Only male 
life expectancy has continued to be better than regional, with a couple of 
periods where performance was equal.  Some areas are improving or 
remaining static such as estimated smoking prevalence and male life 
expectancy whilst others are deteriorating further such as suicide rates. With 
regard to adult social care, we have performed better than regional for a 
number of years for Adults aged 65+ admitted on a permanent basis to 
residential or nursing care, delayed transfers of care, and proportion of older 
people who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital.

18 We have statistically significantly higher rates of death by suicide than 
England and have done so for some time although the recently released data 
for 2014-16 shows a reduction from 15.7/100,000 to 12.6/100,000. This is the 
lowest rate experienced by County Durham since 2007-09. You’ll note from 
the table attached that, relatively speaking, the numbers are quite low and 
thus over a three year period a rise (or fall as we’ve just seen) of a 
comparatively small number results in a relatively large rate change. So a 
reduction of some 41 suicide deaths resulted in a rate reduction of 
3.1/100,000.

Page 424



19 What is also interesting is the new Durham position within the region, as for 
the last few years we have been second only to Middlesbrough in terms of 
high suicide rates. We’re now 5th out of 11. Again, these are cases confirmed 
as suicide by the coroner. We know that 2017 has seen a large number of 
potential deaths by suicide investigated by the Coroner’s Office, and many of 
these will be pending a coroner’s verdict so the picture could change back on 
release of 2017 data.

20 Looking at a sub-county analysis to try and ascertain if there are any patterns, 
we have used clinical commissioning group (CCG) localities as the most 
appropriate sub-county geography to report due to small numbers. Using 
directly age standardised rates per 100,000 population for deaths by suicide 
at CCG locality level at 95% confidence intervals shows that Durham has the 
highest rate which is statistically, significantly higher than Sedgefield but not 
significantly different to any other locality within the county.

Page 425



Directly age standardised suicide mortality rates per 100,000 with 95% confidence 
intervals, 2014-16 pooled, County Durham and CCG locality. Source: Primary Care 
Mortality Database and DCC PHI.

21 Healthy life expectancy at birth in County Durham (2013-15) remains 
statistically significantly lower than England for both men and women. The 
difference between men and women is not significant.

22 For County Durham, the years of healthy life expectancy have reduced over 
time (between 2009/11 and 2013/15). Healthy life expectancy locally has seen 
little a greater reduction for females than males (between 2009/11 and 
2013/15). For men the reduction has been 1.5 years but it has fallen for 
women by 3.1 years.

23 The relative gap in healthy life expectancy at birth between County Durham 
and England is 8.5% for men and 11.1% for women.  This gap has not closed 
over time. For men there has been a slight increase over the time period; from 
5.6% to 8.5%. For women this gap has grown more, from 6.2% to 11.1%. 

Comparing healthy life expectancy and absolute and relative inequality gaps, male and female, 
County Durham and England, 2000-02 and 2013-15. Source: PHOF, PHE

Healthy life expectancy (HLE) (years) Men Women
HLE at birth in County Durham 2013-15 58.0 57.0
HLE at birth in England 2013-15 63.4 64.1
Absolute gap in HLE between County 
Durham and England (years)

2013-15 5.4 7.1

Relative gap (%) 2013-15 8.5 11.1
HLE at birth in County Durham 2009-11 59.5 60.1
HLE at birth in England 2009-11 63.0 64.1
Absolute gap in HLE between County 
Durham and England (years)

2009-11 3.5 4

Relative gap (%) 2009-11 5.6 6.2

CCG locality DASR n
Sedgefield 8.0 20
Easington 9.1 23
Chester-le-Street 11.0 16
Durham Dales 11.6 28
Derwentside 15.4 37
Durham 17.5 47
County Durham 12.3 171

Page 426



24 The Council and partners are engaged in a number of activities to reduce 
health inequalities and increase healthy life expectancy. These include:

 Reducing health inequalities and increasing healthy life expectancy is a 
priority for the Council and the Health and Wellbeing Board and is a 
central them to all priorities

 Visualisations of the inequalities across the county illustrated as bus 
routes have been developed and have been shared with all Area Action 
Partnerships

 We are focussed on key priorities  including reducing smoking prevalence, 
obesity, heart disease and cancer and ensuring programmes are targeted 
towards those with significant need

 We have held a LGA Event Prevention Matters for Elected Members to 
outline the key drivers of life expectancy and healthy life expectancy and 
what can be done to close the gap

 We have had significant improvements in some areas of work including 
reducing smoking prevalence and heart disease but are not complacent 
and will continue to strive to improve outcomes for people locally.

 Health and social care integration is seeking to improve the quality of life 
for people locally which will also increase healthy life expectancy

25 Key performance messages reported to other overview scrutiny committees 
which may be of interest to this committee are as follows:

26 In relation to child health, under 18 conceptions continue to reduce; they are 
now at the lowest level since recording began in 1998 but remain significantly 
higher than in England. 

27 Although successful completions of those in drug and alcohol treatment are 
still below target and national averages, significant work has been undertaken 
in relation to performance of these completions and an improving direction of 
travel has been evident. (see appendix 4, charts 1 to 3). A procurement 
exercise to appoint a new drug and alcohol treatment provider is ongoing with 
the new service to be launched from February 2018. 

28 It was reported in Quarter One that the number of drug misuse deaths 
registered, has increased. This has been a rising trend nationally over the last 
20 years with significant increases being experienced in the last three years. 
This has been a result of the deaths of a number of older generation heroin 
users with complex needs and in poor health ad also the increase in potency 
of manufactured psychoactive substances.

29 Whilst County Durham have the highest numbers of deaths across the NE, 
but actually when considering the standard mortality rate we are on a par with 
the NE average. 

Page 427



Drug Related Deaths Registered by Local Authority (2013-15). Source: National Drug Treatment 
Monitoring System (NDTMS), PHE

NE area Numbers Standard mortality rate
County Durham 93 6.3
Darlington 13 4.1
Hartlepool 25 9.5
Middlesbrough 39 9.9
Northumberland 39 4.6
Redcar and Cleveland 19 5.2
Stockton 36 6.5
Gateshead 37 6.1
Newcastle 63 7.3
North Tyneside 33 5.5
South Tyneside 29 6.9
Sunderland 47 5.9

NE Total 473 6.3
England 6232 3.9

30 Standard practice to prevent substance misuse related deaths includes work 
to:

 Promote and deliver overdose prevention awareness training to clients and 
their families accessing services

 Publicise through ‘drug alerts’ warnings on substances entering the County 
Durham networks. This is done through needle exchange services and 
pharmacies.

 Liaison between police and public health on the testing of drug seizures 
looking for changes in drug prevalence 

 Naloxone (antidote to opiates) is currently given to clients, their families and 
those workers residing in hostels to provide immediate response to an 
overdose.

 An enhanced Naloxone scheme will be implemented through the new Drug 
and Alcohol Recovery service as part of the new contract commencing in 
February 2018.

 There is work currently being undertaken in public health with GP’s to provide 
guidance for the review of prescription medication given to clients to help 
reduce accessibility to other opiate derivatives.

Risk Management

31 Effective risk management is a vital component of the council’s agenda.  The 
council’s risk management process sits alongside our change programme and 
is incorporated into all significant change and improvement projects.

32 There are no key risks in delivering the objectives of the Altogether Healthier 
theme.

Page 428



Key Data Messages by Altogether Theme
33 The next section provides a one-page summary of key data messages for the 

Altogether Healthier priority theme. The format5 of the Altogether theme 
provides a snap shot overview aimed to ensure that key performance 
messages are easy to identify. The Altogether theme is supplemented by 
information and data relating to the complete indicator set, provided at 
Appendix 3.  

5 Images designed by Freepik from Flaticon

Page 429



P
age 430



Recommendations and reasons
34 That the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

receive the report and consider any performance issues arising there with. 

Contact: Jenny Haworth 
        Tel: 03000 268071     

Appendix 1: Implications
Appendix 2: Report Key
Appendix 3: Summary of key performance indicators

Page 431



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance - Latest performance information is being used to inform corporate, service 
and financial planning.

Staffing - Performance against a number of relevant corporate health Performance 
Indicators (PIs) has been included to monitor staffing issues.

Risk - Reporting of significant risks and their interaction with performance is integrated 
into the quarterly monitoring report.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - Corporate health PIs are 
monitored as part of the performance monitoring process. 

Accommodation - Not applicable

Crime and Disorder - A number of PIs and key actions relating to crime and disorder 
are continually monitored in partnership with Durham Constabulary.

Human Rights - Not applicable

Consultation - Not applicable

Procurement - Not applicable

Disability Issues - Employees with a disability are monitored as part of the 
performance monitoring process. 

Legal Implications - Not applicable

Page 432



Appendix 2: Report key  

Performance Indicators:

Direction of travel/benchmarking Performance against target 

 Performance is good or better than comparable benchmark
 Performance is poor or worse than comparable benchmark
↔ Performance has remained static or is in line with comparable benchmark

National Benchmarking
We compare our performance to all English authorities. The number of authorities 
varies according to the performance indicator and functions of councils, for example 
educational attainment is compared to county and unitary councils however waste 
disposal is compared to district and unitary councils.

North East Benchmarking
The North East figure is the average performance from the authorities within the 
North East region, i.e. County Durham, Darlington, Gateshead, Hartlepool, 
Middlesbrough, Newcastle upon Tyne, North Tyneside, Northumberland, Redcar and 
Cleveland, Stockton-On-Tees, South Tyneside, Sunderland, The number of 
authorities also varies according to the performance indicator and functions of 
councils.

Nearest Neighbour Benchmarking:
The nearest neighbour model was developed by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), one of the professional accountancy bodies in 
the UK. CIPFA has produced a list of 15 local authorities which Durham is 
statistically close to when you look at a number of characteristics. The 15 authorities 
that are in the nearest statistical neighbours group for Durham using the CIPFA 
model are: Barnsley, Wakefield, Doncaster, Rotherham, Wigan, Kirklees, St Helens, 
Calderdale, Dudley, Northumberland, Tameside, Sheffield, Gateshead, Stockton-On-
Tees and Stoke-on-Trent.

We also use other neighbour groups to compare our performance.  More detail of 
these can be requested from the Corporate Planning and Performance Team at 
performance@durham.gov.uk. 

Same or better than comparable 
period/comparator group GREEN Meeting/Exceeding target

Worse than comparable period / 
comparator group (within 2% 
tolerance)

AMBER
Getting there - performance 
approaching target (within 
2%)

Worse than comparable period / 
comparator group (greater than 
2%)

RED
Performance >2% behind 
target

Page 433

mailto:performance@durham.gov.uk


Appendix 3: Summary of Key Performance Indicators 

Table 1: Key Target and Tracker Indicators 
  

Ref PI ref Description Latest 
data

Period 
covered

Period 
target

Data 12 
months 
earlier

Performance 
compared to 
12 months 

earlier

Performance 
compared to 

National figure 

Performance 
compared to *North 

East or
**Nearest statistical 

neighbour figure

Period 
covered

Altogether Healthier     
1. Are our services improving the health of our residents?

62 AHS 
12

Percentage of 
mothers smoking at 
time of delivery 

19.6
Apr - 
Jun 

2017
15.9 16.7 RED 10.8 RED 16.8* RED

Apr - 
Jun 

2017

63 AHS 
13

Four week smoking 
quitters per 100,000 
smoking population

889
Apr - 
Jun 

2017
764 682 GREEN No Data NA No Data NA

No 
Period 

Specifie
d

64 AHS7 Male life expectancy 
at birth (years) [2] 78.1 2013-

2015
Tracke

r 78.0 GREEN 79.5 AMBER 77.9* GREEN 2013-
2015

65 AHS8
Female life 
expectancy at birth 
(years) [2]

81.2 2013-
2015

Tracke
r 81.3 AMBER 83.1 RED 81.6* AMBER 2013-

2015

66 AHS9
Healthy life 
expectancy at birth 
[Female]

57 2013 -
2015

Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 64.1 RED 60.1* RED 2013-

2015

67 AHS 
10

Healthy life 
expectancy at birth 
[Male]

58 2013 - 
2015

Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 63.4 RED 59.6* RED 2013-

2015

P
age 434



Ref PI ref Description Latest 
data

Period 
covered

Period 
target

Data 12 
months 
earlier

Performance 
compared to 
12 months 

earlier

Performance 
compared to 

National figure 

Performance 
compared to *North 

East or
**Nearest statistical 

neighbour figure

Period 
covered

68 AHS 
14

Excess weight in 
adults (Proportion of 
adults classified as  
overweight or 
obese)

67.6 2013 - 
2015

Tracke
r 69 GREEN 64.8 RED 68.6* GREEN 2013-

2015

69 AHS 
11

Suicide rate (deaths 
from suicide and 
injury of 
undetermined intent) 
per 100,000 
population 

15.7 2013 - 
2015

Tracke
r 14.8 RED 10.1 RED 12.4* RED 2013 - 

2015

70 AHS 
38

Prevalence of 
breastfeeding at 6-8 
weeks from birth

29.9
Jul - 
Sep 
2017

Tracke
r 26.1 GREEN 44.3

Not 
comparab

le
30.6*

Not 
compar

able

Jan - 
Mar 
2017

71 AHS 
40

Estimated smoking 
prevalence of 
persons aged 18 
and over

17.9 2016 Tracke
r 19.0 GREEN 15.5 RED 17.2* RED 2016

72 AHS 
41

Self-reported 
wellbeing - people 
with a low 
happiness score

11.5 2015/16 Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 8.8 RED 10.2* RED 2015/16

73 NS21
Participation in Sport 
and Physical 
Activity: active

62.2 2015/16 Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 65.4 RED No Data NA 2015/16

74 NS22 Participation in Sport 
and Physical 

25.4 2015/16 Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 22 RED No Data NA 2015/16P

age 435



Ref PI ref Description Latest 
data

Period 
covered

Period 
target

Data 12 
months 
earlier

Performance 
compared to 
12 months 

earlier

Performance 
compared to 

National figure 

Performance 
compared to *North 

East or
**Nearest statistical 

neighbour figure

Period 
covered

Activity: inactive

2. Are people needing adult social care supported to live safe, healthy and independent lives?

75 AHS 
18

Adults aged 65+ per 
100,000 population 
admitted on a 
permanent basis in 
the year to 
residential or 
nursing care

322.5
Apr - 
Sep 
2017

TBC 367.8 GREEN 628.2 Not 
comparable 843*

Not 
compar

able
2015/16

76 AHS 
20

Proportion of older 
people who were 
still at home 91 days 
after discharge from 
hospital into 
reablement/ 
rehabilitation 
services

88.9
Jan - 
Jun 

2017
TBC 86.0 GREEN 82.7 Not 

comparable 85.5*
Not 

compar
able

2015/16

77 AHS 
16

Percentage of 
individuals who 
achieved their 
desired outcomes 
from the adult 
safeguarding 
process 

96.3
Apr - 
Sep 
2017

Tracke
r 94.9 GREEN No Data NA No Data NA

No 
Period 

Specifie
d

P
age 436



Ref PI ref Description Latest 
data

Period 
covered

Period 
target

Data 12 
months 
earlier

Performance 
compared to 
12 months 

earlier

Performance 
compared to 

National figure 

Performance 
compared to *North 

East or
**Nearest statistical 

neighbour figure

Period 
covered

78 AH17

Percentage of 
service users 
receiving an 
Assessment or 
Review within the 
last 12 months

87.3

Oct 
2016 - 
Sep 
2017

Tracke
r 84.6 GREEN No Data NA No Data NA

No 
Period 

Specifie
d

79 AHS 
21

Overall satisfaction 
of people who use 
services with their 
care and support

63.6 2016/17 Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 64.4 Not 

comparable 67.2*
Not 

compar
able

2015/16

80 AH22

Overall satisfaction 
of carers with the 
support and services 
they receive

43.3 2016/17 Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA 41.2 Not 

comparable 49.3*
Not 

compar
able

2014/15

81 AHS 
23

The proportion of 
adult social care 
service users who 
report they have 
enough choice over 
the care and support 
services they 
receive

73.1 2016/17 Tracke
r

New 
indicator NA No Data NA No Data NA

No 
Period 

Specifie
d

P
age 437



Table 2: Other additional relevant indicators 

Ref PI ref Description Latest 
data

Period 
covered

Period 
target

Data 12 
months 
earlier

Performance 
compared to 
12 months 

earlier

Performance 
compared to 

National figure

Performance 
compared to *North 

East or
**Nearest statistical 

neighbour figure

Period 
covered

Altogether Better for Children and Young People

1. Are children, young people and families in receipt of universal services appropriately supported? 

32 AHS
1

Under 18 conception 
rate per 1,000 girls 
aged 15 to 17

24.3

Jul 
2015 - 

Jun 
2016

Tracker 26.4 GREEN 19.8 RED 26.3* GREEN Jul 2015 - 
Jun 2016

33 AHS
2

Proportion of five 
year old children free 
from dental decay

64.9 2014/1
5 Tracker

New 
indicato

r
NA 75.2 RED 72* RED

2014/15

34 AHS
3

Alcohol specific 
hospital admissions 
for under 18's (rate 
per 100,000)

67.5

2013/1
4 - 

2015/1
6

Tracker 72.8 GREEN 37.4 RED 66.9* AMBER

2013/14 - 
2015/16

35 AHS
4

Young people aged 
10-24 admitted to 
hospital as a result 
of self-harm

489.4

2011/1
2 - 

2013/1
4

Tracker 504.8 GREEN 367.3 RED 532.2* GREEN

England  
2011/12-  
2013/14 

NE - 
2010/11- 
2012/13

36 AHS
5

Percentage of 
children aged 4 to 5  
years classified as 
overweight or obese 

24.3 2015/1
6 ac yr Tracker 23.0 RED 22.1 RED 24.6* GREEN

2015/16 
ac yr

P
age 438



Ref PI ref Description Latest 
data

Period 
covered

Period 
target

Data 12 
months 
earlier

Performance 
compared to 
12 months 

earlier

Performance 
compared to 

National figure

Performance 
compared to *North 

East or
**Nearest statistical 

neighbour figure

Period 
covered

37 ASH
6

Percentage of 
children aged 10 to 
11 years classified 
as overweight or 
obese  

37 2015/1
6 ac yr Tracker 36.6 AMBER 34.2 RED 37* GREEN

2015/16 
ac yr

Altogether Safer
3. How well do we reduce misuse of drugs and alcohol?

89 AHS
31

Percentage of 
successful 
completions of those 
in alcohol treatment  

29.3

Mar 
2016 - 

Feb 
2017 

with rep 
to Aug 
2017

38.7 24.5 GREEN 38.7 RED 33.2* RED

Mar 2016 
- Feb 

2017 with 
rep to Aug 

2017

90 AHS
32

Percentage of 
successful 
completions of those 
in drug treatment - 
opiates 

6.5

Mar 
2016 - 

Feb 
2017 

with rep 
to Aug 
2017

8.3 5.7 GREEN 6.7 RED 5.4* GREEN

Mar 2016 
- Feb 

2017 with 
rep to Aug 

2017

91 AHS
33

Percentage of 
successful 
completions of those 
in drug treatment - 
non-opiates  

30.2

Mar 
2016 - 

Feb 
2017 

with rep 
to Aug 
2017

46.3 22.9 GREEN 37.1 RED 29.2* GREEN

Mar 2016 
- Feb 

2017 with 
rep to Aug 

2017

[2] Data 12 months earlier amended/refreshed

P
age 439



Appendix 4:  Volume Measures

Chart 1:Successful completions: Alcohol  Chart 2: Successful completions: Opiates 

Chart 3: Successful completions: Non Opiates    

P
age 440



P
age 441



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Adult Wellbeing and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

19 January 2018

Quarter 2: Forecast of Revenue and 
Capital Outturn 2017/18

Report of Paul Darby, Head of Finance and Transactional Services

Purpose of the Report

1. To provide the committee with details of the forecast outturn budget 
position for the Adult and Health Services (AHS) service grouping, 
highlighting major variances in comparison with the budget for the year, 
based on the position to the end of September 2017 as reported to 
Cabinet in November 2017.

Background

2. County Council approved the Revenue and Capital budgets for 
2017/18 at its meeting on 22 February 2017. These budgets have 
subsequently been revised to take account of transfers to and from 
reserves, grant additions/reductions, budget transfers between service 
groupings and budget reprofiling between years.  This report covers the 
financial position for:

 AHS  Revenue Budget - £132.347 million (original £151.581 
million)

 AHS Capital Programme – £0.320 million (original £0.318 
million)

3. The original AHS revenue budget has been revised to incorporate a 
number of budget adjustments as summarised in the table below:

Reason For Adjustment £’000
  
Original Budget 151,581
Transfer From Contingency  - Additional Inflation 313
Transfer To Contingency  - Winterbourne (272)
Transfers to other services (7,620)
Use of (+)/contribution to AHS reserves (-) (11,937)
Use of (+)/contribution to Corporate reserves (ERVR) (-) 282
Revised Budget 132,347

Page 443

Agenda Item 12



2

4. The use of / contribution to AHS reserves consists of:

Reserve £’000
AWH - Social Care Reserve (12,930)
Public Health Reserve 932
EHCP - Tobacco Control Reserve 61
Total (11,937)

5. The summary financial statements contained in the report cover the 
financial year 2017/18 and show: -

 The approved annual budget;
 The actual income and expenditure as recorded in the Council’s 

financial management system;
 The variance between the annual budget and the forecast outturn;
 For the AHS revenue budget, adjustments for items outside of the cash 

limit to take into account such items as redundancies met from the 
strategic reserve, capital charges not controlled by services and use of 
/ or contributions to earmarked reserves.

Revenue Outturn

6. The AHS service is reporting a cash limit underspend of £2.634 million 
against a revised budget of £132.347 million which represents a 2.0% 
underspend. This compares with the forecast cash limit underspend at 
June of £2.599 million.

7. The tables below show the revised annual budget, actual expenditure 
to 30 September 2017 and the updated forecast of outturn to the year 
end, including the variance forecast at year end. The first table is 
analysed by Subjective Analysis (i.e. type of expense) and the second 
is by Head of Service.

Subjective Analysis (Type of Expenditure)

 
 Revised 
Annual 
Budget 

 YTD 
Actual 

 Forecast 
Outturn 

 
Variance 

 Items 
Outside 

Cash 
Limit 

 Cash 
Limit 

Variance 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Employees 47,403 22,054 44,983 (2,420) 0 (2,420)
Premises 2,267 266 2,526 259 0 259
Transport 3,004 948 2,732 (272) 0 (272)
Supplies & Services 4,677 1,590 4,291 (386) 0 (386)
Third Party Payments 225,826 97,568 228,373 2,547 0 2,547
Transfer Payments 11,380 4,413 11,014 (366) 0 (366)
Central Support & Capital 28,283 19,979 28,639 356 0 356
Income (190,493) (87,957) (192,845) (2,352) 0 (2,352)

Total 132,347 58,861 129,713 (2,634) 0 (2,634)

Page 444



3

Analysis by Head of Service Area

 
 Revised 
Annual 
Budget 

 YTD 
Actual 

 Forecast 
Outturn 

 
Variance 

 Items 
Outside 

Cash 
Limit 

 Cash 
Limit 

Variance 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Central/Other 7,498 (746) 7,311 (187) 0 (187)

Commissioning (5,671) (5,060) (6,031) (360) 0 (360)
Environment, Health & 
Consumer Protection 4,941 1,928 4,666 (275) 0 (275)

Head of Adults 123,161 53,650 121,349 (1,812) 0 (1,812)
Public Health 2,418 9,089 2,418 0 0 0

Total 132,347 58,861 129,713 (2,634) 0 (2,634)

8. The table below provides a brief commentary of the forecast cash limit 
variances against the revised budget, analysed by Head of Service. 
The table identifies variances in the core budget only and excludes 
items outside of the cash limit (e.g. central repairs and maintenance) 
and technical accounting adjustments (e.g. capital charges): 

 Service Area Description
Cash limit 
Variance 

£000

Head of Adults

Ops Manager LD 
/MH / Substance 
Misuse

£405,000 under budget on employees, mainly due to effective vacancy 
management.
£1.152 million net over budget on care provision
£201,000 over budget in respect of premises/transport/supplies and services.

948

Safeguarding Adults 
and Pract.Dev. £45,000 under budget due to effective management of vacancies. (45)

Ops Manager 
OP/PDSI Services

£158,000 under budget due to effective management of vacancies.
£0.933 million net under budget on direct care-related activity.
£0.514 million under budget in respect of premises/transport/supplies and 
services/other costs.

(1,605)

Ops Manager 
Provider Services

£1.081 million under budget on employees in respect of early achievement of 
future MTFP savings.
£29,000 under budget on non-staff costs in respect of early achievement of 
future MTFP savings.

(1,110)

  (1,812)

Central/Other

Central/ Other 

£145,000 under budget on employee-related costs, mainly due to effective 
vacancy management.
£42,000 additional income mainly in respect of salary recharges. (187)

  (187)

Page 445



4

 Service Area Description
Cash limit 
Variance 

£000

Commissioning 

Commissioning 
£302,000 under budget on employees in respect of early achievement of future 
MTFP savings.
£58,000 under budget on non-staff costs/income.

(360)

  (360)

Environmental, Health & Consumer Protection

Head of Env Health 
and Consumer 
Protection

£78,000 over budget on employee budgets, mainly as a result of non-
achievement of turnover efficiency targets.
£8,000 over budget on non-staff costs.
£11,000 over achievement of income.

75

Environment 
Protection/Other

£70,000 over budget on employee budgets mainly as a result of non-
achievement of turnover efficiency targets.
£6,000 over budget on non-staff costs.
£55,000 over achievement of income.

21

Consumer Protection

£197,000 under budget on employees in respect of future MTFP savings.
£4,000 under budget on premises costs.
£19,000 under budget on other non-staff costs.
£7,000 additional income received.

(227)

Health Protection

£89,000 under budget on employee budgets, mainly due to effective vacancy 
management.
£39,000 under budget on non-staff costs, partly to achieve future MTFP 
savings.
£16,000 over achievement of income.

(144)

  (275)
Public Health  
Cancer Vulnerable 
Groups and Sexual 
Health and Domestic 
Violence

Sexual Health budget extended until December. New contract to start January 
Government grant offer for Violence Against Women & Girls of £300,000K over 
3 years £70K in 17/18.

0

Drugs and Alcohol 
Health Checks and 
Smoking Cessation

Forecast overspend in supervised consumption. 48

Public Health CVP 
Services Oral Health 
Obesity and Physical 
Activity

£15,000 reserves used for PHD student. Youth Offending Service (YOS) nurse 
to be funded from YOS and teenage pregnancy budget (12,000 advance 
funding from AHS).

(12)

Public Health Grant 
and Reserves

A number of contract extensions reliant on further reserve funding – Drugs & 
Alcohol contract further £137,000. Wellbeing and associated contracts 
£244,000. Sexual Health £12,000, Volunteer drivers £25,000.  £180,000 
reserves used to settle disputed invoices with County Durham & Darlington 
Foundation Trust. Offset by contribution from underspend in other areas mainly 
in Public Health team staff costs.

339

Public Team Current forecast underspend primarily related to income from secondments 
and vacancies in the team - there may be potential backfill requirements. (340)

Social 
Detriments/wellbeing 
and Adult Mental 
Health

Contracts extended for Wellbeing and Community Health Trainers until March 
2018 £244,000 and the Patient Transport schemes until June 2017(£25,000) - 
all funded from reserves. The suicide prevention - Crees grant is expected to 
overspend by £45,000 but this will be offset by the end of the Living Mindfully 
contract (£79,000).

(35)

  -
AHS Total  (2,634)

Page 446



5

9. A new Improved Better Care Fund Reserve (iBCF) has been created 
this quarter. This reflects the £13 million of iBCF funding which was 
received after the budget was set for 2017/18. On 18 October 2017 
Cabinet considered a report setting out plans for utilising this funding. 
The creation of this reserve will ensure that the funding received is 
earmarked for the purposes outlined in the grant conditions and in 
accordance with the spending plans agreed by Cabinet. 

10. In summary, the service grouping is on track to maintain spending 
within its cash limit. It should also be noted that the forecast outturn 
position incorporates the MTFP savings built into the 2017/18 budgets, 
which for AHS in total initially amounted to £6.353 million.

Capital Programme

11. The AHS capital programme comprises four schemes, LD Provider 
Services, Drugs Commissioning, Drug and Alcohol Premises Upgrade 
and Public Health, and the capital budget currently totals £320,000. 

12. Summary financial performance to the end of September is shown 
below.

AHS Actual 
Expenditure
30/09/2017

Current 
2017-18 
Budget

(Under) / 
Over 

Spending
 £000 £000 £000
LD Provider Services 17 17 0
Public Health – Drugs Commissioning 
DACT - 32 (32)

Public Health – Drug & Alcohol Premises - 200 (200)
Public Health - 77 71 6
 94 320 (226)

13. Officers continue to carefully monitor capital expenditure on a monthly 
basis.  £94,000 has been incurred to date.  This is 29% of the total 
estimated spend in the year.  At year end the actual outturn 
performance will be compared against the revised budgets and service 
and project managers will need to account for any budget variance.

Recommendations:

14. It is recommended that Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Members note the financial forecasts included in this report, 
which are summarised in the Quarter2 forecast of outturn report to 
Cabinet in November 2017.

Contact:   Andrew Gilmore – Finance Manager            Tel:  03000 263 497

Page 447



6

Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance

Financial implications are detailed throughout the report which provides an 
analysis of the revenue and capital projected outturn position. 

Staffing

There are no implications associated with this report. Any over or under 
spending against the employee budgets are disclosed within the report.

Risk
The management of risk is intrinsic to good budgetary control. This report 
forms an important part of the governance arrangements within AHS. Through 
routine / regular monitoring of budgets and continual re-forecasting to year 
end the service grouping can ensure that it manages its finances within the 
cash envelope allocated to it.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
There are no implications associated with this report.  

Accommodation
There are no implications associated with this report.  

Crime and Disorder
There are no implications associated with this report.  

Human Rights
There are no implications associated with this report.  

Consultation
There are no implications associated with this report.  

Procurement
There are no implications associated with this report.

Disability Issues
There are no implications associated with this report.

Legal Implications
There are no implications associated with this report.

Page 448


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meetings held on 9 November and the Special Meeting on 28 November 2017
	281117 final

	7 South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership Path to Excellence Consultation Feedback - Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and presentation by representatives of South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Partnership
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 2 - Path to Excellence Consultation - AWHOSC response
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 3 - Path to Excellence Consultation Analysis Final Report 080118 Inc Amends

	8 North Durham Clinical Commissioning Group - Rapid Specialist Opinion service - Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and presentation by Dr. Neil O'Brien, Chief Clinical Officer, North Durham CCG
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix 2 - RSO General Briefing
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix 3 - North Durham CCG RSO Evaluation updatedv2

	9 Decommissioning of Stroke Support Service by County Durham and Darlington CCGs - Update - Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	Agenda Item 9 - Appendix 2 - Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview January 2018
	Agenda Item 9 - Appendix 3 - Healthwatch Stroke Support Service Engagement Findgings

	10 Draft Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 2018 Consultation - Report of Director of Public Health, Durham County Council
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix DRAFT PNA for County Durham

	11 Quarter Two 2017/18 Performance Management Report - Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	12 Adults and Health Services Quarter 2 Forecast of Revenue and Capital Outturn 2017/18 - Report of the Head of Finance and Transactional Services

